TRI-CITY HEALTHCARE DISTRICT
AGENDA FOR A REGULAR MEETING
December 14, 2017 - 1:30 o’clock p.m.

Assembly Room 1 - Eugene L. Geil Pavilion
Open Session - Assembly Rooms 2&3
4002 Vista Way, Oceanside, CA 92056

The Board may take action on any of the items listed
below, unless the item is specifically labeled
“Informational Only”

Time

Agenda Item Allotted Requestor
Call to Order 3 min. Standard
Approval of agenda
Public Comments — Announcement 3 min. Standard
Members of the public may address the Board regarding any item listed on
the Closed Session portion of the Agenda. Per Board Policy 14-018,
members of the public may have three minutes, individually, to address the
Board of Directors.
Oral Announcement of ltems to be Discussed During Closed Session
{Authority: Government Code, Section 54957.7)
Motion to go into Closed Session
Closed Session 2 Hours

a. Conference with Legal Counsel — Existing Litigation
(Authority Government Code Section 54956.9(d)1, (d)4

1) RoseMarie Reno vs. Tri-City Healthcare District
Superior Court Case No. 37-2017-00040507-CU-CR

2) Medical Acquisitions Company vs. Tri-City Healthcare District
Case No: 2014-00009108

3) Tri-City Healthcare District vs. Medical Acquisition Company
Case No: 2014-00022523

b. Hearings on Reports of the Hospital Medical Audit or
Quality Assurance Committees
(Authority: Health & Safety Code, Section 32155)

c. Reports Involving Trade Secrets
(Authority: Health and Safety Code, Section 32106)
Discussion Will Concern: Proposed new service or program
Date of Disclosure: December 31, 2017

Note: Any writings or documents provided to a majority of the members of Tri-City Healthcare District regarding any item on this

Agenda will be made available for public inspection in the Administration Department located at 4002 Vista Way,

Oceanside, CA 92056 during normal business hours.

Note: If you have a disability, please notify us at 760-940-3347 at least 48 hours prior to the meeting

so that we may provide reasonable accommodations.




Agenda Item

Time
Allotted

Requestor

d. Approval of prior Closed Session Minutes

e. Conference with Legal Counsel — Potential Litigation
(Authority: Government Code, Section 54956.9(d) 1 Matter)

f. Public Employee Evaluation: Chief Executive Officer
(Authority: Government Code, Section 54957)

g. Evaluation of Legal Counsel Services
(Authority: Gov. Code section 54957)

~

Motion to go into Open Session

Open Session

Open Session - Assembly Room 3 — Eugene L. Geil Pavilion (Lower
Level) and Facilities Conference Room — 3:30 p.m.

Report from Chairperson on any action taken in Closed Session
(Authority: Government Code, Section 54957.1)

10

Roll Call / Pledge of Allegiance

3 min.

Standard

11

Public Comments — Announcement

Members of the public may address the Board regarding any item listed on
the Board Agenda at the time the item is being considered by the Board of
Directors. Per Board Policy 14-018, members of the public may have three
minutes, individually, to address the Board of Directors.

NOTE: Members of the public may speak on any item not listed on the
Board Agenda, which falls within the jurisdiction of the Board of Directors,
immediately prior to Board Communications.

2 min.

Standard

12

Special Presentation —

AHA Association Banner - Jennifer Sobotka and Agnes McGlone

5 min.

CMO

13

Special Recognition —

Diane Sikora, RN, CMSRN
San Diego Business Journal's Women Who Mean Business Award

5 min.

CNE

14

Educational Report —
Webinar presentation by California Healthcare Association

How California Hospitals Get Reimbursed for the Care they Provide

60 min.

Chair

15

Report from TCHD Auxiliary — Mary Gleisberg, President

10 min.

Standard

16

Report from TCHD Foundation — Glen Newhart, Chief Development Officer

10 min.

Standard

17

Report from Chief Executive Officer

10 min.

Standard

18

Report from Chief Financial Officer

10 min.

Standard

19

New Business

a. Consideration and possible action to elect Board of Director Officers for
calendar year 2018

10 min.

Chair

TCHD Regular Board of Directors Meeting Agenda -2-

December 14, 2017




Time

Agenda ltem Allotted Requestor
b. Consideration to award Surface Parking Lot contract to Sierra Pacific 5 min. COO
West
c. Consideration of 2018 Board Committee Schedule 5 min. Chair
d. Consideration of CEO Contract 10 min. Ad Hoc CEO
Evaluation
Committee
e. Consideration of amendments to Flexible Benefits Plan 10 min. Ad Hoc CEO
Evaluation
Committee
20 | Old Business
a. LAFCO Update 5 min. Board
Counsel
b. CVRA Community Meetings Recap 10 min. Board
Counsel
c. Amended 2018 Board Meeting Schedule 5 min. Chair
d. Board Portal Training — Information only 5 min. Director
Mitchell
e. Board Retreat Follow-up
1. Board Committee Recommendations regarding committee
composition and meeting frequency
a. Finance, Operations & Planning Committee 5 min. FOP
b. Professional Affairs Committee Chair/PAC
Chair
21 | Chief of Staff 5 min. Standard
a. Consideration of November 2017 Credentialing Actions and
Reappointments Involving the Medical Staff and Allied Health
Professionals as recommended by the Medical Executive Committee on
November 27, 2017
22 | Consideration of Consent Calendar 5 min. Standard
(1) Board Committees
(1) All Committee Chairs will make an oral report to the Board
regarding items being recommended if listed as New
Business or pulled from Consent Calendar.
(2) All items listed were recommended by the Committee.
(3) Requested items to be pulled require a second.
A. Human Resources Committee HR Comm.
Director Kellett, Committee Chair
Open Community Seats — 0
(No meeting held in November, 2017)
B. Employee Fiduciary Retirement Subcommittee Emp. Fid.
Director Kellett, Subcommittee Chair Subcomm.

Open Community Seats —~ 1
(No meeting held in November, 2017)

TCHD Regular Board of Directors Meeting Agenda -3-

December 14, 2017




Time
Agenda Item Allotted Requestor

C. Community Healthcare Alliance Committee CHAC Comm.
Director Nygaard, Committee Chair
(No meeting held in November, 2017)

D. Finance, Operations & Planning Committee FO&P Comm.
Director Nygaard, Committee Chair
Open Community Seats — 3
(Committee minutes included in Board Agenda packets for
informational purposes)

a) Approval of an agreement with Dr. Martina Kiein for Co-
Medical Directorship for a term of 31 months, beginning
December 1, 2017 through Jun 30, 2020, for an hourly rate of
$140, an annual maximum cost not to exceed $35,120 and a
total cost for the term not to exceed $90,706.

b) Approval of an agreement with Rady Children’s Specialists of
San Diego for Retinopathy of Prematurity Testing for a term of
12 months, beginning January 1, 2018 through December 31,
2018, for a cost of $3,077 per month, for a total cost for the term
of $36,924.

c) Approval of an increase in term cost for the existing
agreement with Premier Laser Services LLC, with a term
beginning April 4, 2016, through April 3, 2018, with a new not-to-
exceed cost for term of $525,000.

d) Approval of an agreement with Premier Laser Services, Inc.
for laser, ESWL (Extracorporeal Shock Wave Lithotripsy),
ultrasound and CUSA (Cavitron Ultrasonic Surgical Aspirator)
rental for term of 24 months, beginning April 4, 2018 through
April 3, 2020, for an annual cost of $275,000, and a total cost for
the term of $550,000.

e) Approval of an agreement with South Coast Perfusion, LLC
for Perfusion Services for a term of 24 months, beginning
February 1, 2018 through January 31, 2020, for a total term cost
not to exceed $350,000.

f) Approval of an agreement with Katherine Ludington, M.D. for
shared marketing services for a term of 12 months, beginning
December 1, 2017 through November 30, 2018, for an annual
cost of $8,000 and a total cost for the term of $8,000 ($4,000 for
each entity).

g) Approval of an agreement with Good-Men Roofing &
Construction, Inc. for construction costs of $124,263 and the
total expected project cost of $257,082 for addition of the new
SonoCine Room in the Women'’s Imaging Center.

h) Approval of an agreement with Cerner for Enterprise Dragon
for a term of 60 months, beginning January 1, 2018, through
December 31, 2022, for an annual cost of $302,950, and a total
cost for the term of $1,514,752.

i) Approval of a Lease Agreement for Suite 200 in the Carlsbad

TCHD Regular Board of Directors Meeting Agenda -4- December 14, 2017

4



Time
Agenda ltem Aliotted Requestor

Weliness Center MOB located at 6260 El Camino Real,
Carlsbad, CA 92009, with Lansara, Inc. for a ten-year term (120
months), at the rate of $7,786.50 per month for the first year,
increasing 3% yearly thereafter, and also tenant improvement
costs of $269,037 for Suite 200 in the Carlsbad Wellness Center
MOB.

E. Professional Affairs Committee PAC
Director Mitchell, Committee Chair
(Committee minutes included in Board Agenda packets for
informational purposes)

1) Patient Care Policies and Procedures

a. Code Pink in Women's and Children’s Services
Standardized Procedure

End of Life Policy

Monitor Technicians (MT’s): Communication Process
Newborn Screening Collection of Specimen Procedure

Pet Therapy Policy

Pre-printed Orders Policy

Referrals to Social Services for Patients Identified to be High
Risk Policy

Venipuncture for Specimen

> @roeeg

2) Unit Specific —~ Behavioral Health Services
a. Administration of Antipsychotic Medication

3) Unit Specific — Engineering
a. Utility Management Plan 4003

4) Unit Specific — Environment of Care
a. Life Safety Management Plan
b. Safety Plan
¢. Security Management Plan

5) Unit Specific - Outpatient Behavioral Health
a. Transportation of Patients (DELETE)

6) Unit Specific — Rehabilitation
a. Pet Therapy- Tender Loving Canines (DELETE)

7) Formulary Requests
a. Colloidal Oatmeal (DELETE)
b. Dicylomine Vial for Injection (DELETE)
c. Fentanyl Lozenges (DELETE)
d. Lactase Enzyme Tablets (DELETE)

F. Governance & Legislative Committee
Director Dagostino, Committee Chair
Open Community Seats - 0
(Committee minutes included in Board Agenda packets for
informational purposes)

A) Board of Director Policies:

TCHD Regular Board of Directors Meeting Agenda -5- December 14, 2017



Time

Agenda Item Allotted | Requestor
1) Approval of Board Policy 17-001 — Budget for Medical
Equipment or Medical Services (DELETE)
2) Approval of Board Policy 17-009 — Requests for
Information or Assistance by Board Members
3) Approval of Board Policy 17-010 — Board Meeting Agenda
Development, Efficiency of and Time Limits for Board
Meetings, Role and Powers of Chairperson
4) Approval of Board Policy 17-011 — Placement of ltems on
Committee Agendas
5) Approval of Board Policy 17-021 — Use of Legal Counsel
by Members of the Board of Directors
6) Approval of Board Policy 17-022 — Maintenance of
Confidentiality by Directors and Committee Members
7) Approval of Board Policy 17-023 — Responsibility for
Decision-making on Legal Matters
8) Approval of Board Policy 17-042 — Duties of the Board of
Directors
9) Approval of Board Policy 17-043 — External Organization
Usage of Assembly Rooms, Classrooms and Conference
Rooms
B) Approval of amended Bylaws
C) Approval of Medical Staff Rules & Regulations
1) Department of Pediatrics
2) Department of Radiology
G. Audit, Compliance & Ethics Committee Audit, Comp.
Director Schallock, Committee Chair & Ethics
Open Community Seats — 0 Comm.
(No meeting held in November, 2017)
(2) Minutes — Approval of: Standard
a) Regular Board of Directors Meeting — October 26, 2017
b) Special Board of Directors Meeting — November 2, 2017
c) Special Board of Directors Meeting — November 29, 2017
(Oceanside)
d) Special Board of Directors Meeting — November 29, 2017 (Carlsbad)
e) Special Board of Directors Meeting — November 30, 2017 (Vista)
(3) Meetings and Conferences — NONE
(4) Dues and Memberships - NONE
23 | Discussion of ltems Pulled from Consent Agenda 10 min. | Standard

TCHD Regular Board of Directors Meeting Agenda -6-

December 14, 2017



Time

Agenda ltem Allotted Requestor
24 | Reports (Discussion by exception only) 0-5 min. | Standard
(a) Dashboard
(b) Construction Report — None
(c) Lease Report — (November, 2017)
(d) Reimbursement Disclosure Report — (November, 2017)
(e) Seminar/Conference Reports - None
25 | Legislative Update 5 min. Standard
26 | Comments by Members of the Public 5-10 Standard
NOTE: Per Board Policy 14-018, members of the public may have three (3) minutes
minutes, individually, to address the Board
27 | Additional Comments by Chief Executive Officer 5 min. Standard
28 | Board Communications (three minutes per Board member) 18 min. | Standard
29 | Report from Chairperson 3 min. Standard
Total Time Budgeted for Open Session 3.5
hours
30 | Oral Announcement of ltems to be Discussed During Closed Session
31 | Motion to Return to Closed Session (if needed)
32 | Open Session
33 | Report from Chairperson on any action taken in Closed Session
{Authority: Government Code, Section 54957.1) — (If Needed)
34 | Adjournment

TCHD Regular Board of Directors Meeting Agenda -7-

December 14, 2017



ADVANCED HEALTH CARH

(@) Tri-City Medical Center

AUDIT, COMPLIANCE & ETHICS
COMMITTEE

MEETING DATES

2018
Time: 8:30-10:00 AM
Location: All meetings to be held in Assembly Room # 1

January 18, 2018
April 19, 2018
May 17, 2018
July 19, 2018

August 16, 2018

September 20, 2018

October 18, 2018

4002 Vista Way, Oceanside, CA 92056 * (760) 724-8411



ADVANCED HEALTH CAR

Tri-City Medical Center R YYOU

COMMUNITY HEALTHCARE&
ALLIANCE COMMITTEE

MEETING DATES
2018
Time: 12:30-2:00 PM

Location: All meetings to be held in Assembly Room #3

January 18, 2018
February 15, 2017
March 15, 2017
April 19, 2017
May 17, 2017
June 21, 2017
July 19, 2017
August 16, 2017
September 20, 2017
October 18, 2017
No Meeting in November

No Meeting in December

4002 Vista Way, Oceanside, CA 92056 ¢ (760) 724-8411




@9 Tri-City Medical Center

FINANCE, OPERATIONS AND PLANNING

MEETING DATES

2018

Time: 12:30-3:30 PM

Location: All meetings to be held in Assembly Room # 2, (exceptions noted below)

January 16, 2018
February 13, 2018, AR #3
March 20, 2018
April 17,2018
May 22, 2018
June 19, 2018
July 17, 2018
August 21, 2018
September 18, 2018
October 16, 2018
November20,-2018 CANCELLED

December 4, 2018 (1" Week of December), AR #3

4002 Vista Way * Oceanside, California 92056 « (760) 724-8411

‘‘‘‘‘‘

ADVANCED HEALTH CARE

FOR Y@U

10



ADVANCED HEALTH CARE

@9 Tri-City Medical Center

GOVERNMENT & LEGISLATIVE
COMMITTEE

MEETING DATES

2018
Time: 12:30-2:00 PM
Location: All meetings to be held in Assembly Room # 3

January 2, 2018

April 3, 2018

July 3, 2018

October 2, 2018

4002 Vista Way, Oceanside, CA 92056 « (760) 724-8411
1



ADVANCED HEALTH CAR

@) Tri-City Medical Center

HUMAN RESOURCES COMMITTEE

MEETING DATES

2018
Time: 12:30-2:30 PM
Location: All meetings to be held in Assembly Room # 3

January 9, 2018

April 10, 2018

July 10, 2018

October 9, 2018

4002 Vista Way, Oceanside, CA 92056 ¢ (760) 724-8411
12



ADVANCED HEALTH CAR

@9 Tri-City Medical Center

HR EMPLOYEE FIDUCIARY
RETIREMENT SUBCOMMITTEE

MEETING DATES

2018
Time: 11:00 AM-12:30 PM

Location: All meetings to be held in Assembly Room # 3

January 9, 2018

April 10, 2018

July 10, 2018

October 9, 2018

4002 Vista Way, Oceanside, CA 92056 - (760) 724-8411
13



Tri-City Medical Center

PROFESSIONAL AFFAIRS
COMMITTEE

MEETING DATES

2018
Time: 12:00-2:30 PM

Location: All meetings to be held in Assembly Room # 1
January 11, 2018
February 8, 2018

March 8, 2018
April 12, 2018
May 10, 2018
June 14,2018
July 12, 2018
August 9, 2018
September 13, 2018
October 11, 2018
November 8, 2018

December 13,2018

4002 Vista Way, Oceanside, CA 92056 « (760) 724-8411

14



TCHD BOARD OF DIRECTORS
MEETING SCHEDULE
CALENDAR YEAR 2018

Regqular Board of Directors Meetings — Open Session to begin at 3:30 p.m.
Closed Session to begin at 1:30 p.m. and again immediately following
_Open Session, if needed

January 25, 2018 (Last Thursday)
February 22, 2018 (Last Thursday)
March 29, 2018 (Last Thursday)
April 26, 2018 (Last Thursday)

May 31, 2018 (Last Thursday)

>

>

>

>

>

> June 28, 2018 (Last Thursday)
> July 26, 2018 (Last Thursday)

>  August 30, 2018 (Last Thursday)

> September 27, 2018 (Last Thursday)

> No meeting in October due to General Election

> November 8, 2018 (Thursday following General Election)
>

December 13, 2018 (Second Thursday in December)

Special Board of Directors Meeting — May 1, 2018 — 1:00 p.m.
Strategic Planning Workshop (1)

Special Board of Directors Meeting — May 3, 2018 — 10:00 a.m.
Closed Session to review biennial quality reports

Special Board of Directors Meeting —May 29, 2018 — 1:00 p.m.
Strategic Planning Workshop (2)

Special Board of Directors Meeting — June 14, 2018 — 6:00 p.m.
Budget Workshop

Special Board of Directors Meeting -December 11, 2018 — 10:00 a.m.
Closed Session to review biennial quality reports

15



2018 Dates to Note:

ACHD Leadership Academy — February 8-9, 2018
CHA Legislative Day — March 20-21, 2018

ACHD Legislative Day — TBD

AHA Annual Meeting — May 6-9, 2018

ACHD Annual Meeting -~ TBD

YVVVVY

Proposed Schedule: December 14, 2017
Approved by BOD:

16



BOARD COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATIONS

Professional Affairs Committee

>

No changes recommended.

Finance, Operations & Planning Committee

>
>
>

Reduce community members to two (2)

Add one primary care physician (to be appointed by Chief of Staff)

Administrative Staff attendees to include General Counsel, Chief Compliance Officer,
Chief Financial Officer, Chief Operations Officer, Chief Nurse Executive and Chief
Executive Officer

Focus on financial performance of the hospital and any critical areas that need attention.

Implement Consent Calendar for all items that are not handled by “write-ups”; items can
be pulled from Consent Calendar as necessary

17



Tri-City
Medlcal Center

(c’?)

TRI-CITY MEDICAL CENTER

MEDICAL STAFF INITIAL CREDENTIALS REPORT
November 7, 2017

e ——

Attachment A

INITIAL APPOINTMENTS (Effective Dates: 12/15/2017 - 10/31/2019)

Any items of concern will be “red” flagged in this report. Verification of licensure, specific training, patient
care experience, interpersonal and communication skills, professionalism, current competence relating to
medical knowledge, has been verified and evaluated on all applicants recommended for initial appointment to
the medical staff. Based upon this information, the following physicians have met the basic requirements of
staff and are therefore recommended for appointment effective 12/15/2017 through 10/31/2019:

e FLORES, Edna MD (CCare)
e HOTCHKI ohn M.D. / Teleradiol tatRad

KELLY, Thom D /Maternal & Fetal Medicin D

WILSON, Deisha DO /Family Medicine (OptumcCare)
WOLF, Richard DO/Maternal & Fetal Medicine (UCSD)

18



Tri-City
‘C‘? Medlcal Center

TRI-CITY MEDICAL CENTER

MEDICAL STAFF CREDENTIALS REPORT -1 of 3
November 7,2017

—
-

Attachment B

BIENNIAL REAPPOINTMENTS: (Effective Dates 01/01/2018 -12/31/2019)

Any items of concern will be “red” flagged in this report. The following application was recommended for
reappointment to the medical staff office effective 01/01/2018 through 12/31/2019, based upon
practitioner specific and comparative data profiles and reports demonstrating ongoing monitoring and
evaluation, activities reflecting level of professionalism, delivery of compassionate patient care, medical
knowledge based upon outcomes, interpersonal and communications skills, use of system resources,
participation in activities to improve care, blood utilization, medical records review, department specific
monitoring activities, health status and relevant results of clinical performance:

J L. Preeti MD hthalmol ision

e BREESE, Mark DMD/ Oral & Maxillofacial Sur Provisional
e BROWN, Dorothy MD/ Emergency Medicine/Active

e (CIZMAR, Branislav MD Provisional

e DANG, Paul MD/Internal icin tiv

° ALBERT D /Neurol Provisional
e KARAS, Stephen MD/ Emergency Medicine /Active

o LEVINE, Neil MD/Internal Medici Refer and F

e MALHIS, Safouh MD/Pulmonary Medicine/Active
e MATAYOSHI, Amy MD/Internal Medicine/Active

J T nketkumar MD/In 1 icine/Activ

. L, Rami 1 & Vascular Sur ive Aff
e ZAVERI Maulik MD 1 Activ

o ILLA, Juan MD icine /Activ

UPDATE TO PREVIOUS REAPPOINTMENT:

e MOZAYAN-ISFAHANI, Arash /Active Affiliate

Page 1 0of 2

19



Tri-City
(C‘)) Medlcal Center

TRI-CITY MEDICAL CENTER

MEDICAL STAFF CREDENTIALS REPORT -1 of 3
November 7, 2017

RESIGNATIONS: (Effective date 12/31/2017 unless otherwise noted)
Automatic:

* CHAMMAS, Joseph MD

Voluntary:

) Lori MD regency Medici

Page 2 of 2

Attachment B

20



‘@ Tr|-C|t

Medlcal Center

TRI-CITY MEDICAL CENTER

CREDENTIALS COMMITTEE REPORT - Part 3 of 3

November 7,2017

T ——————n e

— —

RANT, Col D
Release from Proctoring:

KROENER, John MD

Release from Proctoring:

MCGRAW, Charles MD
Release from Proctoring:

MOSTOFIAN, Eimaneh MD
Release from Proctoring:

NOEL, Sophonie MD
Release from Proctoring:

PERLMAN, Tamara CNM
Release from Proctoring:

SILVERWOQOD, Cristie NP

Release from Proctoring:

TABLER ly PA
Release from Proctoring:

TAYLOR, Phyllis NP

Release from Proctoring:

TOMEN il_MD
Release from Proctoring:

TRULLENDER, Brett MD
Release from Proctoring:

WILTSE, Lise MD
Release from Proctoring:

Attachment C

PROCTORING RE MMENDATIONS (Effective 12/15/17, unless otherwise specified

Pediatrics
Newborn Care Level 1 & 2, Amit Patients Level 1 & 2,
Performance of History & Physical, Consultation

General Surgery
Assist in Robotic Surgery (da Vinci) & Xi

Anesthesiology
Moderate Sedation

OB/GYN
Vaginal Deliveries & Diagnostic Laparoscopy

Anesthesiology

Consultation, Evaluate and treat patients with anesthesia
related problems, Perform history and physical examination,
General Anesthesia, Regional Anesthesia, Invasive
Monitoring

Allied Health Professional
First Assist at C-Section

Allied Health Professional
NP - Neurology

Allied Health Professional
Central IV Access

Allied Health Professional
NP - Hospitalist

Emergen icin
Limited Abdominal Ultrasonography

Emergency Medicine
General Patient Care

Anesthesiology
Regional Anesthesia

21



23 Tri-Cit
I (C‘» Medigal Center
TRI-CITY MEDICAL CENTER
' CREDENTIALS COMMITTEE REPORT - Part 3 of 3
| November 7, 2017

Attachment C

PROCTORING RECOMMENDATIONS (Effective 12/15/17, unless otherwi cified

¢  GRANT, Colette MD Pediatrics

e KROENER, John MD General Surgery

e MCGRAW, Charles MD n iol

e MOSTOFIAN, Eimaneh MD OB/GYN

e NOEL, Sophonie MD Anesthesiology

e PERLMAN, Tamara CNM Allied Health Professional
e SILVERWOOD, Cristie NP Allied Health Pr ional
e STABLER, Holly PAC Allied Health Professional
e TAYLOR, Phyllis NP Allied Health Professional
e TOMENANG, Neil MD Emergency Medicine

e TRULLENDER, Brett MD Emergency Medicine

e  WILTSE, Lise MD Anesthesiology

22



Human Resources Committee
(No meeting held in
November, 2017)

23



Employee Fiduciary Subcommittee
(No meeting held in
November, 2017)

24



Community Healthcare &
Alliance Committee
(No meeting held in November, 2017)

25



ssauisng p|O

‘Bulureisqe ey "1q

pue paeebAN 1030211q Y3m ‘panoadde
3¢ 0} ale /102 ‘Ll 1990320 jO
sa)nuiw ay) jey) ‘papuoaas op.iejuod)
1Q ‘N9|19Y 1039341 Aq paArow sem )|
NOILON

"paijjes aiam sajnuipy

‘paijilel alam sajnuIpy

2102 'Ll
18g0J0Q JO sanuIW JO uoneodliey

piseebAN 10308.1Q

"olignd 8ayj Jo siequiswl WOl
sjuswiwod Buipiebal ydeibesed
3y} peai pieebAN J0303.1Q

‘Wa}l 8y} JO uoleIapISuU0d
S,99}ILWOD alojaq 2dljgnd auy
0} }salajut Jo way Aue uo aignd
8y} Jo siaquisw AQ sjuswiwio)

1102 ‘L 1aquiadsa(g jo epuabe ay)
jdaosoe 0} paaoudde Ajsnowiueun sem
}1 pue ‘papuodas ||aYdliA 10393l1qg
‘N9|19)y 1039941 Aq paAow sem )|
NOILON

epuaby Jo |jeaouddy -

‘wrd gg:z| e JopJo 0} bunsaw

ay) ps||es pieebAN 4030811 Jsplo 0} ||eD
suoisnjouo)
a|qisuodsay suoljepuswiuoday
(s)uosiagd /SHORERUBLILIODSY SUOISNI2U0) ‘suoissnasi( dydoy
uoipy ;

SUON Juasqy siaquisiy

yHomsuleH eleqleg ‘Jsulag aA9)lg ‘seled

aoIpue) ‘alooj) sewoy] ‘puowelq ey ‘Wybuqiy yiep ‘Aued ausuey) ‘iIsnokher yeleg ‘eidese) euep
‘Wouuag pineq ‘Jakswun suep ‘HeymapN us|9) ‘uosdwoy| uds|(0D ‘HSMOYDINN SUYD ‘owiey Awalsp :siaylo

$90IM8g |ebaT-10)08.1(] ‘puog uesng ‘1821 uonewlojsuel | |eydsoH
dA ‘auoisBulAIT B09S ‘00D ‘ZniD sole) ‘00D ‘Asjuo) endey ‘04D ‘seary Aey ‘OTD ‘ulBIqg aAL8)S :Jussaid

slaquisay Bunoa-uoN

Ja)jayuabul] suhepn ‘uoibuLueH aA3]S ‘Be)euBWEA Yep
"Jg ‘BN |us9) uQ ‘opiejuo) shatey 1 ‘IIPYOHIN BineT J0}oaliq ‘B89 JUAD J01oaliq ‘pieebAN alnr 1030a41Qg Juasald sJaquay|

1102 ‘2 Jaquiadaq
sa)nui 9alwwo) Buluuej obue suonelado ‘eoueuly

193uaQ [edlpe ApD-ML




2102 ‘L JequiedeQ

Z sBunes|y saniwwon Buluue|d pue suoneladO ‘eoueul

IsnoAAep yeles

‘021L'6E£$ po9IXad 0} Jou }1SO02 Wnuwixew
jenuue ue ‘opL$ Jo ajes Aunoy

ue 10} 0Z0Z ‘0€ aunr Buipua pue /102
‘L Jaqwiasag Huluuibaq ‘syjuowt Lg
40 ud) e uoy diysiolydauiq |eoIpaN-09)
10} uIs|)f euiMe aq Yyim juswaaibe
ay) azuoyjne siojdauiq jo pleogqg
dHO1 @y} jey) puswiwiosad 3 iuwo)
Bujuue|d pue suopesadQ ‘@oueulq
ayj jey) paroudde Ajsnowjueun

SBM }| pue ‘papuodas opiejuo’)

1Q ‘I1IvY2 N 10393413 Ag paAow SeMm )|
NOILONW

}oam Jad sInoy INoj YJom

0} pajoafoud st uidly uQ "YiesH
jeloineyag juanedinQ Joj J0joalIp
|eaipaw-09 Jo Ajoedeod ay) ul MOJIN
"1 Buioe|dal si oym ‘Ui BUILBI
1 ypm juswaaibe mau e s|

SIY} Jey} pauie|dxs 1snoAAer yeleg

‘AN ‘U9 BUILBIN  °

yilesy |eloireysyg

jusnedinQ — Juswasiby
40393liQ |BAPBN-0D 'q

1eyo

"uoljepuswiwossl

SIU} Jo AYIGeIA BU} Yym Jsisse

0} pay Sk aJam 98I0y 8y} uo
suejoisAyd ay) ‘|aued saquisw yejs
|ealpaw 8y} 0} pappe aq ueisAyd
aleo Auewd e jey) paysabbns

os|e sem }j "9Al) snoinaid

3y} JO Naj| ul slaquiaw AJuUNwIWOoD
OM} ©q 8J8Y} JBey} papuswiwiooal
SEM }| "BWEeS 8y} ulewal pjnom
sJiaquiaw Buljoa-uou pue BuiloA ayy
JO aINjonJis oy "Swa) [emaual 10}
pajuswa|dwi aq Jepus|ed Jusasuod
e jey} pajsabbns sem )| ‘Bujwiopad
ale Aay} moy pue swelboid
snoleA ay} uo dn-mojjo} yidap

ul alow jwuad pue ‘eapiwuwo))

ay} jo Aousiolya ||elano sy} anoidwil
0] 8Q pPJNOM 8INJONUIS JUSLIND BY)

0} apew suoljealjipow Aue jo |eob
ay} paziseydwa syg °uoIsSNoSIp
ay) pajeniul pseebAN Jo1oad1qg

Aouanbali4
Bunesy pue diysiaquiapy
‘ainjoni)g Bunesy
aapiwwo) buiuue|d
Q suoljeladQ ‘eoueul{ e
:uoissnosig ‘e

ssauisng meN ‘9

a|qisuodsay
(s)uosie

suolIsn|auo)
/suoepuawoddy
uonoy

SUOIJEPUBWIWOIY
St___shjouo9 ‘suoissnoasi(

oido]




L10T ‘L Jequide(

e sBunsspy eapiwwo) Buluue|d pue suonesadQ ‘@oueul

9y} aziioyjne s103)0341qg Jo pieog
dHOL1 2Y3 Jey} puswiwiodal 3daHWWod
Buiuue|d pue suonesadp ‘asueul

3y} yey} panoadde Ajsnowjueun

SEM }] pue ‘papuodas }}3||a) 10393.1Q
‘oplejuod) "1qg Aq pasow sem )|

aABM YO0ys [ealodioorlixe
‘punoselj|n ‘siase| |eoibuns

|ejual 10} sue|oIuUyoa} pue saljiddns
‘uswdinbs apincid 0} jlemaual
JOBJJUOD B SBM "OU| ‘S9DIAISS
JaseT Jalwald Joj |esodoid

|jesodoid

puoweiq Alep NOILOIN S1U} 1By} paulejdxa puowelq Aep | "ouj ‘sedIneg JoseT Jajwald e
"000°G2S¢$ St wua)
9y} 10} }SO2 PaaIXa-0}-jou M3au ayl
"8102 ‘¢ |udy Buipua pue 9102 ‘v jludy .
Buluuibaq waa) B Yjm ‘9 S99IAISS LUl L2
1958 J81Waig UM Juswaaibe ay} Buisealoul ay) 10§ $82IN0S
Bunsixa sy} 40} }S0D WiId) Ul asealoul Sy} sk Jase| wniwjoy paiamod
ue azuoyjne siojdall( jo pieog Jaybiy 8y} o} asn ul YIys € Se [jom
@HIO1 2y} ey} puawiwiosal 3apiwwo) SE ‘S9OJA9P UlelaD JO 9sn pasealdul
Buluue|d pue suonesadQ ‘aoueuly 9y} pald 8yg "ou] ‘sadIMIBS
ay3 jey) paroidde Ajsnowitueun JaseT Jalwald yum juswsalbe
SEM }I pue ‘papuodas 13|19y J030alig | Bunsixe ay) Jo Junowe sy} aseaoul
‘lIBY23IN 4039311 Aq paAOW SBM }| 0} papiwgns Bulaq si |esodoud |[esodoid aseaiou)
puoweiq Alep NOILOIN siy} 1ey) pauodal puowelq Alepy | "ou| ‘s@oIAISg JoseT Jsjwald P
"¥26°9€$ JO wue) ay)
10} 309 |ejo) e 1o} ‘Yyuow Jad 20°C$
JO 3509 e 10§ ‘gL0Z ‘L€ Jaquade(
Bulpua pue ‘gLog ‘L Adenuep
Bujuuibaq ‘syjuow Z| Jo wud) e 1o}
Bupsa] Ajunjewald jo Ayjedounay
loj obaiqg ues jo sjisijeldads
s, ualpjiyo Apey yyum juawaaibe
ay} azuoyjne si10)2aliq jo pieog
aHoL 243 18y} puswiiodad 33 iuwod) ‘pansua uoIssnasip jailg "ajel
Bujuue|d pue suopesadQ ‘aoueulq ul 8seauoul ue ypm ‘Ajunjewsaud jo
ay) jeyy panoidde A|snowiueun | Ayjedounal Joj Usalos o} NOIN dU}
SeM }I pue ‘papuoI3ds OpPJBIUOD | Ul SBIIAIBS UOIIB)NSUO09 dlwijeyydo Bunse |
*1a ‘NajI9) 4039341 Ag parow sem ) 10} Juswsalbe |lemausal e sem dOd NOIN 40} Juswaaiby
puowelq Auepy NOILOWN SIUY} 1By} paAaAuod puowelq Aep sisijeoadg s,uaipiy) Apey o

"90.°06$ poaoXa
0} JOU WLId} 9y} 10} }SOD |B}O} B pue

a|qisuods~\
(s)uosic _

SuoISN|2uUoH
[SuoiepPUAWILLIOIaY
uopoy

SUOIIEPUAWIWOIY
S._,SNjouo’ ‘suoissnasiq

oidoj




£102 '/ JequiedeQg

P sBunesyy sawwo) buluueld pue suopesadQ ‘esueuly

neuusg piaeQq

"IN Y3m ‘(Ayjua yoea 1o} 000°v$)
000°8$ JO WL} 3y} 104 3S0D |BJ0}

e pue ‘000‘8$ O 3SOD |enuue ue 1o}
810Z ‘0¢ 4aquianop Bulpua pue /L0zZ
‘I Jaqwadaq bBuiuuibaq ‘syyuow g| jo
w49} B 10} SadIAIes Bunaydew paleys
1o} *@’IN ‘uoybuipn auusyIey Yym
juawaalbe ay) azuioyjne si0)daliq
JO pieog QHIOL 24} ey} puswiwodal
a9a)lwwo) HBuluue|d pue suonesadQ
‘agueuly ayj} jey) panoidde sem

} pue ‘papuodas ||aydI 1032341
‘119]19) 1030211 Aq paAow sem )|

NOILOW

aieo Alewnd ayy pue 10U1S1g

Sy} JO sjuapisal 0] psjnguysip
Jajlew pajuud e Jo }SISU0d pjnom
Juswaalbe ay) ey payLed piaeq
"0S/0G S1S02 8y) Ji|ds 0} sealbe
Aued yoes pue ‘uoijonpoud a10jaq
salued yloq Aq Jo paubis pue uodn
paaibe ag pjnom s}sod Buneyiew
paJeys ||y ‘uoibuipnT suusyiey

g pue Jsjuag [esipaly AND-uL
usamlaq saoines Bunayiew paleys
10} Juswaalbe mau e sem siy}

1Byl palediunwiwios yauuag pineq

ABojoipien
}seoQ yuoN “a'w
‘uojbuipn suuayiey e
[esodoid
Juswoalby Bunayep paseys b6

"000°05€$ Pa9oXd
0} JOU }S09 W13} [e30} B 10} 0Z0Z ‘LE

Aienuep Buipua pue gLoz ‘| Adeniqa4
Buiuuibaq ‘syjuow $z Jo wua)} e 1oy
S99IAI9S UoISNyIad 40} O ‘uoisnjiad
}seo? Ynos yim juawaaibe

ay) azuoyjne s10)oallq Jo pieog
aHOL1 33U} Jeyl puswiwosal IO
Bujuuejd pue suonesadQ ‘@dueulq

ayj jey3 paaoidde Ajsnowiueun sem

}I pue ‘papuoaas ||y 10329110
‘NojI9)Y 1039311 Aq paArowl sem )]

"3jel Ul asealoul|

ue sapnjoul yaiym ‘9O ‘uoisnpad
1Se0D YN0 ypm saolales uoisnpuad
10} |lemaual e S| Juswaaibe

jesodoid

puowelq Aep NOILOIN | S!u} Jey} pakaauod puoweiq Aely | Q71 ‘uoisnpad 1seoQ yinog '}
"000°0SS$ Jo w3} ayy
10} 3509 |e}0} B pue ‘000°'GLZ$ JO 1S0D
jenuue ue 10y ‘0z0zZ ‘s |11dy Buipua
pue gL0z ‘v judy Buiuuibaq ‘syjuow
¥ JO wid)} e 1o} [ejual (Jojesidsy
|eo1bing o1uoSse}|n uoajiaed))
VSND pue punosesn ‘(Asdioyy
aABRM Yooys jeasodiooeayxy) "8}kl Ul 8SBaIOUl OU UM
-TMS3 ‘49se] 1o} "ou] ‘sadiatag | (YSND) Jojelidse |eoibins ojuosed)n
JaseT] Jajwaid Yium juswaaibe uoyae) pue (MAMS3) Asdujouy
a|qisuods~\ SUISNIAUAD suonepuUlaWIWO23Y
(s)uosic ISUONERUSMINOSH S._.SNj2u09) ‘suolssnasiq ddoy

uoyoy




£102 ‘L Jequi®daQ

g sbupssy 9aniwwo) Bujuued pue suoneladQ ‘@oueul

owley Awalar

*1Q ‘ISYIN N 1032811 Aq paAow sem )
NOILOI

8nudAal e 10j Juswaalbe mau e
SI sIy} ey} paulejdxa owiey Awalap

Juswaealby asea gON
Jauan ssauj@p-pegsieD

!

6uqlV Men

"¢SL'Y1LS LS Jo wid)

3y} 10} }s09 [BJO} B pue ‘05620€$ 4O
}SO9 jenuue ue 10} 2zZ0zZ ‘L 4aquiasaq
Buipua pue g0z ‘I Atenuep Bujuuibaq
‘syjuows 09 jo w.id} e 10} uobeuaq
asudiajuy 10} 13U Yjm Juswaaibe
3y} azuoyjne s10)d3li( jo pieog
aHO1 3y} ey} puawiwiosal aapIuwo)
Buiuue|d pue suopesad ‘@dsueulq

ayj jey) paroidde Ajshowiueun sem

}I pue ‘papuodas [|IaYdN 1032311qg
‘opiejuo) 1q Aq paAow Sem |
NOILON

‘N0 |[Od [eniul

ay) Jaye syjuow omj ‘|esodoud
SIY} uo ajepdn ue a/ILILIOD

a1 aAIb 0} uinjad Wybuqly

yepy palsanbal pieebAN J030ai1g

‘pensua uoissnosip yueosyiubig
‘uonoeysiyes ueloisAyd pue Ajejes
waned Buisealous ajiym ‘sueoluto
ussm}aq uojjesiunwiwod Bupueyua
snyy * swi-lead, ul (YN3)

pJ02al [BOIpaW 21U01}08}9 8y} ojul
Ajoaa1p sa)0u [BOIpaW JO UonedIp
puad pjnom yoym AbBojouyosy
uoniubooal a210A Jo} uobeiq
asldiajug yum juswaalbe mau e

SI SIY} Jey) paAaAuod JyBuUqY e

|[esodoid
uonejoiq uobeiq ssudiajug

INSMOYIDIN SUYD

“19)ud) Buibew| s,uswopp ay) ui
w00y JUIHOoUOS M3U a3y} jo uoippe
10} 280°262$ J0 1509 Joafoad pajoadxa
[ejo} ay3 pue £92°yZL$ JO S)sod
uoI32NIISUOI 10} “dU| ‘UoI}dNIISU0)

R Bulyooy UdN-PooS Ylim Juswaaihe
ue azuoyjyne si10}2ali( jo pieog
dHOL 2Y3 1By} puswiwiodal 3ajwwod)
Buiuue]d pue suoijesadQ ‘aosueuly
ay} yey} paroudde Ajsnowiueun

SBM }I pue ‘papuooas opiejuo)

1 ‘[I9Y2N 10303.1q Aq paAow sem )|
NOILOW

"S)}9om g-p Ul pa)ajdwod aq p|noo
109foud ayj ‘unbaq asuQ "109loud
3y} Jo} Jappiq aAlsuodsal }Samo|

ay) sem Auedwo) uoloNIISuU0))
pue Bulooy us\-pooo

1B} paABAUOD PISMOYDSIA SUYD
‘uoljepuno4 [eydsoH AN

ay] Ag papuny Aj|ny 89 pjnom 108foud
sIy} 18y} pajels o ‘Aydelbowwew
|euogiped o} younipe

Ul pash pue ‘|00} Uuoj}ov}ap Jeoued

}seauq ajeinaoe ajow Apjueoyubis

B S| punosel}n sunouos
ay} jey) paulejdxa HEYMIN Ud|9

"OUj ‘uoNdNAISU0)
» Bulyooy USN-PO0S) e
108l04d
188 bBuibew| s,uswopn
0} UOHIPPY WO0Y uIpouos

‘Bunjuassip Jayapuabul

‘pansua
uolssnosip jueolyiubig ‘sueloisAyd

a|qisuodsay
(s)uosi.

suoisnjouo)
/SuoljepusWWOoIY
uonay

SUOIEPUBWWIOIBY
S _.Snjouo) ‘suoissnasiq

oido|




L102 'L JsquisdaQ

9 sbunes|y eapiwwon Buluue|d pue suoneladQ ‘asueul

SeAly Aey

268'Le ¢ asuadx3 BupesadQ
cle'te ¢ anuaAay Bupesadp
JJUO\ JUaiing

Kiewwing [epueuld — QHOL
191°12 SUSIA g3
[AX°] sauaAlleg
8022 sese) Aisbing
126°L€ sAeq juaned paisnipy
cLL snsuan Ajieq ‘bBay
9jeQq 0] JEeoA [edsiq

siojedipuj A9y — OO L

(6L2°'L) ¢ 3043
666'c $ valiig3s
0lz'velL $ asuadx3g Bunesadp
gog‘lel ¢ anuaAay bunesadp

ajeq o} JeaA |eosi]

Alewawing jeioueuld — gHO1

(spuesnoyy

ul slejjop) 2102 ‘L€ 18qojoQ Bulpus
sjeloueul) sy} pajuasald seAry Aey

sjeloueuld "y

"dOIN 433ud)

SSau||9M peqsiie) ayjy ul 00¢ ang
10} /£0°692$ JO S)S09 Juawanosdul
jueUd) OS|E pue ‘Ia)ealay}

Apeah o, Buisealoul ‘aeah jsaiy ayy
4o} yyuow Jad 05°98.°L$ Jo ajed ayj je
‘(syuoy 0Z ) wia) Jeak-ua) e 1o} *ouj
‘esesue] Yim ‘60026 VO ‘peqsiied
‘|leay oulwe) |3 0929 Ie pPajed0|
dOIN 19Jua) ssau||aps peqgsie)

3y} ul g0Z 93INS 10} Juswaalby asea]
ay} azuoyjne si0jdali( Jo pieog
aHOL 3Y} ey} puswiwiosal 9o
Bujuue|d pue suonesadQ ‘@dueul4
ayj ey} paaoidde Ajsnowiueun

SBM }I pue ‘papuodas op.iejuod)

'pansus uoissnosIp Jaug "/£0'692$
paadxXe 0] JouU aJle U@.:DU@._

sjuswaAoidwl Jueus) ay} jey)
paAaAu0d Jayuny a4 aleoewsaq
eqp uonelodiod eluiojije) e
‘elesue] o0} Buip|ing 8210 |esipaw
Ssau||lap-peqsHe) syl 1e 00¢
a)ins Jo asea)| Jeah o) ‘Buneisusb

jesodold

a|qisuodsay
(s)uosa.

suojsn|ouo)
/suoljepuawiwioddy
uonoy

SUOIJepuUAWO0I3Y
S .snjauo) ‘suoissnosiqg

oido|




/102 ‘2 Jequadag l sBunsapy asniwwo) buluueld pue suopeiadQ ‘soueuly

‘MoJ} Juaned a)padxa
0} ,9s4nu Jawooz, 3 8y} Jo
uonnyIsul 8y} se |jom se ‘oipsweled
elA Buianae syuaijed 104 spaq
pajeubisap Jo uopejuswa|dwil sy}
SEM pauoljusw os|y ‘uoljoejsiies
aned g3 ||elaAo0 Ul aseaudul
ue 10} 824N0S 8Y) S sjuswaAcsdwil
asay) pajybis ays ‘uonendod
jueied (SgMT) Lusss Buleg noypm
19|, 9y} Se |[oMm Sk ‘saull} Jiem
@3 ui uawaaoidwi yuesiubis ay)
Buljielep uoneussald Julo4iemod
selied a9Ipue) joliq e aAeb seled soipue) Indybnoiyp Q3 e
AJuO uoneuloju] — ue|d YoM |

Aels Jo yibuan

abelany a1Noy-OINDL *
sAeq

waned pasnipy-ONDL ¢
9|qeAleday Sljunoddy

jusiied ul sAeq 1I9N-ONDL  ©

'sydein
8'8Y ‘BAY /W 18N Ul sheq
gsy $ (suoifjiw ur)

"BAY H/V Juslied J1oN

183 [e9sid Ag W/V 19N
Ul SABQ ¢ 4/V Juoned JoN - DINDL

121'G SHSIA d3

90¢ SalBAllRd

95 sose) Aabing

689'6 sAeq jusied pajsnipy

e/l snsua) Ajieq By

UJJUO\ Juaiin)

sio0jedipu] Aay] — DNI L

(b2L) 8 3043

ovL'L $ vawsiig3

ajqisuodsay SUOISNILOD SUOePUAWWOI3Y
(s)uosi [SUOHEPMAILIOISY ¢ ISNjouo0y ‘suoissnasiq didoy

uony




L102 ‘L Jequiade(

8 sBupespy sspiwwo) buluueld pue suoneladQ ‘@oueul

‘wd zy: L pauinolpe bunssy

Juswiuinolpy "0l

(¢) sbBuiuadQ Ajunwwon g

eyo

8102 ‘91 Atenuep ‘Aepsen |

Bunesw jxau jo ajeq ‘g

‘aAljIsod

Ajpwaixe sem Aejs siy bulnsua

Jo} yejs |endsoy ay} pesiesd

pue Jajua) |edlpaly AND-1 1e

Aejs Juaoal e pey p,ay jey) ASAU0D 0}
Ajunpoddo siyj )00} Jayajuabul JN

siequiaw
@8)IWWoo AQ sjuswiwon

SeAly Aey

Ajlenuue-jwes
0} Auapenb wouj palpow
aq pinom Buipoday —
AJabing "10)0a1i( [BOIPOIN
yjuow
Jayjo Aiana 0} Ajlenuue
-lwas wol) pabueyo aq
pinom Buipoday — {[SD)
Hun uonezijigels sisuy e
:swia)l
ue|d YoAA Buimol|o} ay} Jo ainjonis
Buipodal ay) ul abueys e o) paaibe
aapnIuwo) ay) pue pajsabbns
pieebAN 1010811 ‘Ajleuoiippy

uoissnosig ON

pleoquseq e

a|qisuod- -y
(s)uosa.

suoisnjouos)
/suollepuUBWIWIOIdY
uondy

SUOIJEPUBWIIOIDY
$__ISN|2uU0Y ‘suoissnosi(

oido|




FINANCE, OPERATIONS & PLANNING COMMITTEE
DATE OF MEETING: December 7, 2017
Co-Medical Director Agreement - Outpatient Behavioral Health

Type of Agreement X | Co-Medical Directors Panel Other:
Renewal - Renewal — Same
Status of Agreement X | New Agreement New Rates Rates

Physician Name:
Area of Service:
Term of Agreement:

Maximum Totals:

Martina Klein, M.D.

Outpatient Behavioral Health

31 months, Beginning, December 1, 2017 — Ending, June 30, 2020

Within Hourly and/or Annualized Fair Market Value: YES

Vacation Coverage

Vacation Coverage

Hourly Cost Monthly Cost Annual Cost Total Term Cost
$140/
4 Hours/week $2,426 $29,120 $75,206
$500 $6,000 $15,500

Vacation Coverage

Total: $2,926

Total: $35,120

Total: $90,706

*Approval is recommended based on utilizing the approved template. Legal review is not necessary when template is used.

ascription of Services/Supplies:

e Agreement replaces Dr. Mirow’s Agreement

e Provide professional guidance and oversight for the Outpatient Behavioral Health department,
including, the Intensive Outpatient and Older Adult Program.

e Provide supervision for the clinical operation of the department and programs.

e Provide patient and staff education and educate providers and community members on availability of

efficacy of Intensive outpatient Program services.

e Respond to insurance authorization calls and complete reports requested by patients

e Facilitate weekly treatment team meetings and evaluate appropriateness for continued stay.

Document Submitted to Legal: Yes X *No
Approved by Chief Compliance Officer: X Yes No
Is Agreement a Regulatory Requirement: X Yes No
Budgeted Item: X Yes No

*Approval is recommended based on utilizing the approved template. Legal review is not necessary when template is used.

Person responsible for oversight of agreement: Sarah Jayyousi, Operations Manager, Outpatient Behavioral

Health / Sharon Schultz, Chief Nurse Executive

.otion:

| move that Finance Operations and Planning Committee recommend that TCHD Board of Directors authorize

the agreement with Dr. Martina Klein for Co-Medical Directorship for a term of 31 months, beginning
December 1, 2017 and ending June 30, 2020 for an hourly rate of $140, an annual maximum cost not to
exceed $35,120, and a total cost for the term not to exceed $90,706.




ADVANCED HEALTH CARE

@ 7ic .
Tri-City Medical Center R YOU

FINANCE, OPERATIONS & PLANNING COMMITTEE
DATE OF MEETING: December 7, 2017
Rady Children’s Specialists Agreement for NICU ROP Testing

Type of Agreement Medical Directors X | Panel Other:
Renewal — Renewal — Same
Status of Agreement New Agreement X New Rates Rates
Vendor’s Name: Rady Children’s Specialists of San Diego
Area of Service: NICU - Retinopathy of Prematurity Testing
Term of Agreement: 12 months, Beginning, January 1, 2018 - Ending, December 31, 2018

Maximum Totals:

Monthly Cost Annual Cost Total Term Cost
ROP Services $3,077 $36,924 $36,924
Total: $36,924

Description of Services/Supplies:

e Ophthalmic Consultation Services for NICU - Retinopathy of Prematurity (ROP) Testing
e Requested increase of $324 per month, 53,888 for the term

Document Submitted to Legal: X Yes No
Approved by Chief Compliance Officer: X Yes No
Is Agreement a Regulatory Requirement: X Yes No
Budgeted Iltem: X Yes No

Person responsible for oversight of agreement: Mary Diamond, Sr. Director-Nursing, Surgical Services /
Sharon Schultz, Chief Nurse Executive

Motion:
| move that Finance Operations and Planning Committee recommend that TCHD Board of Directors
authorize the agreement with Rady Children’s Specialists of San Diego for Retinopathy of Prematurity

Testing for a term of 12 months, beginning January 1, 2018, and ending December 31, 2018, for a cost of
$3,077 per month, for a total cost for the term of $36,924.

27



ADVANCED HEALTH CARE

Tri-City Medical Center of YOU

FINANCE, OPERATIONS & PLANNING COMMITTEE
DATE OF MEETING: December 7, 2017
PREMIER LASER SERVICES, INC. INCREASE PROPOSAL

Other: Increase in
A Medi i
Type of Agreement edical Directors Panel X Term Cost
Status of Agreement New Agreement Renewal - Renewal - Same
& 8 New Rates Rates

Vendor’s Name: . Premier Laser, Inc.
Area of Service: Surgery
Term of Agreement: 24 months, Beginning, April 4, 2016 — Ending, April 3, 2018

Maximum Totals:

Total Term Cost
Not to Exceed

$525,000

Description of Services/Supplies:
e Requesting an additional $155,496 to be added to the existing contract with Premier Laser Service,
LLC. The current approved term spend for this vendor is $369,504.

e Spend in 2016 (January —December) was $262,048, budgeted spend was $184,752

e Spend 2017 (January —May) is $89,860, at this rate, 2017 spend will be $215,664
o Increased use of BK Ultrasound device for robotic/laparoscopic partial nephrectomy
o Increased use of the Power Wand for PNCL cases
o Shiftin use to higher powered holmium laser

Document Submitted to Legal: Yes X *No
Approved by Chief Compliance Officer: X Yes No
Is Agreement a Regulatory Requirement: Yes X No
Budgeted item: Original Cost ($369,504) X Yes No
Budgeted Item: Additional Cost ($155,496) X Yes No

*Approval is recommended based on utilizing the approved template. Legal review is not necessary when template is used.

Person responsible for oversight of agreement: Mary Diamond, Sr. Director, Nursing & Surgical Services /
Sharon Schultz, Chief Nurse Executive

Motion:

I move that Finance Operations and Planning Committee recommend that TCHD Board of Directors
authorize an increase in term cost for the existing agreement with Premier Laser Services LLC, with a term
beginning April 4, 2016 and ending April 3, 2018. The new not-to-exceed cost for the term is $525,000.

28



ADVANCED HEALTH CARE

Tri-City Medical Center R YYOU

FINANCE, OPERATIONS & PLANNING COMMITTEE
DATE OF MEETING: December 7, 2017
PREMIER LASER SERVICES, INC. PROPOSAL

Type of Agreement Medical Directors Panel Other:
Renewal — Renewal —Same
Status of Agreement New Agreement New Rates X Rates
Vendor’s Name: Premier Laser Services, Inc.
Area of Service: Surgical Services
Term of Agreement: 24 months, Beginning, April 4, 2018 — Ending, April 3, 2020

Maximum Totals:

Annual Cost | Total Term Cost
$275,000 $550,000

Description of Services/Supplies:

e Equipment, supplies and technicians for rental surgical lasers, ultrasound, ESWL (Extracorporeal Shock
Wave Lithotripsy) and CUSA (Cavitron Ultrasonic Surgical Aspirator).

e Contracting for these services provides for the most up to date equipment and supplies, availability of
qualified personnel to operate the equipment and avoidance of costs associate with the purchase,
maintenance, repair, supplies and staffing.

Document Submitted to Legal: Yes X *No
Approved by Chief Compliance Officer: X Yes No
Is Agreement a Regulatory Requirement: Yes X No
Budgeted Item: X | **Yes No

*Approval is recommended based on utilizing the approved template. Legal review is not necessary when template is used.
**To be included in the next proposed FY Budget

Person responsible for oversight of agreement: Mary Diamond, Sr. Director, Nursing & Surgical Services /
Sharon Schultz, Chief Nurse Executive

Motion:

| move that Finance Operations and Planning Committee recommend that TCHD Board of Directors authorize
the agreement with Premier Laser Services, Inc. for laser, ESWL (Extracorporeal Shock Wave Lithotripsy),

ultrasound and CUSA (Cavitron Ultrasonic Surgical Aspirator) rental for a term of 24 months, beginning April 4,
2018 and ending April 3, 2020, for an annual cost of $275,000, and a total cost for the term of $550,000.

29



ADVANCED HEALTH CARE

Tri-City Medical Center R YOU

FINANCE, OPERATIONS & PLANNING COMMITTEE
DATE OF MEETING: December 7, 2017
SOUTH COAST PERFUSION, LLC PROPOSAL

: Perfusi
Type of Agreement Medical Directors Panel X Other: Perfusion
Proposal
Status of Agreement New Agreement X Renewal - RENEWRISSSmE
& 8 New Rates Rates
Vendor’s Name: South Coast Perfusion, LLC
Area of Service: Surgery
Term of Agreement: 24 months, Beginning, February 1, 2018 — Ending, January 31, 2020
Maximum Totals:
Total Term Cost
Not to Exceed
$350,000
Description of Services/Supplies:
e Cardiopulmonary Bypass (CPB)/Standby for cardiac cases
e IntraAortic Balloon Pump Support
e Ventricular Assist Device Support
e ECMO/CPS Support
e Autotransfuion
e Inter-facility Transport
e Hourly rate of $150 for CPB beyond 5 hours
e 5% Rate Increase, as of March 2019
Document Submitted to Legal: Yes X *No
Approved by Chief Compliance Officer: X Yes No
Is Agreement a Regulatory Requirement: X Yes No
Budgeted item: X Yes No

*Approval is recommended based on utilizing the approved template. Legal review is not necessary when template is used.

Person responsible for oversight of agreement: Mary Diamond, Sr. Director, Nursing & Surgical Services /
Sharon Schultz, Chief Nurse Executive

Motion:

I move that Finance Operations and Planning Committee recommend that TCHD Board of Directors

authorize the agreement with South Coast Perfusion, LLC for Perfusion Services for a term of 24 months,
beginning February 1, 2018 and ending January 31, 2020 for a total term cost not to exceed $350,000.

30



ADVANCED HEALTH CARE

Tri-City Medical Center FYOU

FINANCE, OPERATIONS & PLANNING COMMITTEE
DATE OF MEETING: December 7, 2017
Shared Marketing Agreement Proposal

Type of Agreement Medical Directors Panel X :)/It:rtt?:;fgdreemen t
Status of Agreement X | New Agreement Eir\:::::(; Renewal — Same Rates
Vendor’s Name: Katherine Ludington M.D.
Area of Service: North Coast Cardiology
Term of Agreement: 12 months, Beginning, December 1, 2017 - Ending, November 30, 2018

Maximum Totals:

Average TCMC Monthly Cost TCMC Total Term Cost

$333.50 $4,000
Average Monthly Cost Total Term Cost

($4,000 for each entity)

Description of Services/Supplies:

e Shared activities, where each party agrees to 50/50 split of marketing costs. All shared marketing
costs will be agreed upon and signed off in writing by both entities before production and may
include: Billboards, TV commercials, radio, social media, print ads, mailings, banners, buses, digital
ads, events, co-branded promotional materials and photos.

Document Submitted to Legal: Yes X *No
Approved by Chief Compliance Officer: X Yes No
Is Agreement a Regulatory Requirement: X Yes No
Budgeted Item: Yes X No

*Approval is recommended based on utilizing the approved template. Legal review is not necessary when template is used.
Person responsible for oversight of agreement: David M. Bennett, Chief Marketing Officer

Motion:

| move that Finance Operations and Planning Committee recommend that TCHD Board of Directors
authorize the agreement with Katherine Ludington, M.D. for shared marketing services for a term of 12
months, beginning December 1, 2017 and ending November 30, 2018 for an annual cost of $8,000, and a
total cost for the term of $8,000 (54,000 for each entity).

31



ADVANCED HEALTH CARE

Tri-City Medical Center R YOU

FINANCE, OPERATIONS & PLANNING COMMITTEE
DATE OF MEETING: December 7, 2017
SONOCINE ROOM ADDITION TO WOMEN'S IMAGING CENTER PROJECT

Other: Room
Type of Agreemen Medical Direct nel X )
yp greement i irectors Pa Addition
- Renewal — Same
Status of Agreement X | New Agreement Renewal W
New Rates Rates
Vendor’s Name: Good-Men Roofing & Construction, Inc.
Area of Service: Women's Imaging Center
Term of Agreement: Completion of work
Maximum Totals:
A . Total Expected
Room Addition Proposal: Cost:
Good-Men (Construction) $124,263
Design, Permits, Inspections, Nurse Call, Contingency $132,819
Total Expected Project Cost $257,082

Description of Services/Supplies:
e Project is fully funded by the Foundation.
e Good-Men Roofing & Construction, Inc. was the lowest responsive bidder. Bid results below:

Company: | Bid Amount:
Good-Men $124,263

Jennette $124,700
Document Submitted to Legal: Yes X *No
Approved by Chief Compliance Officer: X Yes No
Is Agreement a Regulatory Requirement: Yes X No
Budgeted Item: X Yes No

*Approval is recommended based on utilizing the approved template. Legal review is not necessary when template is used.
Person responsible for oversight of agreement: Chris Miechowski, Director of Facilities / Kapua Conley,
Chief Operating Officer
Motion:
I move that Finance Operations and Planning Committee recommend that TCHD Board of Directors
authorize an agreement with Good-Men Roofing & Construction, Inc. for construction costs of $124,263

and the total expected project cost of $257,082 for addition of the new SonoCiné Room in the Women's
Imaging Center.

32



ADVANCED HEALTH CARE

Tri-City Medical Center R YoOU

FINANCE, OPERATIONS & PLANNING COMMITTEE
DATE OF MEETING: December 7, 2017
Enterprise Dragon Dictation Proposal

Type of Agreement Medical Directors Panel X Other: Voice Recognition
Technology
Status of Agreement | X | New Agreement Renewal - Renewal — Same Rates
New Rates
Vendor’s Name: Nuance Enterprise 360 Medical Dragon purchased through Cerner
Area of Service: Medical Staff
Term of Agreement: 60 months, Beginning, January 1, 2018 - Ending, December 31, 2022
Maximum Totals:
Monthly Cost Annual Cost Total Term Cost
$25,245 $302,950 $1,514,752

Description of Services/Supplies:

e Cerner Enterprise Dragon is a voice recognition technology that allows providers to dictate medical
notes directly into the EMR “real-time.” The utilization of this technology has become industry
standard in both physician practices and hospitals across the county.

e Because the notes are populated “real-time” it enhances communication between clinicians
increasing patient safety and physician satisfaction. Credentialed physicians will be able to utilize a
smart phone application to dictate remotely.

e The technology enhances revenue cycle better supporting documentation flow, decision support
and compliance.

e The proposal includes remote hosting (cloud), Dragon training, and maintenance/support

Document Submitted to Legal: Yes X *No
Approved by Chief Compliance Officer: X Yes No
Is Agreement a Regulatory Requirement: Yes X No
Budgeted Item: X Yes No

*Approval is recommended based on utilizing the approved template. Legal review is not necessary when template is used.

Person responsible for oversight of agreement: Mark Albright, Vice President, Information Technology /
Kapua Conley, Chief Operating Officer

Motion:

| move that Finance Operations and Planning Committee recommend that TCHD Board of Directors
authorize the agreement with Cerner for Enterprise Dragon for a term of 60 months, beginning January 1,
2018 and ending December 31, 2022 for an annual cost of $302,950, and a total cost for the term of
$1,514,752.

33



ADVANCED HEALTH CARE

Trl-Clty Medlcal Center R YOU

FINANCE, OPERATIONS & PLANNING COMMITTEE
DATE OF MEETING: December 7, 2017
Carlsbad-Wellness Center MOB Lease Agreement Proposal

Type of Agreement Medical Directors Panel X | Other: Office Lease
Renewal — Renewal — Same
f
Status of Agreement X | New Agreement New Rates Rates
Tenant Name: Lansara, Inc., a California Corporation dba Dermacare (“Tenant”)
Term: 10 Year Lease (July 1, 2018 thru June 30, 2028), or

Commencement Date at completion of tenant improvements
3% Yearly Rent Escalator; Option for two, three year extensions at FMV

Premises: 6260 El Camino Real, Suite 200, Carlsbad, CA 92009 (2,685 sq. ft.)
Rental Rate from Lansara, Inc.:
Rental Rate from Lansara, Inc.: Revenue per
Month
Rental Rate of $2.90 NNN per square foot, per month, (2685 sq. ft.) $7,786.50
Total Monthly Revenue: $7,786.50
_Fxpense to Tri-City Healthcare District:
Cost
. - o . N
District (“Landlord) to Provide: Not to Exceed
Tenant Improvement Allowance of $100 per square foot per rentable area, (2685 sq. ft.) = $268,500
Space Planning Fee of $0.20 per square foot = $537
Total Expense: $269,037
Within Fair Market Value:  YES (FMV was determined by Lease Comparables)
Document Submitted to Legal: Yes X No
Approved by Chief Compliance Officer: X Yes No
Is Agreement a Regulatory Requirement: Yes X No
Budgeted Item: X Yes No

Person responsible for oversight of agreement: Jeremy Raimo, Sr. Director, Business Development / Steve Dietlin,
Chief Executive Officer

Motion:

I move that Finance Operations and Planning Committee recommend that TCHD Board of Directors authorize the
Lease Agreement for Suite 200 in the Carlsbad Wellness Center MOB located at 6260 El Camino Real, Carlsbad, CA
92009, with Lansara, Inc. for a ten-year term (120 Months), at the rate of $7,786.50 per month for the first year,

~ ‘easing 3% yearly thereafter, and also tenant improvement costs of $269,037 for Suite 200 in the Carlisbad
Wellness Center MOB. -

34



lIoUSNIN Jo1da1Ig

oljgnd

ay} JO Siaquiawl Woly sjuswwod buipiebal
ydesBeied ay) peal ||laysy J010a1Q

‘wsy ayy

JO UONBIBPISUOD S 89)IWLWOD

alojag oijgnd ayj 0}

1salajui jo way Aue uo aygnd
ay) jJo siaquisw Aq sjuswiwo) ‘¢

lloyoy Jojoald

‘eznog "iq Ag papuodas pue
ounsobe(q Joyoanq Ag epew sem
epuabe ay) anoidde 0) uoljo

"SUOIJEDIJIPOL 1O SUONIPPE OU S19M
aloy) ‘epuabe oy} pamalnal S8JJILILIOD By

epuaby jo |enoiddy g

lI9YoNAl Jojoauld

"} wooy Alquisssy ut Nd 90-Cl 1e
Japio 0} Bunesw ayy paj|e ||oydNAl J03o8iIa

Bpl0 oL ]ed I

a|qisuodsay
(s)uosiad

SUONEPUBWILLIODIY
Juonay dn-mojjo4

uoissnasiq

oido}

"SBUON :Judsqy SIaqUIdy

"ZUOH Ualiey| pue elsng eioujed ‘08IMoIng yar
‘a0UBIMET BSO ‘DISMOUDBIN SUUD '[9ZBIN-ZaABYD UaUdels ‘sulyaly ylegais|y ‘seineq uoleys ‘ddo] Auiey| ‘spjouey e|liosid Jussald sieulo

‘Aioje|nbay

pue Ajjenp Jo J0jo8ui] ‘Uosiesld IWer pue jualuaBeuByy sty 104 J0joalIQ IS ‘UBneueAe) eloJel\ S80IMSS |eba jo Jojoal(q ‘puog uesnsg ‘I89140
soueldwon JaIyD ‘Znid SOUBD ‘dA IS /AND ‘ZINYdS uoleys ‘ dA '8x3 /000 ‘Aejuod endey ‘03D ‘UllRlQ BAS)S Juasald siaquisiy BuioA-uoN

‘uosuyor

1] pue ey IQ 'eZnos “IQ ‘opiejuo) ‘i ‘ssels suuy ybla Joauq ‘ousobeq wir Jojyoauid ((JIBYD) IBYOHN BINET J0j0RlId  JUSSald S1SqUIsi

L10T ‘60 419qWDAON
sa)nui uoissag uadQ

Bunesy 89)31WIWOY SIlB}Y |BUOISSD0id

1ajua) |edipajN AND-11

14dvdd

35



[4

L1601} S9INUIN DVd

Blang) eoujed

‘lenoidde

pieog Jo} pJemio} Buinow ssioljod
ay} anoidde o0} uonow ayy
papuooas eznog "I pue parow
ounsobe( Jojoaig ‘penoidde
alom sainpaosold pue sajoljod
aie)d jusljed ay| :NOILOV

Jo juswabeuew uo Adljo4 Aoijod Jayjoue
uy ase sdujs Japuiq ayj 1ey) pajels sem

‘Koijod siyy ypm BuiAldwiod ul 40d 8y} Jo ajol
pue juswaiinbai a)e)s e se Aoljod siy} uo
UOISSNOSIP JalIq B OS|e sem a1ay| "sofjoeld
Ajlea1 jou saop [eydsoy ay) yoiym sjusied
9Jl] JO pud Jo} UoiEN|BAS U}jesy |ejuaw

ay} Jnoge palinbul ssels Joyoang “welboid
1oy uondQ ay Jo puz 8y} ul sjedioned

Jou seop AD-111 Jey) pajou sem }|

‘sjuaijed pjo-ieaA ¢ 0} saiqeq

pjo-Aep ¢ sabe woly Ajjeoioads sjusijed
oujeipad o0} saljdde yuid apo) 8jiym salqeq
p|o sAep O 0} YHIQ WO} SUIOgMaU 1o} pa)|ed
S gsed 8po) ‘gs|e) 8pod pue Juld 9p0Y
U9aM]aq SpEeW UOI}EJIJIE|D B SEM 818y |

SS90014 UonesIuNWWo)
(S LIN)sueiuyoa ] IoNUo ¢

Aoljod sy jo pu3g g

aiNpasold pazipiepuels
SOOIARSG S,ualpiiyd
pue S,UsLWOAA Ul Yuld 8po) |
$8.1Npo20.d
pue sa191j0d ale) jusljed

$aInpasold pue saloljod
JO jenoiddy sjgissod
pue uoljelapisuo) ‘e
ssaulsng maN G

ZJsH ualey

",10¢ 12q0300 wol

sajnuiw ay} anoidde o) uonow
2y} papuodas opJejuo) 'iq
pue paaow oufjsobe( Joyoallg
‘dnoub ay) Aq panosdde sem
pue payiel aiam sajnui ayj

‘Bunssw
/10Z ‘2 18qojoQ wouy sajnuiw ay} snoidde
0} UOHoW B 10} paj|ed ||IBYSUN Jooalld

/10T 1990100
JO saJNuIW JO uoledyley v

ajqisuodsay
(s)uosiad

SUOIJEPUBWILIOIDY
Jjuonoy dn-mojjo

uoissnasiq

oido)

36



€

M~
L1B60LL S8INUIN OVd

BJIaNg) eoiled

eznog 1q panroidde sem Aoyjod
yjeaH |eioineyag 2yl :NOILOV

ay} apnjoul 0} Ao1j0d SO B Se ¥oeg awod
[IM pue mou oy paooidde aq |iim Aoljod siy |

‘poddns pue Bujjjesunoo juaned

ysi Yybiy Jayo 0} sey JayIopA [BlI00S au}

INQ Y|e} 0} pasu JOu S0P juslied "19%I0M
[BIOOS UMO S)I SeyY }un yj|esH |eioiaeyag
3y} sSneoaq SIO}IONA |BI20S 104 YSU

-ybiy oneWoOINE U Jou si apIains pajdwapy

‘wey

aul| syeledss e se apew sem Aoeboliing
‘uondope ue palapisuod jou s| Aoebolns
Jey} uonesyue|d e spewl ||3yd}N 103oal1g

‘Aoljod s1y) UO UOISSNISIP OU Sem alay |

‘Juswialinbai s a|puey Hop ay}

UO JOYS BZUSN}jul ppE O} UoljEpUSWWOdal B
os|e sem alay] ‘wool sjusljed e Ul pamojje
aq ued Bop e jl papaau si uoissiwiad

[eqloA e Ajuo Jey} Spew Sem UoiedllIe|d v

"uonoe||oo Buluaalios
UJOGMaU U} 1O} SWI0} MU 8y} asn
0} UOIJEPUSLULLODIS] B SPEBWI 93)ILUWIOD 8y |

"JuawWInNoop paje|al
e se Aojjod sy} 0} peppe a9 |Im sdiis 993

uoneoipain onoydAsdiuy
JO uoijeJisiuiwpy
S9DIAI9S U}|ESH |elolAeyag
ayoadg yun

Aoljod

%Sy YbIH 8q 0} paynusp]

sjualjed o) saoIAeg
|eloog 0} sjeusjay L

Ao1jod s1apiQ pajuudg-ald 9

Roljod Adesay| 184 G

ainpadold
Cmc(__omaw JO U0l109J|0D
DC_Cmml_Om ulogmsN v

a|qisuodsay
(s)uosiad

SUONEPUBWIWIOIDY
juonay dn-mojjod

uoissnasiq

oido}




14

L1601 1 S8INUIN OVd

elians) eloled

eliano eoujed

elianc) eoljed

elianc) eoujed

anow 0} penoidde sem Adjjod
uonjejljigeysy ayl :NOILOV

‘oulysobeq
loyoaiiq Agq papuooss pue eznog
"1q Aq panow se jenosdde pleog

0} pJemio} 8AoW 0} panoidde
sem Aoljod yjeay |esoineysq
jusijedinQ 8y :NOILOV

‘lenoidde pieog 10} piemio}
Buinow saoljod ay} anoidde 0}
uonow ay} papuodas eznog ‘IQ
pue panow ouf}sobep Jojoallq
‘panoidde aiam saloljod aled

JO JuswiuoJiAuzg 3y] :NOILOV

‘ounsobeq

Joyaiqg Aq pepuooss pue eznog
‘10 Ag panow se |eaoidde pieog

0} pJemio} anow 0} panoidde sem
Aoljod Bupesuibug syl :NOILOV

‘lenoidde pieog

l1o} psemuoy Buinow saiajod sy}
anoldde 0} uonjow sy} papuooss
ounsobe( Joaliq pue paaow

‘Aoljod SIY} UO UOISSNOSIP OU SBM 88y |

‘Aoljod s1y} UO UOISSNOSIp OU SI 818y}

‘Aoljod sIy} O} UOIeLLIOJUL J8JO0YS BANOR
Ul ppe O} UOI}epUSWILIOdd) B SBM 818y |

‘Jayjoue aUOo wWoJy pajenualayip
aq 0} aAey suejd Juswabeuew ay} |[e Aym

SI 18U} DO 4O S9N JUSJBYIP SIB 318U} 1By}
2o)IWWOD 3y} 0} paule|dxa d9aIMoINg yar

‘Juswiaiinbal uoissiwwo) juior
e sl Aojjod siy} jey} pejels osimoing Jap

‘Aaijod siy} 0} peppe

os|e sem uoljesipaw oidosjoyoAsd aAisosl
0} JUSSUOD 8y | "uonesipaw onoysAsd
-JUE 0} UMO JI19Y} UO Judsuod ues Aay ]
*JOPJO JUBSUOD B pasu Jou S90p 8ys/ay
usyy AugjunjoAul s Jusijed sy} Ji Sy} Jey)
pauonjuaw osje Aor ‘uonendod jusiedul

sauiue? buinoT
lapua] -Adesay] 1ad |
uoiejljiqeyay

sjusned jo uonepodsuel] |
YijeaH |eloireyag JuanedinQ

ue|d Juswabeue Ajundes ‘¢

ueld Aisjes ¢

ueld
yuswabeuep Alojes i L
aied JO JUBWUOIIAUT

€00y
ueld juswebeuey AN L
Buuesuibug

a|qisuodsay
(s)uosiad

suoljepustuwIoddy
juondy dn-mojjo4

uolssnasiq

oidoy

38



(=]

L1601 S8INUIN OVd  ?

oYl 4010811

"SJUBWILLOD ON

99O B}
JO SI9QUIB|A WO} SJUBWWOD "0}

lI2UoMIN JojoauQ

‘uey|e)} SUOIJOE OU BJom aiay ]

uoISSag
paso|D Ul uaye ] uonoy Auy
Jo uosiadiieyD ayj jo spoday ‘6

lloYON JojoauQ

‘Nd00:¢
1e uoIssag uadQ 0} uinjal S8pIIWO) By L

uolssag uadp oj uINdy '8

lloYoN Jo3oBuQg

‘INd OL:] Ye uoissas pasojo
ojul ob 0} panoidde Ajsnowiueun
SeMm )l pue papuodas uosuyor
"1 ‘panow ounsobe( Joyalg

‘uoISSeS Paso|) Ol
0B 0} uonow B 1o} PaYSE [|BYONIN J03oalIg

uoISSag paso|) L

lloyoNW Jojoaia

‘1eah Jxau ayj 0} pJemuoy Buirow
a|npayos |eulbuo sy ulejal

0} uoljepusLIWOodal B spewl
28llwo)d JVd 84l ‘NOILOV

‘suoljeolipow pue sabueyo

ay) yym dn dsey| 0} JopIO Ul Yjuow e 3dU0
198w |13s 0} dnolb siyy Joj jeidyysuaq aq ||IM
)1 0s ainjonys DND L Wualno o} anp abueyd
saioljod 8y} Jo ||y “(s1030811Q 0 pleog)
Apoq Buiuianob e o0} ob o) sey a1eo juaped
0} paje|al sainpasoud pue saioljod ay} ||B
jey) passnosip dnolb ay) ‘aAijoa{do siuy} Yyim
auij uj "aseo Juaijed o} sajejas i se Ajjenb
pue sileye |euolssajoid MaiAa) pue ssnoasip
0} Sl 9A)}03(CO UlBLW S, 99)ILUWIOD Y| ‘8Ied
juaned si ssauisng [epdsoy 8y} Jo 8102 8y,

J8leyd Ovd °
sbunesw jo 8dodg e

sbunes|y Jo Aouanbaiq e
:UOISSNOSIJ pue MaIAdY ‘9

-ounsobeq 1030a11q Aq papuooss
pue eznog "iq Ag psaow
se jenoidde pieog 0} pJemio}

ajqisuodsay
(s)uosiad

SUOIEpUBAWIWIOIDY
juonoy dn-mojjo4

uoissnasiqg

oido}




L1601 1 S8InuiN Ovd

llayou J0308uQ

‘Nd §0:Z }e pauinolpe Builes|y

Juswuinolpy "L i

a|qisuodsay
(s)uosiad

SUOI}EPUBWILUOIDY
juonoy dn-mojjo4

uoissnasiqg

oido)

o
<



@) Tri-City Medical Center

ADVANCED HEALTH CARE

FOR Y@U

PROFESSIONAL AFFAIRS COMMITTEE
November 9, 2017

CONTACT: Sharon Schultz, CNE

Policies and Procedures

Reason

Recommendations

Patient Care Services

1. Code Pink In Women's And Children's
Services Standardized Procedure

3 Year Review,
Practice Change

Forward to BOD for Approval

Practice Change

Forward to BOD for Approval

2. End of Life Policy
3. Monitor Technicians (MTs): Communication
Process

NEW

Forward to BOD for Approval with
Revisions

4. Newborn Screening Collection of Specimen
Procedure

3 Year Review,
Practice Change

Forward to BOD for Approval

5. Pet Therapy Policy

Practice Change

Forward to BOD for Approval with
Revisions

Pre-Printed Orders Policy

3 Year Review,
Practice Change

Forward to BOD for Approval

Referrals to Social Services for Patients
Identified fo be of High Risk Policy

3 Year Review,
Practice Change

Forward to BOD for Approval with
Revisions

8. Venipuncture for Specimen Collection
Procedure — Tracked Changes
Venipuncture for Specimen Collection
Procedure — Clean Copy

3 Year Review,
Practice Change

Approved at 10/12/17 PAC
Forward to BOD for Approval with
Revisions

Unit Specific

Behavioral Health Services

1. Administration of Antipsychotic Medication

3 Year Review

Forward to BOD for Approval with
Revisions

Engineering

1. Utility Management Plan 4003

Practice Change

Forward to BOD for Approval

Environment of Care

-

. Life Safety Management Plan

Practice Change

Forward to BOD for Approval

2. Safety Plan

Practice Change

Forward to BOD for Approval

3. Security Management Plan

Practice Change

Forward to BOD for Approval with
Revisions

Outpatient Behavioral Health

1. Transportation of Patients DELETE Forward to BOD for Approval
Rehabilitation

1. Pet Therapy Tender Loving Canines 903 DELETE Forward to BOD for Approval
Formulary Requests

1. Colloidal Oatmeal DELETE Forward to BOD for Approval

2. Dicyclomine Vial for Injection DELETE Forward to BOD for Approval

3. Fentany! Lozenges DELETE Forward to BOD for Approval

4. Lactase Enzyme Tablets DELETE Forward to BOD for Approval

Page 1 of 1

41



@‘9 Tri-City Medical Center

Oceanside, California
| STANDARDIZED-PROGEDURES-MANUALPATIENT CARE SERVICES
| STANDARDIZED PROCEDURE: CODE CALEBRINKIN-WOMEN:S AND CHILDREN-S-SERVICES

A POLICY:
1. Function:
a. Management of cardiopulmonary arrest in the infantreonate and up to 30 days oldef
life following Neonatal Resuscitation Program (NRP) guidelines when event occurs on
the Labor and Delivery (L&D) Unit, Mother-Baby Unit and Neonatal Intensive Care
Unit (NICU). NRP and/er Rediatricor Pediatric Advanced Life Suppert {Support
(PALS) guidelines shall be utilized whenutilized when event occurs in the
Emergency Department (ED) and any other location on the hospital campus based
on responder training. A Code Caleb shall be called for any infant up to 30 days
old in need of resuscitation and stabilization within the institution, surrounding
grounds and unexpectedly upon arrival in the ED.
2. Circumstances:
a. Setting:

City Medical Center

b. Supervision: None required. The standardized procedure shall be implemented and the
attending physician shall be notified immediately. Upon arrival, the physician assumes
responsibility in directing the resuscitation.

c. Patient contraindications: Pati i

“ -None

3. Data Base:

a. The initial steps of infant resuscitation shall be provided within a few seconds and
include: Providing warmth, positioning the infant on a back, side or sniffing
position and drying and stimulating the infant. Resuscitation efforts shall be
implemented when:

b. Objective: Infant is apneic, gasping, ineffectively breathing, the heart rate (HR) is
jess than 100, and/or infant is unresponsive to stimulation

c. Diagnosis: Life threatening emergency

d. Plan: Initiate a Code Caleb by dialing 66 on the telephone, implement the
Standardized Procedure as appropriate, and notify the attending physician/
neonatologist

e. Assessment: Infant will be reassessed after each intervention.
f. Record Keeping: Events are to be recorded on the Neonatal Resuscitation Record
and in the patient’s electronic medical record.

Perinatal
Clinical Nurse Collaborative Inter- Medical Professional
Department | policies & | Femacy 24 | yecutive | PracticeDivist Departmantof | disciplinary |  Executive Affairs Board of
Procedures pe Council er-ef Committee Committee Committee
Neonrateley
11/07, 12/07, 02/08, 01/08, 02/08 02/08
11/09, 11/09, 12/09, 12/09,10114, | 12/15, 04/17 | 05/16, 05/17 12/09 07’“7 02/10 16,17 11117 02/08, 02/10
09/12, 09/14 | 09/14, 11/16 | 09/14, 11/16 01/17 ! !

42



Standardized-Procedures-ManualPatient Care Services

Code Caleb-Riri-in-Pedratal-Aroas-heluding-hlct
| Page 2 of 5

B.  PROCEDURE (INFANTS UP TO 30 DAYS OLDGChildren-30-days-orless) UTILIZING NRP
GUIDELINES):

2-1. Respiratory Distress/Arrest:
a. If infant is unresponsive to tactile stimulation (drying, back rub, foot flick, bulb syringe

suction) provide positive pressure ventilation (PPV) per NRP guidelines at a rate of 40-

60 breaths per minute (slightly less than once a second).

b. Apply a pulse oximeter to infant's right hand/wrist.

i. During resuscitation efforts immediately after birth, the infant’'s oxygen
saturation level -based-en-age-in-minutes;-shall direct the titration of the oxygen
percent required to achieve infant target oxygen saturation ranges listed in the
“Targeted Pre-ductal Spo2 after Birth” Table.

1) Term gestations: NRP suggests beginning at 21% oxygen level and

43



Standardized-Rrocedures-ManualPatient Care Services
Code Caleb-Rirk-in-PRerinatal-Areas-trsluding-NICU

\ Page 3 of 5

3:2.

4:3.

6-5.

adjust concentration based on clinical condition.
2) Preterm infant consideration: start initial PPV with oxygen blended at
3480%.
3) Spo2 range should be between 85% and 95% by 10 minutes of life
ii. For resuscitation not immediately following birth, may begin PPV oxygen
concentration at 100% and reduce rate to achieve oxygen saturation ranges
greater than 90%

C. If the HR is less than 100 bpm, take ventilation corrective steps: adjust mask, reposition
head, suction mouth and nose, open mouth, increase ventilation pressure and/or use an
alternate airway.

d. If there is no improvement with PPV, consider endotracheal intubation.

e. If the heart rate increases to greater than 100 and/or there are spontaneous respirations,
begin post resuscitation care.

Bradycardia ( HR less than 60):

a. If the HR is less than 60, after a minimum of 30 seconds of PPV, initiate chest
compressions at a ratio of 3:1( compressions: ventilation).
b. Increase oxygen concentration to100% if not already done

c. Assist Respiratery-CarePrastitioner(RCP}-and/er-Neonatologist with endotracheal (ET)

intubation and /or umbilical venous catheter (UVC) line placement. -
6.d. If the heart rate remains below 60, consider EPINEPHRINE administration:
i. Endotracheal (ET) dosing: 0.5mL/kg (++40,000-Concentration}-(0.1 mg/mL
Concentration)
1) Administer every 3-5 minutes.
ii. Intravenous (IV)/ Intraosseous (10) dosing: 0.1 mL/ kg {1:10,000

Goncentration)-(0.1 mg/ml Concentration)

1) Administer every 3-5 minutes via rapid intravenous push (IVP)::
Prematurity (-Gestational age less than 35 6/7 weeks):
a. Protect from heat loss: Radiant warmer, heated towels, portable warming mattress, hat

i. If less than 3228 weeks consider polyethylene plastic wrap
b. May begin PPV at 3480% oxygen concentration , initially if required
C. May benefit from continuous positive airway pressure (CPAP)
Hypovolemia (-Risk factors, pale, poor perfusion, oxygen saturation ratings less than 90%):
a. Start intravenous (IV) line

b. Assist Neonatologist with UVC line placement

C. Administer IV fluid bolus 10 mL/kg normal saline bolus slow IVP over 5 minutes- 10
minutes.

Hypoglycemia:

a. Obtain bedside capillary or arterial glucose. If blood glucose level is less than 45

mg/dL and infant symptomatic, start IV line and/or assist the Neonatologist with UVC
line placement.

Zb. b——Admlnlster D10 bolus: 2 mLIkg slow IVP. Refer—te—Newbem—Hypngyeem&a

C. PROCEDURE (INFANTS UP TO 30 DAYS OoLD GH-I-LDREN—AGED—&)—DMS—OR—L—ESS—UTIUZING

PALS GUIDELINES :

44



Standardized-Procedures-ManualPatient Care Services
Code Caleb-Rink-in-Rerinatal-Areas-tncluding-NicU

B-E.

| Page 4 of 5
1.
2.
3.
G-D.

Respiratory Distress/Arrest:

Provide warmth.

Establish patent airway.

Position supine with head in neutral or slightly extended position.

SAdeguate-suction PRN for secretions

Oxygen administration and positive pressure ventilations (PPV), if needed.

Assist with intubation as appropriate.

Obtain STAT Arterial Biood Gas (ABG) and chest x-ray as needed.

eart rate less than 60 beats per minute (bpm) (Bradycardia):

Initiate compressions.

Begin bag/mask ventilation with 100% oxygen.

Establish venous access with Normal Saline (NS) flush.

b= Establish intravenous(lV) access with NS at TKO rate (to be used for
resuscitation medications or fluids as necessary). Consider intraosseous
(10); umbilical vein pending arrival of neonatologist. .

fiii.  If hypovolemia suspected (-blood loss history, poor perfusion, pale, weak
pulse) administer IV fluids of NS at 10 mL/kg slow Intravenous push (IVP)
over 5-10 minutes.

b.d. Medications for Bradycardia:
i. Epinephrine

1) Indicated when heart rate remains less than 60 bpm despite 30
seconds PPVa and another 30 seconds of coordinated
compressions and ventilations.

2) Recommended route is IV/IO. Consider endotracheal (ET) route
while IV access is being obtained.

3) Endotracheal dosing: {0.5mL/kg of-1:10,800-concentration(0.1
mg/mL Concentration). Administer every 3 - 5 minutes during arrest
until IV/IO access achieved, then begin first IV/IO dose.

4) IV/IO dosing: {0.1 mL/kg} ef1:10,000-concentration(0.1 mg/mL
Concentration). Administer every 3 — 5 minutes during arrest, max
IVNIO individual dose 1 mg.

5) Rate of administration is rapid IVP.

Symptomatic Hypoglycemia:
a. Obtain bedside capillary or arterialvenous glucose. If glucose < 45 mg/dl then treat
with D10 W bolus IV/IO 2 mL/ kg slow IVP.

copTITQ@PRODTD

REQUIREMENTS FOR CLINICIANS INITIATING STANDARDIZED PROCEDURE:

1.
2

2:3.

4-5.

Current California RN license.

Education:

a. Successful completion of NRPeenatal-Resussitation-Rrogram+{(NRP) course for staff in
L&D, Mother Baby Unit & NICU (with a current course completion card)=

8-b. Successful completion of PALS course for staff in the ED (with a current course
completion card).

Experience: Initial job requirement

Initial Evaluation: RN must be observed demonstrating successful skills in management of a

neonatal resuscitative event using NRP and/or PALS guidelines as appropriate.fertin-NRP-

Ongoing evaluation annually.

DEVELOPMENT AND APPROVAL OF THE STANDARDIZED PROCEDURE:

1.

Method: This standardized procedure was developed through collaboration with nursing,
medicine, and administration.

45



Standardized-Rrocedures-ManualPatient Care Services
Code Caleb-Rink-in-Perinatal-Areastncluding-NICUY

Page 5 of §
2. Review every two years.
E.F. CLINICIANS AUTHORIZED TO PERFORM THIS STANDARDIZED PROCEDURE:

EG.

1. Al Reglstered Nurses (RNs) who have successfully completed requirements as outlined above
are authorized to direct and perform Code Rinkdn-\Wemen's-and-Children's-Services-Caleb
Standardized Procedure.

REFERENCES:

1. Neonatal Resuscitation Program Textbook, Seventhixth Edition. (20164). American Academy of
Pediatrics and American Heart Association

4:2. Pediatric Advanced Life Support Textbook, (2011). American Heart Association and
American Academy of Pediatrics

46



Tri-City Medical Center
Oceanside, California

PATIENT CARE SERVICES
ISSUE DATE: 12/05 SUBJECT: End of Life (Comfort Care)
REVISION DATE: 01/06, 06/08, 10/10 POLICY NUMBER: IV.P.3
Department Review: 0517
Clinical Policies and& Procedures Committee Approval: 06/4506/17
Nurse Executive Committee Approval: 074807/17
Pharmacy and Therapeutics Approvali: n/a
Utilization Review Committee Approval: 14/4508/17
Medical Executive Committee Approval: 041610117
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: 02/4611/17
Board of Directors Approval: 02/16
A. PURPOSE:
1. To provide interventions in caring for the dying patient that is directed toward maximizing
comfort, maintaining dignity, and providing support for the patient/family/significant others.
2. To provide emotional, spiritual, and cultural support with respect for patient/family/significant
others values and preferences.
B. POLICY:
1. Tri-City Healthcare District (TCHD) declines to participate in the End of Life Option Act
(AB X2-15), which permits an adult with a terminal disease and the capacity to make
health care decisions to request and be prescribed an aid-in-dying drug if specified
conditions are met.
a. If the individual transfers care to a new health care provider, the individual may
request a copy of his or her medical records per the Administrative Policy: Patient
Access to Protected Health Information in the Designated Record Set - 516.
B.C. PROCEDURE:
1. Assess for the following:
a. Pain
b. Other uncomfortable symptoms (e.g. nausea, restlessness, excess secretions, dyspnea)
c. Patient/family awareness of prognosis
d. Family expectations of treatment plan, including Do Not Resuscitate (DNR) order and

evidence of patient wishes

e. Patient/family coping and spiritual needs
2. Implement the following comfort measures:
a. Pain management interventions:

i. Administer adequate analgesia.
ii. Administer other medications as ordered for restlessness symptoms, nausea,
respiratory distress or pooling secretions.
b. Obtain vital signs as needed.
i. Avoid using automatic blood pressure machines if possible and do not leave cuff
in place for long periods.

C. Reposition patient as needed.

i. If turning patient hinders comfort, reduce frequency of turning.
d. Limit procedures to only those needed to enhance comfort.
e. Provide frequent oral care.

47



Patient Care Services

End of Life
| Page2of2

10.

1.

f. Assess intravenous (IV) sites every shift.

i. Avoid routine 1V starts and restart IV only if access is needed, consider alternate
routes.

g. Consider obtaining foley catheter order.

h. Avoid aggressive interventions for high temperatures such as cooling blankets and ice
packs.

i. Offer food and/or fluids to patient if appropriate.

j. Review all existing orders with physician to ensure that unnecessary or uncomfortable

procedures or treatments are discontinued including:
i. Routine labs and x-rays
ii. Routine medications not related to comfort
iii. Blood glucose monitoring, pulse oximetry, hydration Vs, antibiotics, and blood
products
Licensed healthcare provider or designee shall provide information to the family about what to
expect during the dying process and the care the patient is receiving.
The healthcare team shall ensure the family/next of kin is provided reasonably brief period of
accommodation prior to discontinuing cardiopulmonary support.
Recognize and support patient/family/significant other’s grieving behaviors.
Provide support and reassurance that the goal of care is patient comfort.
Consider referral to hospice.
Refer to social worker for patient/family support.
Refer to Chaplain as appropriate.
Provide support and reassurance and allow time for all involved to express emotions and
share concerns. Be sensitive to emotional reactions of patient/family.
f. Provide privacy for families as needed.
g. Obtain contact information of family members and place in chart in event they need to be
contacted when patient deteriorates or dies.
h. Consider ordering “Comfort Care Cart” from Dietary.
Be sensitive and open to cultural diversities related to the grieving process. Support a healing
atmosphere.
If a family member is alone, offer to contact other family members and/or outside support.
When a family is preparing to leave, provide them with information regarding funeral
arrangements and support services.
Prepare patient and room after death. If appropriate:

P oW

a. Place signage on door directing visitors to see nurse before entering
b. Place pillow under patient’'s head

C. Place patient in position of comfort with fresh linen over them

d. Dim lights

e. Ask the patient/family about keeping door closed for privacy

A Physician, Administrative Supervisor, or designated Registered Nurse will pronounce the
patient's death and document in the electronic health record.

D. RELATED DOCUMENT(S):

Administrative Policy: Patient Access to Protected Health Information in the Designated
Record Set — 516

E. REFERENCES:
cA.

California Hospital Association. (2017). California Hospital: Consent Manual. CHA
Publications: Sacramento.

48



‘C‘? Tri-City Medical Center

Oceanside, California

PATIENT CARE SERVICES

ISSUE DATE:

NEW SUBJECT: MONITOR TECHNICIANS (MTs):
COMMUNICATION PROCESS

REVISION DATE(S): NEW

Department Approval: 01/17
Clinical Policies and Procedures Approval: 02/17
Nurse Executive Committee Approval: 02/17
Division of Cardiology Approval: 04/17
Pharmacy & Therapeutics Committee Approval: n/a

Medical Executive Committee Approval: 06/17
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: 1117

Board of Directors Approval:

A. PURPOSE:

1.

To identify the process

a. Registered Nurses (RN) and nursing support staff will use to communicate with the
Monitor Technicians (MT) at the central monitoring (CM) station.

b. MTs will use to communicate with RN and nursing support staff.

C. For ensuring visible electrocardiogram (ECG) tracings are displayed on centralized and

decentralized monitoring stations.

B. DEFINITION(S):

1.

2.

o~

Cardiac Monitored Units — Telemetry South Tower (2 East, 2 West, 4 East, 4 West) Telemetry 3
Pavilion (3P) and the Progressive Care Unit (PCU).
Central Monitoring (CM) station — A centralized location for monitoring the following patient
information: ECG tracings, vital signs (VSS) such as respiratory rate, blood pressure, oxygen
saturation, invasive line numerical values
Delay in Communication — Failure of MTs to notify a licensed RN immediately for interruptions in
the display of a cardiac rhythm at the CM station. Failure of RNs and nursing support staff to
communicate interruptions in monitoring to a MT at the CM station.
Emergency Department (ED) Cardiac Monitoring Stations — Stations A, B, C, and D
Interruptions in Monitoring — An event resulting in patient information not being displayed or not
identifiable on centralized and decentralized monitors.
Medical Monitored Units — 4 Pavilion (4P) and PCU- may have patients requiring medical
monitoring
a. Medical Monitored is synonymous to heart rate monitoring
Decentralized Monitors — Monitor screens located on or near nurses’ station in the Telemetry
units, PCU, and 4P used to display duplicate patient information from the CM station.
Decentralized monitors are also located in the ED.
Nursing Support Staff - Unlicensed staff e.g., Advanced Care Technicians (ACTs), Lift Team
Technicians (LTT), Unit Secretaries (US)/Coordinators, Emergency Medical Technicians (EMT)
and Transporters
Transmitter/transceiver (TTX) Devices — Automatic communication devices that allow
bidirectional transmission of patient information from decentralized monitoring devices to the
CM station
a. The TTX devices used on Telemetry units, PCU and 4P are identified as one of the
following: The TTX devices will be identified in this policy as a tele box:
i. tele box

49



Patient Care Services

Monitor Technician (MT): Communication Process

Page 2 of 8

Cc.

ii. telemetry box
iil. monitor
TTX devices are called monitors in the ED

10.  Transmitter/transceiver (TTX) Number — A number assigned to each tele box. This number will
be clearly displayed on each tele box at all times.

a. Telemetry South Tower and 3P tele boxes are also labeled using labeling tape colors as
follows:
i. Blue = Private Rooms
ii. Yellow = Semi-private A bed
iii. Red = Semi-private B bed
C. POLICY:
1. ECG Alarm Default Parameters

a. Alarm default parameters are identified by the Clinical Alarm Committee.

b. The RN assigned to the patient will provide the MT instructions for modifying default
alarm parameters based on patient assessment, history, medications, and treatments
when necessary

C. ED, Telemetry, and PCU RNs are responsible for:

i Validating alarm parameters per hospital policy

ii. Modifying alarm default parameters from decentralized locations

iii. Providing specific instructions to MTs to modify alarm default parameter s from
the CM station

d. MTs will not modify alarm default parameters independently. MTs may modify alarm
default parameters when directed by a RN.

e. MTs will contact the Telemetry ANM for instructions for modifying alarm default
parameters for 4P patients. After making the alarm default parameter modifications as
directed by the Telemetry ANM/Relief Charge RN, the MT will contact the 4P RN
assigned to the patient.

f. US/Unit Coordinators ACTs, LTTs, and other nursing support staff will not adjust alarm
default parameters or make modifications to the decentralized monitors.

2. Alarm Notification Parameters
a. MTs will notify the primary RN or designee when any of the following are displayed on

the CM: The following list is not inclusive.

i Changes in patient's baseline cardiac rhythm or rate

. Heart rate less than 50 or greater than 130 beats per minute (beats per minute
(bpm)

iii. Systolic blood pressure less than 90 millimeters of mercy (mmHG) or greater
than 180 mmHG

iv. Respiratory rate less than 10 breaths per minute or greater than 28 breaths per
minute

V. Oxygen saturation less than 92%

vi. Interruptions in the following established values (previous viewable) if applicable:
1) Oxygen saturation
2) Respiratory rate

vii. Changes in baseline cardiac rhythm or rate
1) This includes changes in the R-to-R interval that are 2 seconds or longer,

when the average heart rate is equal to or greater than 50

viii. Ectopic findings as follows: (this is not an inclusive list)

1) Ventricular Tachycardia — 3 or more Premature Ventricular Contractions

(PVC) and/or new onset PVCs
2) Ventricular Fibrillation (VF)
iX. Asystole
X. New ectopic beats, new events, or increase in frequency of the following:
1) Premature Atrial Contractions (PAC)

50



Patient Care Services

Monitor Technician (MT): Communication Process

Page 3 of 8

2) PVCs

3) Changes in the PR interval prolonged greater than 0.21 seconds or less
than or equal to 0.10 seconds

4) New junctional and idioventricular

5) New heart blocks
6) Widen QRS (new onset delayed conduction displayed as a QRS greater
than 0.11 as directed by a RN)

7) Presence of cardiac device implemented beats e.g., pacemaker or
implanted cardioverter defibrillator (ICD) not previously discussed by RN
8) Pacemaker failure to sense or failure to capture
9) Fusion beats (new onset or an increase in occurrences)
3. Emergency Department
a. RN Responsibilities — ED RNs may delegate the following task to an Emergency Medical
Technician (EMT)
i. Admissions
1) Admit patient to the monitor per department practices
2) Enter patient's medical record number (MRN) in the MRN and Patient
Name field
3) Select the monitoring options required for the patient e.g., cardiac rhythm,
blood pressure, oxygen saturation, respiration, etcetera as instructed by
the RN
4) Turn off monitoring options that are not required to decrease false alarms
at the CM station
5) EMTs may modify default alarm parameters as directed by an RN
ii. Discharges
1) Discharge patients according to department practices. This task may be
delegated to an EMT
2) Communicate discharges to the MT at the CM station by implementing
the following:
a) Select the DISCHARGE function
b) Ensures all alarms are suspended by selecting the SUSPEND
MONITORING function
iii. Interruptions in Monitoring
1) The RN or designee shall communicate interruptions in monitoring for
procedures or tests outside of the ED to the CM station by selecting the
MENU SLEEP function
b. MT Responsibilities for Monitoring ED Patients:

i. Verify patient's MRN is displayed on the monitoring screen
1) If the MRN is not displayed contact the primary RN or designee
a) When unable to contact the primary RN, contact the ED charge

RN
ii. Notify ED personnel as follows for:
1) Alarm notifications as outlined in this policy
2) Patient information not displaying at the CM
3) Interruptions in monitoring

4. 4P and PCU: Nursing Staff Responsibilities

a.

Verifying a cardiac rhythm is present at the CM station

i. 4P RNs, ACTs, US, and PCU ACTs will contact MTs by using the TCMC patient
telephone located in the patient rooms or by using a telephone at the nurses’
station

ii. PCU RNs may contact MTs by using unit cellular telephones or ensure a cardiac
rhythm is present by viewing the patient’s rhythm on the decentralized monitor

Admissions and Transfers (RN and ACT)

i. Select a tele box

51



Patient Care Services
Monitor Technician (MT): Communication Process

Page 4 of 8
1) Call the MT and provide the following:

a) Patient's first and last name (no initials)
i) Initials may be used for PCU patients

b) Medical Record Number (MRN)

c) Room assignment

d) Tele box number
i) When the tele box is placed in the room by another staff,

verify the tele box number

ii. Verify the patient’s first and last name and MRN is displayed on the decentralized
monitoring screen

iii. Once the patient arrives to the nursing unit and is attached to the tele box, verify
a visible cardiac rhythm is displayed at the CM station as outlined in this policy.

C. Interruptions in Monitoring (RNs, ACTs, and LTT)

i. Interruptions in monitoring related to patient care or a patient leaving the unit for
test or procedures shall be communicated to the MT as follows:

1) 4P RNs, ACTs, and LTTs call the MT from the patient’s room or use a
telephone located on the nursing unit prior to or after removing the tele
box. Provide the rationale for interrupting monitoring.

2) PCU
a) RNs may suspend the alarms by selecting the Off Unit function

and the appropriate test or procedure label within the monitoring
system to communicate the interruption in monitoring to the CM
station.
b) ACTs call the MT from the nurses’ station
ii. Resuming Interruptions in Monitoring

1) Interruptions in monitoring shall be resumed immediately by RNs and
ACTs after receiving notification
a) RNs and ACTs shall resume monitoring as follows:
i) Ensure the tele box is attached to the electrodes placed on
the patient’'s chest
if) Verify a cardiac rhythm is visible at CM station as outlined
in this policy
d. Discharges, Transfers Off Unit or Discontinuing Medical or Telemetry Monitoring

i. 4P RNs or designee will notify the MT at the CM station and request the MT
discharge the patient from the CM
ii. PCU RNs may discharge patients as outlined for the Telemetry units
5. Telemetry South Tower and 3P: Nursing Staff Responsibilities
a. Verifying a cardiac rhythm is present at the CM station
i. RNs and ACTs will contact MTs by using the TCMC patient telephone located in
the patient rooms or by using a telephone at the nurses’ station
ii. RNs may ensure a cardiac rhythm is visible by viewing the patient’s rhythm on
the decentralized monitor

b. Admissions and Transfers — Assistant Nurse Manager (ANM)/Relief Charge/Designee
i. Prior to a patient’s arrival to a Telemetry unit:
1) Notify the receiving unit nursing staff and provide the following information

a) Patient's first and last name
b) Room assignment
c) Admitting or transfer diagnosis
d) Admitting or transferring physician
e) Name of transferring or admitting location

2) Notify the MT and provide the following information, prior to the patient’s
arrival to the nursing unit:
a) Patient’'s name
b) Room assignment

52



Patient Care Services

Monitor Technician (MT): Communication Process

Page 5 of 8

c) Admitting or transferring location

C. RN Responsibilities

Admission and Transfers
1) Verify the patient’s first and last name, MRN, and room number is
displayed on the decentralized monitor. See the Management of
Telemetry Patients policy for additional information
2) The following task may be delegated to an ACT
a) Select the tele box for the patient room number and bed number
assigned to the patient’'s room number and bed number if
applicable
i) When the tele box is placed in the room by another staff,
verify the room number located on the tele box prior to
applying to the patient
b) Verify a visible cardiac rhythm is displayed at the CM station as
outlined in this policy
Interruptions in Monitoring
1) ACTs and LTTs
a) Call the MT from the patient's room or use a telephone located on
the nursing unit prior to or after removing the tele box. Provide the
rationale for interrupting monitoring
b) RNs may suspend the alarms by selecting the Off Unit function
and the appropriate test or procedure label using the
decentralized monitor to communicate the interruption in
monitoring to the CM station.
Resuming Interruptions in Monitoring

1) Interruptions in monitoring shall be resumed as outlined in the
Management of Telemetry Patients policy.

2) Verify a cardiac rhythm is visible as outlined in this policy

Discharges

1) RNs may communicate discharges to the CM station by implementing
one of the following:
a) Discharge the patient using the decentralized monitor

b) Notify the MT to discharge the patient from the CM station
i) This task may be delegated to an ACT, LTT, or US

6. MT Responsibilities: Telemetry Units, PCU, and 4P
a. Admissions and Transfers

Enter patient information in the CM

1) Use the bed board system to verify the spelling of the patient’'s name and
the MRN

Enter the following information:

1) Patient's name (first and last) no initials
a) Exceptions: patient’s initials may be used for PCU patients

2) Medical record number

3) Room Number

Review alarm default parameters per hospital policy.

1) If alarm default parameters have been modified, contact the primary RN

for instructions to adjust the parameters to default settings or to continue
current default parameters
implement the MT Shift Task Process outlined in the Management of Telemetry
Patient policy
Monitor the patient’'s admission and transfer status using the bed board system
1) Contact the nursing units to verify patient’s arrival 30 minutes after a bed
is placed in the Ready status, if a cardiac rhythm is not displayed at the
CM station

53



Patient Care Services

Monitor Technician (MT): Communication Process

Page 6 of 8

a) Call the nursing units every 30 minutes until a cardiac rhythm is
displayed or until notification has been obtained from nursing staff
indicating one of the following:

i) Patient has not arrived to the unit

if) Change in bed or unit assignment

iii) Cancelation of the admission or transfer

iv) RN or ACT providing direct care that delays applying the
tele box

Discharges
i Discharge the patient from the CM as directed by the primary RN
ii. Update the Shift Hand-off Worksheet as outlined in the Management of
Telemetry Patients policy
Interruptions in Monitoring
i. When notified by nursing staff or transporters a patient is leaving a unit for a test
or procedure or for notification of patient care
1) Suspend the alarms, select the appropriate label if informed of the
location of the test or procedure
ii. Interruptions without notifications from nursing staff
1) Notify a RN or ACT immediately when a patient's cardiac rhythm is not
visible
2) Call the Telemetry AMN/Relief Charge if one or both of the following
occur:
a) Unable to contact nursing staff
b) Monitoring is not resumed after notifying nursing staff and the
nursing staff did not inform the MT of the rationale for the delay in
monitoring or acknowledge they are aware of the interruption
iii. Delay in resuming monitoring after receiving notification from a Transporter
1) When a Transporter is unable to reapply a tele box or after reapplying a
tele box a cardiac rhythm is not displayed on the CM, MTs will:
a) Call the nurses' station and inform a RN or ACT
b) If monitoring is not resumed after informing a RN or ACT
implement the process outlined in Alarm Notification: Nursing Staff
Alarm Notification: Nursing Staff
i. 4P and PCU
1) Contact the primary/relief RN assigned to the patient to communicate the
alarm notification.
2) Document the primary/relief RN’s name and time on the MT's Shift Hand-
off tool.
3) When the primary/relief RN is not available:
a) Communicate the alarm notification to the staff answering the
telephone
b) Document the staff's name and time on the MT’s Shift Hand-off
tool
c) Inform the staff to tell the primary or relief RN contact the MT
immediately to discuss the alarm notification
4) When the primary/ relief RN does not contact the MT to discuss the alarm
notification, the MT will call the unit a 2™ time and request to speak with
the primary RN.
5) When the primary RN remains unavailable, the MT will:
a) Contact the Telemetry ANM/Relief Charge to obtain further
monitoring instructions
b) The Telemetry ANM/Relief Charge will contact the 4P or PCU
ANM/Relief Charge to communicate the alarm notification
c) The 4P or PCU ANM/ Relief Charge will contact the primary/relief

54



Patient Care Services

Monitor Technician (MT): Communication Process

Page 7 of 8

RN to ensure appropriate assessment and monitoring plans are
discussed and implemented.

6) When the Telemetry ANM/Relief Charge is not available, the MT will
contact the Rapid Response RN by telephone for further monitoring
instructions

Telemetry Units

1) Notify the nursing staff

2) When unable to contact the primary/relief RN, the MT will contact:

a) Any RN or ACT on the patients assigned unit
b) When unable to contact any RN or ACT, notify the PRN RN
c) When unable to contact the PRN RN, notify the ANM/relief charge
i) When unable to contact the ANM/relief charge notify the
Rapid Response RN by telephone

7. LTT and US Responsibilities

a. Communicate messages from RNs and ACTs to the MT at the CM station
b. Communicate messages from the MTs to the RNs and ACTs

8. Transporting Staff Responsibilities
a. Prior to transporting a patient from a nursing unit:

Notify the primary/ relief RN
Notify the MT at the CM station and provide the following:

1) Patient's name
2) Room Number
3) Department name of test or procedure
iii. Remove tele box and leadwires from the electrodes
1) Prior to removing the tele box and leadwires, inform the patient and
receive their verbal consent
a) When a patient refuses to have the tele box and leadwires
removed ask a RN or ACT to remove the tele box and leadwires
b) Remove the electrodes per the test or procedure department’s
policy
iv. Place the tele box and leadwires on the patient’s bedside table
V. Do not place the tele box and leadwires on the bed, chair, or meal tray
vi. Transport the patient off the unit per department process
b. Returning Patients to a Nursing Unit

Notify the primary/relief RN or ACT

If the electrodes are attached to the patient’s chest, reapply the leadwires and
tele box. If the leadwires have been removed, inform the MT and ask an ACT or
RN to reapply the leadwires

Call the MT from the patient’s room provide the following information

1) Patient's Name
2) Room Number
3) Ask the MT if a rhythm is displayed at the CM station if the answer is:
a) Yes, a cardiac rhythm is visible at CM station
i) Place the upper side rails in the up position, place the bed
in the low position and lock the wheels
ii) Place the call button and TV remote within the patient's
reach
iii) Ensure the bedside table is within the patient’s reach
b) No, a cardiac rhythm is not visible CM station
i) Place the upper side rails in the up position, place the bed
in the low position and lock the wheels
ii) Place the call button and TV remote within the patient’s

reach and ensure the bedside table is within the patient’s
reach



Patient Care Services
Monitor Technician (MT): Communication Process

Page 8 of 8

iii) Leave the patient's room and inform any RN or ACT, the
patient’s cardiac rhythm is not displayed for the MT

D. RELATED DOCUMENT(S):

1.

2.
2-3.
3-4.

Patient Care Services Policy: Clinical Alarm Management

Patient Care Services Policy: Management of ECG Strips

Patient Care Services Policy: Rapid Response Team and Condition Help (H)
Telemetry Policy: Management of Telemetry Patients

E. REFERENCE(S):

1.
2.

3.

General Electric (GE) Company. (2014). Carescape central station v1: Participant notebook.
Nihon Kohden. (2015). Clinical reference guide: CNS-6201 2™ generation central monitor
bedside monitoring and telemetry applications. Version 02-53

Northwestern Memorial Hospital. (2008). Telemetry: Care of the patient on centralized telemetry
monitoring. Patient Care Service Policy. Retrieved from
http://ww2.nmh.org/oweb/MagnetDoc/02_tI_transformational_leadership/ti5-e__-
_telemetry_down_time_procedure_policy  5.11.pdf

Tri-City Medical Center. (2015). Clinical alarm management

Tri-City Medical Center. (2016). Management of telemetry patients

Welch Allyn. (2014). Telemetry monitoring medical/surgical floor. Retrieved from
www.welchallyn.com

Lazzara, P.B., Santos, A.R., & Walker, R. (2010, November). The evolution of a centralized
telemetry program. Nursing Management. DOI-10.1097/01.NUMA.0000388670.02663.b6
Whelan, L. and Stanton, M.P. (2013, March). Risk management updating telemetry practices to
improve the culture of safety. Nursing Management. DOI-
10.1097/01.NUMA.0000427192.74586.45

Whalen, D. A, et al. (2014, September/October). Novel approach to cardiac alarm management
on telemetry units. Journal of Cardiovascular Nursing. DOI: 10.1097/JCN.0000000000000114

56



Q
‘C‘» Tri-City Medical Center

Distribution: Patient Care Services

PROCEDURE:

NEWBORN SCREENING, COLLECTION OF SPECIMEN

Purpose:

All newborn babies are required to have a newborn screening test before the baby is
discharged. Proper collection is mandatory. This procedure specifically addresses the
proper collection of these blood specimens for the California Newborn Screening Program
to detect such inborn errors as phenylketonuria (PKU), galactosemia, hypothyroidism, and

other metabollc/genetlc disorders. State—mgulaﬂens—mqwre—t-hat—the—sample—be—eeﬂeeted

Supportive Data:

Requnred under Callfornla Department of Health Newborn Screenlng Title 17.

Equipment:

. Newborn Screening Form

. #0%-isopropyl-alechel Skin cleanser per unit standards

. Sterile Lancet type device

Heel Warmer

1
2
3
4. Dry Sterile gauze
5
6

: Single dose, pre-filled twist-tip vial Sucrose 24% (RN to administer, if ordered)
(note: this is outside the scope of practice for phlebotomist)

A PROCEDURE:

1. Initial newborn screening specimens shall be collected on State provided filter forms: (See

a. ClinicalNursing staff shall accurately complete the demographic data. The follow-up
prowder (phyS|C|an) and prowder number must be completely accurate -Neeﬂatalf
i. A ballpoint pen should be used to print clearly.

&ii.  Ifthe form is not completed in its entirety-including-the-ethnic-backgreund, the
lab must contact the nurse to complete the form.

b. The nurse or phlebotomist must fill in the date,-and time of collection, and initials as the
collector.; and-the-first-3etters-of the-last-and-first-name-

2. Follow proper patient identification and labeling procedure:

a. Verify the infant's name and medical record number on the armband against all the
demographlcs on the Newborn Screenlng Form.

b. Place addltlonal infant label on back of Newborn (NB) Screen Blood Collectlon
card to ensure specimen test card is still identified with NB should the top page
with infant label become separated. Attach label to back side of lower portion. Lab
will not process if it is separated.

bc. Verify all information on the Newborn Screening Form is correct with a second
RN.

T
Clinical Nursing Medical Professional
Department N Department Department Board of
o | Foliiees | Exomutv | potvol | RO | oreeny | oo | A | ol
Practice
03/00, 05/12, | 05/12, 02/15, | 05/12, 02/15,
0215, 1116 | 11116, 03117 0517 08/16, 07/17 08/17 03/16,09/17 | 09/12, 10117 | 10/12, 11117 11112

57



| Patient Care Services Rrecedure-Manual
Newbom Screening, Collection of Specimen Procedure

| Page2of8

3.

Timing of Collection:
In postpartum collect the specimen betweenat 24-48 hours of age.
ln NICU cGoIIect the speC|men at 48 hours of age—ems—elese—te—t-&me—ef—éseha;ge—as

a.
b.

If for any reason (e.g., transfusion, discharge earlier than 12 hours or hospital error) the
specimen is collected prior to 12 hours, a second specimen will be required.

In Critically ill newborns, Tthe attending NICU Pphysician/Allied Health
Professional (AHP) attending critically il newborrswhe require-spesiab-eare-may
postpone the collection of newborn screening specimen until the newborn’s
emergency condition is stabilized.

Dried Blood Spot (DBS) Collection: Instructions for collecting adequate dried blood spots are on
the back of the Callfornla Newborn Screenlng SpeC|men Collectlon Card (See—attaehmeﬂt-)

e.

area of specimen collectlon card prior to, durlng, or following sampling.
A new test request form must be used for each collection. If a mishap occurs during a

collection, use a new specimen collection card. {(Referto-attachment-2,-Steps-io

Collegting-thellowhem-Sereaning-Blogdesy

Do not use capillary tubes for collecting the blood to apply to speten-the card. It can
damage the filter paper, resulting in an inadequate specimen.

See Patient Care Services Procedure: Collection of Blood Specimen by Skin
Puncture for specnmen collectlon

58



| Patient Care Services Rrecedure-Manual
Newborn Screening, Collection of Specimen Procedure

| Page3of8

6.

6-5.

81.

Use of Venous or Arterial Blood:

a. A heel stick is strongly preferred.

b. If unable to obtain a heel stick specimen due to prematurity or other issues with infant,
arterial or venous blood may be used after the line has been properly cleared.

c. Allow blood to freely drop from the syringe onto the filter paper, filling each circle
completely.

d. Mark “Other” in type of specimen category on test request form, and indicate source of

blood (Umbilical Arterial Catheteruas, etc.)

Infants Requiring Transfusions. If a transfusion is anticipated:

a. Collect the specimen prior to the transfusion of red blood cells (RBC), even if the
newborn is under 12 hours of age. Infants who are transfused with red blood cells must
have a specimen collected prior to the transfusion. (Transfusions with plasma, platelets,
or albumin will not significantly affect the screening.)

b—If the neonate is less than 12 hours old at the time the pre-transfusion specimen is
collected or if no adequate specimen was obtained prior to transfusion-, a-secenda
specimen should be coliected between-24 — 48 hours after the last transfusion-and-six

Processing Newborn Screenlng Forms:

a. Allow the blood to thoroughly dry at room temperature for at least 3 hours and follow
hospital policy for processing the specimen. Keep away from heat lamps, direct sunlight,
and humidity.

b. Note: —Touching or smearing the blood spots should be avoided. Blood spots on the

filter paper should not be heated, stacked or allowed to touch other surfaces during the
drying process.
c. The nursehealth care provider will order the Rkd+Newborn Metabolic Screening

-)(NBMS) test in the Electromc health record (EHR)—Gempass -PKu(-Newbem

fe.  The newborn screening requisition form will be taken to the Laboratory and the clerical
staff will receive them and place the Accession Number on the slip. Note: The lab staff
will call nursing for information if the forms are not completely filled out.

f. The clerical staff will log these specimens on the Newborn Screening Form log.
Specimens that are awaiting transport shall be stored at room temperature, away from
heat and moisture.

Document completion and RN verification/ witness of the newborn screen in the EHR.

59



| Patient Care Services Rrocedure-Manual
Newbom Screening, Collection of Specimen Procedure
| Page4of8

B.

GE.

LABORATORY:

1. The clerical or phlebotomy staff will receive the specimen in the Laboratory Information
System (LIS) and place the Accession Number on the slip.
a. If dispatched receive using the miscellaneous reference lab as the location.
b. If the patient was discharged and the NBMS discontinued or was not initially
ordered, re-order the NBMS using Department Order Entry using Miscellaneous
Reference Lab as the location.
2. Check the NBMS collection form for completeness and that the collection time is greater
than 12 hours of age.
a. Lab staff will call nursing for information if the forms are not completely filled out.
3. The clerical staff will log these specimens on the Newborn Screening Form Log and
place them in the appropriate bin in the Chemistry refrigerator #5 at 2-8 degrees C for
courier pickup.
4. Completion in Cerner:
a. Using Batch Result Entry enter Newborn Metabolic Screening.
b. A list of NBMSs will display. The default entry is “See Separate Report”..
i Be sure all accession numbers have a check mark displayed.
8.c.  Click Verify.

PROCEDURE IN EVENT SPECIMEN IS NOT COLLECTED PRIOR TO DISCHARGE:

1. Notify the appropriate Unit Clinical Manager that the specimen was not collected. Arrangements
for follow-up of infant will be made by the appropriate Unit Clinical Manager.
2. If no specimen is obtained for Newborn Screening, fill in “Specimen Not Obtained” section

on the Newborn mMetabollc Screenlng form. 4&—+s—mandatew—that—the—state—be—neﬂﬁed—by

|tuat|ons WhICh mlght apply include:
a. A newborn that is transferred to another facnllty
i. The receiving hospital is responsible for obtaining the specimen.
b. A newborn that expires prior to 48 hours 6-days of age.

d—c Staff error results in infant being discharg.;ed without specimen being collected.
3. If newborn’s parent(s) refuses testing, thea “Newborn Screening Test Refusal” (NBS-TR) form;
alse-must be completed and submitted.

4, NBS-NG-and-NBS-TR forms may be obtained from the OB Clinical Manager, OB Charge Nurse,

OB Patient Data Coordinator, or the NICU Unit Secretary.

RELATED DOCUMENT(S):
1. WCS-NICU Pain Management, Neonates & Infants for-Newbern/NIGUPolicy

REFERENCE(S):

1. “Blood Collection on Filter Paper for Neonatal Screening Programs” NCCLS Document

LA4-A2 Vol. 12, No. 13, July 2002.

AWHONN Evidence-based Clinical Practice Guideline. Neonatal Skin Care. 2008.

Besuner, P. (2007). Association of Women's Health, Obstetric and Neonatal Nurses -

Templates for Protocols and Procedures for Maternity Services, 2™ Edition. Washington, DC

34. State of California Website, www.dhs.ca.gov.pcfh/gdb/html/NBS/ProgramQOVforProviders.htm

4:5. The California Newborn Screening Program. (2013, April). New Addition to Newborn
Screening: Severe Combined Immunodeficiency (SCID). Newborn Screening News Issue
#16, pp.1-4

2.
3.

60



| Patient Care Services Procedure-Manual
Newborn Screening, Collection of Specimen Procedure
I Page 5 of 8 AotachmentA

I- LESEOPY CALIFORNIA NEVWWBORN SCREENING 1 I m p o rta nt

TEST REQUEST FORM (TRF)

e "*l:nges to
cting the §

Delete ewborn

WAIBAIERRIMIN ~ AttachmentA  reening

lafsf 1ol 11 pod Test
[ejeir] [A]B]

[ 1] ||:1'|'r'|TiJ|'}'iﬁ sing the
L) Talatil=f | 1 (PEGIEET New 27 Million
| AAST4

1

| |

1[[11 |Hl || L [1:JJu|'|“II l| Series TRF Form
| [W]E]

\_LI_I_LJ_LJ_J_LJM.I s fojep 111

|
[¥]
[
l

l
|
I

lllli o (=] [ ele] 16]

BACEETHHICTTY, F"-LAI.L THAT APPLY
VETRAVESE

O O O
BRIMARY LANGUAGE. {Fil anly ONE clrcla)
ENGU SPREH WMI ! | | | | l I E I | J

Mllmmm

PLCp el L) plebe] | ]| )R | ) | ) seial |

HEAWBORN'S BIRTH DATE: DATE 8PECINEN COLLECTED:

_Ll_I_l_]_I_JI_i_i_l_IIIIIIIHMII
mmuz:mm.

{FI ardy ONE clrcie)

quriesmax !II[.JHIIII

N O rvi ORYFORALA BEASON FQR TEET, [FI only ONE circlo]
SIS HUMAN MLE 8 FORMULA BATIAL SPECREN

HPO AT TRSE OF COLLECTION? | - REPEATOF (IR NTL SRR

I lm ‘WO WS Mmﬂ'ﬂl |

\ NEWBORN ONTPHMYPERAL :

e ssamoAcDTATIMEQE | PERES ) | L[| ||| |,Future use for electronic record
| REG.MURSERYECCR wo Dves

¥ b Ty / transfer. Leave blank for now.

mmnilljllflllllllllL‘ |ClulR]

\CCL Tttt FTEPT L1111 ()|, DO NOT USE AN EXPIRED §
- FORM.

u-—-—--vs—w—._v’gn::—.m Ahlstrom 226 0120201 1 XXXXXXX g VYA Check the expira-tion date listed next
to the hourglass icon.

O Genelic DiscaselScreeningfProgiam. Newborni ScrecningiBranch. October20 1

wasicdphica.oov/programsinbs

61



| Patient Care Services Presedure-Manual
Newbom Screening, Collection of Specimen Procedure
| Page 6 of 8

L L Telleloln]e] | H',H

(R

wm FILL ALL THAT APPLY

CHINESE () VIETNAMESE OTHERSEASAN  MDDLE EASTERW
nsmu: JPNESE () CAMBODIAN LT ASAERST RN
atack KOREAN ) LAGTWHQADS) . OTHER@pochit | | | |

r']rll

HAYARAN [ BAMOAN

GUAMANAN | HAYNVE AMERICAN -

CRIMARY LAHQUAGE : (Fill anly GNE elrcte) .
|}

l
mmmml'.!'

S

Lol Ll [lEle) || (SR ) e |
NEWBORN'S BIRTH OATE: QATE SPECIMEN COLLECTED;
Lajv]pov[v| [nlofulelfivlulolo] v]v] (ulclv]x]
BIRTH WEIGHT: . | IYPE OF SPECIMEN:

Ll L oo T otma (T T

INTIAL SPECIMEN

REASON FOR TEST: [FI onty ONE clrcle)

msmmwmmmm

NBS COPY
I surcmemmnone | Changes
Egéllys Collomia - —H
ields
Delete
TR T Attachment B
mmuzsmum um&uu.ummummaum
N N e |4 L_._L_._l
L] R I L L._J.[ .|.. L
L__L[_Il [ fajofoIrfe]cjsf | ast four digit
L LT i /" or use 9999 if there is no
[eiR]s] [e]afs|r] Inl: f__ number.
|alefel L1 ] 41 _f _

{or]efetu] [uiafjufe] J | l ] . I |_ An additional number to

\_J_ll L el ! [ |- | Smeeveral _| |_1 l.lﬁ | | |#7 contact parent, guardian or
mumamnnnﬂnmmuﬂnmmmmm emergency contact.
[Fllvlslifclt] L Lo [als)i] []lalmle] ~— If baby is a ward of the court,
L odelsiig dnfafoje] |} L LI |1} | || checkbox _
Llrlrlzlel ] [afofolefelss] | | 11§ Js|slifr]e] | = Ifother legal guardian,
lebolsd)y bl LR L L b EEL L RS EA=Lle] | social worker, or caretaker
el

is available, enter in name
and phone number.

Enter mother’s information
as well.

— This field has moved.

See page 4 for instructions.

Gestational Age
NPO at Time of Collection
Home Birth

mmmmuhmmm .
e L L LLLLLLLL |
T Tl |
T O T Ly

PLEALE BT PEVACY I TINCATION WITYN

=

Ahistrom 228 [[57] 0120201 / XXXXXXX 3 vvyvam




| Patient Care Services Precedure-Manual
Newborn Screening, Collection of Specimen Procedure
Page 7 of 8

O O J O = N '
77N TN /"\‘ .,—\. . EWO

700000110

Lo

& -

10

CALIFORNIADEPARTMENT OF PUALIC HEALTH  LED0120201 7 XXXXX)R
NEWBORN SCREENING

DO NOT DETACH Attachment C

INSTRUCTIONS FOR COLLECTING ADEQUATE BLG
Puncure sits is Indicaled by shaded ereas on hsel. Do ot collec! frof

*NO COURIER PLASTIC BAGS

Delete

ed
cte
hen.

RIGHT ACCEPTABLE
O maitii.,

WRONG UNACCEPTABLE
Layoring

G oo

COLLEGT SAMPLE FROM O Serum tiogs prasint
BHADED AREA

NOTE:
Do not use capillary tubes for collection of blood spof spacimen.
Do not collect blood from antecublial space or dorsal hand vein,
Do not hendife blood collection area of specimen collection card
prior {o, during, or following sampling.

Posttion infant's foot to increase blood flow. Warming of the heel is optional.

Claan skin with alcohol and elther air-dry or wipe dry with starile gawze.

Puncture hee! with sterile disposable lancet, using a firm, quick stab. If using an
automated tancet dsvice, place it firmly against the heel prior to device activation.
Afiow a largs drop of blood to accumulate and wipe away with sterile gauze.

Allow a second large drop of blood to accumulate, Apply geniis presstre (o heel and
ease intermittantly so blood Rows freely.

Apply the blood drop to ona side of the specimen collection paper untii the circle Is filled
COMPLETELY when viewed from both sides. Do not press collection paper against
punclure site. Allow blood to il circle by natural fiow. Do not apply blaed to both
sides of the paper,

F the first circle completely before moving on to the next circle, Repeat procedure for
each drcle.

Aliow biood spots to air-dry at room temperature for at least three hours. Keep away
from direct bight (sun or lamp) and heat,

Do not close specimen coliaction form whila blood epots are stiii wet. Do not allow wet
specimens to coms in contact with each other.

DO NOT PUT SPECIMEN IN PLASTIC BAG.

ADDITIONAL INSTRUCTIONS ARE CONTAINED IN “BLOOD
COLLECTION ON FILTER PAPER FOR NEWBORN 8CREENING
PROGRAMS", 5th EDITION {CL8! DOCUMENT LA4-AS5)

PRINT ONLY, USE ALL CAPITAL LETTERS, USE BLACK OR BLUE INK ONLY.

Six spots are needed
for increased number
of disorders added to
the California screening
panel.

63



Patient Care Services Procedurs-Manual

Newborn Screening, Collection of Specimen Procedure
| Page8of8

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH
NEWBORN SCREENING

DO NOT WRITE IN THIS AREAW

Read carefully:

Noxir 1motrmintinnmc fao

DO NOT HANDLE FILTEH

THIS AREA MAY BE USED TO ADHERE
CONTAINING THE INFANT'S FACRITY bl

Ravision Dete: 05M1

INSTRUCTIONS FOR COMPLETION OF FORM
PLEASE FRINT AND USE BLUE OR BLACK BALL POINT §

1. NEWBORN'S NAME: Nams as entered on birth certificats, last narm)
birth, indicate A, B, C, elc.

2.  MOTHER'S INFORMATION: Nams as enlared on birth cerfificate, ls
Please also includs mother's maiden nams and last 4 digits of
nurnberET mother does not have a soclal secunty number, enter 89

YES if newbom fs a ward of the court and provide contact informatid
responsible for baby's care at ime of collection,

Attachment D

Delete

NEWBORN'S PHYSICIAN INFORMATION: Obtaln from mother the 7ama of e
physician responsibie for continulng cara of the nawbom efter discharge.
NEWBORN'S PHYSBICIAN'S LICENSE NUMBER OR NPI NUMBER: Enter the
physician's California license number or national provider identification number.
RACE/ETHNICITY: As entered for both parents on birth certificate, These data are
required by Government Code 8310.05. Chack ALL that apply.
PRIMARY LANGUAGE: Pieass indicats primary language spoken; this helps
detenmine f an interpreter is neaded.

8. FACILITY DRAWING SPECIMEN: Name and code number must be entered lo
ensura comact reporting of results.

9. NEWBORN'S BIRTH DATE {AND TIME): As antsred on the birth certificate. All t]
Is to be enterad by the 24 hour clock, e.g., B:30 a.m. Is 0830; 9:01 p.m. is 210

10. BIRTH WEIGHT: In grams, as entered on birth certificate.

[#1. GESTATIONAL AGE: Enter gestational age at time of birih In weeks_]

12. NURSERY TYPE: Check NICU, Regular Nursery, which includes Family Centered

Care (FCC) or Rooming In {RI), Home Birth, or other..<

E THIS BABY IS A WARD OF THE COURT - CONTACT INFORMAT|
2,
5
8.
7.

¢ Such as the medical social
worker

New Instruction # 11
* Add gestational age on
every screen

%

New Field

13. ALL FEEDING SINCE BIRTH: Include all fesding from birth to collection. Human
mik includes breastfeeding, mother's own expressed milk and bankad human milk.
I newbom has had neither human mEk, nor formuia leave this section blank.

14. NPO AT TIME OF COLLECTION?: Answer YES if newbom is NPO (l.e., is taking
nothing by mouth) at time of specimen collection.

15, NEWBORN ON TPN/HYPERAL or AMINO ACIDS AT TIME OF COLLECTION?:
Answer YES if newbom Is being given TPN (total parenteral nutrition, aka
hyperalimentation) or amino acids at time of specimen colection.

18. DATE SPECIMEN COLLECTED: Dats and hour of specimen coflection. This
to the time the speciman is colisciad from the newbom,

17. TYPE OF SPECIMEN: Please check only ona box. If “OTHER: type of specimen (s
checked, please specify the type of specimen,

18. IF COLLECTED AT <12 HRS OF AGE, REASON?: If this spacimen Is being
coflected prior fo the newborn being 12 hours of age, Indicate why.

19. RBC TRANSFUSION BEFORE COLLECTION: Pleasa indicale whelher the
newbom wes transfused with RED BLOOD CELLS and the date and time the last
transfusion ended pricr to specimen coflection, DO list intrauterine transfusions. DO
NOT [is{ fresh frozen plasma, albumin, pinteiats, or cryoprecipitate as transfusion.
DO NOT [ist transfusions that occurred gfiar tha specimen was collectad.

20. MEDICAL RECORD NUMBER: Enter number used in medical records department
of faciiy collecting specimen,

21, INITIALS OF COLLECTOR: Enter Initists of person drawing the specimen,

22. DISTRIBUTION: Original MUST remain had lo speci Facility g the
specimen should retain and file the yeliow copy in the newbom’s char. Tha pink
copy should be given 1o the newbom's pareni{s) wilh instructions o give to the
newbom's physician.

PLEASE SEE PRIVACY NOTIFICATION WITHIN

e 27 000 001 e

* Check if Home Birth

*+ For others please list:
Pediatric Unit, Qutpatient
Lab, etc.

\ New Instruction # 14
* IfNPO at collection, check
Yes or No on All Infants.

\ 15. Check Yes or No on ALL
infants.

64



‘C‘p Tri-City Medical Center

Oceanside, California

PATIENT CARE SERVICES
ISSUE DATE: 05/06 SUBJECT: Pet Therapy
REVISION DATE: 07/06, 08/08, 07/11 POLICY NUMBER: II.C
Department Approval: 09/17
Clinical Policies & Procedures Committee Approval: 06/1409/17
Nursing Executive Council Approval: 07/11409/17
Infection Control Committee Approval: 041510117
Pharmacy and Therapeutics Approval: n/a
Medical Executive Committee Approval: 10/17
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: 021481117
Board of Directors Approval: 02/15
A PURPOSE:
1. Pet Therapy is utilized to make hospitalization a less threatening experience and promote

therapeutic patient goals. It is used to augment healing and to provide incentives to patients
who are debilitated and/or uncommunicative.

B. POLICY:
1. Al patients of Tri-City Medical-CenterHealthcare District (TCHD) are eligible for
participation in the programy-with-permission-of the-physician in order to promote
cognitive skills, physical functioning and improve patient psycho-social well-being.
Patients of Fri-City-Medical-GenterTCHD may request specific visitation on Acute Rehabilitation,
Inpatient/Out Patient Behavioral Health, Cardiac Wellness, 4 Pavillion, 2 Pavillion, 1 North,
Telemetry, intensive-Care-and Emergency Services.

Therapy dogs may not visit unauthorized areas or patients with the following:

1.

2.

2:3.

a.

fi=v,
fiizvi.

v=vii,

Shared rooms, unless both patients have-dosctors-approval-and-agree.

Patients with spleen removed or immuno compromised (neutropenic)

If an immuno compromised patient would like a pet therapy visit this is

determined at the discretion of the patient’s physician.

1) Infection Control must be consulted before permitting pet visits for
patients in various immune deficiency states.

Patients in isolation (Airborne, Droplet and Contact) including patients with:

1) Tuberculosis (dogs and handlers can acquire tuberculosis).

2) Patients whewith positive test for methicillin-resistant
Staphylococcus aures (MRSA)-positive; dogs and their handlers can
acquire MRSA.

#:3) Patients colonized or infected with vancomycin-resistant
enterococci (VRE), Salmonella, Campylobacter, Shigella, Strep A,
Ringworm, Giardia, or Amebiasis.

Food preparation area or carts.

Medication preparation or storage area or carts.

High risk areas; Intensive Care Unit, Operating rooms and Neonatal Intensive

Care Unit and patients on dialysis.

Personal pets are not permitted in the hospital unless they are a service animal or an approved
Pet Therapy dog:

Exceptions shall be made through hospital administration with consuitation from
Infection Control.

a.

65



Patient Care Services
Pet Therapy
Page 2 of 4

C.

3-5.

b. Strict guidelines and criteria for approved Pet Therapy handlers and their dogs are
outlined in the reference listed below.

Only Active members of Tender Loving Canines (TLC) Program-Degs are authorized to

perform service with dogs and handlers who are registered with Pet Partners,

Independent Therapy Dogs, Inc., or other therapy dog certifying agencies approved by

Fri-CiMedical CopterTOHD,

Pet Therapy dogs and-their-handlers-must be wearing visible blue vests and FGMG-TCHD

identification name badges with their name and “Pet Therapy.” Small Dogs that cannot be

fitted with a vest should wear the TCMCHD bandana only.

Any problems ldentlf" ed wnth Pet Therapy pets or thelr handlers shall be dlrected to the Manager

4-6.
/-Assistant Nurse Manager (ANM) or designee.
a. These concerns shall be directed to the Therapeutic Recreation Specialist/-Pet
Therapy Coordinator-Representative at extension 7387 for follow-up and resolution.

5:7. Patients shall be provided with hand hygiene product to wash their hands after a visit.

8. Any handler who does not follow proper procedures or a dog that appears to be out of control
may-will be asked to leave the hospital premises immediately with notification to the Ret
Fherapy-CoeerdinaterTherapeutic Recreation Specialist/-Pet Therapy Coordinator at
extension 7387.

9. Dog’s Equipment:

a. Well-fitted buckle, quick-release connection, or snap closure redblue collar and
harness made of leather or fabric-
i. All metal/chain or slip collars may not be used.
iii. Special training collars such as pinch, spike, electric or spray may not be
used.
b. Collars may be flat collars or Martingales (i.e. limited slip collar).
c. Halters may be Gentle Leader, Promise, Snoot Loop or Halti and may only be used
at the discretion of the animal behaviorist.
i. Metal chain and retractable leashes may not be used (iei.e. Flexi-Leash).
d. Metal buckles, slip rings, and D-rings are acceptable.
e. All leather-or-fabricred-leashes; to nebe no more than 6' in length.
10. Handler’s Attire:
a. Clothing:
i. Clothes are to be neat and tidy and may not include shorts, blue jeans,
short skirts or tight-fitting clothing.
iii. Shoes must be closed-toed.
ii. No accessories or jewelry that may have sharp edges or corners.
b. TLC Uniforms:
i. TLC approved attire is to be worn by handler at all times when present in
the facility on a visit with their dog.
iii. TCMCHD identification (ID) badge and Pet Therapy ID badge from approved
TCMGHD Pet Therapy certification/registration agency, both to be worn at
all times
PROCEDURE:
1. General Guidelines:

a. All handlers must be at least eighteen (18) years of age.

b. TLC is the only group sponsoring pets in the hospital that is supported by the
medical staff. Dogs that have not been screened are not sponsored by TLC in the
hospital. Dogs must be at least one year of age to start in the program and have
been with the handler for at least 6 months.

c. Handler is required to become a member of the TCMCHD Auxiliary, which includes
the following:

i Yearly membership dues



Patient Care Services
Pet Therapy
Page 3 of 4

iii. Background check
iii. Influenza Vaccination
iv. Tuberculosis (TB) screening
v. Hospital Orientation
Annual auxiliary refresher course

Admlttance to the TLC program reqmres a TCMGHD-app:eved—pFesess—eaeh—step

p;eeedme-eens%t—s—ef—the—foﬂemng—preeess-approval and superwsmn by
Therapeutic Recreation Specialist/Ret-Therapy-Coordinator/ Pet Therapy
Coordinator.
Health tests are required for the handler-and-, per TCMGHD volunteer policy for
health screening and dog, signed off by veterinarian, per attached form and
fleassubmitted to Ret-Therapy-CoordinatorTherapeutic Recreation Specialist/ Pet
Therapy Coordinator.
The Handler will complete a Fri-City-Medical-CenterTCHD Pet Therapy application
form and submit to the RPet Fherapy-CoordinaterTherapeutic Recreation Specialist/
Pet Therapy Coordinator, pending approved trainee status.
Certification/registration documents from Pet Partners, Independent Therapy
Dogs, Inc., Love on a Leash or other therapy dog certifying agency approved by
TCHD must be included with the application.
All trainee members (handlers and dogs) will attend an orientation meeting prior
to beginning hospital work conducted by Pet Fherapy-GoordinaterTherapeutic
Recreation Specialist/ Pet Therapy Coordinator:
Trainee handlers and their dogs should be accompanied by a certified handler and
Therapeutic Recreation Specialist/ Pet Therapy Coordinator er-trained-observer
for a minimum of three (3) consecutive visits within 3 months of being accepted
into the TLC program. Appropriateness of their behavior and awareness of
TCMGCHD policies will be assessed before being scheduled to make visits on their
own to units. The visits will lnclude one visit to the unit on which they will be
volunteerlng j

On a yearly basis, the dog must pass the above-mentioned physical exam for
membership renewal.

Scheduling by the TCMCHD Ret Therapy-CoerdinatorTherapeutic Recreation Specialist/
Pet Therapy Coordinator:

a.

b.

Handlers will coordinate and schedule visits with PetFherapy
CoordinatorTherapeutic Recreation Specialist/ Pet Therapy Coordinator.

Any aggressive behavior will be grounds for suspension. All dogs involved may
be suspended by the Therapeutic Recreation Specialist/ Pet Therapy Coordinator
for up to three months pending investigation. Investigation of the incident will be
conducted by the Therapeutic Recreation Specialist/Pet Therapy Coordinator,
Risk Management Officer &and Security Staff as needed. Upon investigation, the
Committee will determine necessary steps for further training or dismissal of the
involved team from the Pet Therapy Program,

Return of the team to the TLC program, will be based on assessment and training
by a nationally certified dog trainer, approved by TCMGHD Pet Therapy
Coordinator.

| 8——RELATED DOCUMENTS:

D.

G:3.

REFERENCE(S):

67



Patient Care Services

Pet Therapy
Page 4 of 4

1.

6-2.

"y

Centers for Disease Control and Prevention Guidelines for Environmental Infection
Control in Health-Care Facilities. Recommendations of CDC and the Healthcare Infection
Control Practice Advisory Committee (HICPAC). MMWR 2003; 52 (No.RR-10); 1-48.
Lafebre et al. (2008). Guidelines for animal assisted intervention in health care facilities.
AJIC, 36(2). P 78-85.

Medical Evaluation Form for Dogs and Cats. Development, Implementation, and

Evaluation of Animal-Facilitated Therapy Programs, Delta Society Conference, Oct. 4-
6,1988, 1988.

Pet Therapy Certification Criteria 2016

Prescription Pet Program, Thethe Children's Hospital, Denver, Colorado. Veterinary
Health Protocol, Initial Behavioral Evaluation, Assn. of Volunteers for Children's Hospital
and the Denver Area Veterinary Medical Society, Sept. 1987.

Proposal for Health Examination/Screening of Dogs - Pilot Pet Therapy Program. Barbara
Deep, D.V.M., School of Animal Medicine, University of Washington, Oct. 1 1987.
Proposal to Provide Animal Assisted Therapy Services to Canyon Springs Hospital. Delta
Society, California Desert Chapter, April 1989.

68



2
(C‘» Tri-City Medical Center

Oceanside, California

PATIENT CARE SERVICES-ROLICY-MANUAL

ISSUE DATE:

11/02 SUBJECT: Pre-Printed Orders

REVISION DATE: 12/02, 03/03, 02/04, 02/05, 11/06, POLICY NUMBER: IV.M.1

09/08, 06/11

Department Review: 07/17
Clinical Policies & Procedures Committee Approval: 08/4409/17
Nursing Executive Council Approval: 08/14409/17
Pharmacy and Therapeutics Approval: n/a
Medical Executive Committee Approval: 09/1410/17
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: 104411117
Board of Directors Approval: 11/14

A. PURPOSE:

1. To provide an approval process for Pre-Printed Orders (PPO).

| B. DEFINITION(S):

1. Powerplan: A grouping of orders that can be implemented together to facilitate the ordering
process.

C. POLICY:

1. All pre-printed-ordersPPO must be written in the approved Tri-City Medical-GenterHealthcare
District (FGMGTCHD) format, include an approved barcode, and go through the approval
process.

2. All new pre-printed-ordersPPO and requests for modifications of existing pre-printed-ordersPPO
will be submitted to the-Glinieal-Bosumentation-Coordinator chair of the PPO Committee to
facilitate the approval process.

I 3. The-Clinical-Documentation-Coordinator PPO Committee will ensure all pre-printed-erdersPPO
are reviewed (and modified if necessary) to meet organizational need and regulatory
requirements (current requirement is once every three years).

| 4, Once approved by the Board, the pre-printed-ordersPPO shall be available on the FEMG-TCHD
Intranet.

5. See Pre Printed Orders Approval Process attashed-for a flow chart of the approval process

6. PPO:s Pre-Rrinted-orders-shall not be created unless absolutely necessary if an appropriate
Powerplan does not exnst or is not approprlate to be created at this time.

D.
DOCUMENT(S)

1.

Pre Printed Orders Approval Process

69



Patient Care Services
Pre-Printed Orders
Page 2 of 2

Pre Printed Orders Approval Process

PRE-PRINTED ORDERS APPROVAL PROCESS

—~ —

Back to Originator
for Revision

Develop orders. Review with Pharmacy, Lab, Directors, Nursing
[ Managers, Infection Control, Physicians, MD Division meetings, and

End Users

7'—_1.

| Key stakeholder to submit reviewed/revised
PPO to PPO Committee Chair

C .

|

Clinical Documentation Coordinator to submit

. - _—

to Pharmacy & Therapeutics (P&T) Committee

! I

Clinical Documentation Coordinator to submit

to Medical Staff Office (MSO) for Medical
Department Division

L

Clinical Documentation Coordinator to submit
to Physician Information Technology
Committee (PITC)

l

Clinical Documentation Coordinator to submit
to Medical Executive Committee (MEC)

Clinical Documentation Coordinator to submit

~

|
J

to PAC followed by the Board for Approval

“ _ o

T

|
PPO Committee Chair sends to HIM Manager |

for barcoding and ordering. PPO Committee
Chair post to the intranet.

— S _ —

Revised 09/17

70



(C‘) Tri-City Medical Center

Oceanside, California

PATIENT CARE SERVICES-POLICY-MANUAL

ISSUE DATE:

03/85 SUBJECT: Referrals to Social Services for

Patients Identified to be “High Risk”

REVISION DATE: 05/91, 06/94, 09/99, 06/03, 01/04, POLICY NUMBER: 1ll.D.1

02/07, 05/10, 08/11

Department Approval: 09/17
Clinical Policies & Procedures Committee Approval: 07/1409/17
Nursing Executive Council Approval: 08/14409/17
Pharmacy and Therapeutics Approval: n/a
Medical Executive Committee Approval: 10/4410/17
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: 094411/17
Board of Directors Approval: 09/11

A PURPOSE:

1.

1.

Hospitalization represents a crisis to most patients. Social and emotional problems are usually
present at the time of admission and frequently complicate a patient’s hospital stay, particularly
if the patient is in a high-risk category. High-risk patients need to be identified and referred to
the Social Service Department as early in the hospital stay as possible.

B. DEFINITION(S):

High-risk screening criteria:

a.
a-b.
bc.
ed.
d-e.
f.
eg.
£h.
g
hj.
k.
[N R

k-m.

kn.

R=0.

A-p.
e-q.
pr.

g-s.
t.

u.
FV.

Recent victim of violence/abuse /neglect

Suspected abuse or neglect

Demonstrating poor coping with illness/hospitalization

Demonstrating inadequate support systems

Newly-diagresed cancer diagnosis, progressive cancer or other life-altering illness
Diagnosed-with-Terminal illness diagnosis

Family conflict issues

Current or recent substance abuse

Positive toxicology screen

Repeated Emergency Department visits

Intent to leave Against Medical Advice (AMA)

Homeless

Fourteen (14) to twenty (20) year old adolescents

Pregnant/ near term and no prenatal care (including teen mothers)

Failure to thrive (infant)

NICU admit

Prospective adoption,/ foster placement

Surrogacyte-meother

Fetal demise

Developmental disability or cognitive impairment including dementia or suspected
dementia and not connected with appropriate community resources

Any patient with a hospital Length of Stay (LOS) greater than seven days
Patients readmitted to the hospital within thirty (30) days

Notify Assistant Nurse Manager/RN to arrange for psychiatric consuitation if:

a.
b.

Recent suicide attempt
Suspected psychiatric disorder/behavior problem

71



Patient Care Service
Referrals to Social Services for those Patients Identified to be of “High Risk”
Page 2 of 2

c. Suspected psychiatric/behavior disorder (i.e., depressed, suicidal, acting out, etc.)
e-d. Cognitive/behavioral issue including dementia or suspected dementia presenting
a barrier to safe and appropriate discharge

C. POLICY:
1. High-risk patients are identified in the following ways:
a. Upon admission through use of the Admission Assessment-Patient History.
b. During interdisciplinary case review rounds or treatment team conferences held on all
units where general high-risk indicators are identified and discussed.
c. By a health care professional, physician, hospital personnel, community agency, or by
patient, family or friend.
d. Through case finding by the Social Worker within their particular areas of responsibility.
2. High-risk Social Service referral screens help to identify those patients needing priority services
by social work staff.
3. If high-risk psychosocial factors are identified a referral is made by nursing to Social Services by

selecting Referral to Social Services in the Admission Assessment — Patient History Power
Form, or by placing an order for a Social Service referral in Powerchart.

4. Social Workers will make every effort to complete Social Work Assessments within twenty-four
(24) business hours of receiving the referral.

D. RELATED DOCUMENT(S):
41. Patient Care Services: Referral to Social Services for Biopsychosocial Assessment

12



| (@) Tri-City Medical Center Distribution: Patient Care TRACKED

PROCEDURE: __ VENIPUNCTURE FOR SPECIMEN COLLECTION CHANGES
Purpose: To establish a standard of care for the process of venipunctures for blood specimen
collection.

Supportive Data: The RN/Phlebotomist needs to be prepared with the proper equipment and supplies. The
RN/Phlebotomist must choose the best site for the phlebotomy; positioning both, the
patient and themselves, to facilitate a successful blood draw. Proper specimen collection
is of the utmost importance to assure quality laboratory specimens.

Equipment: 1. Safety needles: Syringe, Multidraw Vacutainer and Butterfly and Blood Transfer
| Device, Luer-lok access device
2. Plastic Holder used for Vacutainer needles
3. Syringes — Sterile and non-sterile
4. Vacuum Tubes within expiration dates
Blood Cultures
Blue Stopper (sodium citrate)
Red Stopper (no additive)
Green Stopper (lithium heparin)
Lavender Stopper (EDTA)
Gray Stopper (sodium fluoride)
5. Tourniquets:
a. Pre-cut tourniquet, a soft pliable non-latex bandage that is 1 inch wide and 15
inches long
b. Blood pressure cuff
6. Antiseptics:
a. 70% isopropanol (alcohol)
b. Chloraprep (Chlorhexidine Gluconate)
&c. 2% lodine Tincture SEPP
7. Prepackaged-Non-sterile gauze pads:
b-a. NICU: Saline Wipes
%8. Puncture resistant disposal container
&.9. Adhesive bandages or Co-Flex flexible bandage, or gauaze and paper tape
10. Non-latex gloves:
8:-11. Blood Bank Armband if blood product(s) ordered

X WL

A. POLICY:
1. Non-Laboratory drawn specimens (by venipuncture only; excludes line draws) will be
accepted by the laboratory if properly labeled blood specimen. Blood Cultures and Blood
Bank Specimens will be accepted as follows:

Department Blood Blood Bank Specimens Comments
Cultures
Dialysis no With phlebotomist present at bedside
?gc’i')ac Cath Lab no | With phlebotomist present at bedside
(EErgc;rgency Dept no With phlebotomist present at bedside
Neonatal Intensive . . .
Care (NICU) neyes | With phlebotomist present at bedside
:rct:%r;swe Care Unit no With phlebotomist present at bedside
Nursery PKU only
Operating Room es Yes with properly labeled transfusion
Pre-op Hold y armband number
Medical Professional
Department Clinical Policies Nurse Executive Department of Board of
| Review & Procedures Committee ePatholo;y g:;?:m c :nftf;ii?;ee Directors
09/06, 10/10, 10/10, 05/14, 11110, 05/14, 11/10, 06/14, 01/11, 07/14,
| 05/14, 04/17 06/17 07117 08117 09117 10117 01/11, 07/14




| Patient Care Services-Procedure-Manual
Venipuncture for Blood Specimens
| Page2of10

| Labor & Delivery no Yes with properly labeled transfusion
(L&D) armband number
Yes with properly labeled transfusion

Physician Offices yes
armband number
a. The phlebotomist must present at the bedside for blood bank specimens obtained
by line draw.
b. The first blood culture may be obtained by line draw with physician order, and the

second blood culture collection must be performed by venipuncture.

B. PROCEDURE:
Stoplight- read patient notices at the door or at the bedside.

Choose the appropriate PPE.{contactprecaution)

Introduce yourself, your reason of visit and your department.

Identify the patient using two identifiers depending on inpatient or outpatient status{fermere
information-on-patientidentificationplease-. Refer to Patient Care Services-Poliey: N-4-A;
Identifi catlon Patlent Po||cy)—VeH$y—that—tube4abels+nateh-pat+e-FA—s-a¥mband—

:'ES*’!\’.-‘

5. Verify patient diet restrictions have been followed if applicable.
6. Select Needle, System, and Collection Tubes:
a. Select the appropriate type of needle and equipment for the blood draw based on
the patient’s physical characteristics and the amount of blood to be drawn.

i Vacutainer System: It is generally preferable to use the needle and syringe
because it allows the blood to pass directly from the vein in the tube.

ii. Plastic Syringe: In general, a syringe is used when drawing a specimen
from individuals with fragile, thread or “rolly” vein walls and is used in
conjunction with blood transfer device.

iii. Butterfly Needle System: The butterfly system is used on infants and
extremely difficult patients.

3:7. Perform hand hygiene and don gloves.

8. Provide patient education which may include:
a. Although slightly painful, the venipuncture will be of short duration.
b. Blood cultures require 2 separate draws (when applicable).
c. Provide expectations for future repeat draws.

9, Position the patient:
a. Sitting patient:

i. Have the patient position his or her arm on the slanting on a slanting
armrest and extend the arm to form a straight line from the shoulder to the
wrist with no bend at the elbow.

b. Lying down patient:

i Ask the patient to lie on his or her back in a comfortable position.

ii. Have the patient extend his or her arm to form a straight line from the
shoulder to the wrist.

jiii. Place a pillow under the arm if additional support is needed.

c. No food, thermometer or chewing gum should be in the patient’s mouth.

74



| Patient Care Services-Rrocedure-Manual
Venipuncture for Blood Specimens

Page 3 of 10

10.

Select site for venipuncture:

a.
b.

C.

First choice is the arm without an intravenous (IV) access.

Although the larger and fuller median cubital and cephalic veins are used most
frequently, wrist and hand veins are also acceptable for venipuncture.

Factors to consider in site selection:

i. Extensive scarring: avoid burn areas

ii. Mastectomy: specimens from this side may not be a representative

specimen.

1) In emergency situation, you may proceed without physician/Allied
Healthcare Professional (AHP)’s order.

2) For bilateral mastectomy, get approval from ordering physician/
Allied Healthcare Professional{AHP)},provider then select site based
upon their recommendation.

jiii. Hematoma: may cause erroneous test results. If not other site available,
collect specimen below the hematoma

iv. Cannula, Fistula, Vascular Graft: use a cannulated arm only after
consulting with the attending physician/AHP

V. Foot draw:
1) Must not be attempted as a routine collection site, other than NICU.
2) A physician/AHP must give written permission before this procedure
is started.
Vi. A finger stick may be possible for some tests if no other site available.

vii. The nurse or physician/AHP may discennect-theV-and-draw blood through
the needle or catheter following insertion of IV catheterthat-is-already-in

bleed-erblecd-predusis
viii. Blood transfusions:
1) It is preferable to wait until the transfusion is completed before the

blood is drawn, but orders regarding the timing of the blood draw
would be followed.

2) When specimens are collected during the time that blood is being
transfused, a comment “drawn during TXN” should be entered in the
computer after each test.

If a patient has bilateral IV sites or the only arm available has an IV site:

i Never place a tourniquet or draw above an active IV site.

iii. The site should be as far as possible below (distal) frem-the IV.

iiii. When the site is within 3 inches of the active IV, the phlebotomist will need
to free-text “DRAWN BELOW BUT NEAR IV” in the computer after each
test.

1) Venipuncture above an inactive heparin lock is acceptable.

Close the patient’s hand to make veins more prominent and easier to enter.

i Avoid having the patient pump the hand which can cause the release of
potassium from the muscle tissue.

Palpate and trace the path of veins several times with the index finger.

i. Arteries pulsate, are more elastic and have a thick wall.

ii. Thrombosed veins lack resilience, feel cordlike and roll easily.

iii. Lowering the extremity will allow the veins to fill to capacity.

75



| Patient Care Services-Procedure-Manuat
Venipuncture for Blood Specimens

Page 4 of 10

11.

12.

13.

14.

iv. If superficial veins are not readily apparent, massage the arm from the wrist
to the elbow to force blood into the vein wall.
V. Tapping sharply at the vein site with the index finger a few times will cause

the vein to dilate.
vi. Applying a warming device, damp-washseloth to the site for 4 minutes may
have the same resulit.
Cleanse the venipuncture site with an alcohol pad using a circular motion from the center to the
periphery. Allow area to dry.
a. For NICU infants:
i. Disinfect skin surfaces with Chlorhexadine Gluconate prep pads (available
in NICU).
i, Wipe away all disinfectant with saline wipe after procedure is complete.
iiii. Alcohol should not be utilized for NICU infants.
2:b.  Drying prevents the patient from having a burning sensation when the
venipuncture is preformed and hemolysis of the specimen.

Apply the tourniquet:

a. Wrap the tourniquet around the arm three to four inches above the venipuncture
site.

b. The tourniquet should be tight but not painful.

c. The tourniquet should be released after no more than one minute.

d. If the tourniquet must be applied for preliminary vein selection, it should be
released and reapplied after two minutes.

e. When drawing a Lactic Acid level:

i With other labs, collect the lactic acid level last and remove tourniquet
before collection.

ii. Without other labs do not use tourniquet.

Inspect the Needle and Syringe:

a. Visually determine that the needle is free of hooks at the end of the point and free
from small particles that could restrict the flow.

3:b. Move the plunger within the barrel of the syringe to show syringe and needle
patency and freedom of plunger movement.

Perform the Venipuncture:

a. With thumb and forefinger, secure the vein by placing the forefinger 1 to 2 inches
above the venipuncture site and the thumb just below the site.
b. If unable to obtain a blood sample:
i Change the position of the needle.
1) If the needle has penetrated too far into the vein, pull it back a bit.
2) If it has not penetrated the vein far enough, advance it farther into
the vein.
ii. Try another tube, the tube being used may not have sufficient vacuum.
— L oosen-thetourniguet

iiii. Probing is not recommended.
4.iv. Loosen the tourniquet, it may have been applied too tightly thereby
stopping the blood flow.
c. If Registered Nurse (RN)/Phlebotomist is unsuccessful after 2 attempts, it is suggested
that he or she shall contact another person to attempt venipuncture.
d. Factors to consider during venipuncture:
i To prevent hematoma:
1) Puncture only the uppermost wall of the vein
2) Remove the tourniquet before removing the needle
3) Use major superficial veins
ii. To prevent hemolysis:
1) Mix anticoagulated specimens thoroughly by inverting tubes gently
5 to 10 times
2) Avoid drawing blood from a hematoma

76



| Patient Care Services-Procedure-Manrual
Venipuncture for Blood Specimens

Page 5 of 10

3) Avoid drawing the plunger back too forcefully when using a needle
and syringe

4) Avoid using a needle that is too small

5) Make sure the needle is fitted securely on the syringe to avoid
frothing

a-6) Without touching, ascertain that the venipuncture site is dry

4.15. Vacuum Method:

5-16.

a.
b.

C.

ef.

£g.

g-h.

h-i.

K.
ik
k.

Thread the appropriate needle into the vacutainer holder until it is secure.

Tap all the tubes that contain additives to ensure that the entire additive is dislodged
from the stopper and the wall of the tube.

Tube order for multiple collection draws:

i. Blood Culture BottlesTube (Aerobic and Anaerobic)

ii. Blue stopper (sodium citrate)

iii. Red stopper (non additive)

iv. Green stopper (lithium heparin)
V. Lavender stopper (EDTA)
vi. Gray stopper (oxalate/sodium fluoride)

Insert the blood collection tube into the holder and onto the needle up to the recessed
guideline on the needle holder. Do not push the tube beyond the guideline.

b Do not preassemble supplies outside the patient area.

With the bevel up, line up the needle with the vein. The needle should be held in one
hand at a 15 to 30° angle to the arm. Penetrating the vein at the proper angle will
prevent penetrating both blood vessel walls. The skin and vein should be entered in one
smooth motion until thea needle is in the center of the vein. Push the tube forward until
the end of the needle punctures the stopper. Blood should flow immediately into the
tube.

Fill the tube until the vacuum is exhausted and blood flow ceases. This will ensure that
there is a correct ratio of anticoagulant to blood.

When the blood flow ceases, remove the tube from the holder. The shut-off valve
recovers the point, stopping blood flow until the next tube is inserted.

Mix immediately after drawing each tube that contains an additive by gently inverting the
tube 5 to 10 times. To avoid hemolysis, do not mix vigorously.

To obtain additional specimens, insert the next tube into holder. When the proper
amount of blood has been obtained, the tourniquet should be released and patient’s
hand opened.

Before removing the needle from the vein, pull back slightly on the tube to release any
remaining vacuum left in the tube.

The needle may then be withdrawn from the vein while gauze is placed over the
puncture site.

Engage the safety mechanism on the needle. Dispose directly into sharps container.

Syringe and needle method:

S@meo0oTp

H.

Insert the appropriate safety needle onto the syringe.

Place the patient's arm in a downward position if possible.

Line up the needle and syringe with the vein from which the blood will be drawn.
Turn the needle so that-the bevel is in an upward position.

Push the needle into the vein.

Pull back on the syringe plunger until the desired amount of blood has been obtained.
Release the tourniquet and open the patient’s hand.

The needle may now be withdrawn from the vein while gauze is placed over the
venipuncture site.

Lock the safety mechanism of the needle into place. Remove the needle from the
syringe by-using-a-hemoestat and dispose of the needle into the sharps container.

i. Note: Never transfer blood by inserting the needle directly into the vacuum tubes.

Attach a blood transfer device to the tip of the syringe and insert the vacuum tubes in
order of blood draw to transfer the blood into the tubes.

7



| Patient Care Services-Procedure-Manual
Venipuncture for Blood Specimens

Page 6 of 10

6-17.

18.

ik,
k.

Gently mix tubes by inversion after transferring the blood into the tubes.
Dispose of the syringe and transfer device into the sharps container.

Venipuncture using a butterfly needle:

apop

Attach appropriate syringe or vacutainer holder to tubing.

Follow standard venipuncture technique until needed amount of blood is obtained.

Follow proper process for needle withdrawal.

Remove butterfly, engage safety mechanism on the needle, and dispose in a sharps

container.

i If syringe method is used, attach a blood transfer device to the syringe and fill the
appropriate tubes with blood as outlined above.

Coagulation Studies:

Iest—and—'liube—'l'-ypeln House Routine Tests:
All the tests below are collected in a 2.7 ml sodium citrate (blue top)
vacuum tube.

1) PTB (Prothrombin time and INR)

2) PTT
3) Fibrinogen
4) D-Dimer

5) TT (Thrombin Time)
6) Eactor-Assay-and-1:1 Mixing Studies
ii. DIC screens (Includes PT/INR, PTT, Fibrinogen, FDP, D-dimer, Platelet
Count and smear for schistocytes) require:
1) 2.7 ml Sodium Citrate tube (Blue Top)
2) EDTA tube (Lavendear Top)
In House Special Tests:
i. The coagulation Department will provide tubes for the following tests:
1) Infant Coagulation Studies: The coagulation Department will prepare
special tubes for all children less than 1 year of age.
Send out Special Coagulation Tests:
i. The following will be drawn in 3:5three (3) 2.7 ml sodium citrate (Blue Top)
tubes:
1) AT3 (Antithrombin Ill)
2) Protein C
3) Protein S
4) Activated Protein C Resistant Factor V
5) Factor Assays
6) Hemostasis A Panel
Special Considerations:
i. It is very important to perform an atraumatic venipuncture, because any
tissue fluid contamination will activate the clotting system.
ii. It is critical that all tubes be filled to the required capacity. Overfilled tubes
may clot and under filled tubes will give a false result
iiii. Line Draws: Coagulation studies are not to be drawn from A-lines unless
ordered by a physician/AHP, except for NICU.
1) The first 10 mL of blood must be discarded before blood is used to
fill the coagulation tubes
a) NICU: When utilizing venipuncture, do not discard any
amount of specimen. Lines utilized for NICU Lab draws (in
order of preference) should only be Umbilical Arterial Lines,
Peripheral Arterial Lines, or Umbilical Venous lines.
2) Phiebotomist/NICU RN must inform the Coagulation Department if a
line draw must be done for a coagulation test.
3) Must append a comment “line draw” to each test in the computer
using FUNCTION: RE.

78



| Patient Care Services-Rrecedure-Manuat
Venipuncture for Blood Specimens

| Page70f10
| 4) Heel sticks and finger sticks are not allowed under any
circumstances.
5) Central Venous Access Devices: See Patient Care Service:
Procedure-Central Venous Access Devices, Adult Procedure.
iv. Syringe draw: The last blood into a syringe will offer the best results for
coagulation tests, so fill the blue top first.
1) If only coagulation tests are ordered, draw an extra 1-2 mL to leave
in the syringe.
V. Butterfly draw: If the coagulation tube is the only tube to be drawn, a small

red top tube should be drawn with at least 1 mL before filling the citrate
tube (Blue Top).
19. Blood Cultures:
a. Use appropriate equipment and draw appropriate volume of blood based on
patient’s age/weight:
i. Newborns (less than 4 kilograms [kg]):
1) Colliect 1 mL of blood in a Peds Plus bottle from one site only.
ii. Children 2 years of age or less:
1) Collect 5 mL of blood in a Peds Plus bottle from one site only.
iiii. Children 2-6 years of age or weighing 30 — 80 pounds (lbs):
1) Use one aerobic and one anaerobic bottles and collect 5§ mL of
blood for each bottle
iv. Adults and children weighing greater than 80 lbs:

1) Use 2 sets of aerobic and anaerobic bottles, each bottle containing
8-10 mL of blood.

2) Select a different venipuncture site for each blood culture.
a) If poor access requires that blood for culture be drawn

through a port in an IV or indwelling catheter, the second
must be drawn from a peripheral site as cultures drawn
through catheters can indicate catheter colonization.

b) Do not draw blood from a vein into which an IV solution is
infusing.

c) If venipuncture must be performed at the same site (usually
due to bad veins), perform the second venipuncture at that
site.

b. Once a site is selected, clean site as follows and avoid touching site after

cleansing.
i. For adults, children, and infants greater than 62 months old:
1) Using Chloraprep, vigereusly-scrub-the-sitecleanse with gentle,
repeated back and forth strokes for 30 seconds and allow to dry.
—Forinfantslessthan-C-menths-old, DO-NOT USE Chlerapren:
IEIIeansle Site mt.ll'l an zaols; e.hel_l plel.p plad a|{s|dElPePt ;t d'.’ tri

2) For infants less than 2 months old and NICU infants: disinfect skin
surfaces with Chlorhexadine Gluconate prep pads (available in
NICU). Wipe away all disinfectant with saline wipe after procedure is
complete. Alcohol should not be utilized for NICU infants.

c. Use a new needle with each venipuncture attempt.
i. Do not palpate the skin after it is disinfected.
d. Pop the cap of the blood culture bottle and inoculate first the aerobic bottle and

then the anaerobic bottle with the appropriate amount of blood.

i If the cap has been off the blood culture bottle for any amount of time, the
rubber stopper on the bottle must be cleaned with an alcohol prep pad.

iii. For direct inoculation into the bottles from the needle apparatus, mark the
side of the bottle with the recommended draw.




| Patient Care Services-ProcedureManua!
Venipuncture for Blood Specimens
| Page 80of10

8:D.

1) For anaerobie Aerobic bottles, mark 3™ lines down from top of
bottle.
2) For anaerobic bottles, mark 2" lines down from top of bottle.

iii. If using a needle and syringe, use the volume markings on the syringe to
note the volume.

1) Hold the syringe plunger during transfer to avoid transfer of excess
biood into bottles having a-significant vacuum.

iv. There is no need to change the safety device between inoculations.

+20. Bandage the site:
a. Patients not on anticoagulants:

i Apply tape or an adhesive over the venipuncture site after checking to-be-sure
that all bleeding has stopped. Ask the patient to leave the pressure dressing on
for at least 30 minutes.

. If the patient continues to bleed, apply pressure to the site with a gauze pad until
the bleeding stops. Then apply clean folded gauze as a pressure dressing to the
site. Ask the patient to leave on the bandage for at least one hour.

b. Patients on anticoagulants:

i. Apply pressure for 2 minutes and then check for bleeding.

ii. Watch the venipuncture site for an additional 30-second interval until bleeding
has stopped.

iii. Place clean gauze pad on the site and tape to create a pressure bandage.

1) Note: Patients on tPA will require additional pressure up to 20 minutes.

8:21. Disposal of Needle: Ne bend
bard
a. Disposeat of needles promptly to prevent their reuse or accidental injury. The vacutainer
needle and vacutainer holder assembly are disposed of in the sharps container. The
syringe and needle should all be discarded in the sharps container.
i Note: The vacutainer needle and holder will never be reused.
&Hi. Never clip, bend, recap, unscrew or otherwise manipulate a needle by
hand.
22. Labeling:
a. Refer to Patient Care Services: Specimen Labeling Procedure.
8:23. Specimen Handling:
a. Follow any special specimen handling requirements for the specimens drawn such as
protecting from light, placing on ice, or keeping at body temperature.
40-24. Specimen Transport:

a. When transporting from patient location to the Lab, place the specimens in a secondary
container.
b. When using the pneumatic tube system, place the specimens in a zip lock, leak proof

bag with the requisition or labels in the side pocket or clipped to the outside of the bag.

RELATED DOCUMENT(S):
1. Order of Draw

2. Patient Care Services: Central Venous Access Devices Procedure

3. Patient Care Services: lIdentification, Patients Policy

4. Patient Care Services: Specimen Labeling Procedure

REFERENCE(S):

1. CLSI (2010) Procedures for the Handling and Processing of Blood Specimen for Common

Laboratory Tests; Approved Guideline — Fourth Edition. CLSI document GP44-A4.
Wayne, PA: Clinical and Laboratory Standards Institute

42. CLSI (2010) Tubes and Additives for Venous and Capillary Blood Specimen Collection;
Approved Standard - Sixth Edition. CLSI document GP39-A6. Wayne, PA: Clinical and
Laboratory Standards Institute



| Patient Care Services-Rrocedure-Manual
Venipuncture for Blood Specimens

Page 9 of 10

2:3.

3-5.

CLSI (2017) Collection of Diagnostic Venous Blood Specimens. 7th ed. CLSI standard
GP41. Wayne, PA: Clinical gnd Laboratory Standards Institute
aYa (1) ) a¥a H

) : i : ) | Standard.
CLSI (2017) Essential Elements of a Phlebotomy Training Program. 1st ed. CLSI

document GP48. Wayne, PA: Clinical and Laboratory Standards Institute
QSHA Parn 1ian 0 D P » »

81



82

(pjo sIA g<) (plo sih g<)

(103eAR30R (pjo sik z>)
apuon|4 : ajein smog smog apog
wniposg hwwm_.mmm.. :_._mnm_m.._o“:%_uow ww__w_wwﬂ wnipos ainyno ainyno aimno mmu_hﬂu:mo
Koig oz.v.umm_ anjgybi7 jebung pay s1qo4ay slqoiseuy peeT iite)

ajding an|g
meiq jo 1spio

0L o0l 3bed |
suawioadg poojg Joj amjpundiuan

{ERUEIN-2IRPa9eI--Sa0IIBG 31eD Jualed |



‘c\} Tri-City Medical Center

Distribution: Patient Care

CLEAN COPY

PROCEDURE:

VENIPUNCTURE FOR SPECIMEN COLLECTION

Purpose:

To establish a standard of care for the process of venipunctures for blood specimen
collection.

Supportive Data:

The RN/Phlebotomist needs to be prepared with the proper equipment and supplies. The

RN/Phlebotomist must choose the best site for the phlebotomy; positioning both, the
patient and themselves, to facilitate a successful blood draw. Proper specimen collection
is of the utmost importance to assure quality laboratory specimens.

Equipment: 1. Safety needles: Syringe, Multidraw Vacutainer and Butterfly and Blood Transfer
Device, Luer-lok access device
2. Plastic Holder used for Vacutainer needles
3. Syringes — Sterile and non-sterile
4, Vacuum Tubes within expiration dates
a. Blood Cultures
b. Blue Stopper (sodium citrate)
c. Red Stopper (no additive)
d. Green Stopper (lithium heparin)
e. Lavender Stopper (EDTA)
f. Gray Stopper (sodium fluoride)
5. Tourniquets:
a. Pre-cut tourniquet, a soft pliable non-latex bandage that is 1 inch wide and 15
inches long
b. Blood pressure cuff
6. Antiseptics:
a. 70% isopropanol (alcohol)
b. Chloraprep (Chlorhexidine Gluconate)
c. 2% lodine Tincture SEPP
7. Non-sterile gauze pads:
a. NICU: Saline Wipes
8. Puncture resistant disposal container
9. Adhesive bandages or Co-Flex flexible bandage, or gauze and paper tape
10. Non-latex gloves:
11. Blood Bank Armband if blood product(s) ordered
A. POLICY:

1. Non-Laboratory drawn specimens (by venipuncture only; excludes line draws) will be accepted
by the laboratory if properly labeled blood specimen. Blood Cultures and Blood Bank
Specimens will be accepted as follows:

Department CEII?L?ris Blood Bank Specimens Comments

Dialysis no With phlebotomist present at bedside

?&r:cll_l)a ¢ Cath Lab no With phlebotomist present at bedside

EEEIB(irgency Dept no With phlebotomist present at bedside

2:?: ?&?gﬂt)enswe yes With phlebotomist present at bedside

I(?(t:eJ)Slve Care Unit no With phlebotomist present at bedside

Nursery PKU only

Operating Room Yes with properly labeled transfusion

Pre-op Hold yes armband number
Department Clinical Policies Nurse Executive Department of MSchcal professional Board of

Review & Procedures Committee Pathology g:;ﬁ::.tnitve: C:nflf::i:tsee Directors

%95//3?1', 10 c;//11 c_), 10/100(5./??/14. 1 1/1007./23114. 0817 1 1/100é/?$/14, 01/1116/?;“4' 01/11, 07/14

83



Patient Care Services
Venipuncture for Blood Specimens

Page 2 of 9

Labor & Delivery o Yes with properly labeled transfusion
(L&D) armband number

Yes with properly labeled transfusion

Physician Offices yes
armband number
a. The phlebotomist must present at the bedside for blood bank specimens obtained by line
draw.
b. The first blood culture may be obtained by line draw with physician order, and the

second blood culture collection must be performed by venipuncture.

B. PROCEDURE:

rpON=

o o

10.

Stoplight- read patient notices at the door or at the bedside.

Choose the appropriate PPE.

Introduce yourself, your reason of visit and your department.

Identify the patient using two identifiers depending on inpatient or outpatient status. Refer to

Patient Care Services: Identification, Patient Policy

Verify patient diet restrictions have been followed if applicable.

Select Needle, System, and Collection Tubes:

a. Select the appropriate type of needle and equipment for the blood draw based on the
patient’s physical characteristics and the amount of blood to be drawn.

i Vacutainer System: It is generally preferable to use the needle and syringe
because it allows the blood to pass directly from the vein in the tube.

ii. Plastic Syringe: In general, a syringe is used when drawing a specimen from
individuals with fragile, thread or “rolly” vein walls and is used in conjunction with
blood transfer device.

jii. Butterfly Needle System: The butterfly system is used on infants and extremely
difficult patients.

Perform hand hygiene and don gloves.
Provide patient education which may include:

a. Although slightly painful, the venipuncture will be of short duration.
b. Blood cultures require 2 separate draws (when applicable).
C. Provide expectations for future repeat draws.

Position the patient:
a. Sitting patient:

i. Have the patient position his or her arm on the slanting on a slanting armrest and
extend the arm to form a straight line from the shoulder to the wrist with no bend
at the elbow.

b. Lying down patient:
i. Ask the patient to lie on his or her back in a comfortable position.
i. Have the patient extend his or her arm to form a straight line from the shoulder to

the wrist.
iii. Place a pillow under the arm if additional support is needed.
c. No food, thermometer or chewing gum should be in the patient’'s mouth.
Select site for venipuncture:
a. First choice is the arm without an intravenous (IV) access.
b. Although the larger and fuller median cubital and cephalic veins are used most
frequently, wrist and hand veins are also acceptable for venipuncture.
C. Factors to consider in site selection:

i. Extensive scarring: avoid burn areas
ii. Mastectomy: specimens from this side may not be a representative specimen.

1) In emergency situation, you may proceed without physician/Allied
Healthcare Professional (AHP)'s order.
2) For bilateral mastectomy, get approval from ordering physician/ AHP,

then select site based upon their recommendation.
iii. Hematoma: may cause erroneous test results. If not other site available, collect
specimen below the hematoma

84



Patient Care Services
Venipuncture for Blood Specimens

Page 3 of 9

11.

12.

13.

iv. Cannula, Fistula, Vascular Graft: use a cannulated arm only after consulting with
the attending physician/AHP
V. Foot draw:

1) Must not be attempted as a routine collection site, other than NICU.

2) A physician/AHP must give written permission before this procedure is
started.

vi. A finger stick may be possible for some tests if no other site available.

vil. The nurse or physician/AHP may draw blood through the needle or catheter
following insertion of IV catheter.

viii. Blood transfusions:

1) It is preferable to wait until the transfusion is completed before the blood
is drawn, but orders regarding the timing of the blood draw would be
followed.

2) When specimens are collected during the time that blood is being
transfused, a comment “drawn during TXN" should be entered in the
computer after each test.

If a patient has bilateral IV sites or the only arm available has an IV site:

i. Never place a tourniquet or draw above an active [V site.

ii. The site shouid be as far as possible below (distal) the IV.

ifi. When the site is within 3 inches of the active |V, the phlebotomist will need to
free-text “DRAWN BELOW BUT NEAR IV’ in the computer after each test.

1) Venipuncture above an inactive heparin lock is acceptable.

Close the patient’'s hand to make veins more prominent and easier to enter.

i Avoid having the patient pump the hand which can cause the release of
potassium from the muscle tissue.

Palpate and trace the path of veins several times with the index finger.

i Arteries pulsate, are more elastic and have a thick wall.

ii. Thrombosed veins lack resilience, feel cordlike and roll easily.

iii. Lowering the extremity will allow the veins to fill to capacity.

iv. If superficial veins are not readily apparent, massage the arm from the wrist to
the elbow to force blood into the vein wall.

V. Tapping sharply at the vein site with the index finger a few times will cause the
vein to dilate.

Vi. Applying a warming device, to the site for 4 minutes may have the same result.

Cleanse the venipuncture site with an alcohol pad using a circular motion from the center to the
periphery. Allow area to dry.

a. For NICU infants:
i Disinfect skin surfaces with Chiorhexadine Gluconate prep pads (available in
NICU).
ii. Wipe away all disinfectant with saline wipe after procedure is complete.
iii. Alcohol should not be utilized for NICU infants.
b. Drying prevents the patient from having a burning sensation when the venipuncture is
preformed and hemolysis of the specimen.
Apply the tourniquet:
a. Wrap the tourniquet around the arm three to four inches above the venipuncture site.
b. The tourniquet should be tight but not painful.
C. The tourniquet should be released after no more than one minute.
d If the tourniquet must be applied for preliminary vein selection, it should be released and
reapplied after two minutes.
e. When drawing a Lactic Acid level:

i. With other labs, collect the lactic acid level last and remove tourniquet before
collection.
ii. Without other labs do not use tourniquet.

Inspect the Needle and Syringe:

85



Patient Care Services
Venipuncture for Blood Specimens

Page 4 of 9

14.

15.

a.

b.

Visually determine that the needle is free of hooks at the end of the point and free from
small particles that could restrict the flow.

Move the plunger within the barrel of the syringe to show syringe and needle patency
and freedom of plunger movement.

Perform the Venipuncture:

a.

b.

With thumb and forefinger, secure the vein by placing the forefinger 1 to 2 inches above
the venipuncture site and the thumb just below the site.

If unable to obtain a blood sample:

i. Change the position of the needie.

1) If the needle has penetrated too far into the vein, puli it back a bit.
2) If it has not penetrated the vein far enough, advance it farther into the
vein.

ii. Try another tube, the tube being used may not have sufficient vacuum.

iii. Probing is not recommended.

iv. Loosen the tourniquet, it may have been applied too tightly thereby stopping the
blood flow.

If Registered Nurse (RN)/Phlebotomist is unsuccessful after 2 attempts, it is suggested

that he or she shall contact another person to attempt venipuncture.

Factors to consider during venipuncture:

i. To prevent hematoma:

1) Puncture only the uppermost wall of the vein

2) Remove the tourniquet before removing the needie

3) Use major superficial veins

ii. To prevent hemolysis:

1) Mix anticoagulated specimens thoroughly by inverting tubes gently 5 to
10 times

2) Avoid drawing blood from a hematoma

3) Avoid drawing the plunger back too forcefully when using a needle and
syringe

4) Avoid using a needle that is too small

5) Make sure the needle is fitted securely on the syringe to avoid frothing

6) Without touching, ascertain that the venipuncture site is dry

Vacuum Method:

a.
b.

C.

Thread the appropriate needle into the vacutainer holder until it is secure.

Tap all the tubes that contain additives to ensure that the entire additive is dislodged
from the stopper and the wall of the tube.

Tube order for multiple collection draws:

i. Blood Culture Bottles (Aerobic and Anaerobic)

ii. Blue stopper (sodium citrate)

iii. Red stopper (non additive)

iv. Green stopper (lithium heparin)
V. Lavender stopper (EDTA)
vi. Gray stopper (oxalate/sodium fluoride)

Insert the blood collection tube into the holder and onto the needle up to the recessed
guideline on the needle holder. Do not push the tube beyond the guideline.

i. Do not preassemble supplies outside the patient area.

With the bevel up, line up the needle with the vein. The needle should be held in one
hand at a 15 to 30° angle to the arm. Penetrating the vein at the proper angle will
prevent penetrating both blood vessel walls. The skin and vein should be entered in one
smooth motion until the needle is in the center of the vein. Push the tube forward until
the end of the needle punctures the stopper. Blood should flow immediately into the
tube.

Fill the tube until the vacuum is exhausted and blood flow ceases. This will ensure that
there is a correct ratio of anticoagulant to blood.

86



Patient Care Services
Venipuncture for Blood Specimens

Page 5 of 9

16.

17.

18.

JTa@ "o a0 oo nT

j.

k.

When the blood flow ceases, remove the tube from the holder. The shut-off valve
recovers the point, stopping blood flow until the next tube is inserted.

Mix immediately after drawing each tube that contains an additive by gently inverting the
tube 5 to 10 times. To avoid hemolysis, do not mix vigorously.

To obtain additional specimens, insert the next tube into holder. When the proper
amount of blood has been obtained, the tourniquet should be released and patient's
hand opened.

Before removing the needle from the vein, pull back slightly on the tube to release any
remaining vacuum left in the tube.

The needle may then be withdrawn from the vein while gauze is placed over the
puncture site.

Engage the safety mechanism on the needle. Dispose directly into sharps container.

ynnge and needle method:

Insert the appropriate safety needle onto the syringe.

Place the patient’'s arm in a downward position if possible.

Line up the needle and syringe with the vein from which the blood will be drawn.

Turn the needle so the bevel is in an upward position.

Push the needle into the vein.

Pull back on the syringe plunger until the desired amount of blood has been obtained.
Release the tourniquet and open the patient’s hand.

The needle may now be withdrawn from the vein while gauze is placed over the
venipuncture site.

Lock the safety mechanism of the needle into place. Remove the needle from the
syringe and dispose of the needle into the sharps container.

i. Note: Never transfer blood by inserting the needle directly into the vacuum tubes.
Attach a blood transfer device to the tip of the syringe and insert the vacuum tubes in
order of blood draw to transfer the blood into the tubes.

Gently mix tubes by inversion after transferring the blood into the tubes.

Dispose of the syringe and transfer device into the sharps container.

Venlpuncture using a butterfly needle:

ao oo

Attach appropriate syringe or vacutainer holder to tubing.

Follow standard venipuncture technique until needed amount of blood is obtained.

Follow proper process for needle withdrawal.

Remove butterfly, engage safety mechanism on the needle, and dispose in a sharps

container.

i. If syringe method is used, attach a blood transfer device to the syringe and fill the
appropriate tubes with blood as outlined above.

Coagulation Studies:

a.

In-House Routine Tests:
i. All the tests below are collected in a 2.7 ml sodium citrate (blue top) vacuum

tube.

1) PT (Prothrombin time and INR)
2) PTT

3) Fibrinogen

4) D-Dimer

5) TT (Thrombin Time)
6) 1:1 Mixing Studies
ii. DIC screens (Include PT/INR, PTT, Fibrinogen, FDP, D-dimer, Platelet Count
and smear for schistocytes) require:
1) 2.7 ml Sodium Citrate tube (Blue Top)
2) EDTA tube (Lavender Top)
In House Special Tests:
i The coagulation Department will provide tubes for the following tests:
1) Infant Coagulation Studies: The coagulation Department will prepare
special tubes for all children less than 1 year of age.

87



Patient Care Services
Venipuncture for Blood Specimens
Page 6 of 9

C. Send out Special Coagulation Tests:

The following will be drawn in three (3) 2.7 ml sodium citrate (Blue Top) tubes:
1) AT3 (Antithrombin 1I1)

2) Protein C
3) Protein S
4) Activated Protein C Resistant Factor V
5) Factor Assays
6) Hemostasis A Panel
d. Special Considerations:

It is very important to perform an atraumatic venipuncture, because any tissue
fluid contamination will activate the clotting system.
It is critical that all tubes be filled to the required capacity. Overfilled tubes may
clot and under filled tubes will give a false result
Line Draws: Coagulation studies are not to be drawn from A-lines unless ordered
by a physician/AHP, except for NICU.
1) The first 10 mL of biood must be discarded before blood is used to fill the
coagulation tubes
a) NICU: When utilizing venipuncture, do not discard any amount of
specimen. Lines utilized for NICU Lab draws (in order of
preference) should only be Umbilical Arterial Lines, Peripheral
Arterial Lines, or Umbilical Venous lines.
2) Phlebotomist/NICU RN must inform the Coagulation Department if a line
draw must be done for a coagulation test.

3) Must append a comment “line draw” to each test in the computer using
FUNCTION: RE.

4) Heel sticks and finger sticks are not allowed under any circumstances.

5) Central Venous Access Devices: See Patient Care Service: Central

Venous Access Devices, Adult Procedure.
Syringe draw: The last blood into a syringe will offer the best results for
coagulation tests, so fill the blue top first.
1) If only coagulation tests are ordered, draw an extra 1-2 mL to leave in the
syringe.
Butterfly draw: If the coagulation tube is the only tube to be drawn, a small red
top tube should be drawn with at least 1 mL before filling the citrate tube (Blue
Top).

19. Blood Cultures:

a. Use appropriate equipment and draw appropriate volume of blood based on patient's
age/weight:
i. Newborns (less than 4 kilograms [kg]):
1) Collect 1 mL of blood in a Peds Plus bottle from one site only.
ii. Children 2 years of age or less:
1) Collect 5 mL of blood in a Peds Plus bottle from one site only.
ii. Children 2-6 years of age or weighing 30 — 80 pounds (Ibs):
1) Use one aerobic and one anaerobic bottle and collect 5 mL of blood for
each bottle
iv. Adults and children weighing greater than 80 Ibs:
1) Use 2 sets of aerobic and anaerobic bottles, each bottle containing 8-10
mL of blood.
2) Select a different venipuncture site for each blood culture.
a) If poor access requires that blood for culture be drawn through a

port in an IV or indwelling catheter, the second must be drawn
from a peripheral site as cultures drawn through catheters can
indicate catheter colonization.

b) Do not draw blood from a vein into which an [V solution is infusing.

88



Patient Care Services
Venipuncture for Blood Specimens

Page 7 of 9

20.

21.

22.

23.

24,

c) If venipuncture must be performed at the same site (usually due to
bad veins), perform the second venipuncture at that site.
b. Once a site is selected, clean site as follows and avoid touching site after cleansing.
i For adults, children, and infants greater than 2 months old:
1) Using Chloraprep, cleanse with gentle, repeated back and forth strokes
for 30 seconds and allow to dry.
2) For infants less than 2 months old and NICU infants: disinfect skin

surfaces with Chlorhexadine Gluconate prep pads (available in NICU).
Wipe away all disinfectant with saline wipe after procedure is complete.
Alcohol should not be utilized for NICU infants.

C. Use a new needle with each venipuncture attempt.
i. Do not palpate the skin after it is disinfected.
d. Pop the cap of the blood culture bottle and inoculate first the aerobic bottle and then the

anaerobic bottle with the appropriate amount of blood.

i. If the cap has been off the blood culture bottle for any amount of time, the rubber
stopper on the bottle must be cleaned with an alcohol prep pad.

ii. For direct inoculation into the bottles from the needle apparatus, mark the side of
the bottle with the recommended draw.

1) For Aerobic bottles, mark 3™ lines down from top of bottle.
2) For anaerobic bottles, mark 2™ lines down from top of bottle.

iif. If using a needle and syringe, use the volume markings on the syringe to note
the volume.

1) Hold the syringe plunger during transfer to avoid transfer of excess blood
into bottles having significant vacuum.

v, There is no need to change the safety device between inoculations.

Bandage the site:
a. Patients not on anticoagulants:

i. Apply tape or an adhesive over the venipuncture site after checking that all
bleeding has stopped. Ask the patient to leave the pressure dressing on for at
least 30 minutes.

ii. If the patient continues to bleed, apply pressure to the site with a gauze pad until
the bleeding stops. Then apply clean folded gauze as a pressure dressing to the
site. Ask the patient to leave on the bandage for at least one hour.

b. Patients on anticoagulants:

i. Apply pressure for 2 minutes and then check for bleeding.

ii. Watch the venipuncture site for an additional 30-second interval until bleeding
has stopped.

iii. Place clean gauze pad on the site and tape to create a pressure bandage.

1) Note: Patients on tPA will require additional pressure up to 20 minutes.
Disposal of Needle:
a. Dispose of needles promptly to prevent their reuse or accidental injury. The vacutainer

needle and vacutainer holder assembly are disposed of in the sharps container. The
syringe and needle should all be discarded in the sharps container.
i. Note: The vacutainer needle and holder will never be reused.
. Never clip, bend, recap, unscrew or otherwise manipulate a needie by hand.
Labeling:
a. Refer to Patient Care Services: Specimen Labeling Procedure.
Specimen Handling:
a. Follow any special specimen handling requirements for the specimens drawn such as
protecting from light, placing on ice, or keeping at body temperature.
Specimen Transport:

a. When transporting from patient Iocatlon to the Lab, place the specimens in a secondary
container.
b. When using the pneumatic tube system, place the specimens in a zip lock, leak proof

bag with the requisition or labels in the side pocket or clipped to the outside of the bag.

89



Patient Care Services
Venipuncture for Blood Specimens

Page 8 of 9

C. RELATED DOCUMENT(S):

1.
2.
3.
4.

Order of Draw

Patient Care Services: Central Venous Access Devices Procedure
Patient Care Services: Identification, Patients Policy

Patient Care Services: Specimen Labeling Procedure

D. REFERENCE(S):

1.

CLSI (2010) Procedures for the Handling and Processing of Blood Specimen for Common

Laboratory Tests; Approved Guideline — Fourth Edition. CLSI document GP44-A4. Wayne, PA:

Clinical and Laboratory Standards Institute

CLSI (2010) Tubes and Additives for Venous and Capillary Blood Specimen Collection;
Approved Standard — Sixth Edition. CLS| document GP39-A6. Wayne, PA: Clinical and
Laboratory Standards Institute

CLSI (2017) Collection of Diagnostic Venous Blood Specimens. 7th ed. CLSI| standard GP41.
Wayne, PA: Clinical and Laboratory Standards Institute

CLSI (2017) Essential Elements of a Phlebotomy Training Program. 1st ed. CLS! document
GP48. Wayne, PA: Clinical and Laboratory Standards Institute

90



apuonid
wnipog
fRaigy

vida3
iapuaie]

uledaH winjpog
EETTS)

(103eAn}0R
30|92 ejje
SANIPPY
ON) pay

ajen1d
wnipog

anig Y61

anog
ainyny
[ebundg pay

(pjo sIA 2<)
apog
ainjno
oiqolay
a|ding

(pio sih z<)

amog Av_m_w_hmwvv
ainyng il

oiqosseuy Lo o
an|g :

MeiQ Jo 18pIQ

6 Jo 6 abed
suawioads poojg 10} aumoundiusp
SIIINIBG Ble) Juaned

9N



Tri-City Medical Center
Oceanside, California

Behavioral Health Services
Inpatient Behavioral Health Unit
Crisis Stabilization Unit

SUBJECT: Administration of Antipsychotic Medication
POLICY NUMBER: 6340-725

ISSUE DATE: 03/08

REVISION DATE: 08/09, 03/13

Department Approval: 03/17
Division of Psychiatry Approval: 06/17
Pharmacy and Therapeutics Approval: 09/17
Medical Executive Committee Approval: 1017
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: 11/17

Board of Directors Approval:

A PURPOSE:
1. To provide guidelines for the safe use of antipsychotic medications within legal and regulatory
guidelines to Voluntary and Involuntary patients on the inpatient behavioral health unit.

B. POLICY:

1. Any Food and Drug Administration (FDA) approved antipsychotic medication on the Tri-City
Healthcare District (TCMGHD) formulary will be made available to patients, irrespective of their
legal status, as clinically indicated and in accordance with accepted practice and principles of
psychiatric practice when informed consent has been obtained or a patient has been
determined to be incapable of making treatment decisions.

C. DEFINITION(S):

1. Antipsychotic medication: any drug customarily used for the treatment of symptoms of
psychosns and other severe mental and emotional disorders~(Fitle-8-California-Code-of

2. A-Voluntary Patient: is-an individual who meets inpatient psychiatric hospital severity of illness
criteria, is capable of consent, and consents to inpatient hospital treatment. A Voluntary patient
for the purposes of antipsychotic medication does not include voluntary minor patients, or
Conservatees whose conservators have been given the right to require their Conservatees to
receive treatment related specifically to remedying or preventing the recurrence of the
Conservatees' being gravely disabled.

3. An-Involuntary Patient: is-an individual who has been hospitalized secondary to conditions
described in California Health-and-Welfare and Institutions Code (WIC) sections 5150, 5250,
5260 or 5270.15.

D. PROCEDURE:

1. Voluntary Patients
a. Every person admitted as a Voluntary patient has the right to refuse the administration of
Antipsychotic medications.
b. A Voluntary patient may be treated with antipsychotic medications only after being

informed of the right to accept or refuse the medications and after consenting to the
administration of the medication.

92



| Behavioral Health Services-Psliey-Manual

Administration of Antipsychotic Medication

| Page2of7

g.
h.

In order to make an informed decision the physician who prescribes the medication must

provide the patient with sufficient information, in the patient’s native language if possible.

That information includes:

i. The nature of the patient’'s condition

ii. The reason for taking the medication including the likelihood of the patient's
improving or not improving with the medication.

iii. The reasonable alternative treatments available if any.

iv. A statement that the patient may withdraw consent at any time.

V. The type of medication, frequency of administration, dosage amount, method of
administration and duration of taking the medication.

vi. The probable side effects of the medication that are known to commonly occur.

vii. The possible additional side effects that may occur in patients taking the

medication longer than three months if applicable.
The physician will record the Voluntary patient’s consent to take the medication on a
written Consent to Receive Anti-psychotic Medications (GAH-ferm-4-7)-Form that
complies with applicable state regulations.
If a Voluntary patient has been shown but does not wish to sign the written consent form
it is sufficient for the physician to place the unsigned form in the patient’'s medical record
together with a note that indicates that while the patient understands the nature and
effect of the medication and consents to its administration, he/she does not desire to
sign the written consent.
Medication may be administered in the absence of the patient’'s consent if it is
impracticable to obtain consent, in emergency situations where there is a sudden
marked change in the patient’s condition which necessitates immediate action in order to
preserve the life of or to prevent serious bodily harm to the patient and/or others.
A Voluntary patient may withdraw consent to the administration of the medication at any
time by stating such intention to any member of the treatment team.
The refusal of the patient to consent to the administration of antipsychotic medication
does not, in itself, constitute sufficient grounds for initiating an involuntary hold.

Involuntary patients

a.

Involuntary patients must not be given antipsychotic medication without their informed
consent unless they do not refuse the medication following disclosure of the pertinent
informed consent information (a-g above), there is an emergency, or a court has
determined that the patient is incompetent to make an informed decision concerning
medication.

i. Antipsychotic medication may be administered to an involuntary patient if the
patient has been given the pertinent information about the medication and does
not refuse the medication even if the patient does not expressly agree to take the
medication-fAelfare-and-nstitutions-Code-Section-5332(a)). If the patient does
not refuse to take the medication but refuses to sign the consent form after
having received the pertinent information about the medication, a note to this
effect should be written in the medical record and a copy of the consent form
should be placed in the medical record as well.

An emergency is defined, for this purpose, as a situation in which action to impose

treatment over the person’s objection is immediately necessary for the preservation of

life or the prevention of serious bodily harm to the patient or others, and it is
impracticable to first gain consent. The emergency exemption justifies administration of
the medication only so long as the emergency exists. Once the condition is stabilized,
the patient’s informed consent is required. In addition, the medication administered in
emergencies must be only that required to treat the emergency condition and must be
provided in the manner least restrictive to the personal liberty of the patient.

Antipsychotic medications may be administered over the patient’s objection in non-

emergency situations only if the treatment staff have determined that treatment

93



| Behavioral Health Services-Rolicy-Manual
Administration of Antipsychotic Medication

| Page3of7

alternatives to involuntary medication are unlikely to meet the needs of the patient and a

judicial determination of incapacity to refuse medications has been made.

d. These guidelines apply to patients who are detained pursuant to Welfare-and-tastitutions
GoedeWIC Sections 5150 (72 hour holds), 5250 (14 day holds), 5260 (additional 14 day
hold for persons imminently suicidal), or 52780.15 (additional 30 day hold for personals
gravely disabled-).

e. As with consent for medical treatment, if an Involuntary patient gives informed consent
for antipsychotic medication, that person may at any time withdraw that consent by
informing any member of the treatment team of that decision.

f. Hearings to determine the patient’s capacity to refuse medication
i. The purpose of the hearing is for a hearing officer to determine whether the

patient has the capacity to make an informed decision regarding the proposed
treatment.

ii. To initiate a hearing the director of the program or his/her designee must provide
a copy of the notice of the filing of the petition for the hearing along with a copy of
the petition to the patient and patient’s advocate or counsel, inform the patient of
his or her legal right to a capacity hearing, and inform the patient of his or her
right to the assistance of the patients’ right advocate or an attorney to prepare for
the hearing and to answer any questions or concerns.

ifi. A patients’ right advocate will meet with the patient as soon after the filing of the
petition is practicable.

iv. The hearing must be held within 24 hours of the filing of the petition whenever
possible. If any party needs additional preparation time it may be postponed for
24 hours but in no case may the hearing be delayed beyond 72 hours of the filing
of the petition.

V. Hearings are held on the behavioral health unit and are conducted by a court-
appointed hearing officer.

vi. The patient will be given verbal notification of the determination of the hearing
officer at the conclusion of the hearing and as soon thereafter as is practicable
the patient and the hospital will be given written notification of the determination.

vii. The patient may appeal the determination but if he or she decides to do so,
antipsychotic medication may be administered pending the appeal.

viii.  The judicial determination of a patient’s incapacity to refuse antipsychotic
medication remains in effect only for the duration of the detention period
prescribed by the particular hold in effect.

E. FORM(S):
1. Consent to Receive Anti-psychotic Medications

F. REFERENCE(S):

apLON=

2. Consent to Receive Psychotropic Medication

Additional Intensive Treatment of Suicidal Persons, Cal. WIC §§5260 and 5270.15
Certification for Intensive Treatment, Cal. WIC § 5250

Detention of Mentally Disordered Persons for Evaluation and Treatment, Cal. WIC §5150
Legal and Civil Rights of Persons Involuntary Detained, CAL. WIC § 5332

Title 9, California Code of Regulations, Section 856

94



| Behavioral Health Services-Pelicy-Manuat
Administration of Antipsychotic Medication

| Pagedof7

, Consent to Receive Anti-psychotic Medications

O O O O O

The purpose of this is to explain the anti-psychotic medications my psychiatrist wishes to include in my
treatment. My physician has advised me that anti-psychotic medications are necessary for my treatment and
is requesting that | consent to receive these medications:

Medication(s)

1. 4.
2. 5.
3. 6.

My physician discussed the nature of my medical condition with me.

. My physician has given me the reason for taking such medications including the likelihood of

improving or not improving without such medications and has informed me that my consent can be
withdrawn at any time by telling either my physician or member of my treatment team.

My physician has told me of any reasonable alternatives treatments available, if there are any.

My physician has informed me of the type of medications he/she will prescribed for me; how often, in
what amount, for how long and by what route (by mouth or injection).

My physician has told me of common side effects that may occur when taking these medications; and
especially those that | may have because of factors personal to me.

My physician has discussed with me any possible side effects, which may occur to patients taking
certain categories of medications. Such side effects may include persistent involuntary movement
of the face of mouth and might at times, include similar movements.of the hands and feet, and
that these symptoms are potentially irreversible and may appear after the medications have been
discontinued. These medications may also cause restlessness, increased muscle tone, elevated
blood sugar, lipids, and weight gain.

. The general side effect profile(s) of the above medications have been reviewed with me and could

include some specifically from the list below. This is not a.complete list of all the possible side effects.
| consent to the use of the prescribed medication(s). | understand that | can withdraw this consent at
any time by informing my physician.

Cardiac conduction changes |Elevated cholesterolftriglycerides’ | Motor changes/EPS
Changes in blood count Glaucoma Nausea/vomiting
Confusion Headaches Renal impairment
Diabetes/elevated glucose Hypothyroidism ‘| Sedation/stimulation
Diarrhea/constipation Insomnia Seizures

Elevated blood pressure Liver inflammation Weight gain/loss

@ Tri-City Medical Center

L S Gl
[Py 2MT)

Affix Patient Label

4002 Visia Way « Oceanside - CA - 92056

CONSENT TO RECEIVE

Page1of2 Board Approved (Date)
Authorization
White ~Chart  Yellow —Palient

95



| Behavioral Health Services-Palicy-Manual

Administration of Antipsychotic Medication
| Page5of7

While | have a right as a patient to refuse to accept these medications, my physician may, in an emergency,
order that | be given these medications without my consent. Such an emergency is defined when there is a
sudden marked change in my condition leading to a need to protect my life or prevent serious bodily harm to
me or to others.

| HAVE RECEIVED WRITTEN AND ORAL INFORMATION REGARDING SPECIFIC
MEDICATIONS 1 AM TAKING.

I.  Having been'advised and informed of all of the above by my physician, | consent to receiving these
medications as my physician prescribed them.

1 / AM/PM
Name: Patient Representative Signature: Patient/Representative Date Time
. / / AM/PM
Witness — TCHD Representative (print name) Signature s Firma Date  Fecha Time o Hora

Il Patient has been advised of, and understands, ALL the above information and consents to receiving
these medications as prescribed. However, the patient chooses not to sign this consent form.

/ ! ¥ AM/PM
Witness — TCHD Representative (print name}) Signature e Firma Date e Fecha Time e Hora

lil. Patient willing to take medication, however, patients cognitive functioning limits the ability to understand

and sign.
/ / : AM/PM
Wwitness — TCHD Representative {print name) Signature = Firma Date s Fecha Time o Hora
INTERPRETATION (Complete if Interpretation provided)

Interpretation. provided'in preferred language: (O Teiephonic (J VRI
(1 Face-to-face: (] | have accurately and completely reviewed this document in patient/patient's legal
representative preferred language with: d Patient (7] Patient's legal representative

/ / : AM/PM
interpreter ID number or Name Interpreter Signature (if present) Date Time

(2] Patient refused TCHD's interpretation services and selects as interpreter:

Name and relationship to patient

Affix Patient Label

@) Tri-City Medical Center

4002 Vista Way + Oceanside » CA» 92056

CONSENT TO RECEIVE
W Aymexcone

40-1060

Page 2 of 2 Board Approved (Date)
Authorization
White - Chart  Yellow —Patient




| Behavioral Health Services-Relicy-Manuat

Administration of Antipsychotic Medication
| Page6of7

Consent to Receive Psychotropic Medication
CONSENT TO RECEIVE PSYCHOTROPIC MEDICATION

INSTRUCTIONS TO PATIENT: The form describes information your physician will provide to you regarding
your treatment with Antipsychotic, Psychotropic or Neuroleptic medications. Please read the form thoroughly
before you sign it and if you have any questions, ask your physician. This is a two-sided form.

My psychiatrist has advised me that psychotropic medications are necessary for my treatment and has
discussed the following information with me:

Category of Medication and Name of Medication:

{1 Anti-Depressant

] Anti-Anxiety (O Anti-Psychotic

1 Hypnotic (A Other

1. My physician discussed the nature of my medical condition with me.

2. My physician has given me the reason for taking such medications including the likelihood of
improving or not improving without such medications and has informed me that my consent can be
withdrawn at any time by telling either my physician or member of my treatment team.

3. My physician has told me of any reasonable alternative treatments available, if there are any.

4. My physician has informed me of the type of medications he/she will prescribed for me; how often, in
what amount, for how long and by what route (by mouth or injection).

5. My physician has told me of common side effects that may occur when taking these medications, and
especially those that | may have because of factors personal to me.

6. My physician has discussed with me any possible side effects, which may occur to patients taking
certain categories of medications. Such side effects may include persistent involuntary movement of
the face of mouth and might at times, include similar movements of the hands and feet, and that these
symptoms are potentially irreversible and may appear after the medications have been discontinued.
These medications may also cause restlessness, increased muscle tone, elevated blood sugar, lipids,
and weight gain.

7. The general side effect profile(s) of the above medications have been reviewed with me and could
include some specifically from the list below. This is not a complete list of all the possible side effects. |
consent to the use of the prescribed medication (s). | understand that | can withdraw this consent at
any time by informing my physician.

0O Mood-Stabilizer

Cardiac conduction changes Elevated cholesterol/triglycerides |Motor changes/EPS
Changes in blood count Glaucoma Nausea/vomiting
Confusion Headaches Renal impairment
Diabetes/elevated glucose Hypothyroidism Sedation/stimulation
Diarrhea/constipation Insomnia Seizures
Elevated blood pressure Liver inflammation Stroke

Weight gain/loss

While | have a right as a patient to refuse to accept these medications, my physician may, in an emergency,
order that | be given these medications without my consent. Such an emergency is defined when there is
a sudden marked change in my condition leading to a need to protect my life or prevent serious bodily
harm to me or to others.

Affix Patient Label

‘&) Tri-City Medical Center

4002 Vista Way « Oceanside + CA + 82056

CONSENT TO RECEIVE
PSYCHOTROPIC MEDICATION

e
-100

(Rav 11/00) White - Medication Records  Yellow - MAR

97



| Behavioral Health Services-Relicy-Manual
Administration of Antipsychotic Medication
| Page7of7

Punch Other

Fold

[. Having been advised and informed of all of the above by my physician, | consent to receiving these
medications as my physician prescribes them.

PATIENT’S SIGNATURE DATE!TIME PHYSICIAN'S SIGNATURE DATE/TIME

. | ask that my physician not explain all of the above to me because of the distress this causes
me, and | consent to receiving these medications as my physician prescribes them.

PATIENT'S SIGNATURE DATEITIME PHYSICIAN'S SIGNATURE DATE/TIME

WITNESS DATE/TIME

lli. Patient has been advised of, and understands, ALL the above information and consents to receiving
these medications as | prescribe them. However, the patient chooses not to sign this consent form.

PHYSICIAN'S SIGNATURE DATEITIME WITNESS DATEITIME

IV. Patient takes medication willingly, however, patients cognitive functioning severely limits understanding.

PHYSICIAN’S SIGNATURE DATEITIME WITNESS DATE/TIME

Affix Patient Label

@ Tri-City Medical Center

4002 Vista Way + Ocsanside » CA + 92056

CONSENT TO RECEIVE
PSYCHOTROPIC MEDICATION

LA 212
01

Rev. 11/00) White - Medical Records  Yellow - MAR

98



Tri-City Medical Center
Oceanside, California

ENGINEERING
EQUIPMENT

SUBJECT:

Utility Management Plan

POLICY NUMBER: 4003

ISSUE DATE:

09/94

REVIEW DATE(S): 08/15
REVISION DATE(S): 02/97, 05/00, 05/03, 06/06, 05/09, 06/12,

06/15, 10/15, 01/17

Department Approval: 40116,-07/17
Environmental Health and Safety Committee Approval: 10/46,-08/17
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: o711/117
Board of Directors Approval: 01/17

A EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:

1.

The Environment of Care and the range of patient care services provided to the patients served
by Tri-City Healthcare District (TCHD) present unique challenges. The specific utility system
risks of the environment are identified by conducting and maintaining a proactive risk
assessment. A Utility Systems Management Plan based on various risk criteria including risks
identified by outside sources such as, The Joint Commission (TJC) is used to eliminate or
reduce the probability of adverse patient outcomes.

The Utility Systems Management Plan describes the risk and daily management activities that
TCHD has put in place to achieve the lowest potential for adverse impact on the safety and
health of patients, staff, and other people, coming to the organization's facilities. The
management plan and the Utility Systems Management program are evaluated annually to
determine if they accurately describe the program and that the scope, objectives, performance,
and effectiveness of the program are appropriate.

The program is applied to the TCHD and all outlying facilities operated and or owned by TCHD.
The Utilities Management Plan and associated policies extend to all inpatient and outpatient
service line programs, ancillary services, support services and all facilities including patient care
and business occupancies of TCHD. The plan also affects all staff, volunteers, medical staff and
associates including contracted services of TCHD.

B. PRINCIPLES:

1.

2.

Utility systems play a significant role in supporting complex medical equipment and in providing
an appropriate environment for provision of patient care services.

Orientation, education, and training of operators, users, and maintainers of utility systems is an
essential part of assuring safe effective care and treatment are rendered to persons receiving
services.

Assessment of needs for continuing technical support of utility systems and design of
appropriate calibration, inspection, maintenance, and repair services is an essential part of
assuring that the systems are safe and reliable.

C. OBJECTIVES:

1.

2.

Design, operate and maintain utility systems serving the buildings that house the healthcare
services of TCHD to provide a safe, comfortable, appropriate environment that supports patient
care and business operations.

Perform recommended maintenance to maximize system service life and reliability.

99



Engineering Marual- Equipment
Utility Management Plan
Page 2 of 8

3. Manage the Utility Systems Management program to assure compliance with The Joint
Commission requirements.

D. PROGRAM MANAGEMENT STRUCTURE:

1. The Director of Engineering or Designee assures that an appropriate utility system
maintenance program is implemented. The Director of Engineering or Designee also
collaborates with the Director of Safety/EOC to develop reports of Utility Systems Management
performance for presentation to the Environmental Health and Safety Committee (EHSC) on a
quarterly basis. The reports summarize organizational experience, performance management
and improvement activities, and other utility systems issues.

2. The Hospital's Board of Directors receives an Annual Report regularreperts-of the activities of
the Utility Systems Management program from the EHSG Director of Safety/the-EOC unless
other reports are requested. The Board of Directors reviews the repers-Annual Report and,
as appropriate, communicates concerns about identified issues back to the Director of
Engineering and appropriate clinical staff. The Board of Directors collaborates with the Chief
Executive Officer (CEO) and other senior managers to assure budget and staffing resources are
available to support the Utility Systems Management program.

3. The Hospital's Chief Operating Officer (COQ) or designee receives regular reports of the
activities of the Utility Systems Management program as needed.. The COO or designee
collaborates with the Director of Engineering and other appropriate staff to address utility
system issues and concerns. The COO or designee also collaborates with the Director of
Engineering to develop a budget and operational objectives for the program.

4, The facility maintenance technicians and selected outside service company staff schedule and
complete all calibration, inspection, and maintenance activities required to assure safe reliable
performance of utility systems in a timely manner. In addition, the technicians and service
company staff perform necessary repairs.

5. Individual staff members are responsible for being familiar with the risks inherent in or-theirwerk
and present in their work environment. They are also responsible for implementing the
appropriate organizational, departmental, and job related procedures and controls required to
minimize the potential of adverse outcomes of care and workplace accidents.

E. PROCESSES OF THE UTILITY SYSTEMS PLAN:
1. UM.EC-01-01-01-ER8—Plan for the Safe, Reliable, Effective Operation of Utility Systems
a. The Utility Systems Management Plan describes the procedures and controls in place to
minimize the potential that any patients, staff, and other individuals coming to the
facilities of TCHD that may experience an adverse event while being monitored,
diagnosed, or treated with any type of medical equipment or being housed in an
environment supported by the utility systems of TCHD.
2. UM-EC-02.05.01-ER1—Design and Installation of Utility Systems
a. The Director of Engineering or Designee works with qualified design professionals,
project managers and the intended end users of the space of TCHD to plan, design,
construct, and commission utility systems that meet codes and standards and the
operational needs of the patient care and business activities of TCHD. The construction
and commissioning procedures are designed to assure compliance with codes and
standards and to meet the specific needs of the occupants of every space. In addition,
the design process is intended to assure performance capability meets current needs
and sufficient additional capacity is available to manage unusual demands and to help
assure that future demands on utility systems can be met.
3. UM-EC.02.05.01-ER2—- Determining System Risks and Developing and inventory of Utility
Systems and Equipment
a. All utility systems components and equipment are included in a program of planned
calibration, inspection, maintenance, and testing. The components and equipment are
inventoried at the time of installation and acceptance testing. The inventory is
maintained on an ongoing basis by the Plant Operations staff. The inventory includes

100



] Engineering Manrual- Equipment

Utility Management Plan

Page 3 of 8

utility system equipment maintained by the Engineering and Maintenance staff and
equipment maintained by vendors.

4, UM.EC-02.05.01-ER3—Maintenance Strategies

a.

The Director of Engineering or Designee evaluates all utility system equipment to
determine the appropriate maintenance strategy for assuring safety and maximum useful
life. The Director of Engineering or Designee uses manufacturer recommendations,
applicable codes and standards, accreditation requirements, and local or reported field
experience to determine the appropriate maintenance strategy for assuring safety and
maximizing equipment availability and service life. The strategies may include fixed
interval inspections, variable interval inspections, preemptive maintenance, predictive
maintenance, and corrective maintenance.

5. UM-EG-02-06-04-EP4—Inspection, Testing, and Maintenance Intervals

a.

The Director of Engineering or Designee uses manufacturer recommendations,
applicable codes and standards, accreditation requirements, and local or reported field
experience to determine the appropriate maintenance intervals for assuring safety and
maximizing equipment availability and service life.

A maintenance management system is used to schedule and track timely completion of
scheduled maintenance and service activities.

The Director of Engineering or Designee is responsible for assuring that the rate of
timely completion of scheduled maintenance and other service activities meets
regulatory and accreditation requirements.

6. UM-EC-02.05-:04- ER5—Management of Water Systems

a.

d.

The Director of Engineering or Designee and the-Infection Control Rreventionist are
responsible for identifying needs for procedures and controls to minimize the potential
for the spread of infections through or by the utility systems.

Each clinical care service and support service is evaluated to determine the potential for
hospital-acquired illness. Each potential is further evaluated to determine what role
physical barriers and utility systems can play in contributing to or minimizing the
potential.

The Director of Engineering or Designee and the-Infection Control Preventionist-are
responsible for developing procedures and controls to manage any identified potential
for growth and/or transmission of pathogenic organisms in the domestic hot water
system, cooling tower water, and other potential sources of waterborne pathogens.

The procedures may include periodic testing or treatment to control the risk and to inhibit
the growth and spread of waterborne pathogens.

7. UM.EC.02.05.01-ER6—Management of Ventilation Systems

a.

The Director of Engineering or Designee and the-Infection Preventienist-Control are
responsible for designing procedures and controls for monitoring the performance of air
handling equipment. The procedures and controls address maintenance of air flow rates,
air pressure differentials in critical areas, and managing the effectiveness of air filtration
systems.

Air handling and filtration equipment designed to control airborne contaminants including
vapors, biological agents, dust, and fumes is monitored and maintained by Plant
Maintenranee: Operations.

The performance of all new and altered air management systems is verified by a
qualified service provider. At a minimum flow rates and pressure relationships are
measured as part of the commissioning of all new building projects and major space
renovations.

Periodic measurements of air volume flow rates and pressure relationships are tested in
sensitive areas throughout the hospital. When the measured system performance
cannot be adjusted to meet code requirements or occupant needs, the Director of
Engineering or Designee and Infection Control Rreventienist develops, when
appropriate, a temporary Infection Control Risk Management plan to minimize the
potential impact of the deficient performance.

101



| Engineering Manual- Equipment

Utility Management Plan

Page 4 of 8

8.

10.

UM-EC.02.06.04 ERP7—Mapping of Utility Systems

a.

The Director of Engineering or Designee is responsible for maintaining up-to-date
documentation of the distribution of all utility systems. The documents include as-built
and record drawings, one line drawing’s, valve charts, and similar documents. The
documents include original construction documentation and documentation of
renovations, alterations, additions, and modernizations. Hard copies of the
documentation are maintained in the Plant Operations department. Documents that are
available in electronic format are maintained on the Engineering Shared Drive.

UM.EC-02.05.01-EP8—Labeling of Controls for System Shutdown and Recovery

a.

The Director of Engineering or Designee is responsible for assuring that current
documents showing the layout of utility systems and the locations of controls that must
be activated to implement a partial or complete shut-down of each utility system are
available at all times.

The documents must include the original layout of the systems and all modifications,
additions, and renovations that affect the process for implementing a partial or complete
shutdown of a system. The documents must include information that can be used to
identify specific controls. The controls must be identified by a label, numbered tag or
other device that corresponds to the information on the documents.

UM-EC-02.06-:04-EP9—13—Emergency Procedures

a.

of Emergency Power Systems
a.

The Director of Engineering or Designee and appropriate clinical caregivers collaborate
to identify life-critical medical equipment supported by the utility systems. Life-critical
equipment is defined as equipment, the failure or malfunction of which would cause
immediate death or irreversible harm to the patient dependent on the function of the
equipment.
The Director of Engineering or Designee and the caregivers are responsible for
developing appropriate resources to manage the response to the disruption of the
function of the identified life-critical equipment. The resources are designed to minimize
the probability of an adverse outcome of care.
The resources must include but are not limited to information about the availability of
spare or alternate equipment, procedures for communication with staff responsible for
repair of the equipment, and specific emergency clinical procedures and the conditions
under which they are to be implemented.
Copies of applicable emergency procedures are included in the emergency operations
manual of each clinical department. Training addressing the medical equipment
emergency procedures is included in the department or job related orientation process.
All utility systems emergency procedures are reviewed annually.

0208, Inspection, Testing, and Maintenance

The Director of Engineering or Designee is responsible for identifying all emergency
power sources and for developing procedures and controls for inspection, maintenance,
and testing to assure maximum service life and reliability. TCHD uses battery-powered
lights, engine driven generators, and large UPS stored energy systems to provide power
for emergency lighting, operation of critical systems, and operation of information
systems equipment.

Each required battery powered emergency lighting device is tested for 30 seconds each
month and for 90 minutes annually.

The Emergency Power Supply Systems (EPSS) supply power for emergency exits,
patient ventilation, fire and life safety equipment, public safety, communications, data
and processes that if disrupted would have serious life safety or health consequences.
Each required EPSS system is tested in accordance with the code requirements for the
class of device.

The Director of Engineering or Designee is responsible for assuring that appropriate
inspection, maintenance, and testing of the essential electrical system is done. Each
motor/generator set serving the emergency power system is tested under connected

102



| Engineering Masual Equipment

Utility Management Plan

Page 5 of 8

| 12.

' 13.

| 14.

\ 15.

16.

load conditions 12 times a year. All automatic transfer switches are tested as part of
each scheduled generator load test.

Testing parameters are recorded and evaluated by the Plant Operations staff. All
deficiencies are rectified immediately or a temporary secondary source of essential
electrical service is put in place to serve the needs to critical departments or services
until the primary system can be restored to full service.

If a failure during a planned test occurs, a full retest will be performed after appropriate
repairs are made and essential electrical system is functional again.

Each diesel engine powered motor/generator not loaded to 30% or more of its
nameplate capacity during connected load tests undergoes further evaluation to
determine if the exhaust gas temperature reaches or exceeds the manufacturer’s
recommended temperature to prevent wet stacking. Each diesel engine failing to meet
the temperature recommendation will be exercised annually by connecting it to a
dynamic load bank and performing the three step test process specified by NFPA 99 and
NFPA 110.

Batteries, fuel stored on site, controls, and other auxiliary emergency power equipment
is inspected, maintained, and tested as required. The Administrative Director of
Engineering or Designee Facilities; Engineering staff and contracted service providers
are responsible for assuring the reliability of each component part of the emergency
power systems by performing all required calibration, inspection, maintenance, and
testing in a timely manner.

UM-EG-02.05.05-ER1-Utility Systems Inventory and Initial Testing

a.

The Director of Engineering or Designee establishes and maintains a current, accurate,
and separate inventory of all utility systems equipment included in a program of planned
inspection or maintenance. The inventory includes equipment owned by TCHD and
leased or rented equipment.

The Director of Engineering or Designee is responsible for implementation of the
program of planned inspection and maintenance. All utility systems equipment is tested
for performance and safety prior to use.

UM.EC-02.05.05-EP3-Testing of Life Support Equipment

a.

The Director of Engineering or Designee assures that scheduled testing of all utility
systems that play a role in life support is performed in a timely manner. Reports of the
completion rate of scheduled inspection and maintenance are presented to the EHSC
each quarter. If the quarterly rate of completion falls below 95%, the Director of
Engineering or Designee will also present an analysis to determine what the cause of
the problem is and make recommendations for addressing it.

UM.EC.02.05.05- ERP4-Testing of Infection Control Support Equipment

a.

The Director of Engineering or Designee assures that scheduled testing of utility
systems equipment that supports critical infection control processes is performed in a
timely manner. Reports of the completion rate of scheduled inspection and maintenance
are presented to the EHSC each quarter. If the quarterly rate of completion falls below
95%, the Director of Engineering or Designee will also present an analysis to determine
what the cause of the problem is and make recommendations for addressing it.

UM.EC-02.05.056-ER5-Testing of Non-Life Support Equipment

a.

The Director of Engineering or Designee assures that scheduled testing of all non-life
support equipment is performed in a timely manner. Reports of the completion rate of
scheduled inspection and maintenance are presented to the EHSC each quarter. If the
quarterly rate of completion falls below 95%, the Facilities will also present an analysis to
determine what the cause of the problem is and make recommendations for addressing
it.

UM-EC-02.05-08-ER1—Medical Gas System Testing

a.

All medical gas systems are maintained and periodically tested to assure system
performance. All testing and inspection is done in accordance with the requirements of
the current edition of NFPA 99.

103



| Engineering Manual- Equipment
Utility Management Plan

Page 6 of 8

17.

18.

UM-EC-02.05.00-EP2 - Modifying / Repairing Medical Gas Systems

a. When a new medical gas system is installed or an existing system is breached for any
reason, the Director of Engineering or Designee coordinates certification of the system
by a qualified service provider. The certification testing is done in accordance with the
requirements of the current edition of NFPA 99. The Director of Engineering or
Designee maintains a permanent record of all certification testing.

UMEC-02.05.08-ER3-Labeling & Accessibility of Medical Gas Controls

a. The Director of Engineering or Designee is responsible for assuring that all medical gas
system control valves and monitoring stations are identified appropriately.

b—In addition, the Director of Engineering or Designee is responsible for assuring that
each monitoring station and valve is accessnble AcceSS|b|I|ty is evaluated dunng
scheduled eRvireRmreraonrs

104



| Engineering Manual- EQuipment
Utility Management Plan
Page 7 of 8

105



| Engineering Manual- Equipment
Utility Management Plan
Page 8 of 8

F. AFFECTED PERSONNEL/AREAS:
1. Governing Board; Medical Staff; All Hospital Employees; Volunteers; Vendors; Contract
Services and Staff.;

G. REFERENCE(S):

1. The Joint Commission (2017). Hospital Accreditation Standards. lllinois: Joint Commission
Resources.

106



2
(C‘? Tri-City Medical Center

Oceanside, California

Environment of Care Manual
Life Safety Management

SUBJECT:

ISSUE DATE:

Life Safety Management Plan

11/87

REVIEW DATE(S): 03/00, 04/06, 04/09
REVISION DATE(S): 04/13, 05/12, 06/15

Department Approval: 06/16,-07117
Environmental Health and Safety Committee Approval: 08/46,-08/17
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: 0471117
Board of Directors Approval: 01/17

A EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:

1.

Each environment of care and the physical condition of occupants poses unique fire safety risks
to the patients served, the employees and medical staff who use and manage it, and to others
who enter the environment. The Life Safety Management Program is designed to identify and
manage the risks of the environments of care operated and owned by Tri-City Healthcare
District (TCHD). The specific fire safety risks of each environment are identified by conducting
and maintaining a proactive risk assessment. A fire safety program based on applicable laws,
regulations, codes, standards, and accreditation standards is designed to manage the specific
risks identified in each healthcare building or portions of buildings housing healthcare services
operated by TCHDIH-City-Healthcare District.

The Management Plan for Life Safety describes the risk and daily management activities that
TCHDT+-City-HealthsareDistriet has put in place to achieve the lowest potential for adverse
impact on the safety and health of patients, staff, and other people, coming to the organization’s
facilities. The management plan and the Life Safety Management Program are evaluated
annually to determine if they accurately describe the program and that the scope, objectives,
performance, and effectiveness of the program are appropriate.

The program is applied to the Medical Center and all offsite clinics and care facilities of
TCHD¥+-GCityHealtheare Bistrict. The Life Safety Management Plan and associated policies
extend to all inpatient and outpatient service line programs, ancillary services, support services
and all facilities including patient care and business occupancies of TCHD¥+-Gity-Healtheare
DigkAst,

B. PRINCIPLES:

1.

All buildings of TCHDT+i-Gity-Healthcare-Distriet housing patient care services must be
designed, operated, and maintained to comply with the 2012 edition of the National Fire
Protection Association (NFPA) Life Safety Code, and the 2012 Edition of the NFPA Health Care
Facilities Code.

All fire alarm, detection, and extinguishing systems and equipment must be maintained to
comply with applicable codes and standards.

All staff must be educated and trained to respond effectively to fire, smoke, or other products of
combustion to minimize the potential of loss of life or property in the event of a fire.

Appropriate temporary administrative and engineering controls must be designed, implemented,
and maintained whenever existing deficiencies or conditions created by construction activities
significantly reduce the level of life safety in any area where patients are cared for or treated.

C. OBJECTIVES:

107



Environment of Care Manual — Life Safety Management
Life Safety Management Plan

Page 2 of 8

1.

2.

5.

Design and construct all spaces intended for housing patient care and treatment services to meet
national, state, and local building and fire codes.

Conduct required fire drills in all buildings of TCHDT+-Gity-Healtheare-Distrist housing patient
care services.

Calibrate, inspect, maintain, and test fire alarm, detection, and suppression systems in
accordance with codes and regulations.

Inspect and maintain all buildings housing patient care services to assure compliance with the
applicable requirements of the 2012 edition of the NFPA Life Safety Code and the 2012 Edition
of NFPA Health Care Facilities Code.

Train all staff, volunteers, and members of the medical staff to respond effectively to fires.

D. PROGRAM MANAGEMENT STRUCTURE:

1.

The Director of En Engineering (—Eaem&es-MaaageF-) or Designee assures that an appropriate
maintenance program is implemented. The Director of Engineering {Facilities-Manager) or
Designee also collaborates with the Safety Officer to develop reports of Life Safety
Management performance for presentation to the Environmental Health &and Safety Committee
on a quarterly basis. The reports summarize organizational experience, performance
management and improvement activities, and other fire safety issues.

The facilities management technicians and selected outside service company staff schedule
and complete all calibration, inspection, and maintenance activities required to assure safe
reliable performance of fire safety equipment in a timely manner. In addition, the technicians
and service company staff perform necessary repairs.

Individual staff members are responsible for being familiar with the risks inherent in their work
and present in their work environment. They are also responsible for implementing the
appropriate organizational, departmental, and job related procedures and controls required to
minimize the potential of adverse outcomes of care and workplace accidents.

The Board of Directors of TCHDF+-Gity-Healtheare District receives regular reports of the
activities of the Life Safety Management program from the Environmental Health &and Safety
Committee. The Board of Directors reviews the reports and, as appropriate, communicates
concerns about identified issues back to the Director of Engineering {Facilities-Manager) or
Designee and appropriate clinical staff. The Board collaborates with the Chief Executive
Officer (CEO) and other senior managers to assure budget and staffing resources are available
to support the Life Safety Management program.

The CEO or designee of TCHDF+-Gity-Healthcare-District receives regular reports of the
activities of the Life Safety Management program. The CEO or designee collaborates with the
Director of Engineering {Facilities-Manager} or Designee and other appropriate staff to address
fire safety issues and concerns.

E. ELEMENTS OF THE LIFE SAFETY MANAGEMENT PLAN:

1.

2.

Life Safety Management Plan (FS.EC.01.01.01 EP6)

a. The Life Safety Management Program is described in this management plan. The Life
Safety Management Plan describes the procedures and controls in place to minimize the
potential that any patients, staff, and other people coming to the facilities of TCHD¥+-
Gity-Healtheare-Distriet experience an adverse outcome in the event of a fire.

Processes for Protecting Building Occupants and Property (FS.EC.02.02.01 EP1)

a. The Director of Engineering {=asilities-Manager} or Designee and Safety Officer are
responsible for coordinating the development of design, operations, maintenance, and
training processes to minimize the potential for fires and of adverse consequences
related to the presence of fire, smoke, or other products of combustion.

b. Design
i. The Director of Engineer {Fasiliies-Manager} or Designee and other project

managers collaborate with qualified design professionals, code enforcement, and
facility licensing agencies to assure that buildings and spaces are designed to
comply with local, state, and national building and fire codes. American Institute of

108



Environment of Care Manual — Life Safety Management

Life Safety Management Plan

Page 3 of 8

Architects (AlA) guidelines are also considered in the design process for
compliance with the International Building Codes with California amendments.
The Director of Engineer {Racilities-Manager} or Designee assures that all
required permits and inspections are obtained or completed prior to occupancy.
The Director of Engineer-{Facilities-Manager} or Designee permanently
maintains all plans, inspection reports, and other documents related to the design
and construction of any building or space housing patient care or treatment
services of TCHDH+-City-Healtheare-District.

Management

i. The Director of Engineer (Facilities-Manager} or Designee oversees the design,
implementation, and documentation of processes designed to assure optimal
performance and continual compliance with code requirements of fire alarm,
detection, and suppression systems. Similar programs are in place for
maintenance of building elements operating conditions that play a role in the fire
safety level of the environment.

ii. The Director of Engineer {Facilities-Manager} or Designee is responsibie for
assuring that all renovation and new construction within existing buildings is done
in a manner that preserves compliance with codes and standards.

Fire Response Process

i. The Safety Officer is responsible for the design and management of a fire
response plan that meets the unique needs of the occupants of each department
or service of TCHDF+-GCity Healtheare Bistriet. The current fire response plan is
based on the remove from immediate danger, activate alarms, confine fire,
extinguish or evacuate area "RACE" principle. Area specific response and
evacuation plans that include training and equipment required to manage unique
risks identified in areas are in place. The plans are evaluated annually as part of
the overall program review.

ii. The emergency number “66” is to be dialed to report a fire.

iii. The unattached buildings located on the Medical Center campus will dial “66” to
report a fire.

iv. All buildings off the main Medical Center campus will dial “911" for assistance in
case of a fire.

The hospital prohibits smoking on all facility grounds (FS.EC.02.03.01 EP2 & EC.02.01.03 EP1)

a.

C.

TCHDT+-Gity-Healtheare-Distriet has implemented a Smoke- Free Environment policy.
The policy prohibits smoking of all kinds (ie: cigarettes, cigars, pipe, chewing tobacco, e-
cigarettes, and all vapor producing devices) in any hospital building or campus grounds
by all, including staff, visitors and patients.

TCHDTH-Gity Healthcare-Distriet has identified alternatives to tobacco products that are
offered to all. TCHDT+-City-Healthcare District has developed tobacco replacement
resources to assist staff and patients with smoking cessation as desired.

The procedures for managing the use of tobacco replacement materials are followed
and enforced by all managers and staff.

The hospital maintains free and unobstructed access to all exits (FS.EC.02.03.01 EP4)

a.

Leaders in all areas of the hospital are responsible for assuring that equipment, furniture,
and supplies are not stored in corridors. The condition of corridors is evaluated during
each environmental rounds activity. All violations are reported to the Director and/or
Manager of the area where the deficiency was identified, the Safety Officer, and the
Environmental Health &and Safety Commiittee.

The hospital has a written fire response plan (FS.EC.02.03.01 EP9-10)

a.

The Safety Officer is responsible for coordinating the implementation of the fire response
plan. All staff is oriented to the RACE response model and effective use of portable fire
extinguishers. In addition, all staff are oriented to the department or service specific
plans that account for the unique challenges posed by the condition of occupants and
the design of space in which they work.

109



Environment of Care Manual —

Life Safety Management Plan
Page 4 of 8

b.

Life Safety Management

The department and area specific fire response plans include information about:

i. The roles of all employees, medical staff, volunteers, contract staff and students
near the point of fire origin.

ii. The roles of all employees, medical staff, volunteers, contract staff and students
away from the point of fire origin.

1) Note: TCHDF+H-Gity-Healthcare-District believes strongly in the principle of
life safety. The organization recognizes as a practical matter that
members of the medical staff and many volunteers and students are not
present much of the time and are not likely to be a reliable resource
during a fire response. Therefore, the medical staff, volunteers, and
students do not have a specific defined role in the fire response plan.
They are instructed to remain in the area they are located at the time an
alarm sounds and to render assistance under the direction of the
manager or employees of the area as needs arise.

iii. Operation of the fire alarm system.
iv. Exit routes and use of equipment used to relocate or evacuate patients, visitors,
and staff.

6. Fire Drills (FS.EC.02.03.03 EP1 - 5)

a.

Regular fire drills are conducted to reinforce training and education. At least 50% of the
drills are unannounced. The frequency of drills is based on regulations and accreditation
requirements. All healthcare, ambulatory healthcare and overnight sleeping areas are
drilled at least once per shift per quarter.

If conditions evaluated as part of the Interim Life Safety Measures (ILSM) indicate a
need for additional drills to enhance staff awareness of degraded life safety protection in
various areas, there is documentation that the additional drills are performed. All
freestanding business occupancies are drilled at least once per shift per year.

All fire drills are evaluated to determine if individual areas respond appropriately. An
aggregate evaluation of fire drills is done at least twice a year. The aggregate analysis
looks for patterns or trends of deficiencies. When deficiencies are identified, there is
documentation that the deficiencies are corrected.

7. Inspection, Testing, and Maintenance of Fire Safety Systems (FS.EC.02.03.05 EP1 — 20)

a.

The Director of Engineering {Facilities-Manager) or Designee works with qualified
contractors and staff to design a program of calibration, inspection, maintenance, and
testing to assure the reliability of all fire safety systems and equipment. The program
includes systems and equipment such as fire sprinklers, smoke detection, fire pumps, fire
dampers, doors, and shutters, and smoke control elements of the environment. Each
system or piece of equipment is maintained to comply with requirements of the National
Fire Protection Association or other applicable codes and standards. The hospital
conducts annual tests of battery powered exit lights for 90 minutes. The hospital conducts
monthly evaluations of nuclear powered exit signs and verified for expiration dates and
replaced accordingly.

When deficiencies are identified, they are corrected within 48 hours. If a deficiency
cannot be corrected within 48 hours, the Facilities Manager evaluates the impact of the
deficiency using the ILSM criteria to determine if an ILSM plan needs to be put in place
until the deficiency can be corrected. All ILSM plans are monitored for effect and
documentation demonstrating compliance with the plan is maintained by the
Safety/Security Officer.

8. Life Safety Management (LS.EC.01.01.01 EP1 -~ 3)

a.

The Director of Engineering {Fasilities-Manager) or Designee is responsible for
maintaining the Statement of Conditions. The Director of Engineering {Fasilities
Manager) or Designee prepares a quarterly report of the rate of completion of any Plan
for Improvement for the Environmental Safety Committee. If any items will not be
completed within the established timeframe plus The Joint Commission allowed six
month grace period, the Director of Engineering {Fasiliies- Manager) or Designee is

110



Environment of Care Manual - Life Safety Management

Life Safety Management Plan

Page 5 of 8

10.

responsible for preparing a letter to the appropriate Joint Commission staff requesting an
extension of the timeframe or a change of the method of correction.

Management of Fire Safety Risks (LS.01.02.01 EP1 - 14)

a.

A program of Interim Life Safety Management based on Interim Life Safety Measures
(ILSM) is used to manage degradation of the level of life safety required by NFPA 101 —
2012 Life Safety Code. The ILSM program consists of a screening tool used to assess
the severity of the potential impact of a degraded level of life safety. When risk factors
indicate a need to implement one or more of the ILSM, a project specific Interim Life
Safety Management Plan (ILSMP) is designed.

The Director of Engineering-{Fasilities Manager} or Designee and Safety Officer are
responsible for implementation of the ILSMP. The implementation may include training,
installation of engineering controls, posting of temporary advisory signs, and other
actions deemed necessary. Affected staff are oriented and drilled, as appropriate, to
familiarize them with the Interim Life Safety Management Plan.

The Director of Engineering {Faciliies-Manager} or Designee and Safety Officer are
responsible for monitoring the effectiveness of the implementation of the ILSMP. When
deficiencies are identified, the Safety Officer and/or the Director of Engineering
{Faciliies-Manager) or Designee take appropriate action to resolve the deficiencies.

All monitoring and actions to resolve deficiencies related to an ILSMP are documented.
The documentation is presented to the Environmental Health & Safety Committee as
part of the quarterly Life Safety Management report to the Committee. All ILSM
evaluations, plans, and monitoring documentation are maintained for at least three
years.

The hospital monitors conditions in the environment (EC.04.01.01 EP1 — EC.04.01.01 EP11)

a.

The Director of Risk Management coordinates the design and implementation of the
incident reporting and analysis process. The Safety Officer works with the Director of
Risk Management to design appropriate forms and procedures to document and
evaluate patient and visitor incidents, staff member incidents, and property damage
related to environmental conditions.

Incident reports are completed by a witness or the staff member to whom a patient or
visitor incident is reported. The completed reports are forwarded to the Director of Risk
Management who in turn works with appropriate staff to analyze and evaluate the
reports. The results of the evaluation are used to eliminate immediate problems in the
environment.

In addition, the Director of Risk Management and the Safety Officer collaborate to
conduct an aggregate analysis of incident reports generated form environmental
conditions to determine if there are patterns of deficiencies in the environment of staff
behaviors that require action. The findings of such analysis are reported to the
Environmental Health and& Safety Committee and the Patient Safety Committee, as
appropriate, as part of quarterly Environmental Safety reports. The Safety Officer
provides summary information related to incidents to the CEO and other leaders,
including the Board of Directors, as appropriate.

The Safety Officer coordinates the collection of information about environmental safety
and patient safety deficiencies and opportunities for improvement from all areas of
TCHDTw-Ciat=lealtheare Ristrict.

Appropriate representatives from hospital administration, clinical services, support
services, and a representative from each of the seven management of the environment
of care functions use the information to analyze safety and environmental issues and to
develop recommendations for addressing them.

The Environmental Health &and Safety Committee and the Patient Safety Committee
are responsible for identifying important opportunities for improving environmental
safety, for setting priorities for the identified needs for improvement, and for monitoring
the effectiveness of changes made to any of the environment of care management
programs.



Environment of Care Manual — Life Safety Management
Life Safety Management Plan

Page 6 of 8

11.

12.

13.

g. The Safety Officer prepares a quarterly report to the leadership of TCHDF+-Gity
Healtheare Distrist. The quarterly report summarizes key issues reported to the
Committees and the recommendations of them.

h. The quarterly report is also used to communicate information related to standards and
regulatory compliance, program issues, objectives, program performance, annual
evaluations, and other information, as needed, to assure leaders of management
responsibilities have been carried out. Semi-annual reports are provided to the Board of
Directors related to the EC activities.

Every twelve months the hospital evaluates each environment of care management plan

including a review of the scope, objectives, performance, and effectiveness of the program

described by the plan. (EC.04.01.01 EP15)

a. The Safety Officer coordinates the annual evaluation of the management plan
associated with the Life Safety Management Program functions.
b. The annual evaluation examines the management plans to determine if they accurately

represent the management of environmental and patient safety risks. The review also
evaluates the operational results of each Environment of Care Program to determine if
the scope, objectives, performance, and effectiveness of each program are acceptable.
The annual evaluation uses a variety of information sources. The sources include
aggregate analysis of environmental rounds and incident reports, findings of external
reviews or assessments by regulators, accrediting bodies, insurers, and consultants,
minutes of Safety Committee meetings, and analytical summaries of other activities. The
findings of the annual review are presented to the Environmental Health &and Safety
Committee by the end of the first quarter of the fiscal year. Each report presents a
balanced summary of an Environment of Care Program for the preceding fiscal year.
Each report includes an action plan to address identified weaknesses.

c. In addition, the annual review incorporates appropriate elements of The Joint
Commission’s required Periodic Performance Review. Any deficiencies identified on an
annual basis will be immediately addressed by a plan for improvement. Effective
development and implementation of the plans for improvement will be monitored by the
Safety/Security Officer.

d. The Environmental Health &and Safety Committee reviews and approves the annual
reports. Actions and recommendations of the Committee are documented in the
minutes. The annual evaluation is distributed to the Chief Executive Officer,
organizational leaders, The Board of Directors, the Patient Safety Committee, and
others as appropriate. The manager of each Environment of Care Program is
responsible for implementing the recommendations in the report as part of the
performance improvement process.

Analysis and actions regarding identified environmental issues (EC.04.01.03 EP1 - 3)

a. The Environmental Health &and Safety Committee receives reports of activities related to
the environmental and patient safety programs based on a quarterly reporting schedule.
The Committee evaluates each report to determine if there are needs for improvement.
Each time a need for improvement is identified; the Committee summarizes the issues
as opportunities for improvement and communicates them to the leadership of the
hospital, the performance improvement program, and the patient safety program.

Improving the Environment (EC.04.01.05 EP1 - 3)

a. When the leadership of the hospital, quality improvement, or patient safety concurs with
Environmental Health &and Safety Committee recommendations for improvements to
the Environment of Care Management Programs, a team of appropriate staff is
appointed to manage the improvement project. The Environmental Health &and Safety
Committee works with the team to identify the goals for improvement, the timeline for the
project, the steps in the project, and to establish objective measures of improvement.

b. The Environmental Health &and Safety Committee also establishes a schedule for the
team to report progress and resuits. Ali final improvement reports are summarized as part
of the annual review of the program and presented to hospital leadership, performance

112



Environment of Care Manual — Life Safety Management
Life Safety Management Plan
Page 7 of 8

improvement, and patient safety leadership.
14, Orientation and Ongoing Education and Training (LD.03.01.01 EP6 & EP8; HR.01.04.01 EP1 and
EC.03.01.01 EP1 - 23)
a. Orientation and training addressing subjects of the environment of care is provided to
each employee, volunteer, and to each new medical staff member at the time of their
employment or appointment.

b. In addition, all current employees complete an annual review of life safety via a CBL
module and documented in the Netlearning system.
c. The Human Resources Department assisted by the Education Department coordinates

the general New Employee Orientation (NEO) program. New staff members are required
to attend the general NEO program within 30 days of their date of employment. The
Human Resources Department maintains attendance records for each new staff
member completing the general orientation program.

d. New staff members are also required to participate in orientation to the department
where they are assigned to work. The departmental orientation addresses job related
patient safety and environmental risks and the procedures and controls in place to
minimize or eliminate them during routine daily operations.

e. The Safety Officer collaborates with the Environment of Care managers, department
heads, the Director of Regulatory Compliance and Infection Control, the Patient Safety
Officer and others as appropriate to develop content materials for general and job
related orientation and continuing education programs. The content and supporting
materials used for general and department-specific orientation and continuing education
programs are reviewed and updated to meet all applicable laws and regulations as
necessary.

f. The Safety Officer gathers data during environmental rounds and other activities to
determine the degree to which staff is able to describe or demonstrate how job related
risks are to be managed or eliminated as part of daily work. In addition the Safety Officer
evaluates the degree to which staff members understand or can demonstrate the actions
to be taken when an environmental incident occurs and how to report environment of
care risks or incidents.

g. Information about staff knowledge and technical skills related to managing or eliminating
environment of care risks is reported to the Environmental Health &and Safety
Committee. When deficiencies are identified action is taken to improve orientation and
ongoing educational materials, methods, and retention of knowledge as appropriate.

F. GOALS IOBJECTIVES FOR—IDM-I 2018

Contlnue working with staff to assure they have a good worklng knowledge of the
expectatlons of their roles durmg a Llfe Safety emergency 5|tuat|on

Hawk—lnsure that RedHawk Life Safety contmues to lnspect fire systems in accordance
wrth aII Regulatory Agencres and corrects deficiencies W|th|n mandated tlme lmes

e*rsﬂng—peheres—and—preeedures—Contlnue workmg wnth department staff specrf caIIy OR
with fire extinguisher trainings and hands on techniques when dealing with an
emergency fire situation in their work area.

4. Continue to work with staff and contractors in regards to both pre and post activities during
construction phases that are necessary to maintain the safety of staff, patients and visitors to
the facility.

| G. REFERENCE(S):
1. The Joint Commission/NFPA Life Safety Book for Health Care Organizations (2013)
2. The 2012 Edition NFPA 101 Life Safety Code

113



Environment of Care Manual - Life Safety Management
Life Safety Management Plan
Page 8 of 8

3. The 2012 Edition NFPA 99 Health Care Facilities Code

114



R
(CU) Tri-City Medical Center

Oceanside, California

Environment of Care Manual
Safety Management

SUBJECT:

ISSUE DATE:

Safety Plan

11/87

REVIEW DATE(S): 06/08, 06/12
REVISION DATE(S): 05/96, 06/97, 07/00, 03/11, 06/15, 07/17

Department Approval: 08/145,-07/17
Environmental Health and Safety Committee Approval: 06/15,-08/17
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: o117
Board of Directors Approval: 01/17

A.  EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:

1.

Each environment of care poses unique risks to the patients served, the employees and medical
staff who use and manage it, and to others who enter the environment. The Environment of
Care Safety (EC) Program is designed to identify and manage the risks of the environments of
care operated and owned by Tri-City Healthcare District (TCHD). The specific risks of each
environment are identified by conducting and maintaining a proactive risk assessment. An
environmental safety program based on applicable laws, regulations, and accreditation
standards is designed to manage the specific risks identified in each healthcare building or
portions of buildings housing healthcare services operated by T-Gity-Healthcare DistristTCHD.
The Management Plan for Environmental Safety describes the risk, safety, and daily
management activities that F+i-Gity-Healthcare-DistrictTCHD has put in place to achieve the
lowest potential for adverse impact on the safety and health of patients, staff, and other
individuals, coming to the organization’s facilities. The management plan and the environmental
management program are evaluated annually to determine if they accurately describe the
program and that the scope, objectives, performance, and effectiveness of the program are
appropriate.

The program is applied to the Medical Center and all offsite clinics and care sites owned and
operated by Fri-City-Healtheare-DistrictTCHD. The Management Plan for Environmental Safety
and associated polices extends to all inpatient and outpatient service line programs, ancillary
services, support services and all facilities including patient care and business occupancies of
Fr-City-Healtheare Distrist TCHD. The plan also affects all staff, volunteers, medical staff and

associates including contracted services of J+i-Gity-Healtheare-BistrictTCHD.

B. PRINCIPLES:

1.

2.

The identification of specific risks faced by patients and employees, and others is essential for
designing safe work areas and work practices.

The identified risks and proven risk management practices are used to design procedures and
controls to reduce the threats of adverse outcomes. In addition, the identified risks and the
procedures and controls are used to educate staff to effectively use work environments and safe
work practices to minimize the potential for adverse impact on them, patients, and other
individuals coming into the environment.

Ongoing monitoring and evaluation of performance, assessment of accidents and incidents, and
regular environmental rounds are essential management tools for improving the safety of the
environment. The knowledge developed using these management tools is used to make
changes in the physical environment, work practices, and increase staff knowledge.

115



Environment of Care Manual - Life Safety Management

Safety Plan
Page 2 of 8
C. OBJECTIVES

1. Perform an initial proactive risk assessment of the buildings, grounds, equipment, staff activities,
and the care and work environment for patients and employees to evaluate the potential
adverse impact on all persons coming to the facilities of Fri-City-Healtheare-DistrictTCHD.

2. Perform additional risk assessments when changes involving these issues occur.

3. Analyze accidents, incidents, and occurrences to identify root cause elements of those
incidents.

4. Make changes in the procedures and controls to address identified root causes of incidents.

5. Conduct environmental (“EOC-) rounds in all areas of the hospital and affiliated medical
practices. Staff making rounds evaluates the physical environment, equipment, and work
practices. Rounds are conducted in all support areas at least annually and all patient care areas
at least semi-annually.

6. Present quarterly reports of EC management activities to the environmental Health & Safety
Committee. The reports from each EC area manager will identify key issues of performance and
regulatory compliance, present recommendations for improvement, and provide information
about ongoing activities to resolve previously identified EC issues. The Safety Officer
coordinates the documentation and presentation of this information.

7. Assure that all departments have current organization-wide and department specific procedures
and controls designed to manage identified risks.

8. Review the risks and related procedures and controls at least once every three years to assure
that the EC programs are current.

9. Assign qualified individuals to manage the EC programs and to respond to immediate threats to
life and health.

10. Perform an annual evaluation of the management plan and the scope, objectives performance
and effectiveness of the environmental safety program.

11. Design and present environmental safety education and training to all new and current
employees, volunteers, members of the medical staff and others as appropriate.

D. PROGRAM MANAGEMENT STRUCTURE:

1.

The Director of Safety (Safety Officer), Director of Risk Management/Quality Improvement,
Director of Regulatory Compliance and Infection Control, and the Director of Engineering work
as the Environmental Safety Leadership Team (ESLT) to develop the environmental safety
program. They collaborate with leaders throughout the organization to conduct appropriate risk
assessments, develop risk related procedures and controls, develop staff education and training
materials, and manage day-to-day activities of the environmental safety program. They also
collaborate with the Patient Safety Committee to integrate environment of care safety concerns
into the Patient Safety program.

The Environmental Safety Leadership Team coordinates the development of reports to the
Environmental Health &and Safety Committee. The reports summarize organizational
experience, performance management and improvement activities, and other environmental
safety issues.

The Environmental Health &and Safety Committee monitors and evaluates the processes used
to manage the environment of care. Members of the Environmental Health &and Safety
Committee are appointed by the Committee Chair. The Environmental Health &and Safety
Committee meets a minimum of four (4) times per year. During each meeting one or more EC
performance management and improvement reports is presented. In addition, reports of the
findings of environmental rounds, incident analysis, regulatory changes and other issues are
presented as appropriate. The Committee acts on recommendations for improvement, changes
in procedures and controls, orientation and education, and program changes related to changes
in regulations.

The Committee assigns individuals or groups responsibility for developing solutions to identified
issues. Finally, the Committee maintains a tracking log to assure identified issues are acted on
and that analysis of activities after implementation of changes demonstrates that the changes
are effective.

116



Environment of Care Manual — Life Safety Management

Safety Plan
Page 3of 8

5.

10.

11.

Membership of the Committee includes representation from Nursing Administration, Facilities
Management, Risk Management, Quality Improvement, Human Resources, Senior
Administration, Bio-Medical Services, Education, Medical Staff, Physician representation,
Infection Control and others as deemed appropriate.

The Board of Directors of T+i-Gity-Healthecare-DistrictTCHD receives regular reports of the
activities of the environmental safety program from the Environmental Health &and Safety
Committee. The Board reviews the reports and, as appropriate, communicates concerns about
identified issues back to the Safety Officer. The Board collaborates with the Chief Executive
Officer (CEOQ) and other senior leadership to assure budget and staffing resources are available
to support the environmental safety program.

The CEO or designee of Fr-Gity-Healthcare-DistrictTCHD receives regular reports of the
activities of the Environmental Safety Program. The CEO or designee collaborates with the
ESLT and other appropriate staff to address environmental safety issues and concerns.

The Emergency Management Program contains provisions for management staff on duty to
take immediate, appropriate action in the event of a situation that poses an immediate threat to
life, health, or property.

The Human Resources Department with the assistance from the Education Department and
other leadership staff are responsible for the development and presentation of appropriate
materials for orienting new staff members to the organization, the department to which they are
assigned, and task specific safety and infection control procedures. The orientation and ongoing
education and training emphasize patient safety.

Department leaders are responsible for assuring that all staff actively participates in the
environmental safety program by observing established procedures and conducting work
related activities in a manner consistent with their training. Department leaders also participate
in the reporting and investigation of incidents occurring in their departments and in the
monitoring, evaluation, and improvement of the effectiveness of the environmental safety
program in their areas of responsibility.

Individual staff members are responsible for being familiar with the risks inherent in their work
and present in their work environment. They are also responsible for implementing the
appropriate organizational, departmental, and job related procedures and controls required to
minimize the potential of adverse outcomes of care and workplace accidents.

E. ELEMENTS OF THE ENVIRONMENTAL SAFETY MANAGEMENT PROGRAM:

1.

2.

Appointment of Environmental Safety Leadership (EC.01.01.01 EP1)

a. The CEO appoints a team of qualified individuals to assume responsibility for the
development, implementation and monitoring of the environmental safety management
program. The Environmental-Safety-LeadershipTFeam-{(ESLT) includes the Birestorof
Safety-(Safety Officer, Director of Risk Management/Quality Improvement, Director of
Regulatory Compliance and Infection Control, and the Director of Engineering.

b. The ESLT coordinates the development and implementation of the environmental safety
program and assures it is integrated with the patient safety, infection control, risk
management, and other programs as appropriate.

C. The ESLT maintains a current knowledge of environmental safety laws, regulations, and
standards of safety, assesses the need to make changes to procedures, controls,
training, and other activities to assure that the environmental safety management
program reflects the current risks present in the environment of Fei-City-Healthcare
DistrietTCHD.

Designation of Persons to Intervene When Immediate Threats to Life, Health, or Property are

identified (EC.01.01.01 EP2)

a. The Emergency Management program includes specific response plans for F#-Gity
Healtheare-DistrictTCHD that address implementation of an appropriate intervention
whenever conditions pose an immediate threat to life or health, or threaten damage to
equipment or buildings. The response plans follow the Hospital Incident Command
System (HICS) all hazards response protocol. An appropriate event incident commander



Environment of Care Manual - Life Safety Management

Safety Plan
Page 4 of 8

is appointed at the time any emergency response is implemented.

The Immediate Threat Procedure is included in the Emergency Operations Plan. The
procedure lists the communications and specific actions to be initiated when situations
posing an immediate threat to patients, staff, physicians, or visitors or the threat of major
damage to buildings or property. The objective of the plan is to identify and respond to
high risk situations before significant injuries, death or loss of property occurs.

The CEO has appointed the Safety Officer, the Nursing Administrative Supervisor on
duty, and the Administrator on Call to exercise this responsibility. These individuals are
to assume the role of incident command and to coordinate the mobilization of resources
required to take appropriate action to quickly minimize the effects of such situations.

Environmental Safety Management Plan (EC.01.01.01 EP3)

a.

The Environmental Safety Management Program is described in this management plan.
The Environmental Safety Management Plan describes the procedures and controls in
place to minimize the potential adverse impact of the environment on patients, staff, and

other people coming to the facilities of Ti-City-Healthcare-BistrictTCHD.

The hospital identifies safety risks associated with the environment of care (EC.01.02.01 EP1)

a.

b.

The ESLT of F+i-Gity-Healtheare DistrictTCHD performs proactive risk assessments to
identify risks that create the potential for personal injury of staff or others or adverse
outcomes of patient care. The purpose of the risk assessments is to gather information
that can be used to develop procedures and controls to minimize the potential of
adverse events affecting staff, patients, and others. The risk assessments use
information from sources such as environmental “EOC” rounds, the results of root cause
analysis (RCA), incident reports, and external reports such as The Joint Commission
Sentinel Event Alerts, CDPH All Facilities Letters (AFLs), Cal/OSHA standards, and FDA
product recall notices.

The ESLT coordinates the risk assessment process with the Director of Engineering,
department Directors and others as appropriate.

The hospital takes action to minimize or eliminate identified safety risks in the physical
environment (EC.02.01.01 EP3)
ahvirenmenHEC 0200 =R

a.

The results of the risk assessment process are used to create new or revise existing
procedures and controls. They are also used to guide the modification of the
environment or the procurement of equipment that can eliminate or significantly reduce
identified risks. The procedures, controls, environmental design changes, and equipment
are designed to effectively manage the level of environmental safety in a planned and
systematic manner.

Development and Management of Policies and Procedures (LD.04.01.07 EP1 & EP2)

a.

The Safety Officer follows the administrative policy for the development of organization-
wide and department specific policies, procedures, and controls designed to eliminate or
minimize the identified risks. The Safety Officer assists department leaders with the
development of department or job specific environmental safety procedures and
controls.

The organization-wide policies and procedures and controls are available to all
departments and services on the organizational intranet. Departmental procedures and
controls are maintained by department directors. The department directors are
accountable for ensuring that all staff are familiar with organizational, departmental, and
appropriate job related procedures and controls. Department directors are also
accountable for monitoring appropriate implementation of the policies, procedures and
controls in their area(s) of responsibility. Each staff member is accountable for
implementing the policies, procedures and controls related to her/his work processes.
The policies, procedures and controls are reviewed when significant changes in services
occur, when new technology or space is acquired, and at least every three years.

The Safety Officer assists with the reviews of policies and procedures with department
heads and other appropriate staff.

118



Environment of Care Manual - Life Safety Management

Safety Plan
Page 50f 8

7.

10.

1.

The hospital maintains all grounds and equipment (EC.02.01.01 EP5)

a. The Director of Engineering (Facilities Management) is responsible for managing the
appearance and safety of the hospital grounds. In addition, the Director of Engineering is
responsible for assuring that the equipment used to maintain the grounds is in proper
operating condition and that grounds staff is trained to operate and maintain the
equipment.

b. The Director of Engineering (Facilities Management) is responsible for scheduling the
work required to maintain the appearance and safety of hospital grounds. The
Engineering staff and Security Officers make regular rounds of the grounds to identify
unsafe conditions. The Security Manager and Engineering staff reports all deficiencies to
the Director of Engineering (Facilities Management) for appropriate action.

The hospital responds to product notices and recalls (EC.02.01.01 EP11)

a. The Director of Safety and the Director of Materials Management coordinate a product
safety recall system. T+i-Gity-Healthcare-BistrictTCHD utilizes the NRAC E-Class system
that is designed to quickly assess safety recall notices; to respond to those that affect
Fi-City-Healtheare-DistristTCHD; and to assure all active safety recalls are completed in
a timely manner.

b. A quarterly report of safety recall notices that required action to eliminate defective
equipment or supplies from F+i-City-Healtheare-Distrist TCHD is presented to the
Environmental Health & Safety Committee by the Director of Safety.

The hospital prohibits smoking (EC.02.01.03 EP1 & EP2)

a. Fri-City-Healtheare-DistristTCHD has developed a Smoke Free Environment policy. The
policy prohibits smoking of any kind (ie: cigarettes, cigars, pipe, chewing tobacco, e-
cigarettes and vapor producing devices) in any hospital building or grounds by all,
including staff, visitors and patients.

b. Fi-Gity-Healtheare DistrictTCHD has identified alternatives to tobacco products that are
offered to all. T+i-City Healtheare-BistristTCHD has developed tobacco replacement
product resources to assist staff and patients with smoking cessation as desired. Staff
may purchase tobacco replacement products via Employee Health at a discounted cost.

The hospital takes action to maintain compliance with its smoking policy (EC.02.01.03 EP6)

a. The procedures for managing the use of smoking materials are followed and enforced by
all leadership and staff.

The hospital monitors conditions in the environment (EC.04.01.01 EP1 - EP11)

a. The Director of Risk Management coordinates the design and implementation of the
incident reporting and analysis process. The Director of Safety (Safety Officer) works
with Risk Management to design appropriate processes to document and evaluate
patient and visitor incidents, staff member incidents, and property damage related to
environmental conditions.

b. Incident reports are completed by a staff member or witness to whom a patient or visitor
incident is reported. The completed reports are forwarded to Risk Management. Risk
Management works with appropriate staff to analyze and evaluate the reports. The
results of the evaluation are used to eliminate immediate problems in the environment.

C. In addition, the Director of Risk Management and the Safety Officer collaborate to
conduct an aggregate analysis of incident reports generated from environmental
conditions to determine if there are patterns of deficiencies in the environment or staff
behaviors that require action. The findings of such analysis are reported to the
Environmental Health &and Safety Commitiee and the Patient Safety Committee, as
appropriate. The Safety Officer provides summary information related to incidents to the
CEO and other leaders, including the Board of Directors, as appropriate.

d. The Safety Officer coordinates the collection of information about environmental safety,
patient safety deficiencies including identification of opportunities for improvement from
all areas of Fr-Gity-Healthcare-DistrictTCHD.

e. The Environmental Health &and Safety Committee and the Patient Safety Committee
are responsible for identifying opportunities for improving environmental safety, for

119



Environment of Care Manual — Life Safety Management

Safety Plan
Page 6 of 8

12.

13.

14.

15.

setting priorities for the identified needs for improvement, and for monitoring the
effectiveness of changes made to any of the environment of care management
programs.

f. The Chairperson of the Environmental Health & Safety Committee prepares quarterly
reports to the leadership of T+i-City-Healtheare-DistrictTCHD. The quarterly reports
summarize key issues reported to the EHSC &and PSC committees with their
recommendations. The quarterly report is also used to communicate information related
to standards and regulatory compliance, program issues, objectives, program
performance, annual evaluations, and other information, as needed, to assure Hospital
leaders that management responsibilities have been carried out. Semi-Annual reports
are provided to the Board of Directors related to EC, or more often if warranted.

Environmental tours are conducted every-six-monthsannually in patient care areas

(EC.04.01.01 EP12)

a. Environmental “EOC” rounds at F+-City-Healtheare DistristTCHD are conducted
throughout the year on a schedule prepared by the ESLT. Each patient care area is
scheduled for an environmental tour every six-twelve months. The Safety Officer with
the ESLT coordinates correction of identified deficiencies with the appropriate
department director(s).

b. Additional environmental “EOC" tours are performed when construction or other
activities create unusual risks that may require design and implementation of a plan to
manage Interim Life Safety Measures, Infection Control Risk Measures, Proactive
Construction Risk Management Measures, or other temporary issues.

C. The ESLT analyzes the results of the environmental tours to determine if deficiencies
are corrected in a timely manner and to determine if there are patterns or trends that
require action to improve practices or environmental conditions.

Environmental tours are conducted annually in non-patient care areas (EC.04.01.01 EP13)

a. Environmental “EOC “rounds at F+i-Gity-Healtheare-Bistrict TCHD are conducted
throughout the year on a schedule prepared by the ESLT. Each non-patient care area is
scheduled for an environmental tour annually. The Safety Officer with the ESLT
coordinates correction of identified deficiencies with the appropriate department
director(s).

b. Additional environmental “EOC” tours are performed when construction or other
activities create unusual risks that may require design and implementation of a plan to
manage Interim Life Safety Measures, Infection Control Risk Measures, Proactive
Construction Risk Management Measures, or other temporary issues.

The hospital uses its tours to identify deficiencies, hazards, and unsafe practices (EC.04.01.01

EP14)

a. The ESLT manages a process of environmental “EOC" rounds designed to evaluate
staff knowledge and skills, observe current environmental and patient safety practices,
and to evaluate environmental conditions. Findings of the environmental rounds are
used as a resource for improving environmental and patient safety procedures and
controls, updating orientation education and education programs, and improving staff
performance.

b. The ESLT analyzes the results of the environmental tours to determine if deficiencies
are corrected in a timely manner and to determine if there are patterns or trends that
require action to improve practices or environmental conditions.

Every twelve months the hospital evaluates each environment of care management plan

including a review of the scope, objectives, performance, and effectiveness of the program

described by the plan. (EC.04.01.01 EP15)

a. The Director of Safety (Safety Officer) coordinates the annual evaluation of the
management plans associated with the Environment of Care functions.
b. The annual evaluation examines the management plans to determine if they accurately

represent the management of environmental and patient safety risks. The review also
evaluates the operational results of each Environment of Care program to determine if

120



Environment of Care Manual — Life Safety Management

Safety Plan
Page 7 of 8

16.

17.

18.

the scope, objectives, performance, and effectiveness of each program are acceptable.
The annual evaluation uses a variety of information sources. The sources include
aggregate analysis of environmental rounds and incident reports, findings of external
reviews, benchmarking programs or assessments by regulators, accrediting bodies,
insurers, and consultants, minutes of Safety Committee meetings, and analytical
summaries of other activities. The findings of the annual review are presented to the
Environmental Health &and Safety Committee by the end of the first quarter of the fiscal
year. Each report presents a balanced summary of an Environment of Care program for
the preceding fiscal year. Each report includes an action plan to address identified
weaknesses.

C. In addition, the annual review incorporates appropriate elements of The Joint
Commission’'s required Periodic Performance Review (PPR). Any deficiencies identified
on an annual basis will be immediately addressed by a plan for improvement.

d. Effective development and implementation of the plans for improvement will be
monitored by the Safety Officer.
e. The results of the annual evaluation are presented to the Environmental Health &and

Safety Committee. The Committee reviews and approves the reports. Actions and
recommendations of the Committee are documented in the minutes.

f. The annual evaluation is distributed to the ChiefExecutive-OfficerCEO, Board of
Directors, organizational leaders, the Patient Safety Committee, the Quality Assurance
Performance Improvement Committee and others as appropriate. The manager of each
Environment of Care program is responsible for implementing the recommendations in
the report as part of the performance improvement process.

Analysis and actions regarding identified environmental issues (EC.04.01.03 EP1 - EP3)

a. The Environmental Health &and Safety Committee receives reports of activities related
to the environmental and patient safety programs based on a quarterly reporting
schedule. The Committee evaluates each report to determine if there are needs for
improvement.

b. Each time a need for improvement is identified the Committee summarizes the issues as
opportunities for improvement and communicates them to the leadership of the hospital,
the quality improvement program, and the patient safety program.

Improving the Environment (EC.04.01.05 EP1 - EP 3)

a. When the leadership of the hospital, regulatory compliance, quality improvement, or
patient safety concurs with the Environmental Health &and Safety Committee
recommendations for improvements to the environment of care management programs,
a team of appropriate staff is appointed to manage the improvement project. The
Environmental Health &and Safety Committee works with the team to identify the goals
for improvement, the timeline for the project, the steps in the project, and to establish
objective measures of improvement.

b. The Environmental Health &and Safety Committee also establishes a schedule for the
team to report progress and results. All final improvement reports are summarized as
part of the annual review of the program and presented to hospital, performance
improvement, and patient safety leadership.

Orientation and Ongoing Education and Training (LD.03.01.01 EP6 & EP8; HR.01.04.01 EP1 &

EC.03.01.01 EP1 - EP3)

a. Orientation and training addressing the environment of care is provided to each
employee, contract staff and volunteer. All Licensed Independent Practitioners (LIP)
receive orientation to the Environment of Care in accordance with the Medical Staff
policies and bylaws.

b. In addition, annual EOC training is provided and documented via NetLearning.

cC. The Human Resources Department with participation from the Education Department
coordinates the general New Employee Orientation (NEO) program. New staff members
are required to attend the NEO program within 30 days of their date of employment. The
Human Resources Department with participation from the Education Department

121



Environment of Care Manual — Life Safety Management
Safety Plan
Page 8 of 8

maintains attendance records for each new staff member completing the general
orientation program.

d. New staff members are also required to participate in orientation to the department
where they are assigned to work. The departmental orientation addresses job related
patient safety and environmental risks and the policies, procedures and controls in place
to minimize or eliminate them during routine daily operations.

e. The Safety Officer collaborates with the EC managers, department leaders, the Director
of Risk Management/Quality, Director of Regulatory Compliance and Infection Control,
the Patient Safety Officer and others as appropriate to develop content materials for
general and job related orientation and continuing education programs. The Safety
Officer gathers data during environmental rounds and other activities to determine the
degree to which staff and licensed independent practitioners are able to describe or
demonstrate how job related physical risks are to be managed or eliminated as part of
daily work. In addition, the Safety Officer evaluates the degree to which staff and
licensed independent practitioners understand or can demonstrate the actions to be
taken when an environmental incident occurs and how to report environment of care
risks or incidents.

f. Information about staff and licensed independent practitioner knowledge and technical
skills related to managing or eliminating environment of care risks is reported to the
Environmental Health &and Safety Committee. When deficiencies are identified action is
taken to improve orientation and ongoing educational materials, methods, and retention
of knowledge as appropriate.

alletted-timeframeprovided-by-CallOSHAMeet all of the new Cal/OSHA Workplace Violence
Prevention in Healthcare, Title 8, Chapter 4, § 3342 regulation requirements by April 1,
2018.

2. Complete WPV risk assessments for all departments, services throughout the medical center
and off-site locations.

G. RELATED DOCUMENTS:
1. Administrative Policy: Smoke Free Environment #205

H. REFERENCES:

1. The Joint Commission/NFPA Life Safety Book for Health Care Organizations (2013)
42, Cal/lOSHA Workplace Violence Prevention in Healthcare, Title 8, Chapter 4, § 3342

122



(C‘? Tri-City Medical Center
Oceanside, California

Environment of Care Manual
Security Management

SUBJECT:

ISSUE DATE:

Security Management Plan

01/97

REVIEW DATE(S): 01/99
| REVISION DATE(S): 07/00, 04/03, 12/05, 12/11, 06/15, 07/17

Department Approval: 06/46,-07/17
Environmental Health and Safety Committee Approval: 09/46,-08/17
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: 044711117
Board of Directors Approval: 0117

| A. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:

1.

Each environment of care poses unique security risks to the patients served, the employees and
medical staff who use and manage it, and to others who enter the environment. The security
management program is designed to identify and manage the security risks of the environments
of care operated and owned by Tri-City Healthcare District (TCHD). The specific risks of each
environment are identified by conducting and maintaining a proactive risk assessment. A
security management program based on applicable laws, regulations, and accreditation
standards is designed to manage the specific risks identified.

The Management Plan for a Secure Environment describes the security risk and daily
management activities that Fri-Gity-Healthcare-DistristTCHD has put in place to achieve the
lowest potential for adverse impact on the security of patients, staff, and other individuals,
coming to the organization’s facilities. The management plan and the Security Management
Program are evaluated annually to determine if they accurately describe the program and that
the scope, objectives, performance, and effectiveness of the program are appropriate.

The scope of the program is applied to the medical center and all offsite care centers owned
and operated by Fr-Gity-Healtheare DistristTCHD. The Security Management Plan and
associated policies extend to all inpatient and outpatient service line programs, ancillary
services, support services and all facilities including patient care and business occupancies of
Fri-City-Healtheare-District TCHD. The plan also affects all employees, volunteers, medical staff

and associates including contracted services of Fr-Gity-Healtheare DistristTCHD.

| B. PRINCIPLES:

Security is a system made up of human assets and technology.
Visible and clandestine components of the system are used to reduce the potential for criminal
activity, the threat of workplace violence, and to increase feelings of security among patients,

staff, and others coming to Fr-Gity-Healtheare DistrictTCHD.

Initial and ongoing assessment of security threats is essential for timely identification of changes
in the types of security threats facing Fri-Gity-Healthcare-District TCHD.

Collection and analysis of information about adverse security events provides information to
help predict and prevent personal violence, crime, and other incidents.

Staff awareness of security is an essential part of an effective program. F+-Gity-Healthecare
BistristTCHD orients and trains all staff to basic components of the security program, including
workplace violence prevention and active shooterresponsesthreat, and-te-along with
techniques for managing security risks related to work areas or daily activities.

123



Environment of Care Manual — Security Management
Security Management Plan

Page 2 of 9
C. OBJECTIVES:

1. Perform an initial proactive risk assessment of the buildings, grounds, equipment, staff activities,
and the care and work environment for patients and employees to evaluate the potential
adverse impact on all persons coming to the facilities of Fri-Gity-Healthcare-DistrictTCHD.

2. Perform additional risk assessments when changes in the campus design or patterns of security
events indicate a change in the security threat level.

3. Analyze security incidents and occurrences to identify root cause elements.

4, Conduct ongoing random security patrols in all areas of the medical center, affiliated business
offices and outpatient facilities. Staff making rounds evaluates the physical environment,
equipment, and work practices. Rounds are conducted in all support areas and all patient care
areas at least once per day.

5. Present reports of Environment of Care management activities to the Environmental Health
&and Safety Committee quarterly. The reports identify key issues of performance and
regulatory compliance, present recommendations for improvement, and provide information
about ongoing activities to resolve previously identified security issues. The Seeurity
ManagerDirector of Security coordinates the documentation and presentation of this
information.

6. Assure that departments have current organization-wide and as needed department specific
procedures and controls designed to manage identified security risks.

7. Review the risks and related procedures and controls at least once every three years to assure
that the security program is current.

8. Assign qualified individuals to manage the program and to respond to immediate security
threats.

9. Perform an annual evaluation of the management plan and of the scope, objectives
performance and effectiveness of the security program.

10. Design and present security education and training to all new and current employees,
volunteers, members of the medical staff, contract staff and others as appropriate.

11. Provide timely response to emergencies and requests for assistance.

12. Communicate with law enforcement and other civil authorities as needed.

13. Manage access to the grounds, buildings, and sensitive areas of F+-Gity-Healtheare
DistristTCHD .\

D. PROGRAM MANAGEMENT STRUCTURE:

1.

The Board of Directors of F+i-Gity-Healthcare-DistrictTCHD receives regular reports of the
activities of the Security program from the Environmental Health &and Safety Committee. The
Board reviews the reports and, as appropriate, communicates concerns about identified issues
back to the Safety Officer.

The Board collaborates with the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) and other senior leaders to
assure budget and staffing resources are available to support the Security Program.

The CEO or designee of T+-Gity-Healthecare-DistrictTCHD receives regular reports of the
activities of the Security program. The CEO or designee collaborates with the Seeurity
ManagerDirector of Security and other appropriate staff to address security issues and
concerns.

The Security-MaragerDirector of Security works under the general direction of the CEO or
designee. The Sesurity-ManagerDirector of Security-in-collaboration-with-the-Safety-Officer-is
responsible for managing the Security Program. The Sesurity ManagerDirector of Security
reports program findings to the Environmental Health &and Safety Committee. The reports
summarize organizational experience, performance management and improvement activities,
and other security issues.

Department leaders are responsible for orienting new staff members to the department and to
job and task specific security procedures. The orientation and ongoing education and training
emphasize patient safety. Department heads are also responsible for participating in the
reporting and investigation of incidents occurring in their departments.

124



Environment of Care Manual — Security Management

Security Management Plan

Page 3 of 9

6. Individual staff members are responsible for learning and following job and task specific
procedures for secure operations.

E. ELEMENTS OF THE SECURITY PLAN:
1. Appointment of Security Leadership (SEC.EC.01.01.01 EP1)

a.

The CEO of Fri-Gity-Healtheare-BistristTCHD appoints the Safety Officer, and selects a
qualified individual capable of overseeing the development, implementation and
monitoring of the security program. The Safety Officer’s job is defined by a job
description. The CEO or a designee evaluates the competence of the Safety Officer
annually.

The Sesurity-ManagerDirector of Security coordinates the development and
implementation of the security program and assures it is integrated with the patient
safety, information management, and other programs as appropriate. The Security
ManagerDirector of Security’s job is defined by a job description. The CEO or a
designee evaluates the competence of the Sesurity-ManagerDirector of Security
annually.

The Seecuriby-ManagerDirector of Security maintains a current knowledge of laws,
regulations, and standards of security. The Security-ManagerDirector of Security also
continually assesses the need to make changes to procedures, controls, training, and
other activities to assure that the security management program reflects the current risks

present in the environment of T+i-Gity-Healtheare-DistristTCHD.

2. Designation of Persons to Intervene When Immediate Threats to Life, Health, or Property are
identified (EC.01.01.01 EP2)

a.

The Emergency Management program includes specific response plans for T#-City
Healtheare-BistrictTCHD that address implementation of an appropriate intervention
whenever conditions pose an immediate threat to life or health, or threaten damage to
equipment or buildings. The response plans follow the HICS (Hospital Incident
Command System) all hazards response protocol. An appropriate Incident Commander
is appointed at the time any emergency response is implemented.

The Immediate Threat Procedure is included in the Emergency Operations Procedure
manual. The procedure lists the communications and specific actions to be initiated
when situations posing an immediate threat to patients, staff, physicians, or visitors or
the threat of major damage to buildings or property. The objective of the procedure is to
identify and respond to high risk situations before significant injuries, death or loss of
property occurs.

The CEO has appointed the Safety Officer, the Nursing Administrative Supervisor on
duty, and the Administrator on Call to exercise this responsibility. These individuals are
to assume the role of incident command and to coordinate the mobilization of resources
required to take appropriate action to quickly minimize the effects of such situations.

3. Management Plan for a Secure Environment (SEC.EC.01.01.01 EP4)

a.

The Security Management Program is described in this management plan. The security
management plan describes the policies, procedures and controls in place to minimize

the potential that any patients, staff, and other people coming to the facilities of Fr-Gity
Healthcare District TCHD experience an adverse security event.

4, Proactive Risk Assessment (SEC. EC.02.01.01 EP1)

a.

The Security-ManagerDirector of Security of Tr-City-Healthcare-DistrictTCHD

coordinates proactive risk assessments to identify risks that create the potential for
personal injury of staff or others or adverse outcomes of patient care. The purpose of the
risk assessments is to gather information that can be used to develop procedures and
controls to minimize the potential of adverse events affecting staff, patients, and others.
The Sesurity-ManagerDirector of Security works with department directors, managers,
the Patient Safety Officer, Risk Management and others as appropriate.

The Security Department will be responsible for enacting proactive security measures as

125



Environment of Care Manual — Security Management
Security Management Plan

Page 4 of 9

follows:

i. Scheduling patrolling of the Medical Center and parking lots to help prevent work
place violence/accidents.

ii. Locking/unlocking of exterior doors, departments, and associated rooms; on-
going inspections of all sensitive areas throughout the Medical Center.

iii. Ensuing that all employees and physicians properly display their photographic
identification badges at all times.

iv. Submitting reports to the Director of Engineering pertaining to security and safety
violations, including but not limited to: defective lighting, damaged equipment,
unsafe situations or conditions that may present a danger to others.

V. Maintaining unrestricted locations for the timely loading and unloading of persons
seeking medical treatment in the Emergency Department and Women's Center.
Security will also ensure a location for long-term vehicle parking.

vi. Monitoring the Security Department CCTV.

vii. Providing campus escort services 24 hours per day as needed for employees
and visitors.

The hospital takes action to minimize or eliminate identified security risks in the physical

environment (EC.02.01.01 EP3)

a. The results of the risk assessment process are used to create new or revise existing
procedures and controls. They are also used to guide the modification of the
environment or the procurement of equipment that can eliminate or significantly reduce
identified risks. The procedures, controls, environmental design changes, and equipment
are designed to effectively manage the level of security in a planned and systematic
manner.

b. In response to the 2016 Cal/OSHA, Workplace Violence Prevention in Healthcare,
Title 8, Chapter 4, § 3342 regulations, Tri-City- Healthcare-DistrictTCHD has created
new environmental risk assessment tools and general employee education
programs.

a-c. Tr-City-Healtheare-DistrictTCHDT+i-City-Hospital Distriet has elected to implement the
Non-Violent Crisis Intervention Program (NVCI) for the mandated training of staff
working in high-risk areas in compliance with the California Health and Safety Code
Section 1247.7 and 1257.8. This training includes:

i. General safety measures.

ii. Personal safety measures.

iii. The assault cycle.

iv. Aggression and violence predicting factors.
V. Characteristics of aggressive and violent patients and victims.
vi. Verbal and physical maneuvers to diffuse and avoid violent behavior.
vii. Strategies to avoid physical harm.
viii. Restraining techniques.
ix. Resources available to employees coping with violence (stress debriefing,
employee assistance programs, etc.).
d. A condensed version of the NVCI program will be offered to ancillary staff routinely

assigned to the Emergency Department. Ancillary department managers will be
responsible for determining staff appropriate for this training.

Development and Management of Policies and Procedures (LD.04.01.07 EP1 &and EP2)

a. The Seeurity-ManagerDirector of Security follows the administrative policy for the
development of organization-wide and department specific policies, procedures, and
controls designed to eliminate or minimize the identified risks. The Seeurity
ManagerDirector of Security assists department leaders with the development of
department or job specific environmental safety procedures and controls.

b. The organization-wide policies, procedures and controls are available to all departments
and services on the organizational intranet. Departmental policies, procedures and

126



Environment of Care Manual - Security Management

Security Management Plan
Page 5 of 9

controls are maintained by department directors. The directors are responsible for
ensuring that all staff is familiar with organizational, departmental, and appropriate job
related policies, procedures and controls. Department directors are also responsible for
monitoring appropriate implementation of the policies, procedures and controls in their
area(s) of responsibility. Each staff member is responsible for implementing the policies,
procedures and controls related to her/his work processes.

The policies, procedures and controls are reviewed when significant changes in services
occur, when new technology or space is acquired, and at least every three years. The
Security-ManagerDirector of Security coordinates the reviews of procedures with
department leaders and other appropriate staff.

7. Identification of Patients, Staff, and Others Entering the Facility (SEC.EC.02.01.01 EP7)

a.

The identification of staff is an interdisciplinary function. Several Directors share
responsibility for designing identification systems and establishing procedures and
controls to maintain the effectiveness of the systems.

The current systems in place at T+i-City-Healthecare-DistrictTCHD include photographic
ID badges for all staff, volunteers, students, contracted staff and members of the medical
staff, password systems to limit access to authorized users of information system
applications, physical security systems to limit access to departments and areas of the
hospital, and distinctive clothing/badges to facilitate rapid visual recognition of critical
groups of staff.

The identification of patients is also an interdisciplinary function. The current system
includes personal identification of patients in medical records and by use of various arm
band systems.

The identification of others entering F+i-Gity-Healthecare-DistrictTCHD is managed by the
Security and Materials Management Departments. The Seeurity-ManagerDirector of
Security in collaboration with the CEO or designee and other appropriate staff provides
a secure environment that requires identification of all contractors/vendors and the
badging of visitors to the various areas of the facility. The Director of Materials
Management manages the procedures for identification of vendors. The Security
ManagerDirector of Security takes appropriate action to remove unauthorized persons
form areas and to prevent unwanted individuals from gaining access to T+-Gity
Heslthears-Distest TCHD.

8. Identification and Management of Security Sensitive Areas (SEC.EC.02.01.01 EP8)

a.

The following areas have been designated as sensitive areas:
i. Emergency Department.
ii. Behavioral Health and Crisis Stabilization Units.
iii. Maternal Child Health.
iv. Neonatal Intensive Care Unit.
V. Pharmacy Department.
vi. Human Resources Department.
vii. Adult Critical Care Unit.
viii. Information Technology.
iX. Administration.
X. 3rd Floor Center Tower Progressive Care Unit.
Xi. Medical Records Office and Storage areas.
Xii. Nuclear Medicine Hot Lab.
Staff in each sensitive area participates in training addressing the unigue risks of the
area and the procedures and controls in place to manage them. Key personnel and
security staff receive specialized training related to processes in high risk security areas.
The Security Plan has a program for the inspection, preventative maintenance and
testing of the following security equipment:
i. Emergency Department:
1) Electronic access control.

127



Environment of Care Manual — Security Management

Security Management Plan
Page 6 of 9

2) Panic buttons.

3) Closed Circuit Television (CCTV) cameras.

4) Security Officer Station — Posted 24 hours per day.
ii. Behavioral Health Units:

1) Electronic access control.
42) Panic buttons.
2)3) CCTV.
ii. Maternal Child Health Units:
1) Electronic access control.
2) Access Control System CCTV.
3) Department policy in place for identifying visitors.
4) Department procedure for uniquely identifying mother-infants.
5) Teaching program to educate parents or guardians to explain the security
processes.
6) Unique identification for staff members.
6)7) Unique Visitor Badge identification for visitors.
iv. Neonatal Intensive Care Unit:
1) Electronic access control.

42) Panic buttons.

2)3)  The Maternal Child Health units are protected with both active video
surveillance systems on entrances and exits of the units. Additionally, the
unit has electronic access control systems for entrances and exits that
alarm if unauthorized entry or exit occurs.

V. Pharmacy Department:

1) Electronic access control.

2) Infrared Security System.

2)3) Panic buttons.

vi. Business Office:

1) Electronic access control.

2) Panic buttons.

3) Local area surveillance system.
vii. Human Resources department:

1) Panic buttons.

2) Access Control System CCTV.
viii.  Adult Critical Care Unit:

1) Electronic access control.
iX. Patient Representative OfficeCase Management:
1) Panic buttons.

9. Management of Security Incidents Including an Infant or Pediatric Abduction (SEC.EC.02.01.01

EP9)
a.

The Security-ManagerDirector of Security has developed procedures for rapid
response to breaches of security. The on-duty Security Officers and local police have the
manpower and technological resources to respond to a wide variety of incidents. The
Seeurity ManagerDirector of Security or a designee is responsible for assessing
breaches of security and determining what resources are required to respond effectively.
The Security-ManagerDirector of Security, Safety Officer and the Director of Women's
and Children’s Services are responsible for the design and management of systems to
reduce the threat of abduction of infants or children and to respond to any threats of or
actual abductions.

A Code Adam is announced over the paging system, as well as selected radios when a
potential or actual abduction has occurred.

i. All available staff responds per the Patient Care Services Code Adam.

i The Code Adam plan is tested at least annually and the responses are

128



Environment of Care Manual — Security Management
Security Management Plan

Page 7 of 9

10.

1.

documented, evaluated, critiqued and as appropriate corrective activity,
additional training, or program improvements are made.

d. The Seeurity-ManagerDirector of Security and the Director of Women and Newborn
Services are required to conduct at least one abduction drill annually. In addition,
activations of the abduction alert system and all attempted or actual abductions of
infants or children are treated as security incidents and reported and analyzed

appropriately.
The hospital monitors conditions in the environment (EC.04.01.01 EP1 — EP11)
a. The Director of Risk Management coordinates the design and implementation of the

incident reporting and analysis process. The Seeurity-ManagerDirector of Security
works with the Director of Risk Management to design appropriate forms and procedures
to document and evaluate patient and visitor incidents, staff member incidents, and
property damage related to environmental conditions.

b. Incident reports are completed by the staff member or witness to whom a patient or
visitor incident is reported. The completed reports are forwarded to Risk Management.
Risk Management works with appropriate staff to analyze and evaluate the reports. The
results of the evaluation are used to eliminate immediate problems in the environment.

C. In addition, the Director of Risk Management and the Seeurity-ManragerDirector of
Security collaborate to conduct an aggregate analysis of incident reports generated to
determine if there are patterns of deficiencies in the environment or staff behaviors that
require action. The findings of such analysis are reported to the Environmental Health
&and Safety Committee and the Patient Safety Committee, as appropriate, as part of
quarterly Environmental Safety reports. The Committee Chairpersons provide summary
information related to incidents to the CEO and other leaders, including the Board of
Directors, as appropriate.

d. The Sesurity-ManagerDirector of Security works with the Environmental Health &and
Safety Committee to collect information about security deficiencies and opportunities for
improvement from all areas of Fri-Gity-Healtheare-DistrictTCHD. Appropriate
representatives from hospital administration, clinical services, support services, and a
representative from each of the six environments of care functions use the information to
analyze safety and environmental issues and to develop recommendations for
addressing them.

e. The Environmental Health &and Safety Committee and the Patient Safety Committee
are responsible for identifying important opportunities for improving environmental
safety, for setting priorities for the identified needs for improvement, and for monitoring
the effectiveness of changes made to any of the Environment of Care Management
Programs.

f. The Safety Officer and the Patient Safety Committee prepare a quarterly report to the
leadership of Fri-City-Healtheare-DistristTCHD. The quarterly report summarizes key
issues reported to the Committees and the recommendations of them. The quarterly
report is also used to communicate information related to standards and regulatory
compliance, program issues, objectives, program performance, annual evaluations, and
other information, as needed, to assure leaders of management responsibilities have
been carried out.

Every twelve months the hospital evaluates each environment of care management plan

including a review of the scope, objectives, performance, and effectiveness of the program

described by the plan. (EC.04.01.01 EP15)

a. The Safety Officer coordinates the annual evaluation of the management plans
associated with each of the Environment of Care functions.
b. The annual evaluation examines the management plans to determine if they accurately

represent the management of environmental and patient safety risks. The review also
evaluates the operational results of each EC program to determine if the scope,
objectives, performance, and effectiveness of each program are acceptable. The annual

129



Environment of Care Manual — Security Management
Security Management Plan

Page 8 of 9

12.

13.

14.

evaluation uses a variety of information sources.

o The sources include aggregate analysis of environmental rounds and incident reports,
findings of external reviews, benchmarking programs or assessments by regulators,
accrediting bodies, insurers, and consultants, minutes of Safety Committee meetings,
and analytical summaries of other activities. The findings of the annual review are
presented to the Environmental Health &and Safety Committee by the end of the first
quarter of the fiscal year. Each report presents a balanced summary of the Environment
of Care program for the preceding fiscal year. Each report includes an action plan to
address identified weaknesses.

d. In addition, the annual review incorporates appropriate elements of The Joint
Commission’s required Periodic Performance Review. Any deficiencies identified on an
annual basis will be immediately addressed by a plan for improvement. Effective
development and implementation of the plans for improvement will be monitored by the
Safety Officer.

e. The results of the annual evaluation are presented to the Environmental Health &and
Safety Committee. The Committee reviews and approves the reports. Actions and
recommendations of the Committee are documented in the minutes. The annual
evaluation is distributed to the Chief Executive Officer, the Board of Directors,
organizational leaders, the Patient Safety Committee, and others as appropriate. The
manager of each Environment of Care Program is responsible for implementing the
recommendations in the report as part of the performance improvement process.

Analysis and actions regarding identified environmental issues (EC.04.01.03 EP1 - EP3)

a. The Environmental Health &and Safety Committee receives reports of activities related
to the environmental “EOC Rounding” program at least quarterly.
b. The Committee evaluates each report to determine if there are needs for improvement.

Each time a need for improvement is identified; the Committee summarizes the issues
as opportunities for improvement and communicates them to the leadership of the
hospital and the Patient Safety Committee as indicated.

Improving the Environment (EC.04.01.05 EP1 — EP3)

a. When the leadership of the hospital, quality improvement, or patient safety concurs with
the Environmental Health &and Safety Committee recommendations for improvements
to the environment of care management programs, a team of appropriate staff is
appointed to manage the improvement project. The Environmental Health &and Safety
Committee works with the team to identify the goals for improvement, the timeline for the
project, the steps in the project, and to establish objective measures of improvement.

b. The Environmental Health &and Safety Committee also establishes a schedule for the
team to report progress and results. All final improvement reports are summarized as
part of the annual review of the program and presented to hospital, quality improvement,
and patient safety leadership.

Orientation and Ongoing Education and Training (LD.03.01.01 EP6 &and EP8; HR.01.04.01

EP1 and EC.03.01.01 EP1 - EP3)

a. Orientation and training addressing the environment of care and workplace safety is
provided to each employee, contract staff and volunteer. All Licensed Independent
Practitioners (LIP) receive orientation to the Environment of Care and workplace safety
in accordance with the Medical Staff policies and bylaws.

b. In addition, annual Environment of Care and workplace safetyEQG training is
provided and documented via NetLearning.
C. The Human Resources Department with assistance from the Education Department

coordinates the general New Employee Orientation (NEO) program. New employees are
required to attend the general NEO orientation program within 30 days of their date of
employment. The Human Resources Department and the Education Department
maintains attendance records for each new staff member completing the general
orientation program.



Environment of Care Manual — Security Management
Security Management Plan
Page 9 of 9

d. New staff members are also required to participate in orientation to the department
where they are assigned to work. The departmental orientation addresses job related
patient safety and environmental risks and the policies, procedures and controls in place
to minimize or eliminate them during routine daily operations.

e. The Safety Officer collaborates with the Environment of Care leaders, the Director of
Quality Improvement, Infection Control, Patient Safety Officer and others as appropriate
to develop content materials for general and job related orientation and continuing
education programs. The content and supporting materials used for general and
department-specific orientation and continuing education programs are reviewed as part
of the annual review of each Environment of Care program and revised as necessary.

f. The Safety Officer gathers data during environment of care epvireamentalEOC-rounds
and other activities to determine the degree to which staff and licensed independent
practitioners are able to describe or demonstrate how job related physical risks are to be
managed or eliminated as part of daily work. The environment of careEQOC Rounds
rounds evaluate the degree to which staff and licensed independent practitioners
understand or can demonstrate the actions to be taken when an environmental incident
occurs and how to report environment of care risks or incidents.

g. Information about staff and licensed independent practitioner knowledge and technical
skills related to managing or eliminating environment of care risks is reported to the
Environmental Health &and Safety Committee. When deficiencies are identified action is
taken to improve orientation and ongoing educational materials, methods, and retention
of knowledge as appropriate.

G. RELATED DOCUMENT(S):
1. Patient Care Services: Code Adam Policy

H. REFERENCE(S):

1. The Joint Commission Environmental of Care Standards
2. Cal/OSHA Workplace Violence Prevention reguirementsin Healthcare, Title 8, Chapter 4, §
3342 regulations

131



‘@) . . Delete Policy: Follow
Tri-City Medical Center Patient Transport
Oceanside, California Express Policies 529,

527, and 530
Outpatient Behavioral Health Services

SUBJECT: Transportation of Patients

ISSUE DATE:  08/96
REVISION DATE(S): 05/98, 08/00, 10/01, 02/02, 02/03, 01/05, 06/07, 06/10, 04/13

Department Approval: 12/16
Division of Psychiatry Approval: n/a
Pharmacy and Therapeutics Approval: n/a
Medical Executive Committee Approval: n/a
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: 1117

Board of Directors Approval:

132



(C‘? Tri-City Medical Center DELETE: Incorporated into
Oceanside, California Patient Care Services: Pet
Therapy Policy

REHABILITATION SERVICES

SUBJECT: PET THERAPY - TENDER LOVING CANINES

ISSUE DATE: 7/89

REVISION DATE(S): 1/91, 9/91, 6/92, 11/92, 11/94, 9/97, 2/03, 1/06, 1/08, 1/09, 11/09, 5/11, 5/12
Department Approval: 08/15

Department of Medicine Approval: n/a

Pharmacy and Therapeutics Approval: n/a

Medical Executive Committee Approval: n/a

Professional Affairs Committee Approval: 1117

Board of Directors Approval:

133



Rehabilitation Services RPeliey
Pet Therapy - TLC
Page 2 of 6

134



Rehabilitation Services Reolicy
Pet Therapy - TLC
Page 3 of 6

135



Rehabilitation Services Reliey
Pet Therapy - TLC
Page 4 of 6

136



Rehabilitation Services Rolicy
Pet Therapy - TLC
Page 5 of 6

137



Rehabilitation Services Rolicy
Pet Therapy - TLC
Page 6 of 6

138



Tri-City Medical Center ADVANCED reas . sor 7 )]

Colloidal Oatmeal: Recommendation for formulary removal

Requestor: Oska Lawrence, PharmD, BCPS, BCCCP (Pharmacy Clinical Manager)
Declared conflicts of interest: None

Situation: Colloidal oatmeal (Aveeno) has not been ordered for several years and is not
routinely stocked

Background: Colloidal oatmeal is an over the counter remedy that can be used to
soothe dermatitis.

Assessment: Medication usage reports indicate that the product has not been used or
ordered for several years. There are a variety of products including calamine lotion and
emollient creams available on the TCMC formulary

Recommendation(s):

e Given lack of use and availability several alternatives, the P&T Committee
approved the removal of colloidal oatmeal from the TCMC drug formulary at this
time

4002 Vista Way | Oceanside, California 92056 | 760.724.8411 | Tricitymed.org g
13



Tri-City Medical Center ADVANCED reamicus-ror \( ) ]

Dicyclomine for injection: Recommendation for formulary removal

Requestor: Oska Lawrence, PharmD, BCPS, BCCCP (Pharmacy Clinical Manager)
Declared conflicts of interest: None

Situation: Dicyclomine IV has not been ordered for several years and a large supply of
this product has recently expired in Pharmacy storage

Background: Dicyclomine is an anti-spasmodic used to reduce gastric motility and
relieve irritable bowel symptoms

Assessment: Medication usage reports indicate that the product has not been used or
ordered for several years. Dicyclomine comes in an oral formulation which is currently
available on the TCMC formulary.

Recommendation(s):

¢ Given lack of use and availability of formulary alternatives for motility reduction,
the P&T Committee approved the removal of dicyclomine for injection from the
TCMC drug formulary at this time

4002 Vista Way | Oceanside, California 92056 | 760.724.8411 | Tricitymed.org
140



Tri-City Medical Center ADVANCED e ror YY)

Fentanyl lozenges (Actiq): Recommendation for formulary removal

Requestor: Oska Lawrence, PharmD, BCPS, BCCCP (Pharmacy Clinical Manager)
Declared conflicts of interest: None

Situation: Fentanyl transmucosal lozenges (200 — 1200 mcg) have not been ordered in
over two years and routinely expire in Pharmacy supply

Background: Fentanyl is an opioid agonist used for analgesia. The fentanyl lozenge
formulation is intended for use in opioid tolerant patients for chronic pain management.
Due to safety risks, the FDA enacted a Risk Evaluation Mitigation Strategy (REMS)
called the Transmucosal Immediate Release Fentanyl (TIRF) REMS Access Program
which requires prescribers and hospitals to maintain enroliment status to prescribe and
dispense this product.

Assessment: Medication usage reports indicate that the product has not been used or
ordered for over two years. Maintaining this product in Pharmacy supply results in a
cost burden of approximately $1400 annually.

Recommendation(s):

¢ Given lack of use and availability of formulary alternatives for pain management,
the P&T Committee approved the removal of fentanyl lozenges from the
formulary at this time

¢ Providers who wish to prescribe this product may submit a Non-Formulary Use
Request form. The Pharmacy Clinical Manager will review each request for
appropriateness of therapy and ensure that the ordering provider is enrolled
under the FDA REMS program

4002 Vista Way | Oceanside, California 92056 | 760.724.8411 | Tricitymed.org
141



ADVANCED HEALTH CARE

Tri-City Medical Center R YOU

Lactase enzyme tablets: Recommendation for formulary removal

Requestor: Oska Lawrence, PharmD, BCPS, BCCCP (Pharmacy Clinical Manager)
Declared conflicts of interest: None
Situation: All stock of lactase enzyme tablets expired in early 2017.

Background: Lactase is an enzyme marketed as an OTC product in capsule, liquid,
and tablet form for the indication of lactose intolerance.

Assessment: Lactase has not been ordered for a patient at this institution for several
years. Providers have the ability to order lactose-free diets from the Nutrition Service for
lactose intolerant patients that are admitted.

Recommendation(s):

e Given lack of use and availability of an appropriate lactose-free diet for patients,
the P&T Committee approved the removal of this OTC product from the hospital
formulary

4002 Vista Way, Oceanside, CA 92056 > (760) 724-8411
142



2102 ‘. JaquisAoN

IVI

Bunesy aaiwwon) aAle|siBa] @ 90UBUISA0S)

apn[oul 0} pepuatue Sem ‘G as() Jo} Sa|ny ‘J || UoNoSS

‘uoljedljlie[d apiaoid 0} SWOOoY 8dudJIBJU0Y pue
swoolsse|D ‘swooy Ajquiassy jo abesn uoneziuebip
[euJaIxg — €102 | A21j0d O} SpeL a1am SUO|SIAaI
[euonippe awos pajels IND Z}NYog uoleys ‘s

SWI00Y 32UdIBU0D
pue SWooIsSe|D) ‘SWwooy
Alquassy Jo abesn uoneziuebin
[ewsd)x3 — £40-L 1 Adljod pieog
JO UOISSNISIP pue MaInay ‘e

ssauisng pi0_ 'S

ue|jauuo( ‘s

‘Paljjed ssmnuliy

‘juasaad
sl1oquaw asou} Aq Ajsnowjueun passed uopow
3yl -99iWWo9 aAne|sIba ' 90UBUIBA0D) /10T
‘e 190300 3y} Jo sanuw ayj} A}3el o} eznog "u1Qg

Aq papuodas pue ||[9Yd3N 10393410 Ag paAoW sem }

SaINUIN
Joud jo uoneoyney ‘¥

Ajuo uonewJoyu)

‘epusby s Aepoj) uo pajsi| Se Juswasunouue
SjuUsWIWO? JN|qnd 8y} peal ounsobeq uewieyd

olignd
8y} JO SJOqUIBW WO} SJUBWIWOY) €

Juejjauuog SN

‘panocidde epuaby

‘Juasasd

siaquiawt asoy) Aq A|jsnowiueun passed uoijow
ay] -pojuasaid se epuabe ay) anosdde o3 eznog “iqg
Aq papuo2as pue |[ayo)N 4039311g Aq paAow sem }|

epuaby jo |jeaouddy ‘g

‘ounsobeq uewieyd
Aq Jsjuan [eoIpaj AND-1] 1B ¢ Wooy Ajquiassy
urw-d og:Z | Je JapJo 0} pajes sem Buneaw sy

jepJ0 01 [leD 'L

a|qisuodsay dn-mojjo4
(s)uosiag uonoy uoissnasiq
JoquIBiN
ueloisAyd ‘opJejuo)) snalepy “iq Laquiajy AJunwiwo)) ‘HIMo|S INed i aquisiy Alunwwo)) ‘UOSBA| UIqOy ‘0udy A SUBINOSO0Y J0)0all(] jussqy
[8suno9) pieog ‘1asop Baic) ‘Jue)sissy aAlNoax] ‘ue|jBuuoq e | :Juasald siayio

009 ‘Znin soje) {[9sunoy) jelauac) ‘puog uesng ‘00D ‘Asjuo) endey] {030 ‘UIBIq 9A9)S staquiapy Bunop-uoN

Jaquusiy

uenisAyd ‘s|ioN AdeD ¢ Yels 10 JaIyD ‘Bznog JOJoIA “IQ ‘[[BYoHIN "3 eaneT Jojoauiq ‘uosiadiiey) ‘14Q ‘1d ‘ounsobeq T sawep ‘Judasaid siaquiay

14vydd

L10Z ‘L 19qWidAON

JoLysIq alesyyesy ANo-11

sajnuip Bunaasyy 99)IWLWIo) aAne|sIBa B 92UBUIBAOL

143



2102 ' JequianoN

-z- Bunjealy 89)iWWOY) dANE[SIBaT] B SOUBUIGA0D

SISpUa| [[E 18U} PajuaWLLI0D ulieIq JIN 'Seop Apealle
1PUISIg 34! yoiym Jebpnq e ydope o0} sjoulsip ainbal

(M pue seaA 1xau Buibueyo si me| ajels pajels Jaso
JN 'ssaooud Bujuue|d a16aje.)s aU} Ul PAA[OAUI S| OYM
HEIS Jo Ja1y0 ayy ybnoayy DI dY) 0} PaIEDIUNWILLICD
s11nq Ajleoyioads a9IWIWOD SAIIND3XT [EIPa 8y}
ybnouy) ssed jou saop 1obpnqg eyded ay) yey) pauiejdxs
uipsIg N “pleogq ay) jo uoissas uado ul psaoidde

pue passnasip s| }J@bpng ay} pajejs ounsobeq uewlieyd
‘uoljeoyle|d Jo) epuabe ay) uo paoe|d sem L0

-1 Aoljod pieog ‘Buijesw s,yiuow jse; 0} dn-mojjoy uj

S90IAJ9G |EDIPa JO Juswdinb3]
[eoipa Joj 196png — L00-L 1 Adtjod
pJeog JO UOISSNOSIP pUe MaIASY (g

uejBuuo( 'S\

19)0ed epuabe ui papnjoul

pue epuabe uo paoe|d aq 0} way
{SWI00Y 92UBIBJUOY pUB SWO0ISSeID
‘swooy A|quiassy Jo abesn
uoneziuebiQ [eussixy — e¥0-21 Ad1j0d
pJeog anoidde 0} si10j08.iJ JO pJeog
8y} 0] JUSS aq 0} UOIIEPUBIWOIDY

‘wrd /g:2Z) e bupaaw ay} ya| Z)inyds ‘SW

Juasaid siaquiaw asoy)

Aq Ajsnowjueun passed sem uonow ay| -"uoljouws
a9y} papuo92as ||9YoJiAl 103001 ‘SWOO0Y 3d2uaIaju0)
pue swoolisse|) ‘swooy A|quassy jo abesn
uoneziuebiQ jeusaixy — ¢p0-LL Ad1jod pieog jo
[eaoidde puawiwooal 0} eznog "I AQ POAOLU SBM )|

‘paja|dwoo usaq sey juaaa ay} |jun sabieyo ou

ale a1ay) AjleaidAy ybnouye ¢, dnoib bunsaw psinpayos e
/80UBRD 0] SPasu JoLISIJ 8y} JUBAS 8y} Ul papunyal aq [jim
ysodap e, jey} 199|}81 0} Paljlie|o OS|e Sem ‘5 ||| UoIsS

‘s|ejual
a|qe)} Se yons ,Juans ue Jo uoyejjasued sy} o} jod
Jo181g 8y} Aq pa.nouy s3s09 Aue uoj pabieyd aq Jlim 89
uonejjasues e jey), 199|}31 0} paljlie|d sem "4 ||| uonoasg

"uoIssiw s,|exdsoy ayj ojul a1y Jeyy sdnolb apisino o)
aoeds Buneaw jual o} Jajaid am jey) pauie|dxa z)Nyag
‘'SW .JND 8y} Aq jeacudde aunbai sjsanbas wood
Jensnun, 1eyj }09)j04 0} papuawe sem "9 ||| uoloss

* 10]2UIPJO0) JUBAS/IBINPaYIS
wio0J 8y}, SpN|dUI 0} PAPUSWE 9J9M *(] PUE Y |j| UOOSS

‘sAepinjeg uo play sbunoau Joy
palInoul 8q pinom awly yels jeuoilippe pauie|dxa zynyas
‘S| ,JSO02 jeuonippe je a|gejiene aq Aew sAepinjes,

14vad

e|qisuodsay
(s)uosiad

dn-mojjo4
uonosy

uoissnasiqg

oido |

144




L10Z ‘1 J9quianoN

-g- Bunosyy sepiwwWo) aAle|siba @ 8oUBUIBA0D

0} pajepdn Buiaq aJe suone|nbay @ sany Abojoipey
Jo Jusweda pue soLjelpad Jo Juswyuedaq ay) pajels
20110 HEIS [eoIpaN ay jo Jabeuey BN ABYS SN

sa|ny yels [edipapy (e

ssauisng MaN ‘9

ovd
*D3N ioaaq a3
‘s|IeN "J@ ‘puog ‘SN

98]l SJleyy |euoissajold
ay) pue D3\ 0} piemuoy) ybnoiq pue
s|qeoidde | papuawe aq 0} ainpasoud
“uasuod paiidwi o} paje|al sanss| |ebo)
aAlledjsiuiwpe Ajeld 0} Jooaag g3
pue sje|N Ig yim jesw o} puog 'S\

‘lenosdde

10} 99j)ILILI0) SIElY [BuolSsajold 8y} pue DIN

ay) o} pJemuo} Buuq pue sanss| [eBa| aAjelisiuiwipe ay)
Aneo 0y Juswpedaq AsusbBiawig ayy jo 10308l 8y} pue
S|[9N "I YNMm }aaw puog ‘S 1BY}) PPUSLULIODAS SEM }|

"}salie Japun jou s juajed

ay) Jl JUSSUOD JNOUNM UMEIP 8q P|Nod poojq Jayiaym

0} Se pasiel Osje sem uolisanb ay | ‘Mme| 3y} yim
Aidwoo o} pauiensal aq pjnoys jusned sy ji pauoysanb
84 SnoiosuoduN S| IO sasnjal jualied syj )i UMeIp

aq ued poojq Ji AILie[D JO YOB| BLOS ||NS SI 818U} pajels
S|loN 4 "PeleoIxojul fiym BuiALp 10} JaALp pasusdl|
e dojs 0} asnes ajqeqo.d SeY JusWadIoUd MB| USUM
Mme| 8y} yim A|dwod Jsnw S|enplAlpul pUe meT JUssuo)
palidw| ue aAey saop ejuIojlieD pajels puog ‘S

‘Wa)l jeUOlBULIOUI UB Se
Aidwis 1nq ‘jeacidde Joj Aepoy passnosip Buiag jou ale
pue ja30ed epuabe ay} u) papnjoul Jou aJe sainpasold

ay} 1ey) payueo sem )| ‘jueldwod ale am ansua
0) sainpaoodd juasuod paydw s,gHD L Mairal puog
‘S 1ey) paisenbal aaywwod ay) bunesw snoinald e 1y

$8.Npadold
juasuo) paydw| aHOL jo aepdn (o

uejsuuo( ‘s

19)0ed epuabe u) papnjoul

pue epuabe pieog uo pase|d aq

0] Wa)i ‘saoIAIeg |eoIpa Jo Juawdinbg
ledipaly 4oy 196png — 1L.00-LL Adllod
pieog ayuis 0) sJ0josll( JO pieog

ay} 0} Juas aqg 0} UOIEPUSLIWOIDY

Juasaid

sioquiaw asoyj Aq A|snowiueun passed sem

uoljolws 8y "SadiAIag |edipaly 10 Juswdinb3] [esipepy
1oy 386png — L00-L) Adljod pleog djlys 0} eZnog “.1g
Aq papuo2as pue [[oUYs)IN 1030341g Aq paAow sem )

"100-21 Aaijod pieog

Buiysijoqe ul swienb Aue aAey jou pip pue ssadso.d
196png 8y} yum a|gelojwod alam Ay} pajels aajiuwod
ay) Uo Jeig [eIpaly 8y} Jo siequialy “wnuoy algnd

e Ul suop si jey) pue pajdope aq jebpnq e jey) ainbai

14v¥d

a|qisuodsey
{s)uosiad

dn-mojjo4
uonoy

uoissnosidg

oidoj

145



210T '/ JequienoN

-H- Bunasy sspIwWWOD) aAe|sIBaT @ S0UBUISA0D)

‘LLo-LL
Aoljod pJeog o) pajsabbns atom suUOISIASY [euolippe ON

«papasu
se Jeo1Q soueldwo) Jaiyo pue, apn[oul o} papuawe
5Q 9oUB)UAS }S11} '| UONDBS Jey) paysabbns sem i

‘600
-/ | Aoljod o) pajsabbns alam SuOISIASS |euOllIppE ON

‘[asuno) pieogq S| JaSO N ulpsiq

“J\ 0} Hodal 0} anuUOoI ||IM pPUB [2SUNOY) |BJauas)
pajuiodde usaq sey puog uesng jey} paujejdxa o
‘|Josuno’ |eiauas) pue [asuno) pieoq Ag ssjos Jusnd
ay} 109|181 0} suoleoyipow alninbal epusbe s Aepo)

uo pajsi| saioljod ayj pauodal oujsobeq uewdiey)

sepuabe aa)wwo)) uo sway| Jo
Juawaoeld — L 1L0-Z1 Adljod pieog (g

uosJsadiieyn

JO sIamod pue 3|0y ‘sbuijaspy
pJeog Joj sjwi] awi] pue Aouaioly)g
“uswdojanaq epuabe Bunaap
pieod — 010~/ Aaljod pieog (2

slaqwaiy
pJeog AQ Jue)sissy Jo uojjeuwlou|
1o} sysenbay — 600— 1 Aatjod (1

jasunos pleog
0] [9SUNOY) |elauac) woiy sbueyd

abenbue| 108|484 0} s8I0I|0d pieog
JUBAS|2] pUaWEe 0} uonelapisuo) (q

uejjauuoq ‘s

19)0ed epuabe o)
pappe pue epuabe pJjeog uo papnjoul
aq o} swa) ‘pajuasald se suoljejnbey

pue sajny ABojoipey jo Juawuedaq
pue soleIpad jJo Juawuedsq

ay} anoidde o0} s10)93.1( jo pieog
ay} 0] JUSS 9 0} UOIIEPUSWILLIOISY

‘wrd 6G:Z 4 je buysaw ay) Yoy 9JIN S

Juasaid

siaquaw asoy) Aq Ajsnowjueun passed uonow
ay] -pojuasaid se suone[nbay § sa|ny ABojoipey
Jo juswyedaq pue soujeipad jo juswpedag

3y} jo jeaosdde puawiuwiosal o} [[eYs) A 10393410
Aq papuo2as pue eznog “1q Aq paAow sem )|

‘99jIWWo)

By} Jo awWeU a3y} Joaial 8jeINIJE 0} SMejAg Jels [eoIps
ay} ul paiepdn uaaq sey aajiwwWwoy) Juswaaosdul|
aouewWIoUad pue A)ajes jusijed asueinssy Ajjenp ay
0} paje|as abenbue| ay) Jey) pawiyuod osfe ays ‘ases
By} SI 1By} paWLIJUOD JB[IIN "SI "S|BuOISSSj0ld UljeaH
pal||y asnh 0} juem Aay)} Jayjsym JO |0JJuUcO sulejuiet
wswuedap yoes Ji pauolisanb s|jla|N IQ "SUoISIAIg
pue sjuswuedaq yeis |[eoipa |je 0} sajdde jeyy Aajod
[leD wawpedaq Aousbiaw] Ja¥ueq, e si 81ay) pajels
JBIIN "SI ‘ebelano9 yuswiedaq Aouabisw3 o) piebal
UNAA “Siuawadinbaa uoissiwwo) juior ypm Aldwoo

ABojoipey Jo uawyedaq (z
soleIpad jo uswuedsg (|

suojje|nbay

14vid

a|qisuodsay
(sjuosied

dn-mojjo4
uonoy

uoissnasig

oido|

146



£102 ‘L JaquianoN

-G- Bunesiy @apiwWo) aAle|siba] @ souBLIBA0D

ue[jsuuo(q ‘s

19)0ed

epuabe uj papnjoul pue epuabe pleog
uo pase|d aq 0} SWa}l ‘senep |ebe
uo Bunjew-uolstoaq 104 AYjiqisuodsay
—€20-L1 'siojpaulq jo pieod 8y} jo
sanQ — Zy0-L1 ‘Siequiaiy 88piwwod
pue sJo)oauig Aq Ajljenuspiuod

10 @oueUdUIBIN — 220~/ | ‘slojoaliq
0 pJeog ay} Jo siaquwisy Ag [asuno)
|e6a7 jo asn — 1.20-L| 'sioaug

Jo pleog ay) Jo sisquiay Aq |asuno)
[eba jo asn — LZ0-.2| ‘sepusbe
29])IWWI0YD UO SWa)| Jo Juawaoe|d

— 110-2] ‘uosiadiey) Jo siamod pue
aj0y ‘sBunsspy pseog Joj SHW] awi]
pue Aouaio1yg ‘Juswdolanaq epuabe
Bunaay pJeog — 010-2) ( 'sioquiajy
pJeog Aq jue)sissy JO uoljewloju|

Joj sjsanbay — 00— sal|od
pieog aaoidde 0} si0j0841q Jo pieoq
aU) 0] Juas 8 0} UOIJepPUSLLLLIOIDY

1uasasd siaquaw asoyj Aq Ajsnowiueun

passed uopjow ay] ‘ssenep [eba uo Bupjew
-uolsioaq Jo} Aypqisuodsay - £z0-L1 ‘s40302.1Q

Jo paeog 8y} jo sanNQ — Zy0-L1 ‘SI9qUIBN 3dPWIWOH
pue si032311g Aq Ajjenuapiuod Jo asueuajuley
—ZZ0-1] ‘si10)0211q JO pieog ay) Jo s1aquiBly

Aqg j9suno9 |ebaT jo asn — 1L20-L1 ‘si0joallQ

Jo pieog 8y} jo siaquidjy Aq |asuno) jeban jo asn

— 120-2] ‘sepuabe aa)wwo) uo swa)| Jo Jusawade|d
— L1-11 ‘uosiadiiey Jo s1omod pue ajoy ‘sbunssiy
pieog 104 spwi] awi] pue Aouaioiy] ‘yuswdolaasqg
epuabe Bupasy pieog — 010-L) ‘Siaquiaiy pieog

Aq jueisissy Jo uonewosu| 10} s}senbay — 600—.L1
sa191|0d pieog jo [eaoidde puswiwosal 0} eZnos "iQg
Aq papuo2as pue [[ayd)I\j 1039311Q Ag paAows sem )

‘0s op o} Bunea|y pleog e Buljjes
moyym suojuido jebBs| Bulnoses ul uoieJosip alow O30
8y} aAIb 0) payipow Sem ‘g “| UONOaS paje)s Jaso N

‘l]asuno)
pieog Joj uondiuosa qor 1931102 8y} }o8|j2. 0} palipow
sem £20-/| Aoljod pJeog paje}s ounsobeq uewieyd

KA{VA"
Koljod pJeog o) paysabbns aiam suoisiAal [euolippe ON

RAA VA"
£oljo4 pieog 0) pajsabbns aiam suOISIAaS [BUOHIPPE ON

siepep [eba
uo Bunjew-uolisioa(g Joy Ayjigisuodssy
—£20-L1 Aolod preog (9

sJi0j0a1(] JO pieoqg ay)
J0 senng — Z¥0-. 1 Adijod pleog (S
slaquUajy 99)IWwWo) pue s10joaiiq
Aq Ajjenuapyuod Jo asueusjuie|y
—220-L1 Aaljod pleog (g

‘|asunos pieog 0} aul| JoaJIp
ay} s! Jiey) pJeog 8y} pue [9SUNOD UMO JIsy) 8Aey 0}
pieog 8y} Joj juepodw st )1 pajels ounsobeq ueuieyd

s10)0aJ|(q Jo pleog
ay} Jo siaqway Ag [@sunog) jeba
jo asn — 1Z0-L1 Adljod pieog (v

14vad

a|qisuodsey
{sjuosied

dn-mojjo4
uonoy

uoissnasid

oidoj

147



1102 ‘. JaquanoN

Iml

Bunes|y 99)IWWOY) BAfJE|SIBaT @ 9oUBUIBA0D

QUON

‘uofjewloyul Joy J9xoed epusbe
8Y) Ul papn[oul sem uejd YI0MA @8PIWo] 810ZAd 3Y.L

ue|d IO
990D 8LOZAL JO MOIASY '8

"A|uo uonewIOyU|

*SOIUI[D 991) 0}
Hoddns pue sjeu) [eoIUlD 8Pl BUOQ ‘SIBUIWSS SUONRINpS
weoyiubis jo diysiosuods apnjoul jey) suoyjdeoxs ale
219y} pajels S| Ig ‘op am 1ey) Bunsal yim alaualul
pinom 062 9S JI pauoysanb oujsobeq uewliey)

‘9sual|} pajepliosuod

s |endsoy ay) Japun jou s| jey) jue(d |eaisAyd s, [endsoy
oy} wou} ajesedas pajeoo| eale aoinIes panosdde

10 9}I||91eS € U] sadiales [eonadsewseyd asusol|

0} s|ejidsoy Jo} suopdo |euolippe sapiAold JOUISAOD)
ay) Aq paubis uaaq os|e sey Yolum LGE 9S 9661

10 10V AJNjIGeIuN029Y pue A)liIgelod adueinsu| yjjeaH
ay) Jopun pajdope suonejnbas Aoeaud uonewuojul yjjesy
[elopa} JO SUOISIAOLd UIBLSD U)IM me]| 8)e)s saziuowiey
J0oUIBA0L) ay) Ag paubis sem yoiym Lig g5 “suonelado
10edwi Aew jey; sjjiq om) a1e a1ay) papodal Jasop “IN

uole|sibar
yuauns buipiebad uoissnosiq "/

uefjauuoq ‘s

19y0ed epuabe

Ul papnjoui pue epuabe pieog uo
paoe|(d aq 0} Wa) ‘papuawe se smejig
ay} anoidde o} si0}08l1(] JO pieog

3} 0] JuUaS aq 0} UOIEPUSWILIOISY

wasald siaquaw asoy) Aq Ajsnowstueun

pessed uogow ay| °uoljow ayj papuodss

SlioN g "papuswe se smejAg ay} jo |[erocidde
puawwosai o0} [|[sYoN 1030311g Aq paAow Sem }j

‘uspum
SI me| 8y} Aem 9y} Yim swilojuod “/ uoioeg Ul abenbue)

ay) pajels Jasoly N sbBuneay woly sasuasqy
‘] UONOaS ‘||| 801Ky UO uonedyeo pajsanbal s|Ia "I

"Jaquisw
pleog e aAowsl o) pleog 8y} 1o} a)qissod jou si

) SE onJs aq 'g ") Q| UOII08S ‘Al 201y PapPUSWIWOIa
JOSO "I\ ‘pojussald suoisiaal au} 0} uolippe u|

‘[9Suno) pJeog 0) [9sUnoY) [BJOUSS) WOU)
abueyo abenbue| 10o|)21 0} ||lom se smejAg ay) 0} apew
usaq 9ABY SUOISIABIL Joulw pajels ouljsobeq uewlieyd

[2Suno) pleoq 0} [9sunoy |elsuag)
woJ} abueys abenbue| joapy04
0} SMejAg puawe 0} uoljesapisuo?) (o

14viad

a|qisuodsay
(s)uosiad

dn-mojjo4
uonoy

uoissnasiq

oido)

148



2102 '/ JoqusAON == Buneayy senwiWwo aAle|siba p asueuIaA0D)
‘w-d 9z:} 1e Bugeaw ay} pausnolpe oulisobeq ueuwlieyd wawuwnolpy ‘ZL
‘w-d pe:zZL 1e gLog ‘z Aenuer ‘Aepsany 1o} pajnpsyos
‘wd pg:zi e gLog ‘¢ Aenuep si Bunesw 1xau s,aspiwwos ay| ‘Apsuenb Bunssw Buneaw xau
S| @8O 2y} jo Buiesw Jxau ay | uibaq |m senIWiwo9 ay) payodal ounsobeq uewdieyd 1O 8w} pue ajep WIYUoD ||
-sBuluado aap1wwo ou ale alay | auopN — sBuiuadp eapiwwod QL
uejauuoq ‘s *SUOIEOIUNLILLIOD 33JIWLWO2 OU 81am aJay | SUOIJEDIUNWWOY S9RIWOYD "6
14vdd
o|qisuodsey dn-mojjo4
{s)uosiod uonoy uolissnasiq oido )

149




TRI-CITY HEALTHCARE DISTRICT
BOARD OF DIRECTORS POLICY

POLICY TITLE:

Reviewed by the Gov/Leg Committee: 8/10/05
Approved by the Board of Directors: 9/22/05
Reviewed by the Gov/Leg Committee: 11/08/06
Approved by the Board of Directors: 12/14/06
Reviewed by the Gov/Leg Committee: 10/10/07
Approved by the Board of Directors: 12/13/07
Received by the Gov/Leg Committee: 12/01/10
Approved by the Board of Directors: 12/16/10
Reviewed by the Gov/Leg Committee: 4/01/14
Approved by the Board of Directors: 4/24/14
Reviewed by the Gov/Leg Committee: 9/5/17
Approved by the Board of Directors: 9/25/17
Reviewd by the Gov/Leg Committee: 12/5/17
Approved by the Board of Directors:

150



TRI-CITY HEALTHCARE DISTRICT
BOARD OF DIRECTORS POLICY

BOARD POLICY #1417-009
POLICY TITLE: Requests for Information or Assistance by Board Members

1. Requests for information or assistance by individual Directors requiring more than 15
minutes of staff time shall be directed in writing to the Chairperson of the Board, with a
copy to the President/CEO or his/her designee. All questions regarding confidentiality
and privilege shall be directed to the General-Board Counsel, Compliance Officer or their
designees. All requests shall be stated clearly and shall be specific. In making requests,
Directors shall keep in mind that District staff time and resources are both limited and
expensive, and that staff members have other duties.

2. All requests for information which concern another Director shall be directed in writing to
the Chairperson of the Board, with a copy to the President/CEO or his/her designee. A
copy of the written request shall be directed to all members of the Board including the
member concerning whom information is requested, along with any information provided
in response to the request.

3. All requests for information relating to Closed Session materials, including requested
inspection, shall be directed to the Chairperson of the Board, with a copy to the
President/CEO or his/her designee and shall be subject to the confidentiality provisions of
Policy #022.

4, Requests for information and assistance shall receive a response as soon as reasonably
possible, although not necessarily immediately. The President/CEOQ shall have the final
authority to determine by what means and when District staff responds to the request. If,
in the judgment of the Chairperson of the Board or the President/CEO, the request
requires a material amount of employee time or the request includes information or
documents which are confidential or privileged or the request is one which is deemed
appropriate for Board consideration, the President/CEO or Chairperson may ask for a
decision from the full Board of Directors before action is taken.

5. Should any Director’s request for information or analysis require more than 30 minutes
of staff time, the Chairperson or the CEO may require the Director to secure Board
approval for the work.

6. This Policy shall not preclude the Chairperson from exercising authority granted under
District Bylaws or Board Policy: Role and Powers of Chairperson. Nothing in this
policy shall be construed to limit the rights of a Director under the Public Records Act.

Reviewed by the Gov/Leg Committee: 8/10/05
Approved by the Board of Directors: 9/22/05
Reviewed by the Gov/Leg Committee: 11/8/06
Approved by the Board of Directors: 12/14/06
Reviewed by the Gov/Leg Committee: 10/10/07

151



Approved by the Board of Directors: 12/13/07
Received by the Gov/Leg Committee: 12/01/10
Approved by the Board of Directors: 12/16/10
Reviewed by the Gov/Leg Committee: 4/01/14
Approved by the Board of Directors: 4/24/14

Reviewed by the Gov/Leg Committee: 11/7/17

152



TRI-CITY HEALTHCARE DISTRICT
BOARD OF DIRECTORS POLICY

BOARD POLICY #17-010

POLICY TITLE: Board Meeting Agenda Development, Efficiency of and Time Limits for
Board Meetings, Role and Powers of Chairperson

I

II.

BOARD MEETING AGENDA DEVELOPMENT

The Board of Directors Agenda shall be developed by the Chairperson, with the
assistance of the President/CEO, -and-Board Counsel,General Counsel and Chief

Compliance Officer as needed. Ind1v1dual Board members may place items on the

Agenda through the Board Chairperson. The procedure will be:

A.

C.

D.

A Board member shall submit a written description of the Agenda item to the
Chairperson or the CEO or the Board Secretary, prior to the time of the Agenda
Conference. Recognizing that the Agenda Conference meeting date and time may
on occasion change, it is the responsibility of the requestor to confirm the Agenda
Conference meeting date to ensure timely submittal of the requestor’s Agenda
item. Discussion items may be placed on the Board Agenda at the request of any
Board member; proposed action items shall normally be referred to the
appropriate Board committee for consideration prior to full Board consideration.
At the beginning of each calendar year, the Chairperson of the Board of Directors
shall set the date and time of the Agenda Conference.

A member of the public may submit a written request to the President/CEO,
Chairperson or a member of the Board of Directors. The written request shall
contain a description of the Agenda item. The member of the public shall be
informed if and when the item will appear on the Board Agenda.

contact the Board member or the public member, to confirm the intent of their
request, and will then formulate the Agenda item in a format that conforms with
legal requirements.

Copies of the Agenda shall be posted on the TCHD website and at other public
locations as required by law.

EFFICIENCY OF BOARD MEETINGS

The Board of Directors and management shall work cooperatively to prepare for and
manage Board meetings in a manner that produces efficient and effective meetings (See
Policy #1817-39). To achieve that end, the following process will be followed:

A.

The Board of Directors shall receive their Board Agenda packet with appropriate
written information and materials at least five (5) days prior to a regularly
scheduled Board of Directors meeting.

153



1.

Iv.

Board members who require further information or clarification on Board Agenda
packet materials are welcome to contact the President/CEO, Board Counsel or -er

General Beard-Counsel with questions prior to the meeting. Responses shall be
presented to all Board members at the Board meeting.

To facilitate deliberation and action on items at Tri-City Healthcare District Board
of Directors meetings, suggested written motions may be developed in advance by
members of the Board of Directors or Executive Management. Such suggested
written motions shall be included in the Board of Directors Agenda packet with
supporting materials for the action item.

TIME LIMITS FOR BOARD OF DIRECTOR MEETINGS

A.

Regular meetings of the Board of Directors shall be a maximum of three and one
half (3%2) hours for any open session and a maximum of four hours (4) for any
closed session. Agenda items not addressed during those time periods will be
carried forward to a subsequent date, which shall be agreed upon by a majority
vote of the Board before adjourning the meeting.

The time limits under Section A may be waived by a majority of the Board. The
waiver shall be effective only for the meeting in which the waiver is approved. A
motion for waiver may specify that the limit will be waived entirely for the
balance of the session, will be extended for a specified amount of time of at least
one-half (1/2) hour, or will be extended only for so long as the Board requires to
address one or more specified items on the Agenda for that session.

ROLE AND POWERS OF CHAIRPERSON

The Chairperson of the Board of Directors shall have the authority to act on behalf of the
Board of Directors, as provided in the District Bylaws and these policies.

The Board Chairperson shall report any such actions to the Board of Directors at their
next regularly scheduled meeting.

Reviewed by the Gov/Leg Committee: 8/10/05
Approved by the Board of Directors: 9/22/05
Reviewed by the Gov/Leg Committee: 11/8/06
Approved by the Board of Directors: 12/14/06
Reviewed by the Gov/Leg Committee: 10/10/07
Approved by the Board of Directors: 12/13/07
Received by the Gov/Leg Committee: 12/01/10
Approved by the Board of Directors: 12/16/10
Reviewed by the Gov/Leg Committee: 4/01/14
Approved by the Board of Directors: 4/24/14
Revised by the Gov/Leg Committee: 8/4/15
Approved by the Board of Directors: 8/27/15
Reviewed by the Gov/Leg Committee: 8/02/16

-

154



Approved by the Board of Directors: 8/25/16

Reviewed by the Governance Committee: 9/5/17 (no action taken)
Reviewed by the Governance Committee: 11/7/17

Approved by the Board of Directors:

155



TRI-CITY HEALTHCARE DISTRICT
BOARD OF DIRECTORS POLICY

BOARD POLICY #1417-011

POLICY TITLE: Placement of Items on Committee Agendas

Items may be placed on the Agenda of a Committee of the Board in the following ways:

1.

2.

8.

By action of the Board of Directors.

By action of the Committee itself at a prior meeting.

. By the Chairperson of the Committee.

By the President/CEQ, after consultation with the Chairperson of the Committee.

By any Director who is a member of the Committee, after consultation with the Chairperson
of the Committee.

By any other Director, after consultation with the Chairperson of the Committee.

By a member of the Administration, with the consent of the President/CEO, after
consultation with the Chairperson of the Committee.

By any member of a Committee after consultation with the Committee Chairperson.

The Agenda shall be developed by the Chairperson of the Committee, with the assistance of

A

Committee Agenda by action of the Board of Directors or the Committee itself, all requests must
be submitted in writing to the Chairperson of the Committee or the President/CEO or their
designees. The District’s Eegal Board Counsel will formulate the Agenda item in a format that
conforms to legal requirements.

Reviewed by the Gov/Leg Committee: 8/10/05
Approved by the Board of Directors: 9/22/05
Reviewed by the Gov/Leg Committee: 11/8/06
Approved by the Board of Directors: 12/14/06
Reviewed by the Gov/Leg Committee: 10/10/07
Approved by the Board of Directors: 12/13/07
Reviewed by the Gov/Leg Committee: 6/4/13
Approved by the Board of Directors: 6/27/13
Reviewed by the Gov/Leg Committee: 4/01/14
Approved by the Board of Directors: 4/24/14
Reviewed by the Gov/Leg Committee: 11/7/17

Aproved by the Board of Directors:

156



TRI-CITY HEALTHCARE DISTRICT
BOARD OF DIRECTORS POLICY

BOARD POLICY #1417-021

POLICY TITLE: Use of Legal-Board Counsel by Members of the Board of Directors

In order to control legal costs, the Board policy is to permit use of General-Board Fegal-Counsel
by individual Directors only as follows:

| L.

II.

III.

| Iv.

An individual Director may initiate consultation with General-Legal-Board Counsel
regarding the following:

A. A legal matter relating directly to District or Board business, but not for matters
personal to the Director or matters adverse to the interests of the District or the
Board as a whole. Consultation must be limited to relatively simple questions
which relate directly to the statutory authority of the Board or to procedures
applicable to the Board and which do not require a written opinion or significant
amounts of legal or factual analysis.

B. Any other legal matter relating directly to District or Board business, with prior
approval of the Chairperson of the Board.

An individual Director may initiate consultation with outside special legal counsel at the
expense of the District only: (1) when approved by the Chairperson of the Board; and
(2) when General-LegalBoard Counsel has a conflict of interest, potential conflict of
interest, or there would be an appearance of impropriety, or Gereral-egal- Board Counsel
lacks sufficient expertise regarding a legal matter relating directly to District or Board
business; and (3) the matter is not personal to the Director or adverse to the interests of
the District or the Board as a whole; (4) or when authorized by the Board.

Nothing in this Policy shall prohibit an individual Director from seeking the advice of
General-egal Board Counsel on issues related to the Director’s individual FPPC Form
700, or other relatively simple conflict of interest questions related to the individual
Director.

The Chairperson may initiate consultation with General-Legal-Board Counsel or outside
special legal counsel in accordance with paragraphs I or II, above.

Reviewed by the Gov/Leg Committee: 8/10/05
Approved by the Board of Directors: 9/22/05
Reviewed by the Gov/Leg Committee: 11/8/06
Approved by the Board of Directors: 12/14/06
Reviewed by the Gov/Leg Committee: 10/10/07
Approved by the Board of Directors: 12/13/07
Reviewed by Gov/Leg Committee: 10/12/10
Approved by the Board of Directors: 11/04/10
Reviewed by the Gov/Leg Committee: 4/01/14

157



Approved by the Board of Directors: 4/24/14
Reviewed by Gov/Leg Committee: 11/7/17

Approved by Board of Directors:

158



TRI-CITY HEALTHCARE DISTRICT
BOARD OF DIRECTORS POLICY

BOARD POLICY #-1417-022

POLICY TITLE: Maintenance of Confidentiality by Directors and Committee

II.

III.

Members

STATEMENT OF POLICY

Directors and Board Committee Members have access to private or confidential
information. Both the law and sound business and legal practices require that
confidentiality be maintained and protected for so long as it is necessary and appropriate
in the interests of the District. In addition, such information is to be accessed and used by
Directors and Committee Members only in their official capacity as public officials. It is
important that Directors, Committee Members and staff be free to share confidential
and/or privileged documents and information without concern for a breach of
confidentiality. The use of a patient’s protected health information is specifically
addressed in the medical center’s Notice of Privacy Practice and other HIPAA policies.
These policies cover Medical Center employees, physicians, business associates as well
as Directors and Committee Members. Moreover, improper disclosure of such a
document or information by a Director or Committee Member may change the legal
status of the matter disclosed, which may prejudice the District, the public, an employee,
or a patient. That disclosure could also generate legal liability and/or financial penalties
on the part of the District.

QUALITY MANAGEMENT

Effective peer review and quality management cannot be achieved unless the
confidentiality of all discussions, deliberations, records and other information generated
in connection with these activities is maintained, consistent with applicable law. Such
confidentiality ensures the candid participation of staff members, Directors and
Committee Members in these activities which are critically important for the evaluation
and improvement of the quality of care rendered throughout the Tri-City Healthcare
District (TCHD). Public officials must respect and maintain the confidentiality of all
discussion, deliberations, records and information related to these activities. Such
documents and information must be treated as confidential and must not be disclosed to
or discussed with any person other than another Director or Committee Member without
authorization by the Board or by the President/CEO.

PROTECTED HEALTH INFORMATION

Minimum necessary protected health information (PHI) required for Board actions may
be provided to Board members. This will include access for treatment, payment, or
operations. All others access must be authorized by the patient/patient representative.
No re-disclosure of the PHI is allowed. Violations of this Section shall fall within the
provisions of Sections VI and VII, herein.

159



LEGAL AND OTHER CONFIDENTIAL/PRIVILEGED DOCUMENTS AND
INFORMATION

Public officials may have access to documents and information which are confidential,
private, or privileged under applicable law. Examples are documents and information
related to pending litigation, personnel records and actions, and trade secrets. Such
documents and information must be treated as confidential and must not be disclosed to
or discussed with any person other than another Director or Committee Member without
authorization by the Board or by the President/CEO. Medical staff applications and
related records and information are confidential. Disclosure is prohibited without the
prior written consent of the Chief of the Medical Staff or the applicant, unless specifically
authorized in writing by the Board of Directors or the President/CEO.

CLOSED SESSION DOCUMENTS AND INFORMATION

Pursuant to Government Code section 54950, et seq. and other applicable law, the
District is permitted to maintain the confidentiality and/or privilege of documents and
information distributed, discussed, or prepared in a closed session of the Board or
Committee. Such documents and information must be treated as confidential and must
not be disclosed to or discussed with any person other than another Director or
Committee Member without authorization by the Board. Any written materials,
documents, or records distributed during the session or prior to the closed session for
consideration at the session will be collected during the session and may not be removed
by any Director, Committee Member, or other persons attending the session, from the
session without authorization by the Board or the General-Board Counsel.

A. Members of the Board and other persons admitted to closed sessions of the Board
or its Committees shall not make or attempt to make any audio or video recording
of any portion of the closed session. They also shall not make or attempt to make
any verbatim copy (whether by long hand or other method) of any confidential or
privileged materials without the authorization of the Board. A verbatim copy is
defined as a copy which corresponds at least approximately word for word with
the closed session material or any portion thereof.

B. It is the responsibility of any person in attendance during a closed session of the
Board or its Committees who, at or after the session, notes or records his/her
understanding or recollection of any matter discussed, distributed or available
during the session, to maintain the confidentiality and security of the note or
record. It is also that person’s responsibility to refrain from discussing or
disclosing the contents of any such note or record with anyone outside of a closed
session of the Board or the Committee, without the authorization of the Board.

C. This Policy applies to any recording, copy, note or other record in any form
regarding any action taken, oral statement made, or confidential or privileged
document or other written material discussed or distributed at or available during
the closed session, including but not limited to, an overhead transparency or
computer projection or audio or video playback.

160



VIIL.

VIII.

D. Directors may inspect Closed Session materials in the Administrative offices
subject to this Policy relating to the maintenance of confidentiality by Directors.
In the Administrative offices, Directors must sign-in and sign-out, including the
date and time of inspection of Closed Session materials. Directors, in reviewing
the Closed Session materials, cannot take any verbatim copy (whether by long
hand or other method), notes, copies, or photographs of the Closed Session
materials, or bring recording devices into the Administrative offices, including but
not limited to, a camera, cellphone, or other handheld electronic devices. Any
materials inspected pursuant to this Section is subject to the confidentiality
requirements set forth in this Policy.

CONSEQUENCES OF VIOLATIONS

TCHD is entitled to undertake such actions as are deemed appropriate to ensure that the
confidentiality and/or privileged status of documents and information, including a
patient’s protected health information (PHI), is preserved. If a Director or Committee
Member is in doubt about the status of any document or any item of information, the
Director shall consult the General-Board Counsel for clarification and agree to follow that
direction pending consideration by the Board. Any breach of this Policy or threatened
breach may subject a Director or Committee Member to disciplinary action, including
public censure. Additionally, the improper use or disclosure of PHI may subject a
Director or Committee Member to any or all of the civil and criminal penalties specified
under HIPAA.

ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF OBLIGATIONS

Each Board and Committee Member shall sign and return to the Board Secretary a copy
of the attached Form acknowledging receipt of a copy of this policy and the Notice of
Privacy Practice, and agreement thereto, immediately following initial assumption of
office and following any material change to the policy.

APPLICABILITY OF LAW

This Policy and its implementation are subject to applicable state and federal laws
relating to the privacy, confidentiality and/or privileged status of any District documents
and information, including a patient’s protected health information. Violations of this
confidentiality policy may be addressed by the District by the use of such remedies as are
currently available by State and Federal laws, including but not limited to, Government
Code section 54963.

161



FORM

Tri-City Healthcare District
Confidentiality Acknowledgement and Agreement

PRINT NAME

OFFICE/COMMITTEE:

I hereby acknowledge receipt of a copy of Tri-City Healthcare District Board
and of the Notice of Privacy Practice, and agree to abide by the terms and conditions of
these policies, and the laws they summarize.

1. I understand that I may have personal liability for the release to unauthorized
persons of any confidential patient medical information, personnel information, medical
quality and peer review, and District trade secret information (“‘confidential information™)
to which I am given access as a result of my membership on the Board or on a
Committee.

2. I agree to keep secure all confidential information I receive as a result of my
affiliation with the District. I also agree that after it is no longer needed, I will return all
confidential information to the District for proper disposal or destruction, or I will
securely dispose of or destroy it by shredding or equivalent means, whether the
confidential information is in paper, electronic or other form.

3. I understand that my obligation to maintain confidentiality under these policies
continues after termination of my affiliation with the District.

Signature Date signed

162



Reviewed by the Gov/Leg Committee: 8/10/05
Approved by the Board of Directors: 9/22/05
Reviewed by the Gov/Leg Committee: 11/8/06
Approved by the Board of Directors: 12/14/06
Reviewed by the Gov/Leg Committee: 10/10/07
Approved by the Board of Directors: 12/13/07
Reviewed by the Gov/Leg Committee: 12/01/10
Approved by the Board of Directors: 12/16/10
Reviewed by the Gov/Leg Committee: 10/12/11
Approved by the Board of Directors: 10/27/11
Reviewed by the Gov/Leg Committee: 4/01/14
Approved by the Board of Directors: 4/24/14
Reviewed by the Gov/Leg Committee: 11/7/17
Approved by the Board of Directors:

163



TRI-CITY HEALTHCARE DISTRICT
BOARD OF DIRECTORS POLICY

BOARD POLICY #1617-023

POLICY TITLE: Responsibility for Decision-making on Legal Matters

1.

ROLE OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

While the Board of Directors retains ultimate responsibility for the conduct of the
business of the Tri-City Healthcare District, the Board has delegated implementation of
its policies and day-to-day operations to the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) and
management of the compliance program to the Chief Compliance Officer.
Notwithstanding these general delegations or other Board policies, the Board of Directors
retains responsibility for making the following decisions:

a. General-Board Counsel. Hiring of General-Board Counsel to advise the Board
on any legal matter as requested by the Board or as established by policy. The
Board shall approve the retainer agreement, provided that the CEO er—Chief

Gemplmnee@ﬁieer—may negotlate rates. -aﬂekappfeve—aﬁemeys—&rbeassfgned—&e

fetamer—agreemeﬁ{— Invoices shall be approved by the Chalr of the Board

b—Chief Compliance Officer. General oversight of the aetivities—ef-the—Chief

Ceompliance-Officerin-implementation of compliance programs. and-approval-of
the eb-descrption dor the Uhiet Comphiaiee OtHoos,

«b.Outside Counsel. Autherizing-theretention-ofany-outside lawyerorlaw-firm-to
spresent—the—intere sithePistreserd—sporevins—the—tomy onditions—and

guidelines-thatshallappbto—sl-sueh-coursel The Board shll be providd with
information on at least a quarterly basis regarding all matters projected to exceed
a total of $50,000 in legal fees, costs, and damages (if applicable).

é-c.Claims and Settlements. With the exception of appeals of the denial of payment
for clinical services, the Board shall approve or authorize the settlement of any
legal matter exceeding $50,000 in value, whether in favor of or against the
District. The Board shall authorize or approve the compromise of any claim made
by the District in any litigation or other adversarial proceeding exceeding
$50,000, and shall approve settlements exceeding $50,000.

164



e-d.Imitiation of litigation. With the exception of appeals of the denial of payment
for clinical services, authorizing initiation of formal arbitration or litigation shall
require approval of the Board. However, in the event legal action must be taken
to protect life, health or safety within or about the facilities operated by the
District, the CEO, with the concurrence of the General-Board Counsel or Chief
Compliance Officer may approve the commencement of litigation seeking
equitable relief. In such event, the Board shall be notified within 24 hours, and
ratification of the action shall be placed on the next agenda for consideration by
the Board.

B. ROLE OF GENERAL-BOARD COUNSEL

See Appendix A.
C—ROLE OF CHIEF COMPLIANCE-OFFICER

Secfppendin B

Approved by the Board of Directors: 1/30/14
Reviewed by the Gov/Leg Committee: 4/01/14
Approved by the Board of Directors: 4/24/14
Reviewed by the Gov/Leg Committee: 5/06/14
Approved by the Board of Directors: 5/29/14
Reviewed by the Gov/Leg Committee: 6/07/16
Approved by the Board of Directors: 6/30/16

Reviewed by the Gov/Leg Committee: 11/7/17
Approved by the Board of Directors:

165



Appendix A

Position Description
General-Board Counsel
Tri-City Healthcare District

Summary: General-Board Counsel is retained by and reports to the Board of Directors. General
Board Counsel carries out legal duties as assigned by the Board, General Counsel, and the Chief

Executlve Ofﬁcer act1ng within hJS or her delegated authonty Geaesal—@eaﬂsel—suppefts—and

Geﬂer-al—Board Counsel adv15es the District on compliance with state transparency laws
including but not limited to open meetings, public records and conflict of interest laws, as well as
compliance with the Local Healthcare District Law.

Essential Functions:

(a) Advises the Board of Directors and District officers in all matters of law pertaining to their
offices, upon request and consistent with District policies.

(b) Advises the District on the following subjects: (1) compliance with the Brown Act and
related open meeting laws; (2) compliance with Public Records Requests (including risk
management program materials) and other records requests referred by District staff, (3)
compliance with conflict of interest laws under California law, such as the Political Reform Act;
(4) compliance with the Local Health Care District law in operations and financial transactions
(to be identified and requested of by General Counsel or Board Chair); (5) compliance with
public works contracting rules, including competitive bidding statutes and prevailing wage laws;
(6) compliance with Government Claims Act presentation requirements as respects claims
against the District, as needed by General Counsel; (7) compliance with the California Voting

Right Act; ( 8) completion of the Local Agencv Formatlon Commlsswn reorgamzatlon process.

() Re

(d) Attends al-regular and special meetings of the Board of Directors, and such meetings of
Board committees, or other meetings as requested by the chairperson of the committee;or the

Ch1ef Executive Ofﬁcer e%Gh*ef—Gempl-x—&nee—Q#ﬁeef.

(f) Prepares or reviews any and all proposed ordinances or resolutions for the District and
amendments thereto.

(g) Prosecutes_or defends claims or actions on behalf of the District as authorized by General
Counsel pursuant to District policy.

(h) Devotes such time to the duties of office as may be specified by any ordinance, resolution or
policy of the District.

166



Comphanee-Ofbeer.
(J) Advises the Board and-senior-management-on proposed and existing legislation affecting the
District.

167



168



169



170



TRICITY HEALTHCARE DISTRICT
BOARD OF DIRECTORS POLICY

BOARD POLICY #1517-042
POLICY TITLE: Duties of the Board of Directors

The purpose of this policy is to define the primary responsibilities of the Board of Directors as
the governing body ultimately responsible for leadership of the organization.

Brief Job Description

The Board establishes the mission, vision, and goals for the organization. The Board is
ultimately accountable for the quality of care rendered to its patients by both its medical and
professional staffs, for its financial soundness and success, and for strategically planning its
future. The Board hires the Chief Executive Officer, and approves the plans and budgets by
which the CEO will accomplish the quality, financial and strategic goals of the Board. However,
the Board has delegated to the CEO responsibility to run the day-to-day operations of all of the
District’s business enterprises; hence, the Board does not direct operations. Rather, the Board is
responsible for ensuring that strategies developed by management will accomplish key goals,
achieve the mission and fulfill the vision, and holding the CEO accountable for implementation
of those strategies.

Primary Duties and Responsibilities

Financial.

1. Set objectives. It is the role of the Board of Directors, in cooperation with the Chief
Executive Office, to specify key financial objectives which are aligned with Board-
determined goals, mission and vision for the organization.

2. Oversee attainment of objectives. Through annual approval of the budget, and the
ongoing activities of the Financial Operations and Planning Committee, the Board
ensures that necessary financial planning activities are undertaken so that the
organization’s resources are effectively allocated across competing uses. The Board
monitors and assesses the financial performance of the organization on an ongoing basis
through review of periodic financial statements and other reports prepared and presented
by the Chief Financial Officer.

3. Ensure transparency and accountability. Through the selection of independent auditors
and acceptance of the annual financial audit report, together with targeted supplemental
auditing activities of billing and collection activities for compliance with legal
requirements, the Board ensures that appropriate accounting controls are in place and
updated, as needed.

17



Community needs assessment and outreach.

The Board helps keep the organization informed about and sensitive to, community needs and
perceptions. Conversely, the Board plays a key role in keeping the community informed
regarding the services, activities, and plans of the organization.

Promote quality medical care.

1. Under its Bylaws and those of the Medical Staff, the Board appoints, reappoints
and determine privileges of physicians who practice in the institution.

2. The Board hears periodic reports on indicators of quality, utilization and
outcomes, as well as quality improvement implementation plans, for each area or
department of the organization. The Board holds management accountable to ensure that
effective risk management systems are in place and functioning effectively. In this
manner, the Board takes responsibility for ensuring the quality of nursing and medical
care rendered in the hospital.

3. The Board provides opportunities for members of the medical staff to participate
in governance through membership on Board-appointed committees. The Board provides
the Chief of the Medical Staff an opportunity to participate in Board meetings, including
providing an agenda item at each regular meeting for reports from the Medical Staff.

Compliance oversight.

The Board ensures compliance with requirements of regulatory and accrediting bodies by:
(a) promoting an ethical, self-governing culture throughout the organization through Board and
employment policies; (b) overseeing the effectiveness of the compliance program; and
(c) providing the resources required to implement effective systems.

Responsibilities Defined Elsewhere:
Bylaws.

The Bylaws of the Tri-City Healthcare District Board of Directors set forth, in Article III, the
legal powers and duties of the board of directors, as provided under the Healthcare District law.
The Board’s oversight of compliance activities is reflected in Article VI, §2 (establishing a
Compliance and Audit Committee) and Article VII, §3, describing its reporting relationship with
the Chief Compliance Officer. Article VIII describes the Board’s relationship with the Medical
Staff. Article IX, §5 requires the Board to maintain a policy regarding annual self-evaluations.

Board Policies.

Some of the responsibilities of the Board, including those specifically identified by the Joint
Commission, are addressed by board policies. The Medical Staff provides input on equipment
and services to be provided at the hospital under Policy #617-001. Minimum liability insurance
requirements required for medical staff membership are described in a policy jointly-adopted by
the Medical Staff. (Policy No. _1815-038.) -The Board oversees the prudent investment of

172



excess funds under Policy No. _1814-017, which is reviewed annually. Self-evaluations are
conducted by the Board annually under Policy +#814-012. Board member orientation and training
are provided for in Policies $816-020 and +617-039. Board responsibilities for decision making
on legal matters, including hiring General-Board Counsel, and-the-Chief- Compliance-Officer-are
is described in Policy #4417-023. Other policies establish a Code of Conduct for the Board
(Policy No. 4817-039) and committee members (Policy No. $815-031), and conflict of interest
rules (by resolution in accordance with the Political Reform Act). These are merely examples
and are not intended to be a comprehensive list of policies describing Board responsibilities.

Reviewed by Gov/Leg Committee: 1/12/2011
Approved by the Board of Directors: 1/27/2011
Reviewed by the Gov/Leg Committee: 4/01/14
Approved by the Board of Directors: 4/24/14
Reviewed by Gov/Leg Committee: 10/6/2015
Approved by the Board of Directors: 10/30/15
Reviewed by the Gov/Leg Committee: 11/7/17
Approved by the Board of Directors:

173



TRI-CITY HEALTHCARE DISTRICT
BOARD OF DIRECTORS POLICY

BOARD POLICY #1517-043

POLICY TITLE: External Organization Usage of Assembly Rooms, Classrooms and

Conference Rooms

I PURPOSE

To set forth limitations, requirements and guidelines for public rental/usage of Tri
City Medical Center and other District facilities, including assembly rooms,
classrooms, and conference rooms by those external and affiliated organizations,
groups and persons which support the public purposes of the District.

II. POLICY

A.

Permitted Uses. Tri City Medical Center assembly rooms, classrooms, and
conference rooms shall be available to those public agencies, nonprofit
organizations, associations and other groups, which further the health care needs
of the public within the boundaries of the Tri-City Healthcare District, and those
directly related to programs and operations which are supported, sponsored by, or
affiliated with the District, including meetings of the Medical Staff, and charitable
organizations primarily engaged in providing financial or other support to the
District.

Although it is a public agency, the use of hospital and other district facilities is
dedicated to the provision of health care to the community. By enacting this
policy, the District does not intend to create a public forum in its facilities, but
only to promote community health and improve health care services delivery
within the District.

Compatible Uses. Public use authorized by this policy shall be solely for
meetings and activities which are compatible with the safe, quiet and secure
conduct of hospital and health care facility operations, and with the District’s
status as a public agency of the State of California. For example, several laws
prohibit the use of public resources, such as office equipment, staff time, etc., for
campaign or personal purposes (e.g., Gov. Code sections 8314, 85300; Penal
Code section 426.) Government Code section 54964 restricts an officer or
employee of a local agency from expending or authorizing the expenditure of any
local agency funds to support or oppose a ballot measure or a candidate. In
addition, the following are prohibited:

1. Tobacco use
2. Alcoholic beverages
3. Political or religious activities

174



>

Amplified sound which can be heard outside of the room being used
5. Commercial uses

6. Personal use by district employees

7. Animals, other than those needed by disabled persons.

Priority of District Use. The medical, governance, operational, business and
emergency needs of the District shall take precedence over other uses of District
property in the scheduling and allocation of space under this policy. Scheduled
public uses under this policy are subject to cancellation at the discretion of the
District. The District will endeavor to provide as much notice as possible..

Liability for Damages/Insurance Coverages. Groups or persons using District
facilities under this policy shall agree to be liable for any personal injury, property
damage or liabilities arising out of the conduct of the activity or conduct of the
participants. The District may charge the amount necessary to repair damages
and/or clean the facility, and may deny the responsible group or person further use
of District facilities. Groups engaged in activities posing significant risks to the
District may be required to provide evidence of liability, property and
professional liability insurance. The Chief Nurse Executive may establish such
requirements on a case- by-case basis. Examples of activities which may require
evidence of insurance include: professional liability insurance for groups offering
free medical screening or other medical services; groups exceeding 100 persons.
For activities involving more than 100 persons, the District may require evidence
of liability and property insurance.

Rules for Use

1. No signage or placards will be allowed on District premises without the
prior written approval of the District. The District provides standard
signage to direct participants to the activity location.

2. Halls, entrances, elevators and stairways will not be obstructed or used for
any purpose other than ingress/egress under any circumstances.

3. No furniture, freight or equipment shall be brought in without prior notice,

and approval by District.

4. No self-provided food services will be permitted without prior notice and
approval by District.

5. Unless otherwise specifically approved, hours of usage will be limited to

the hours of 7 am. through to 8:30 p.m. Monday through Friday,
excluding District holidays. Saturdays may be available at additional cost.

175



IIL.

Cause for Denial. The Chief Nurse Executive (CNE) will review all requests by
external and affiliated organizations for meeting room space under this policy.
Request for space use may be denied for any of the following reasons:

1. The space requested is not available.
2. The applicant is not among those described in paragraph 1.

3. The applicant has not fully complied with this policy.

4. The use proposed will disrupt the provision of medical care or normal
hospital or facility operations, or is otherwise incompatible or prohibited
under this policy.

5. The applicant has not provided the evidence of insurance required.

6. The applicant has previously failed to comply with this policy.

PROCEDURE

A—Apphcatlons for usage of assembly rooms, classrooms, and conference rooms are

b-C.

ED.

EE.

G-F.

H-G.

EH.

processed via the applicable room scheduler/event coordinator. as—deseribed—in
Eahibit Boia eomarbor by telephone.

The room request form must be completed in full and submitted before
applications will be reviewed for compliance with this policy.

_UnusualFhe-room requesstferm will be forwarded to the CNE for review and
appreval/denial or approval.-with-conditions:

The room applicable scheduler/event coordinator will communicate results of
request with the applicant.

A deposit may be required for any food services or other special services,
facilities, setup or equipment to be provided by the District.

The District shall be given 48 hours advance notice of cancellation by a
successful applicant;—, Aer—& cancellation fee will be charged for any costs
incurred by the District prior to the cancelation:

If the District’s needs require cancellation of the planned use by an applicant,
advance notice shall be given promptly and the deposit refunded.

If an application is denied, an applicant may appeal to the Chief Executive
Officer.

The Chief Financial Officer of the District shall establish a schedule of fees and
charges, from time to time, based upon the District’s reasonably estimated costs
for providing services, including but not limited to: Custodial services; room

176



F1

k.

setup; food services; equipment rental. Supplemental charges may also be
incurred to cover any unusual staff time or legal expenses which may be incurred
in reviewing, processing or accommodating a request. The CNE may request
supplemental charges, in addition to the payment of scheduled fees and charges.
A copy of the Fee schedule and the Meeting Room Request Form shall be
provided and appended to this policy as Exhibits A and B.

Other than the hourly room rental fee, groups not charging any fee for
participation and those not requiring any special services shall not be charged a
fee solely for room use.

Applicant shall be invoiced by the District on a monthly basis for room rental fees
incurred.

IV. ATTACHMENT(S)

A.

B.

Exhibit A: Fee Schedule

Exhibit B: Meeting Room Request Form

Reviewed by the Gov/Leg Committee: 4/11
Approved by the Board of Directors: 4/11
Reviewed by the Gov/Leg Committee: 4/14
Approved by the Board of Directors: 4/14
Reviewed by the Gov/Leg Committee: 7/15
Approved by the Board of Directors: 7/15
Reviewed by the Gov/Leg Committee: 10/17

Reviewed by the Gov/Leg Committee: 11/17
Approved by the Board of Directors:

177



EXHIBIT A

FEE SCHEDULE

Organizations/groups will not be charged room rental fees if they are 1) a non profit with
proper proof of such status; and 2) a health-related program intended to further the healthcare
needs of the community; and 3) a service fee of $25 per use to cover basic setup, utilities,
custodial services, etc., is paid in advance. Any organizations/groups that do not meet all three
of these criteria will be charged the below room rental rates in addition to catering, equipment,
and any other fees for additional requests.

ROOM TYPE HOURLY RATE
Classroom 330
French Room 330
Assembly Room $50

These fees are for room rental only and are based on total time utilization for the hours
reserved. Should the event exceed the hours requested, the user will be billed for the additional
time used in hourly increments. Should an event end earlier than reserved, user will not be
entitled to a refund of fees paid. Separate charges will be incurred for custom set-up and break-
down, catering, equipment, etc. TCHD retains the right to adjust the rental charges when
assessing fees for unusual situations or requests.

178



EXHIBIT B

Meeting Room Request Form

Date of Request: Requestor:

Name of Meeting:

Date(s) of Meeting(s):

Start Time: End Time:
Number Attending:

Meeting Organizer/Contact Information:

Cost Center

Seating Style:

Conference____
U-Shaped
Theater____
Classroom____
Chevron____

Other (attach schematic)

AV Equipment Needed:

Additional Comments:

Complete form and forward via email to the appropriate Administrator.

Karren Hertz — Board and Auxiliary room requests

Pamela Alm — Non-Nursing and Foundation room requests
Janet Drury — Nursing and Community room requests
Sarah Plant — Medical Staff room requests

179



TRI-CITY HEALTHCARE DISTRICT

BYLAWS

Approved September 28,2017

DOCS 116569-000004/1753354.9

180



PREAMBLE

The name of this District shall be TRI-CITY HEALTHCARE DISTRICT, organized December 10,
1957, owning and operating TRI-CITY MEDICAL CENTER, under the terms of The Local Health
Care District Law of the State of California (H&S Code § 32000 et seq.)

The objectives of this District shall be to promote the public health and general welfare of the
communities it serves.

This District shall be empowered to receive and administer funds for the attainment of these
objectives, in accordance with the purposes and powers set forth in The Local Health Care District
Law of the State of California (H&S Code § 32000 et seq.) and other applicable law.

Revised November 2017September 2017

DOCS 9.28.17.v.1

181



ARTICLE 1

Purposes and Scope

Section 1. Scope of Bylaws.

These Bylaws shall be known as the “District Bylaws” and shall govern the TRI-CITY
HEALTHCARE DISTRICT, its Board of Directors, and all of its affiliated and subordinate
organizations and groups.

The Board of Directors may delegate certain powers to the Medical Staff and to other affiliated and
subordinate organizations and groups, such powers to be exercised in accordance with the
respective Bylaws of such groups. All powers and functions not expressly delegated to such
affiliated or subordinate organizations or groups in the Bylaws of such other organizations or
groups are to be considered residual powers vested in the Board of Directors of this District.

The Bylaws of the Medical Staff and other affiliated and subordinate organizations and groups, and
any amendments to such Bylaws, shall not be effective until they are approved by the Board of
Directors of the TRI-CITY HEALTHCARE DISTRICT. In the event of any conflict between the
Bylaws of the Medical Staff and any other affiliated or subordinate organization or group, and the
provisions of these District Bylaws, these District Bylaws shall prevail. Purposes.

The purposes of the TRI-CITY HEALTHCARE DISTRICT shall include, but not necessarily be
limited to, the following:

a. Within the limits of community resources, to provide the best facilities and services
possible for the acute and continued care of the injured and all, regardless of
disability, gender, gender identity, gender expression, nationality, race or ethnicity,
religion, sexual orientation, or any other characteristic that is contained in the
definition of hate crimes set forth in Section 422.55 of the Penal Code or set forth in
Education Code section 220

b. To assure the highest level of patient care in the hospital of the District.

c. To coordinate the services of the District with community agencies and other
hospitals providing health care services.

d. To conduct educational and research activities essential to the attainment of its
purposes.
e. To do any and all other acts necessary to carry out the provisions of the Local Health

Care District Law, accrediting agencies and other applicable law, and District
Bylaws and policies.

Profit or Gain.

There shall be no contemplation of profit or pecuniary gain, and no distribution of profits, to any
individual, under any guise whatsoever, nor shall there by any distribution of assets or surpluses to
any individual on the dissolution of this District.

Revised November 2017September 2017

DOCS 9.28.17.v.1

182



Disposition of Surplus.

Should the operation of the District result in a surplus of revenue over expenses during any
particular period, such surplus may be used and dealt with by the Directors for charitable hospital
purposes. This may include the establishment of free or part-free hospital beds, or for
improvements in the hospital’s facilities for the care of the sick, injured, or disabled, or for other
purposes not inconsistent with the Local Health Care District Law, other applicable law, and
District Bylaws and policies.

Revised November 2017September 2017

DOCS 9.28.17.v.1

183



ARTICLE II
OFFICES

Section 1. Offices.

The principal office for the transaction for the business of the TRI-CITY HEALTHCARE
DISTRICT is hereby fixed at TRI-CITY MEDICAL CENTER, 4002 Vista Way, Oceanside,
California. Branch offices may at any time be established by the Board of Directors at any place
within or without the boundaries of TRI-CITY HEALTHCARE DISTRICT, for the benefit of TRI-
CITY HEALTHCARE DISTRICT and the people served by TRI-CITY HEALTHCARE
DISTRICT.

Section 2. Mailing Address.

The mailing address of TRI-CITY HEALTHCARE DISTRICT shall be as follows:

TRI-CITY HEALTHCARE DISTRICT
c/o Tri-City Medical Center

4002 Vista Way

Oceanside, CA 92056

Revised November 2017September 2047

DOCS 9.28.17.v.1

184



ARTICLE III
DIRECTORS

Section 1. Number, Qualifications, Election or Appointment.

The Board of Directors shall consist of seven (7) members, who are elected (or appointed) in
accordance with the Local Health Care District Law of the State of California, and other applicable
law, each of whom shall be a registered voter, residing in the District. The members of the Board of
Directors shall be elective officers of the local health care district. (H&S Code §§ 32100 and
32100.5.)

Section 2. Term.

The term of each member of the Board of Directors elected shall be four (4) years, or until his or her
successor is elected and has qualified. The person receiving the highest number of votes for each
office to be filled at the health care district general election shall be elected thereto. A member of
the Board of Directors elected (or appointed pursuant to the provisions of the Uniform District
Election Law, Elections Code §§ 10500-10556) shall take office at noon on the first Friday in
December next following the District general election. (H&S Code §§ 32002, 32100 and 32100.5;
Elections Code § 10554.)

Section 3. Powers and Duties.

The Board of Directors shall have and exercise all the powers of a Health Care District set forth in
the Local Health Care District Law (H&S Code § 32000 et seq.), other applicable law, and District
Bylaws and policies, as well as the powers listed herein:

a. To control and be responsible for the management of all operations and affairs of the
District.

b. To make and enforce all rules and regulations necessary for the administration,
government, protection, and maintenance of hospitals and other facilities under
District jurisdiction.

c. To appoint the President/Chief Executive Officer and to define the powers and duties

of such appointee.

d. To delegate certain powers to the Medical Staff and other affiliated or subordinate
organizations in accordance with their respective bylaws. The Medical Staff shall
notify the Board of Directors upon election of the Chief of the Medical Staff and of
all Chairpersons of the various medical departments and services, whose powers and
duties shall be defined by the Medical Staff Bylaws as approved by the Board of
Directors.

e. To approve or disapprove all constitutions, bylaws, rules and regulations, including
amendments thereto; of all affiliated or subordinate organizations.

Revised November 2017September 2017

DOCS 9.28.17.v.1

185



To appoint, approve and remove members of the Medical Staff. The Medical Staff
shall make recommendations in this regard.

To establish policies for the operation of this District, its Board of Directors and its
facilities.

To designate by resolution persons who shall have authority to sign checks drawn on
the funds of the District.

To do any and all other acts necessary to carry out the provisions of these Bylaws or
the provisions of the Local Health Care District Law and other applicable law.

To negotiate and enter into agreements with independent contractors, including
physicians, paramedical personnel, other agencies and other facilities within the
District’s jurisdiction. (H&S Code §§ 32121 and 32128.)

Along with the powers of the Board of Directors, it shall be the duty of the Board of Directors to
establish rules of the hospitals and other facilities within District jurisdiction, which shall include

the following:

aa.

bb.

CC.

dd.

€c.

DOCS 9.28.17.v.1

Provision for the organization of physicians and surgeons, podiatrists, and dentists,
licensed to practice in the State of California who are permitted to practice in the
hospitals and other facilities within District jurisdiction into a formal Medical Staff,
with appropriate officers and bylaws and with staff appointments on an annual or
biennial basis.

Provision for a procedure for appointment and reappointment of Medical Staff as
provided by the standards of The Joint Commission.

Provision that the Medical Staff shall be self governing with respect to the
professional work performed in hospitals and other facilities within District
jurisdiction; that the Medical Staff shall meet in accordance with the minimum
requirements of The Joint Commission; and that the medical records of the patients
shall be the basis for such review and analysis.

Provision that accurate and complete medical records be prepared and maintained for
all patients.

Limitations with respect to the practice of medicine and surgery in the hospitals and
other facilities within District jurisdiction as the Board of Directors may find to be in
the best interests of the public health and welfare, including appropriate provision for
proof of ability to respond in damages by applicants for staff membership, as long as
no duly licensed physician and surgeon is excluded from staff membership solely
because he or she is licensed by the Osteopathic Medical Board of California.

Revised November 2017September2017

186



Members of the Board of Directors shall also have the following duties:

aaa. Duty of Care. Directors shall exercise proper diligence in their decision-making
process by acting in good faith in a manner that they reasonably believe is in the best
interest of the District, and with the level of care that an ordinarily prudent person
would exercise in like circumstances.

bbb. Duty of Loyalty. Directors shall discharge their duties unselfishly, in a manner
designed to benefit only the District and not the Directors personally or politically,
and shall disclose to the full Board of Directors situations that they believe may
present a potential for conflict with the purposes of the District.

ccc.  Duty of Obedience. Directors shall be faithful to the underlying purposes of the
District described in Article I, section 2, herein.

If it is found, by a majority vote of all of the Board of Directors in office at that time, that a Director
has violated any of his or her duties to the detriment of the District, such Director is subject to
removal from office according to the procedures set forth in section 9, subdivision a, of Article IV.

The rules of the hospitals and other facilities within District jurisdiction shall, insofar as is
consistent with the Local Health Care District Law and other applicable law, be in accord with and
contain minimum standards not less than the rules and standards of private or voluntary hospitals.
Unless specifically prohibited by law, the Board of Directors may adopt other rules which could be
lawfully adopted by private or voluntary hospitals. (H&S Code §§ 32121 and 32128.)

Section 4. Compensation.

a. The Board of Directors shall serve without compensation, except that the Board of
Directors, by a Resolution adopted by a majority vote of the members of the Board
of Directors, may authorize the payment of not to exceed One Hundred and No/100
Dollars ($100.00) per meeting not to exceed five meetings a month as compensation
to each member of the Board of Directors. (H&S Code § 32103.)

b. For purposes of this provision, “meeting” shall mean the following, to the extent
permitted by applicable law: (1) any congregation of a majority of the members of
the Board of Directors or of a committee or other body established by the Board of
Directors, at the same time and place to hear, discuss, or deliberate upon any item
that is within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Board of Directors or of the
committee, if the congregation is subject to the open meeting requirements of
Government Code Section 54953 and other applicable law; (2) and any other
occurrences described in Government Code section 53232.1, if authorized pursuant
to a written Board of Directors Policy; provided that payment of compensation shall
be further subject to a member’s compliance with such policies as the Board of
Directors may establish. A Director is eligible for compensation under this provision
for attendance at a regular or special meeting of a committee or subcommittee only if
the Director is a duly-appointed member of that committee or subcommittee as of the
date of attendance, or as may be authorized by Board of Directors Policy as an
“occurrence” and permitted by law..

Revised November 2017September 2017

DOCS 9.28.17.v.1

187



C. Each member of the Board of Directors shall be allowed his or her actual necessary
traveling and incidental expenses incurred in the performance of official business of
the District as approved by the Board of Directors in accordance with applicable law,
including but not limited to the provisions set forth in AB 1234, as they may be
revised from time to time. (H&S Code §32103.)

Section 5. Vacancies.

Any vacancy upon the Board of Directors shall be filled by the methods prescribed in Section 1780
of the Government Code, State of California laws and other applicable law. (H&S Code §32100.)

Section 6. Resignations.

Any member of the Board of Directors may resign at any time by giving written notice to the Board
of Directors, or to the Chairperson, or to the Secretary or to the Clerk of the Board of Directors.
Any such resignation shall take effect as of the date of the receipt of the notice or any later time
specified therein and unless specified therein, the acceptance of such resignation shall not be
necessary to make the resignation effective.

Section 7. Absences From Meetings.

The term of any member of the Board of Directors shall expire if he or she is absent from three
consecutive regular meetings, or from three of any five consecutive regular meetings of the Board
of Directors, and the Board of Directors by resolution declares that a vacancy exists on the Board of
Directors.

MEETINGS OF DIRECTORS

Section 8. Regular Meetings.

Regular meetings of the Board of Directors of the District shall be scheduled for the last Thursday
of each calendar month at a time determined by the Board of Directors at least annually, in
Assembly Room 3 of the Eugene L. Geil Pavilion, Tri-City Medical Center, 4002 Vista Way,
Oceanside, California. The Board of Directors may, from time to time, change the time, the day of
the month of such regular meetings and the location (provided the location is within the boundaries
of the District) as dictated by holiday schedules or changing circumstances. (H&S Code § 32104;
Gov. Code § 54954.)

Section 9. Special Meetings.

A special meeting of the Board of Directors may be called at any time by the presiding officer of the
Board of Directors or by four (4) members of the Board of Directors, by providing written notice as
specified herein to each member of the Board of Directors and to each local newspaper of general
circulation, radio or television station requesting notice in writing.

The notice shall be delivered by any means to effectuate actual notice, including but not limited to,
personally or by mail and shall be received at least twenty-four (24) hours before the time of the
meeting as specified in the notice.

Revised November 2017September 2017

DOCS 9.28.17.v.1

188



The call and notice shall specify the time and place of the special meeting and the business to be
transacted or discussed. No other business shall be considered at these meetings by the Board of
Directors.

The written notice may be dispensed with as to any Board of Directors member who at or prior to
the time the meeting convenes files with the Clerk or Secretary of the Board of Directors a written
waiver of notice. The waiver may be given by telegram. The written notice may also be dispensed
with as to any Board of Directors member who is actually present at the meeting at the time it
convenes.

The call and notice shall be posted at least twenty-four (24) hours prior to the special meeting in a
location that is freely accessible to members of the public. (Gov. Code § 54956.)

Section 10.  Quorum.

A majority of the members of the Board of Directors shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of
business. (H&S Code § 32106.) A quorum of the Board of Directors is the number of members
that must be present in order to transact business. Members of the Board of Directors who are
disqualified by law from participating in a given matter may not be counted toward a quorum for
that matter. Members who are entitled to vote, but who voluntarily abstain from voting on a given
matter, shall be counted toward a quorum for that matter.

Section 11.  Number of Votes Required for Board of Directors Action.

In order for the Board of Directors to take action, a majority of the Directors entitled to vote on the
matter and who have not abstained must vote in favor of the motion, proposal or resolution.

Section 12.  Adjournment.

The Board of Directors may adjourn any regular, adjourned regular, special or adjourned special
meeting to a time and place specified in the order of adjournment. Less than a quorum may so
adjourn from time to time. If all members are absent from any regular or adjourned regular
meeting, the Secretary or Assistant Secretary of the Board of Directors may declare the meeting
adjourned to a stated time and place and he or she shall cause a written notice of the adjournment to
be given in the same manner as provided for special meetings, unless such notice is waived as
provided for in special meetings.

A copy of the order or notice of adjournment shall be conspicuously posted on or near the door of
the place where the regular, adjourned regular, special or adjourned special meeting was held within
twenty-four (24) hours after the time of adjournment.

When a regular or adjourned regular meeting is adjourned as herein provided, the resulting
adjourned regular meeting is a regular meeting for all purposes. When an order of adjournment of
any meeting fails to state the hour at which the adjourned meeting is to be held, it shall be held at
the hour specified for regular meetings by these Bylaws. (Gov. Code § 54955.)

Revised November 2017September 2047
10

DOCS 9.28.17.v.1

189



Section 13.  Public Meetings.

All meetings of the Board of Directors shall be open and public, and all persons shall be permitted
to attend any meeting of the Board of Directors, except as otherwise provided in the Ralph M.
Brown Act, the Local Health Care District Law and other applicable law. (Gov. Code § 54953(a);
H&S §§ 32106 and 32155.)

Section 14.  Setting the Agenda.

At least seventy-two (72) hours before a regular meeting, the Board of Directors of Tri-City
Healthcare District or its designee shall post an agenda containing a brief general description of
each item of business to be transacted or discussed at the meeting, including items to be discussed
in closed session. A brief general description of an item generally need not exceed 20 words. The
agenda shall specify the time and location of the regular meeting and shall be posted in a location
that is freely accessible to members of the public. If requested, the agenda, shall be made available
in appropriate alternative formats to persons with a disability, as required by Section 202 of the
Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sec. 12132). In addition, the agenda shall
include information regarding how, to whom, and when a request for disability related modification
or accommodation, including auxiliary aids or services may be made by a person with a disability
who requires a modification or accommodation in order to participate in the public meetings. The
agenda is developed by the Board of Directors’ Chairperson, President/Chief Executive Officer and
General-Fegal-Board Counsel. Any other Board of Directors member has the right to place an item
on the agenda through the Chairperson. In the absence of the Chairperson, the Vice Chairperson
has the authority to place an item on the agenda, and in the absence of both the Chairperson and
Vice Chairperson, the Secretary has the right to place an item on the agenda. In the absence of the
Chairperson, Vice Chairperson, and Secretary, the President/Chief Executive Office or General
Eegal-Board Counsel shall place an item on the agenda, as requested by any Board of Directors
member. All requests by Board of Directors members regarding placement of an item on the
agenda shall be in writing.

No action or discussion shall be undertaken on any item not appearing on the posted agenda, except
that members of the Board of Directors or its staff may briefly respond to statements made or
questions posed by persons exercising their public testimony rights under Government Code
Section 54954.3 of the Brown Act. In addition, on their own initiative or in response to questions
posed by the public, a member of the Board of Directors or its staff may ask a question for
clarification, make a brief announcement, or make a brief report on his or her own activities.
Furthermore, a member of the Board of Directors or the Board of Directors itself, subject to rules or
procedures of the Board of Directors, may provide a reference to staff or other resources for factual
information, request staff to report back to the body at a subsequent meeting concerning any matter,
or take action to direct staff to place a matter of business on a future agenda.

The Board of Directors may take action on items of business not appearing on the posted agenda
under any of the conditions stated in subsection (b) of Government Code Section 54954.2 or other
applicable law. Prior to discussing any item pursuant to subdivision (b) of Government Code
Section 54954.2, the Board of Directors shall publicly identify the item.

There must be a determination by a majority vote of the members of the Board of Directors that an
emergency situation exists, as defined in Government Code Section 54956.5, as it may be revised

Revised November 2017September 2617
11

DOCS 9.28.17.v.1

190



from time to time, or upon a determination by a two-thirds vote of the members of the Board of
Directors present at the Board of Directors meeting, or, if less than two-thirds of the members are
present, a unanimous vote of those members present, that there is a need to take immediate action,
and that the need for action came to the attention of the Board of Directors subsequent to the agenda
being posted.

Section 15.  Rules of Order.

The rules contained in Robert’s Rules of Order on Parliamentary Procedure shall govern the
meetings of the Board of Directors of TRI-CITY HEALTHCARE DISTRICT in all cases to which
they are applicable and in which they are not inconsistent with the law of the State of California, the
United States, or these Bylaws and/or policies and procedures as adopted by this governing body.

Section 16.  Conflicts of Interest.

The Board of Directors of TRI-CITY HEATHCARE DISTRICT shall comply with all applicable
laws regarding conflicts of interest, including but not limited to the California Political Reform Act,
the provisions of the California Government Code regarding Prohibited Interests in Contracts, the
California Doctrine of Incompatible Offices, as these laws may be amended from time to time.

Revised November 2017September 2017
12

DOCS 9.28.17.v.1

191



ARTICLE IV
OFFICERS

Section 1. Officers.

The officers of the Board of Directors shall be a Chairperson, a Vice Chairperson, a Secretary, a
Treasurer, an Assistant Secretary, and an Assistant Treasurer. No person shall hold more than one
office. Whenever a Board of Directors officer is authorized to execute a written instrument in his or
her official capacity, other than for reimbursement of expenses, the Chairperson and Secretary shall
do so.

The Board of Directors has the power to prescribe the duties and powers of the District
President/Chief Executive Officer, the secretary, and other officers and employees of any health
care facilities of the District, to establish offices as may be appropriate and to appoint Board of
Directors members or employees to those offices, and to determine the number of and appoint all
officers and employees and to fix their compensation. The officers and employees shall hold their
offices or positions at the pleasure of the Board of Directors. (H&S Code §§ 32100.001 and

32121(h).)

Section 2. Election of Officers.

The officers of the Board of Directors shall be chosen every calendar year by the Board of Directors
at the regular December meeting. Board of Directors members who are unable to be present at the
regular December meeting may attend via teleconference and vote on the election of officers
provided their teleconference location meets the applicable legal requirements for participation.
They shall assume office at the close of that meeting, and each officer shall hold office for one year,
or until his or her successor shall be elected and qualified, or until he or she is otherwise
disqualified to serve.

Section 3. Chairperson.

The Board of Directors shall elect one of their members to act as Chairperson. If at any time the
Chairperson shall be unable to act, the Vice Chairperson shall take his or her place and perform his
or her duties. If the Vice Chairperson shall also be unable to act, the Board of Directors may
appoint some other member of the Board of Directors to do so and such person shall be vested
temporarily with all the functions and duties of the office of the Chairperson.

The Chairperson, or member of the Board of Directors acting as such as above provided:
a. Shall preside over all the meetings of the Board of Directors.

b. Board of Directors Chairperson, or his or her designee, shall attend Medical
Executive Committee, Joint Conference Committee meetings and other similar
meetings of non-District organizations related to operations of the hospital (including
those of Medical Staff committees and the hospital foundation) on behalf of the
Board of Directors. Designees shall be Board of Directors members and shall at all
times exclusively represent the interests of the Board of Directors. Designees may
be removed at any time at the sole discretion of the Board of Directors Chairperson.

Revised November 2017September 2047
13

DOCS 9.28.17.v.1

192



c. Shall sign as Chairperson, on behalf of the District, all instruments in writing which
he or she has been specifically authorized by the Board of Directors to sign, provided
that such instruments shall also be signed by the Secretary of the Board of Directors
(other than for reimbursement requests).

d. Shall have, subject to the advice and control of the Board of Directors, general
responsibility for management of the affairs of the District during his or her term in
office. (H&S Code § 32100.001.)

Section 4. Vice Chairperson.

The Board of Directors shall elect one of their members to act as Vice Chairperson. The Vice
Chairperson shall, in the event of death, absence, or other inability of the Chairperson, exercise all
the powers and perform all the duties herein given to the Chairperson.

Section 5. Secretary.

The Board of Directors shall elect one of their members to act as Secretary. The Secretary of the
Board of Directors shall perform ministerial duties (i.e. sign legal documents on behalf of the Board
of Directors of TRI-CITY HEALTHCARE DISTRICT. (H&S Code § 32100.001.)

Section 6. Treasurer.

The Board of Directors shall elect one of their members to act as Treasurer. The Treasurer shall be
required to fulfill the duties under Health and Safety Code Section 32127; provided, however, that
these duties are hereby delegated to the District’s Chief Financial Officer to the extent permitted by
law. (H&S Code § 32127; Gov. Code § 53600 et seq.)

Section 7. Assistant Secretary.

The Board of Directors shall elect one of their members to act as Assistant Secretary. The Assistant
Secretary shall in the event of death, absence or other inability of the Secretary, exercise all the
powers and perform all the duties herein given to the Secretary.

Section 8. Assistant Treasurer.

The Board of Directors shall elect one of their members to act as Assistant Treasurer. The Assistant
Treasurer shall in the event of death, absence or other inability of the Treasurer, exercise all the
powers and perform all the duties herein given to the Treasurer.

Section 9. Removal, Resignation or Vacancy.

a. Any officer appointed or elected by the Board of Directors may be removed from
that office for failure to discharge the duties of that office, for violation of any of the
policies of the Board of Directors, or for any other good cause, as determined by a
majority vote of all the Board of Directors in office at that time, at any regular or
special meeting of the Board of Directors.

b. Any officer may resign from said office at any time by giving written notice to the
Chair of the Board of Directors, the Board of Directors Secretary or to the Clerk of
Revised November 2017September 2047
14
DOCS 9.28.17.v.1

193



Section 10.

the Board of Directors. Any such resignation shall take effect as of the date of the
receipt of the notice or any later time specified therein, and, unless specified therein,
the acceptance of such resignation shall not be necessary to make the resignation
effective.

In the event of a vacancy in the office of the Chairperson, the Vice-Chairperson shall
succeed to that office for the balance of the unexpired term of the Chairperson. In
the event of a vacancy in the office of the Secretary or Treasurer, the Assistant
Secretary or Treasurer, as applicable, shall succeed to that office for the balance of
the unexpired term of that officer. The Board of Directors may, but is not required to
elect an officer to fill the vacancy in a subordinate office.

Determination of and Sanctions for Willful or Corrupt Misconduct in Office

The following procedure may be used, in addition to any other procedures authorized by law or
policy, to determine whether a Board of Directors member has engaged in willful or corrupt
misconduct in office within the meaning of Government Code section 3060.

a.

DOCS 9.28.17.v.1

Any member of the Board of Directors may present an accusation in writing to the
Board of Directors against another member of the Board of Directors alleging willful
or corrupt misconduct in office, together with any written materials to support the
accusation. “Misconduct in office” shall be broadly construed and include any willful
malfeasance, misfeasance, and/or nonfeasance in office, and shall be interpreted in a
manner consistent with Government Code section 3060.

After consideration of the accusation, the Board of Directors members present shall
then vote on the question of authorizing a formal hearing on the accusation presented.
A formal contempt hearing is authorized by the Board of Directors upon the
concurrence of a majority of the members present, excluding the accused who shall
not have a vote.

Within 7 days of the authorization for a formal contempt hearing, the Board of
Directors shall serve upon the accused a copy of the accusation, a statement
identifying the reasons for the hearing, and a notice of the date of the hearing. The
date of the hearing shall not be less than 10 days from the service of the accusation.
Service shall be in person, or if that fails, by leaving a copy of the accusation taped to
the entry door of the accused’s last known address in plain view.

The accused shall appear before the Board of Directors at the time and date stated in
the accusation. However, if the date chosen by the Board of Directors is unacceptable
to the accused for good cause as determined by the Board of Directors, another date
shall be assigned, but shall not be more than 30 days beyond the original date set by
the Board of Directors.

The accused may be represented by counsel in preparing for and/or to be present at
the hearing. The cost of such counsel shall be borne by the accused. If the accused
chooses to have an attorney represent him at the hearing, he must notify the
Secretary of the Board of Directors in writing of that fact at least 5 days before the
hearing. The Board of Directors may have a lawyer who is not the regular Board of

Revised November 2017September2647
15

194



DOCS 9.28.17.v.1

Directors lawyer, present at the hearing who will conduct the presentation of the
Board of Directors’ case and question witnesses. Formal rules of evidence shall not
apply; however, witnesses and statements shall be made under oath and documentary
evidence shall be authenticated. The Board of Directors may establish reasonable
time limits on the duration of the hearing. Board of Directors counsel shall not
participate in any way in the preparation of the accusation or presentation of
evidence, but shall advise the Board of Directors on procedural matters.

Five days before the scheduled hearing, each party shall submit to the Secretary of
the Board of Directors a witness list and outline of anticipated evidence, either oral
or written, which they intend to introduce at the hearing. Upon demand by either
party, this information shall be given to the opposing party by the Board of Directors
Secretary on this date. A willful failure to supply this information on a timely basis
may cause it to be excluded at the hearing.

At the hearing, the accused may introduce any oral testimony he or she feels will be
helpful to the defense. The member of the Board of Directors who presented the
accusation may introduce rebuttal evidence. The of Directors shall give weight to
all evidence presented. The Board of Directors shall have the power to limit or
exclude evidence which is repetitive, not relevant, or has little probative value. The
proceeding shall be recorded.

The Board of Directors shall have the burden of establishing the willful or corrupt
misconduct by the accused and the burden of proof shall be by a preponderance of
the evidence. The Board of Directors may introduce any evidence, oral or written
testimony, the Board of Directors feels will be helpful to its case.

If the accused fails to appear before the Board of Directors on the specified hearing
date, the hearing may be held, based upon the evidence previously provided to the
accused and other relevant evidence.

At the conclusion of presentation of evidence, the Board of Directors shall vote
whether to hold the accused in contempt. The accused shall not be present during
deliberation. A determination of misconduct shall be upon the concurrence of a
majority of the Board of Directors members present, excluding the accused who shall
not have a vote and cannot take part in deliberations.

Upon the determination by the Board of Directors of misconduct by the accused, the
Board of Directors shall ask if the accused wishes to make a statement to the Board
of Directors. Thereafter, the Board of Directors shall excuse the accused from the
hearing and move to the determination of sanctions, which may include:

1. A statement of censure, identifying the misconduct;

2. Removal of the offending Board of Directors member from membership on
one or more Board of Directors committees, or, if chair of any committee,
removal from that position, for a specified period, or if no period is specified,
until the annual election of Board of Directors officers;

Revised November 2017September 2017
16

195



DOCS 9.28.17.v.1

Removal of the offending Board of Directors member from holding any
Board of Directors office or other appointment currently held;

A determination that no compensation shall be earned by the offending Board
of Directors member for attendance at the meeting at which the contempt
occurred, or for a specified period,

A determination that the offending Board of Directors member shall not be
provided any defense or indemnity in any civil actions or proceedings arising
out of or related to the member’s misconduct;

Rendering the offending Board of Directors member ineligible to receive any
advances or reimbursement of expenses to attend future conferences or
meetings (except those previously-approved for which expenses have been
incurred prior to the time of the finding of misconduct, for a period of time or
subject to conditions specified in the motion;

Referral of the matter to the County Grand Jury pursuant to Government
Code section 3060, including the evidence adduced during the hearing,

Revised November 2017September201+7
17

196



ARTICLE V

ARTICLE V
COMMITTEES

Section 1. Committees

The Chairperson, with the concurrence of the Board of Directors, may, from time to time, appoint
one or more members of the Board of Directors and other persons as necessary or appropriate, to
constitute committees for the investigation, study or review of specific matters. At the time of
appointing and establishing the committee(s), the Chairperson, with the concurrence of the Board of
Directors, shall establish the responsibilities of the committee(s).

The Chairperson, with the approval of the majority of the Board of Directors, may, from time to
time, with or without cause, remove one or more members of the Board of Directors and any other
persons from membership in any standing or other committee, or may temporarily discontinue,
change the functions of, or combine standing or other committees.

Any committee(s) established to deliberate issues affecting the discharge of Medical Staff
responsibilities shall include Medical Staff members.

No committee shall use written ballots, whether or not secret, for any purpose in its deliberations.
No committee appointed shall have any power or authority to commit the Board of Directors or the
District in any manner, unless the Board of Directors, by a motion duly adopted at a meeting of the
Board of Directors, has specifically authorized the committee to act for and on behalf of the
District.

Any advisory committee, whether permanent or temporary, which is a legislative body as defined in
the Brown Act and other applicable law, shall post agendas and have meetings open to the public as
provided by law.

Notices of meetings of committees which are legislative bodies shall be made in accordance with
Article IV, Section 7 of these Bylaws.

Section 2. Standing Committees

Standing committees as defined by the Brown Act are open to the public and require posting of
Notice of Meetings and Agendas. The following committees are the only current standing
committees of the Board of Directors:

A. Finance, Operations & Planning Committee
B. Community Healthcare Alliance Committee
C. Governance & Legislative Committee

D. Human Resources Committee

E. Professional Affairs Committee

Revised November 2017September2017
18

DOCS 9.28.17.v.1

197



F. Audit, Compliance & Ethics Committee

The Board of Directors shall review annually the committees, their functions, and their
membership.

Revised November 2017September 2017
19

DOCS 9.28.17.v.1

198



ARTICLE VI
MANAGEMENT OFFICIALS

Section 1. President/Chief Executive Officer.

The Board of Directors shall select and employ a hospital administrator to be known as
“President/Chief Executive Officer” who, subject to such policies as may be adopted and such
orders as may be issued by the Board of Directors, or by any of its committees to which it has
delegated power for such action, shall have the responsibility, as well as the authority, to function as
the President/Chief Executive Officer of the institution, translating the Board of Directors’ policies
into actual operation. Additionally, the President/Chief Executive Officer has the authority to make
recommendations to the Board of Directors on policies related to the effective ongoing operations
of the District. The Chief Operating Officer/Chief Nurse Executive and/or the Chief Financial
Officer are granted signing authority on behalf of the Chief Executive Officer, in order to maintain
day-to-day operation of the District.

Section 2. Clerk of the Board of Directors.

The Clerk of the Board of Directors shall be the Executive Assistant under the immediate
supervision of the President/Chief Executive Officer. The President/Chief Executive Officer may
assign other staff members as may be necessary to complete the work of the Board of Directors.
The Executive Assistant shall serve as Clerk of the Board of Directors for the purposes of Elections
Code section 307.

Section 3. Chief Compliance Officer .

The Chief Compliance Officer shall advise the Board of Directors and Chief Executive Officer
regarding the design and implementation of the organization’s ethics and compliance programs.
The Chief Compliance Officer shall report directly to the Chief Executive Officer and shall be
responsible to the Board of Directors to timely and periodically report to it regarding the status of
the compliance programs and material legal and compliance risks and mitigation efforts.

Section 4. President/Chief Executive Officer’s Evaluation.

The Board of Directors shall evaluate the President/Chief Executive Officer’s performance
annually. Such evaluation shall be reduced to writing, with a copy furnished to the President/Chief
Executive Officer. The President/Chief Executive Officer shall have an opportunity to reply in
writing to the Board of Directors in reference to such evaluation. All written communications
concerning any evaluations shall be retained in the confidential files of the Board of Directors.
(Gov. Code § 54957.)

Revised November 2017September2617
20

DOCS 9.28.17.v.1

199



ARTICLE VII
MEDICAL STAFF

Section 1. Medical Staff.

The physicians, surgeons, podiatrists, dentists, and allied health professionals, licensed to practice in
the State of California, who are permitted to practice in the hospitals and other facilities under the
jurisdiction of TRI-CITY HEALTHCARE DISTRICT, shall be formed into a formal Medical Staff,
in accordance with the Medical Staff Bylaws, Rules and Regulations, which have been approved by
the Board of Directors of TRI-CITY HEALTHCARE DISTRICT. The Medical Staff Bylaws shall
include, but not be limited to, the following provisions:

a. Appropriate officers.
b. Staff appointments on an annual or biennial basis.
c. Procedure for appointment and reappointment of Medical Staff as provided by the

Standards of The Joint Commission.

d. That the Medical Staff shall meet in accordance with the minimum requirements of
The Joint Commission.

The Medical Staff shall be self-governing with respect to the professional work performed in the
hospital and the medical records of the patients shall be the basis for such review and analysis of the
professional work of the Medical Staff. The Medical Staff members shall be responsible for
preparing and maintaining accurate and complete medical records for all patients (medical records
to include, but not be limited to, identification data, personal and family history, history of present
illness, physician examination, special examinations, professional or working diagnosis, treatment,
gross and microscopic pathological findings, progress notes, final diagnosis, condition on discharge
and such other matters as the Medical Staff shall determine or as may be required by applicable
law). The practice of medicine and surgery in the hospitals and other facilities under the
jurisdiction of the District shall be within the limitations as the Board of Directors may find to be in
the best interests of the public health and welfare, including appropriate provision for proof of
ability to respond in damages by applicants for staff membership as long as no duly licensed
physician and surgeon is excluded from staff membership solely because he or she is licensed by
the Osteopathic Medical Board of California. The Medical Staff shall be responsible for the
development, adoption and annual review of the Medical Staff Bylaws and Rules and Regulations
that are consistent with District policy and with any applicable law. The Medical Staff are subject
to, and effective upon, appointment and reappointment by the Board of Directors in accordance
with the standards of The Joint Commission (H&S Code § 32128.)

The Tri-City Healthcare District shall maintain a Quality Assurance/Performance Improvement
(“QA/PI”) Program developed by a committee composed of at least five (5) physicians who are
members of the Medical Staff and one (1) clerical staff member. The QA/PI Program shall be
implemented by the QA/PI Committee, and shall be a data-driven, quality assessment and
performance improvement program, implemented and maintained on a hospital-wide basis, in
compliance with the requirements of Section 482.21 of Title 42 of the Code of Federal Regulations,
and other applicable law, as it may be amended from time to time.

Revised November 2017September2017
21

DOCS 9.28.17.v.1

200



Section 2. Medical Staff Membership.

Membership on the Medical Staff is a privilege, not a right, which shall be extended only to
physicians, surgeons, podiatrists, dentists, and allied health professionals, licensed to practice in this
State whose education, training, experience, demonstrated competence, references and professional
ethics, assures, in the judgment of the Board of Directors, that any patient admitted to or treated in
the hospitals and other facilities under District jurisdiction will be given high quality professional
care. Each applicant and member shall agree to abide by the District Bylaws, Medical Staff Bylaws
and Rules and Regulations of the District, and applicable law. The word “Physician” when used
hereafter in this Article, shall be deemed to include physicians, surgeons, dentists, and podiatrists.
(H&S Code § 32128.)

Section 3. Exclusion from the Medical Staff,

a. The Board of Directors shall have the power to exclude from Medical Staff
membership, to deny reappointment to the Medical Staff, or to restrict the privileges
of any physician, whether a general practitioner or specialist, in any hospital
operated by the District, who has not exhibited that standard of education, training,
experience, and demonstrated competence, references and professional ethics which
will assure, in the judgment of the Board of Directors, that any patient admitted to or
treated in the hospitals and other facilities under District jurisdiction will be given
high guality professional care.

b. In the case of both general practitioners and specialists, the medical resources
available in the field of his or her practice shall be considered in determining the skill
and care required. No physician shall be entitled to membership on the Medical
Staff, or to the enjoyment or particular privileges, merely by virtue of the fact that he
or she is duly licensed to practice medicine or surgery in this or any other state, or
that he or she is a member of some professional organization, or that he or she, in the
past or presently, has such privileges at another hospital. The burden shall be upon
the physician making an initial application for membership to establish that he or she
is professionally competent and ethical. (H&S Code §§ 32128 and 32150; B&P
Code § 809.3.)

Section 4. Hospital Rules.

The Bylaws of the Medical Staff shall set forth the procedure by which eligibility for Medical Staff
membership and establishment of professional privileges shall be determined. Such Bylaws shall
provide that the Medical Staff or a committee or committees thereof, shall study the qualifications
of all applicants in the establishment of professional privileges, and shall submit to the Board of
Directors recommendations thereon. Such recommendations shall be considered by the Board of
Directors, but shall not be binding upon the Board of Directors. The Medical Staff shall be
responsible for a process or processes designed to assure that individuals who provide patient care
services, but who are not subject to the Medical Staff privilege delineation process, are competent to
provide such services and that the quality of patient care services provided by these individuals is
reviewed as a part of the District’s quality assurance programs. (H&S Code § 32150.)

Revised November 2017September2047
22

DOCS 9.28.17.v.1

20



Section 5. Hearings and Appeals.

The Board of Directors hereby incorporates by reference the provisions of the Medical Staff Bylaws
relating to hearing procedures and appeals regarding the professional privileges of any member of,
or applicant for membership on, the Medical Staff, as those Bylaws may be amended from time to
time, subject to applicable law. These provisions are presently outlined in the relevant sections of

the Medical Staff Bylaws.

Revised November 201 78eptember2017
23

DOCS 9.28.17.v.1

20



ARTICLE VIII
MISCELLANEOUS

Section 1. Title to Property.

The title to all property of the District shall be vested in the District, and the signature of any
officers of the Board of Directors, authorized at any meeting of the Board of Directors, shall
constitute the proper authority for the purchase or sale of property or for the investment or other
disposal of funds which are subject to the control of the District. (H&S Code §§ 32121(c) and
32123)

Section 2. Seal.

The Board of Directors shall have the power to adopt a form of Corporate Seal, and to alter it at its
pleasure. (H&S Code § 32121(a).)

Section 3. Amendment.
These Bylaws may be altered, amended, repealed, added to or deleted, by a majority vote of all of
the Board of Directors in office at that time, at any regular or special meeting of the Board of

Directors.

Section 4. Annual Review of Bylaws.

The Board of Directors shall review the Bylaws annually and make any necessary changes that are
necessary to be consistent with District policy, any applicable laws or other rules and regulations
connected with operation of a hospital or other facility within District jurisdiction.

Section 5. Board of Directors’ Evaluation Policy.

The Board of Directors shall establish a written policy and procedure for evaluation and review of
the Board of Directors’ performance as a group. This written copy of the Board of Directors’ policy
and procedures shall be reviewed by the Board of Directors, the President/Chief Executive Officer
and the BistrietLegal-Board Counsel for the Board of Directors.

Section 6. Affiliated Organizations.

a. Auxiliary Organizations. The Board of Directors may authorize the formation of
auxiliary organizations to assist in the fulfillment of the purposes of the District.
Each such organization shall establish its bylaws, rules, and regulations, which shall
be subject to Board of Directors approval and which shall not be inconsistent with
these bylaws or the policies of the Board of Directors.

b. Foundations. The Board of Directors may authorize the formation of non-profit
public benefit corporations, under applicable law, to assist in the fulfillment of the
purposes of the District. Each such corporation shall establish its bylaws, rules, and
regulations, which shall be subject to Board of Directors approval and which shall
not be inconsistent with these bylaws or the policies of the Board of Directors.

Revised November 2017September2047
24

DOCS59.28,17.v.1

20



CODE FOR LEGISLATIVE AUTHORITY

H&S - The Local Health Care District Law, Health and Safety Code Section
32000 et seq., State of California

Elections Code Uniform District Election Law, Elections Code, State of California

Government Code Government Code, State of California

B&P -  Business and Professions Code, State of California

This amendment to the TRI-CITY HEALTHCARE DISTRICT Bylaws is approved this 28th day of
September, 2017.

James J. Dagostino Date
Chairperson
ATTEST:
Laura E. Mitchell Date
Secretary
Revised November 2017September 2817
25
DOCS 9.28.17.v.1

20.



Rules & Regulations

TRI-CITY HOSPITAL DISTRICT | ecfient  Medical Staft

Subject: Department of Pediatrics

Page 10f5

MEMBERSHIP . :

The Department of Pediatrics consists of physicians who are board certified by the American Board of
Pediatrics or are board-eligible; having completed an ACGME approved residency in Pediatrics, and
who are actively progressing towards certification. Pediatricians who admit and care for neonates in
the Neonatal Intensive Care Unit (NICU) must be members of the Division of Neonatology.

FUNCTIONS

The general functions of the Department of Pediatrics shall include:

A. Conduct patient care review for the purpose of analyzing and evaluating the quality, safety, and
appropriateness of care and treatment provided to patients by members of the Department and
develop criteria for use in the evaluation of patient care;

B. Recommend to the Medical Executive Committee (MEC) guidelines for the granting of clinical
privileges and the performance of specified services within the hospital;
C. Conduct, participate in and make recommendations regarding continuing medical education
programs pertinent to Department clinical practice;
D. Review and evaluate Department member adherence to:
1. Medical Staff policies and procedures;
2. Sound principles of clinical practice.
E. Submit written minutes to Medical Quality Peer Review Committee and Medical Executive
Committee concerning:
1. Department review and evaluation activities, actions taken thereon, and the results of
such actions, and;
2. Recommendations for maintaining and improving the quality and safety of care provided
in the hospital.
F. Establish such committees or other mechanisms as are necessary and desirable to perform

properly the functions assigned to it including proctoring;

G. Take appropriate action when important problems in patient care, patient safety and clinical
performance or opportunities to improve patient care are identified;

H. Recommend/ or request Focused Professional Practice Evaluation as indicated (pursuant to
Medical Staff Policy 8710-509);

l. Approve On-Going Professional Practice Evaluation (OPPE) indicators and formulate
thresholds; and
Formulate recommendations for Department rules and regulations reasonably necessary for the
proper discharge of its responsibilities subject to approval of the Medical Executive Committee.

DEPARTMENT MEETINGS;

The Department of Pediatrics meets quarterly and no less than three (3) times per year or at the
discretion of the Chair

Twenty-five percent (25%) of the Active Department members, but not less than five (5) members, shall
constitute a quorum at any meeting.

DEPARTMENT OFFICERS

A The Department shall have 3 officers: a Chairperson, a Vice-Chairperson, and a Quality Review
Representative. The officers must be members of the Active Medical Staff and shall be
qualified by training, experience, and demonstrated ability in at least one of the clinical areas
covered by the Department. The Vice-Chairperson shall be the Chairperson-Elect and may also
serve as the Quality Review Representative.

Medical Staff Pedialrics Rules & Regulations - Revised: 11/03, 05/04, 05/06, 02/07, 07/07, 06/08, 3/09, 5/09, 11/09; 01/10; 5/11; 912; 11/12;
5/13; 8M13; 2/14; 614

20!



TRI-CITY HOSPITAL DISTRICT | Sectiom  Medical Staf

Subject: Department of Pediatrics
Rules & Regulations

Page 20f5

| B. . The Chairperson and Vice-Chairperson shall be elected every two years by the Active members
of the Department who are eligible to vote. The Chair shall be elected by a simple majority of
the members of the Department. The notice for elections is given at least one month prior to the
meeting date.

| C. The Department Chair shall serve a eretwo-year term, which coincides with the Medical Staff
year unless he/she resigns, is removed from office, or loses Medical Staff membership or
clinical privileges in the department. Department officers shall be eligible to succeed
themselves if elected.

D, The Vice-Chairperson succeeds the Chairperson after hisfher term has expired unless there is
an objection by a majority of the Active members of the Department who are eligible to vote.
E. The Quality Review Representative serves a enetwo-year term and is elected by the Active

members of the Department who are eligible to vote. The Quality Review Representative serves
as the Chair of the Pediatric Quality Review Committee (QRC), and attends Medical Staff
QA/PI/PSC meetings. Every effort will be made to appoint members to the QRC from each
major group and a representative from the unassigned call panel for ED.

V. DUTIES OF THE DEPARTMENT CHAIR

A, The Department Chair shall assume the following responsibilities:

1. Be accountable for the professional and administrative activities of the Department;

2. Ongoing monitoring of the professional performance of all individuals who have
delineated clinical privileges in the Department.

3. Assure that practitioners practice only within the scope of their privileges as defined
within their delineated privilege form.

4, Recommend to the Medical Executive Committee the criteria for clinical privileges in the
Department;

5. Recommend clinical privileges for each member of the Department;

6. Assure that the quality, safety and appropriateness of patient care provided by members
of the Department are monitored and evaluated; and

7. Other duties, as recommended from the Medical Executive Committee.

VI. PRIVILEGES

A. All privileges are accessible on the TCMC Intranet and a paper copy is maintained in the
Medical Staff Office.
B. All practitioners applying for clinical privileges must demonstrate current competency for the

scope of privileges requested. “Current competency” means documentation of activities within

the twenty-four (24) months preceding application, unless otherwise specified.

C. Requests for privileges in the Department of Pediatrics are evaluated based on the practitioner's
education, training, experience, demonstrated professional competence and judgment, active
clinical performance, documented cases of patient care and are granted based on department
specified criteria. Recommendations for privileges are made to the Credentials Committee and
to the Medical Executive Committee. Practitioners practice only within the scope of their
privileges as defined within these Rules and Regulations.

1. Nurse Practitioners: Nurse practitioner means a registered nurse who posseses
additional preparation and skills in physical diagnosis, psychosocial assessment, and
management of health-illness needs in primary care and who has been prepared in a
program. The nurse practitioner shall function under standardized procedures or
protocols covering the care delivered by the nurse practitioner. The nurse practitioner

and his/her supervising physician who shall be a pediatrician will develop the

Medical Staff Pediatrics Rules & Regulations - Revised: 11/03, 05/04, 05/06, 02/07, 07/07, 06/08, 3/09, 5/09, 11/09; 01/10; 5/11; 9/112; 11/12;
| 5M3; BM13; 2/14; 6/14; 615, 916, _&/17

20



TRI-CITY HOSPITAL DISTRICT | S°cten Medical Staf

Subject: Department of Pediatrics
Rules & Regulations

9 Page 3 of 5
standardized procedure or the protocols with the approval of the Department of
Pediatrics.

D. Classifications of Newborns:

1. Level 1: Newborns greater than 2000 grams and 35 6/7 weeks GA, without any of the
diagnoses or symptoms listed in VI (E)(2).

2. Level 2: Newborns needing intermediate or continuing care; criteria as follows:

i Weight greater than 2000 grams at birth, r/o sepsis during an observational
period, if consistently stable without additional signs of illness.

ii. Tachypnea, TTN, or other mild respiratory iliness, otherwise stable, with oxygen
needs <40%, and no oxygen needs over six (6) hours.

iii. Hypoglycemia (without other risk factors such as suspected sepsis or respiratory
distress) with a normal exam and stable vital signs, responsive to oral therapy.

iv. Feeding problems in a newborn greater than 2000 grams and 35 6/7 weeks
gestational age (GA), with no concerns about Gl perforation or anomalies.
3. Hyperbilirubinemia requiring phototherapy, unlikely to require an exchange transfusion,

otherwise stable, currently 35 6/7 weeks GA and 2000 grams.

If the infant status changes to meet the Level 3 criteria (per NICU unit-specific policy “Admission
and Discharge Criteria for the NICU"), a neonatology consult is required. The consultation will
be requested by the attending pediatrician who, in collaboration with the neonatologist, will
determine if care should be transferred to a necnatologist.

Vll. REAPPOINTMENT OF CLINICAL PRIVILEGES

A, Procedural privileges wilt be renewed if the minimum number of cases is met over a two-year
reappointment cycle. For practitioners who do not have sufficient activity/volume at TCMC to
meet reappointment requirements, documentation of activity from other practice locations may
be accepted to fulfill the requirements. If the minimum number of cases is not performed, the
physician will be required to undergo proctoring for all procedures that were not satisfied. The
physician will have an option to voluntarily relinquish his/her privileges for the unsatisfied
procedure(s).

Vill. PROCTORING OF PRIVILEGES
A. Each Medical Staff member granted initial privileges, or Medical Staff member requesting
additional privileges shall be evaluated by a proctor as indicated until his or her privilege status
is established by a recommendation from the Department Chair to the Credential Committee
and to the Medical Executive Committee, with final approval by the Board of Directors.

B. All Actlve members of the Department wull act as proctors. Aﬂaeee-era-te-ma-y—memer—sgﬂ%e#

Depa-ﬁmeﬂt—é;ham lt is the respon5|brilty of the Department Chalr to inform the monltored
member whose proctering is being continued whether the deficiencies noted are based on
current clinical competence, practice behavior, or the ability to perform the requested
privilege(s). Colleagues who cover on-call for an assigned proctor should be aware, accessible,
and amenable to providing proctoring in the place of that member, if needed.

C. For invasive cases, proctor must be present for the procedure for a sufficient period of time to
assure himself/herself of the member's competence. For noninvasive cases the proctor may
review case documentation {i.e. H&P) entirely to assure himself/herself of the practitioner's
competence.

Medical Staff Pediatrics Rules & Regulatlens ~ Revised: 11/03, 05/04, 05/08, 02/07, 07/07, 06/08, 3/09, 5/08, 11/09; 01/10; 5/11; 9/12; 11/12;
| 5M13; 8113, 2114; 6/14; 6/15; 9/16, 8/17

20



TRI-CITY HOSPITAL DISTRICT [ ®ecton:  Medieal Stafl

Subject: Department of Pediatrics
Rules & Regulations
g Page 4 of 5
D. In elective cases, arrangements shall be made prior to scheduling i.e., the proctor shall be .
designated at the time the case is scheduled.
E. The member shall have free choice of suitable consultants and assistants.
F. When the required number of cases has been proctored, the Department Chair must approve or

disapprove the release from proctoring or may extend the proctoring, based upon a review of
the proctor reports.

G. A form shall be completed by the proctor and should include comments on diagnosis,
procedural technique, and overall impression and recommendation (i.e., qualified, needs further
observation, not qualified). Blank forms will be available from the Medical Staff Office.

H. The proctor's report shall be confidential and shall be completed and returned to the Medical
Staff Office.

L. Members of other departments, such as the Emergency Department or Anesthesiology
Department, can proctor an appropriate procedure, but cannot proctor admissions.

J. It is the responsibility of the member to notify a proctor when one is needed.

DEPARTMENT QUALITY REVIEW AND MANAGEMENT

XX,

The Department of Pediatrics will have a Quality Review Committee (QRC) comprised of no less than
four (4) Department members. The QRC chair is the Department's representative to the Medical Staff
Medical Quality Peer Review Committee. QRC members are able to succeed themselves. The QRC
will meet at least four (4) times per year. Refer to Section || “FUNCTIONS" above as applicable.
A, General Function
The QRC provides systematic and continual review, evaluation, and monitoring of the quality
and safety of care and treatment provided by the Department members and to pediatric patients
in the hospital.

NICU M&M COMMITTEE

The Depariment of Pediatrics will have an NICU Mortality & Morbidity (M&M) Committee that meets at
least quarterly to discuss neonatal cases and issues related to neonatal care. The NICU M&M shall be
composed of the members of the Neonatology Division. Representatives from the Department of
Obstetrics/Gynecology and nursing shall be invited. The Committee shall maintain a record of its
activities and report to the Department of Pediatrics QRC.

~ APPROVALS:
Depariment of Pediatrics: 8/1617

| Medical Executive Committee: 846

Medical Staff Pediatrics Rules & Regulations — Revised: 11/03, 05/04, 05/08, 02/07, 07/07. 06/08, 3/09, 5/09, 11/09; 01/10; 5/11; 9/12; 11/12;
| 5/13; 8/13; 2/14; 6/14; 6/15; 916,817

20



TRI-CITY HOSPITAL DISTRICT

Rules & Regulations

Section:

Subject:

Medical Staff
Department of Pediatrics

Page S5of5

Governance Committee: 846
Board of Directors: 84&

Medical Staff Pediatrics Rules & Regulations — Revised: 11/03, 05/04, 05/06, 02/07, 07/07, 06/08, 3/09, 5/09, 11/09; 01/10, 5/11; 912; 11112,

| 5/13; B113; 2/14; 6/14; 6/15; 916,817

20



TRI-CITY HOSPITAL DISTRICT | Section:  Medical Staff

Subject: Department of Radialogy
Rules & Regulations
9 Page 1 of 8
I MEMBERSHIP :
A. The Department of Radiology consists of physicians who have a contractual relationship with

the hospital to practice Radiology and are board certified or board eligible and actively
progressing towards certification in Diagnostic Radiology and/or Nuclear Medicine by the
American Board of Radiology.

“-:- F-Hadiaiag

FUNCTIONS OF THE DEPARTMENT

The general functions of the Department of Radiology shall include:

A. Conduct patient care review for the purpose of analyzing and evaluating the quality, safety, and
appropriateness of care and treatment provided to patients by members of the Department and
develop criteria for use in the evaluation of patient care;

B. Recommend to the Medical Executive Committee guidelines for the granting of clinical
privileges and the performance of specified services within the hospital;

C. Conduct, participate in and make recommendations regarding continuing medical education
programs pertinent to Department clinical practice;

D. Review and evaluate Department member adherence to:

1. Medical Staff policies and procedures;
2. Sound principles of clinical practice.

E. Submit written minutes to the QARIRSMedical Quality Peer Review Committee and Medical

Executive Committee concerning:

1. Department review and evaluation activities, actions taken thereon, and the results of
such actions; and
2. Recommendations for maintaining and improving the quality and safety of care provided
in the hospital.
F. Establish such committees or other mechanisms as are necessary and desirable to perform

properly the functions assigned to it, including proctoring;

Take appropriate action when important problems in patient care, patient safety and clinical
performance or opportunities to improve patient care are identified;

Recommend/Request Focused Professional Practice Evaluation as indicated (pursuant to
Medical Staff Policy 8710-509);

Approve On-Going Professional Practice Evaluation Indicators; and

Formulate recommendations for Department rules and regulations reasonably necessary for the
proper discharge of its responsibilities subject to approval of the Medical Executive Committee.
K. Establish protocols for the supervision of Physician Assistants.

Ir o

|

DEPARTMENT MEETINGS

The Department of Radiology shall meet at least quarterly or at the discretion of the Chair. The
Department will consider the findings from the ongoing monitoring and evaluation of the quality, safety,
and appropriateness of the care and treatment provided to patients. Minutes shall be transmitted to the
QARHRSMedical Quality Peer Review Committee, and then to the Medical Executive Committee.

Med Staff R&R ~ Depariment of Radiology - Revised: 1/06; 807; 6/08; 10/13; 11/14

211



Rules & Regulations

TRI-CITY HOSPITAL DISTRICT | Secten:  MedicalStaft

Subject: Department of Radiology

Page 20of8

v.

VI

Twenty-five percent (25%) of the Active Department members, exclusive of teleradiology providers, but
not less than two (2) members, shall constitute a quorum at any meeting.

DEPARTMENT OFFICERS

The Department shall have a Chair who shall be a member of the Active Medical Staff and shall be
qualified by training, experience, and demonstrated ability in at least one of the clinical areas covered
by the Department.

The Department Chair shall be elected every year by the Active members of the Department who are
eligible to vote. The Chair shall be elected by a simple majority of the members of the Department.

The Department Chair shall serve a one-year term, which coincides with the Medical Staff year unless
he/she resigns, is removed from office, or loses his/her Medical Staff membership or clinical privileges
in the Department. Department officers shall be eligible to succeed themselves.

DUTIES OF THE DEPARTMENT CHAIR

The Department Chair shall assume the following responsibilities:

Be accountable for all professional and administrative activities of the Department;

Continue surveillance of the professional performance of all individuals who have delineated
clinical privileges in the Department;

Assure that practitioners practice only within the scope of their privileges as defined within their
delineated privilege farm,;

Recommend to the Medical Executive Committee the criteria for clinical privileges in the
Department;

Recommend clinical privileges for each member of the Department;

Assure that the quality, safety and appropriateness of patient care provided by members of the
Department are monitored and evaluated; and

Assume other duties as recommended from the Medical Executive Committee.

mm o o m»

2 ©

Diagnostic Radiology - Diagnostic radiologists use x-rays, radionuclides, uitrasound, and
electromagnetic radiation to diagnose and treat disease. Physicians are eligible for privileges in
all routine radiographic and fluoroscopic procedures, and minor procedural components
attendant to them as outlined in the Physician Frivilege Table. All Diagnostic Radiclogists may
remotely interpret (teleradiology) diagnostic images.

B. Nuclear Medicine - Specialists in nuclear radiology use the administration of trace amounts of
radioactive substances (radionuclides) to provide images and information for making a
diagnosis. Members trained and certified only in Nuclear Medicine are eligible for only Nuclear
Medicine privileges.

C. Interventional Radiology — Specialists in vascular and interventional radiology diagnoses who

treat diseases with use of various radiologic imaging technologies, including fluoroscopy, digital

radiography, computed tomography (CT), sonography, and magnetic resonance imaging (MRI).

Physicians are eligible for interventional radiology procedures if they meet the credentialing

criteria as outlined in the applicable Medical Staff policies/rules (see Interventional Privileges

section of the Physician Privilege Table).

D. Teleradiology — Remote interpretation of diagnostic images for emergency, after hours and
consultation purposes. Teleradiology only privileges are identified in the Physician Privilege
Table.

Med Staff R&R - Department of Radiology - Revised: 1/06; 8/07; 6/08; 10/13; 11/14

LASSIFICATION: Privileges in the Department of Radiology are divided into the following categories:

21



TRI-CITY HOSPITAL DISTRICT [ Secton  Medical Stat

Subject: Department of Radiology
Rules & Regulations

Page 3 of 8

Vil. PRIVILEGES
A. Request for privileges in the Department of Radiology shall be evaluated on the bases of the
member’'s education, training, experience, demonstrated professional competence and
judgement, clinical performance and documented results of patient care and monitoring.
B. All privileges are accessible on the TCMC Intranet and a paper copy is maintained in the
Medmal—Staﬁ-OﬁﬁseMedlcal Staff Department

All practltloners applylng for clmlca[ pnvuleges must demonstrate current competency for the

scope of privileges requested. “Current competency” means documentation of activities within

the twenty-four (24} months preceding application, unless otherwise specified.

Sites:

1. All privileges may be performed at 4002 Vista Way, Oceanside, CA 92056.

2. Privileges annotated with (F} may be performed at 3925 Waring Road, Suite C,
Oceanside, CA 92056.

Phyelciar Peivilege Table
Relvlloges lattiel Prectorling Reappolntiment
Appoaintrment fevery 7 vaars)

Med Staff R&R - Department of Radiology - Revised: 1/06; 8/07; 6/08; 10/13; 11/14

21



TRI-CITY HOSPITAL DISTRICT

Rules & Regulations

Section: Medical Staff
Subject: Department of Radiology

Page 4 of B

I

2740234 8490-Bsd

Med Staff R&R - Department of Radiology - Revised: 1/06; 8/07; 6/08; 10/13; 11/14

21



TRI-CITY HOSPITAL DISTRICT

Rules & Regulations

Section:

Subject:

Medical Staff
Department of Radiology

Page 50f8

. onal

Twetdicapas  Twenby G200

Med Staff R&R - Depariment of Radiology - Revised: 1/06; B/07; 6/08; 10/13; 11/14

21



TRI-CITY HOSPITAL DISTRICT | S°ctior:  Medical Staf
Subject: Department of Radiology

Rules & Regulations Page 6 of 8

Med Staff R&R - Depariment of Radiology - Revised: 1/05; 8/07; 6/08; 10/13; 11/14

21



Rules & Regulations

TRI-CITY HOSPITAL DISTRICT |Secfon:  MedicalStafl

Subject: Department of Radiology

Page 7of8

Vil.

Vil

REAPPOINTMENT OF CLINICAL PRIVILEGES
Procedural privileges will be renewed if the minimum number of cases is met over a two-year
reappointment cycle. For practitioners who do not have sufficient activity/volume at TCMC to meet

reappointment requirements, documentation of activity from other practice locations may be accepted

to fulfill the requirements. If the minimum number of cases is not performed, the practitioner will be

required to undergo proctoring for all procedures that were not satisfied. The practitioner will have an

option to voluntarily relinquish his/her privileges for the unsatisfied procedure(s).

PROCTORING OF PRIVILEGES

A. Each Medical Staff member granted initial privileges, or Medical Staff member requesting additional
privileges shall be evaluated by a proctor as indicated until his or her privilege status is established

by a recommendation from the Department Chair to the Credential Committee and to the Medical
Executive Committee, with final approval by the Board of Directors.

B. Ali Active members of the Department will act as proctors.

C. Additional cases may be proctored as recommended by the Department Chair. It is the
responsibility of the Department Chair to inform the proctored member whose proctoring is being

continued whether the deficiencies noted are in: a) preoperative, b) operative, c) surgical technique

and/or, d} postoperative care.

ASSURE HIMSELFHHERSELF OF THE RPRAGIHONERIS-COMRETENCE-Supervision of the
member by the proctor will include concurrent review for invasive cases or retrospective chart

review of cognitive processes for noninvasive cases and direct observation of procedural

Med Staff R&R - Depariment of Radiology - Revised: 1/06; 8/07; 6/08; 10/13; 11/14

21



TRI-CITY HOSPITAL DISTRICT | ecfom  Medical Staf
Subject: Department of Radiology

Rules & Regulations

Page 8 of 8

technigues. The monitor must be present in the Procedure Room for a sufficient period of time to
assure himself/herseif of the member's competence.

E. In elective cases, arrangements shall be made prior to scheduling (i.e., the proctor shall be
designated at the time the case is scheduled).

F. The member shall have free choice of suitable consultants and assistants. The proctor may assist
the member.

G. When the required number of cases has been proctored, the Department Chair must approve or
disapprove the release from proctoring or may extend the proctoring, based upon a review of the
proctor reports.

H. A form shall be completed by the proctor, and should include comments on preoperative workup,
diagnosis, preoperative preparation, operative technique, surgical judgment, postoperative care,
overall impression and recommendation (i.e., qualified, needs further observation, not qualified).
Blank forms will be available from the Medical-Staf-OfficeMedical Staff Department.

I. The proctor's report shall be confidential and shall be completed and retumed to the Medical-StaH

OfficeMedical Staff Department.

VIl. EMERGENCY DEPARTMENT CALL
Active department members shall participate in the Emergency Department Call Roster or consultation
panel as determined by the Medical Staff. The Department Chair will be responsible for maintaining
adequate coverage of the Emergency Department. Refer to Medical Staff Policy and Procedure 8710-
520.

Provisional or Courtesy staff members may participate on the Emergency Department Call Roster at
the discretion of the Chief of the Department.

APPROVALS:

Department of Radiology: 10/7114
Interdisciplinary Practice Committee:  10/20/14
Medical Executive Committee: 10/27/14
Governance Committee: 11/4/14
Board of Directors: 11/6/14

Med Staff R&R — Dapartment of Radiology - Revised: 1/06; 8/07; 6/08, 10/13; 11/14



Audit, Compliance & Ethics Committee
(No meeting held in
November, 2017)

211



TRI-CITY HEALTHCARE DISTRICT
MINUTES FOR A REGULAR MEETING
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

October 26, 2017 — 1:30 o’clock p.m.
Assembly Room 1 - Eugene L. Geil Pavilion
4002 Vista Way, Oceanside, CA 92056

A Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors of Tri-City Healthcare District was held at the
location noted above at Tri-City Medical Center, 4002 Vista Way, Oceanside, California at
1:30 p.m. on October 26, 2017.

The following Directors constituting a quorum of the Board of Directors were present:

Director James J. Dagostino, PT, DPT
Director Leigh Anne Grass

Director Cyril F. Kellett, MD

Director Laura E. Mitchell

Director RoseMarie V. Reno

Director Larry Schallock

Absent was Director Julie Nygaard
Also present were:

Steve Dietlin, Chief Executive Officer

Kapua Conley, Chief Operating Officer
Sharon Schultz, Chief Nurse Executive

Ray Rivas, Acting Chief Financial Officer
Norma Braun, Chief Human Resource Officer
Carlos Cruz, Chief Compliance Officer

Susan Bond, Director of Legal Services
Victor Souza, M.D., Chief of Staff

Teri Donnellan, Executive Assistant

Richard Crooks, Executive Protection Agent

1. The Board Chairman, Director Dagostino called the meeting to order at 1:30 p.m. in
Assembly Room 1 of the Eugene L. Geil Pavilion at Tri-City Medical Center with
attendance as listed above.

2. Approval of Agenda

it was moved by Director Schallock to approve the agenda as presented.
Director Reno seconded the motion.

Mr. Moser suggested modifying the agenda to move New Business 16 a. into
closed session related to the CVRA litigation process.

The motion on the modified agenda passed (6-0-1) with Director Nygaard
absent.

3. Public Comments — Announcement



Chairman Dagostino read the Public Comments section listed on the October 26,
2017 Regular Board of Directors Meeting Agenda.

4, Oral Announcement of ltems to be discussed during Closed Session.

Chairman Dagostino deferred this item to the Board's General Counsel. General
Counsel, Mr. Greg Moser made an oral announcement of the items listed on the
October 26, 2017 Regular Board of Directors Meeting Agenda to be discussed during
Closed Session which included Conference with Labor Negotiators; four (4) matters
of Potential Litigation which include the addition of the CVRA litigation process;
Hearings on Reports of the Hospital Medical Audit or Quality Assurance Committees;
one Report Involving Trade Secrets and Approval of Closed Session Minutes and
Evaluation of Legal Counsel Services.

5. Motion to go into Closed Session

it was moved by Director Kellett and seconded by Director Mitchell to go into
closed session. The motion passed (6-0-1) with Director Nygaard absent.

6. The Board adjourned to Closed Session at 1:35 p.m.

8. At 3:30 p.m. in Assembly Rooms 1, 2 and 3, Chairman Dagostino announced that the
Board was back in Open Session.

The following Board members were present:

Director James J. Dagostino, PT, DPT
Director Leigh Anne Grass

Director Cyril F. Kellett, MD

Director Laura E. Mitchell

Director RoseMarie V. Reno

Director Larry W. Schallock

Absent was Director Julie Nygaard
Also present were:

Steve Dietlin, Chief Executive Officer
Kapua Conley, Chief Operations Officer
Ray Rivas, Acting Chief Financial Officer
Sharon Schultz, Chief Nurse Executive
Norma Braun, Chief Human Resource Officer
Carlos Cruz, Chief Compliance Officer
Susan Bond, Director of Legal Services
Greg Moser, General Legal Counsel

Victor Souza, M.D., Chief of Staft

Teri Donnellan, Executive Assistant
Richard Crooks, Executive Protection Agent

9. Chairman Dagostino reported no action was taken in open session however the
Board has requested that an item that was discussed in closed session Labor
Negotiations be “trailed” to the open session so the agenda wili be reordered slightly
to hear this item of discussion first.

TCHD Regular Board of Directors Meeting - 2- October 26, 2017



10.
1.

11 a)

12,

13.

Director Dagostino led the Pledge of Allegiance.

Chairman Dagostino read the Public Comments section of the Agenda, noting
members of the public may speak immediately following Agenda Item Number 26.

Consideration of CNA Bargaining Agreement

It was moved by Director Reno that the Board of Directors ratify and
accept the CNA agreement as discussed in closed session. Director
Grass seconded the motion.

Mr. Steve Dietlin, CEQ reported we have been in contract negotiations for a littie over
a year now with the California Nurses Association and we have reached tentative
agreement on all outstanding articles with the nurses and the bargaining units. He
stated the contract went to the nurses for consideration of ratification and his
understanding is there was an overwhelming vote to ratify and move forward with this
contract. He explained the next step is to bring the contract forward to the Board of
Directors for consideration and approval as well.

Chairman Schallock stated in his opinion, we should have been able to achieve
consensus on the contract in a much shorter period of time, however he wanted to
thank everyone for their continued diligence and finally reaching conclusion.

Director Kellett complimented both Administration and the nurses in reaching an
agreement. He noted how very important the nurses are and is pleased to have this
issue behind us and we are now able to move forward.

The vote on the motion was as follows:

YES: Directors: Dagostino, Grass, Kellett, Mitchell,
Reno and Schallock
NOES: Directors: None

ABSTAIN: Directors:  None
ABSENT: Directors:  Nygaard

Educational Update —

Chairman Dagostino stated the first educational session will be held at the December
regular Board meeting in which the California Hospital Association (CHA) will present
a webinar to explain how hospitals get reimbursed from different payors.

Report from TCHD Foundation — Glen Newhart, Chief Development Officer

Mr. Glen Newhart, Chief Development Officer reported the Diamond Ball is on the
horizon. He stated this year's event will be spectacular with some unique auction
items including a “black card” experience with the owner of a prestigious restaurant.
Ms. Kimberly Hunt from Channel 10 News will be our Master of Ceremonies and
special guest Dana Carvey will be doing a one hour comedy set. Mr. Newhart stated
the proceeds of the Diamond Ball will be used to purchase the latest 3D Breast
Tomosynthesis & Dimensions 2D Full-Field Digital Mammography system. This
system will allow our team to detect breast cancer five millimeters in size or the size
of a lentil. He expressed his appreciation to the Board members and hospital for

TCHD Regular Board of Directors Meeting - 3- October 26, 2017



supporting this event. He noted Tri-City is a major sponsor along with Bob and
Sandy Carter who are incredible supporters of the hospital. Mr. Newhart also
expressed his appreciation to BMW of Vista, another proud sponsor of the event.

Mr. Newhart reported the Foundation produced a special video that will be played at
the Diamond Ball. He expressed his appreciation to Director Dagostino and Mr.
Dietlin for participating in the video. Mr. Newhart stated the Women’s Center team
has gone above and beyond and helped us with filming of grateful patients which
included four cancer survivors including a 40 year old woman who was diagnosed
with Breast Cancer while she was pregnant.

Chairman Dagostino stated the Board appreciates the Foundation who is our oldest
partner, our philanthropic arm.

No action was taken.
14, Report from Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Steve Dietlin, CEO stated Mr. Newhart provided a great recap of coming events
and as Chairman Dagostino mentioned the Foundation is a great partner. Mr. Dietlin
stated the Foundation is the philanthropic arm of Tri-City and we have many
community members that are involved however the Foundation is right there, side by
side, raising money for great causes. Mr. Dietlin encouraged everyone to come out
and support the Diamond Ball.

Mr. Dietlin stated over 3,300 walkers participated in the inaugural Heart Walk which
started at the Oceanside Harbor. 1,200 of those walkers were associated with Tri-
City, including our own Chief of Staff and members of the Medical Staff. Mr. Dietlin
stated it was a high energy event that raised money for a great cause and he looks
forward to doing it again next year and 20 years from now. He expressed his
appreciation for everyone's participation.

Mr. Dietlin commented on the CNA contract which is a “win-win” contract that
received overwhelming ratification. He expressed his appreciation to the members of
the bargaining teams and the nurses for participating and ratifying the contract and
for the Board for their support all along the way. Mr. Dietlin stated he is looking
forward to moving forward with other hospital business.

Mr. Dietlin stated CFO, Mr. Ray Rivas will be presenting on the first quarter of 2018
financial results. He stated it is a difficult healthcare environment but what you will
see is the results are in line with the budget. Mr. Dietlin stated we have multiple
partners out there and one of them is our financial partner, HUD. He explained that
our clinical partners, financial partners, etc. all need to be working together so we can
move forward with important developments like campus redevelopment.

With regard to campus redevelopment, Mr. Dietlin stated we will be starting on phase
one which includes a surface parking lot, followed by a parking structure and a new
entrance to the hospital.

Lastly, Mr. Dietlin stated the Turkey Trot is coming up on Thanksgiving Day. He
reminded everyone to “move your feet before you eat”. Mr. Dietlin stated the Turkey
Trot draws over 10,000 people and he hopes to see everyone out there.

—_—_— o o 00000000 o]
... ——— ;™ e ——————

TCHD Regular Board of Directors Meeting - 4- October 26, 2017



No action was taken.
15.  Reports from Chief Financial Officer

Mr. Rivas reported on the YTD Financials as follows (Dollars in Thousands):
Operating Revenue — $90,053
Operating Expense — $92,374

EBITDA — $2,853
EROE ($1,048)

YV VY

AE

Other Key Indicators for the YTD driving those results included the following:

Average Daily Census - 172
Adjusted Patient Days — 28,232
Surgery Cases — 1,644
Deliveries — 626

ED Visits — 15,990

VOV VY Y

Mr. Rivas also reported on the current month financials as follows: (Dollars in
Thousands).

» Operating Revenue ~ $29,551
» Operating Expense - $30,184
~ EBITDA - $1,091

~ EROE - ($224)

Mr. Rivas also reported on current month Key Indicators as follows:

Average Daily Census — 163 vs. 185
Adjusted Patient Days — 8,886
Surgery Cases — 565

Deliveries — 184

ED Visits - 5,104

YV Y VYV

Mr. Rivas stated the Average Daily Census number is the result of a patient that
was not discharged properly. He explained there were room charges every day
that generated a patient day and this went on for approximately 130 days. He
stated there was no net revenue associated with that but it did overstate our
patient days and we did have to take an adjustment in the current month for the
last several months. Mr. Rivas stated the problem was identified and fixed. He
stated without this year to date adjustment our Average Daily Census would have
been closer to 170.

Mr. Rivas reported on the following indicators for FY18 Average:

» Net Patient Accounts Receivable - $44.9
~ Days in Net Accounts Receivable — 48.1

Chairman Dagostino commented on the Average Daily Census and the fact that
keeping patients in the hospital is not necessarily good from a financial standpoint. Mr.
Rivas agreed and stated that reimbursement varies depending on the payor however
there is a big move towards DRG payments which in essence is one payment for a
0 0]

TCHD Regular Board of Directors Meeting - 5- October 26, 2017



specific case whether you are here for one day or 22 days. Mr. Rivas stated our
monthly average stay is 4, down from 4.5 so we are moving in the right direction.

No action was taken.
16. New Business
b. LAFCO (agenda item to be heard prior to public hearing for clarity)

Board Counsel Adriana Ochoa provided background on LAFCO and the proposed
annexations. She stated Resolution 785 which was adopted by the Board directed the
Chief Executive Officer to begin the LAFCO (Local Agency Formation Commission)
annexation process upon the recommendation of LAFCO. On July 27, 2017, the TCHD
Board approved Resolution 787, a Resolution of Application to San Diego Local
Agency Formation Commission from the Board of Tri-City Healthcare District for the
Annexation of Territory & Amendment of Tri-City Healthcare District's Sphere of
Influence. This resolution of application proposes a number of annexations and
detachments to change TCHD's current boundaries to be generally more coterminous
with the three cities’ boundaries.

Ms. Ochoa explained TCHD resolved to move forward with the LAFCO annexations
and the CVRA districting process concurrently so that both can be completed in a
timely and efficient manner. TCHD believes it is prudent to process the annexations
first in order to avoid having to go through the process of drawing election districts twice
— saving time, money, and confusion. However, in an abundance of caution, TCHD is
proceeding with drawing proposed maps for both scenarios — one contemplating the
District's current boundaries, and one contemplating the District's projected boundaries
after the annexations are approved. That way, TCHD can assure the public that it will
have district-based elections for the November 2018 elections, irrespective of whether
or not the LAFCO annexations are finalized before the next election cycle.

TCHD submitted its resolution, application, and processing payment to LAFCO on or
about September 25, 2017. LAFCO has informed us that they are finalizing the
Preliminary Staff Report for distribution by the end of the month which will start the
Assessor/Auditor processing of the proposal. Following the Auditor's report, the Board
of Supervisors will process the property tax exchange associated with the proposal.
Following the Board approval for the tax exchange, the proposal will be scheduled for a
public hearing with LAFCO. There is a 30-day protest/reconsideration period following
the Commission’s approval, and once that period ends, the proposal will be recorded
with the County Recorder. The recordation date will be the effective date of the new
boundaries for TCHD.

In terms of timing, Ms. Ochoa explained that LAFCO meets monthly, on the morning of
the first Monday. The Commission does not generally meet in January due to the
holidays. That would leave February as the likely hearing date for the Tri-City proposal,
which would allow for recordation during the first week of March (barring anything
unforeseen).

Lastly, if all goes as planned and TCHD’s new boundaries are effective in March, the
TCHD Board of Directors will have the time and ability to approve maps with the new
boundaries for the November 2018 elections. The key issue for scheduling will be how
quickly the Board of Supervisors’ approval of the property tax exchange can be
processed following the Assessor/Auditor.
e ——

TCHD Regular Board of Directors Meeting - 6- October 26, 2017



Director Mitchell questioned if we have selected locations for the community meetings.
Ms. Ochoa stated we have proposed facilities for each of the three cities which include
the Ruby Showman Auditorium for the City of Carlsbad, the Recreation Center
Auditorium in Oceanside (300 North, the Strand) and the Gym Porter Recreation
Center in Vista. Ms. Ochoa stated as soon as we get locations solidified and our down
payments paid we will update the Board's website.

a.  Public Hearing Regarding Draft Maps for Change from At Large to District Based
Elections - Elections Code §10010(a)(2)

On behalf of the Tri-City Healthcare District, Chairman Dagostino welcomed the public
in attendance this afternoon and gave a brief introduction to this California Voting
Rights Act public hearing and announced some background and protocol.

Chairman Dagostino stated this public hearing is being held in accordance with
Elections Code section 10010(a) (2). The District is changing the way its Board of
Directors is elected. Instead of the current at-large method of elections, in which all
voters have the opportunity to vote on each open seat, the District Board of Directors
will be elected by zones. This change will allow voters to now vote for the one Board
member representing the zone where the voter lives once every four years.

The District first published and made available four draft maps and corresponding
sequences of elections on October 19, 2017. Each of these maps divides the District
into seven different voting zones. Two of these draft maps reflect the current
boundaries of the District; two of these draft maps reflect the projected boundaries of
the District after certain proposed LAFCO annexations are approved.

Today's public hearing will be the first of five opportunities for members of the public to
comment on these draft maps and the sequence of elections. After today, there will be
three community meetings held over the next month, one in each of the District’s three
representative cities. There will be a community meeting to discuss these draft maps in
the city of Oceanside on November 29 at 5 p.m., in the city of Carlsbad on November
29 at 7 p.m., and in the city of Vista on November 30 at 5:30 p.m. The next public
hearing to discuss these maps and any proposed revisions is scheduled for December
7, 2017, at 3 pm here in this room. For further information regarding locations of these
community meetings, please visit the District's website, www.tricitymed.org/zones.

Chairman Dagostino stated first, we will hear from our California Voting Rights Act
consultant Justin Levitt of the National Demographics Corporation regarding the four
draft maps.

Mr. Justin Levitt, National Demographers stated we are here to present our initial draft
maps. He explained we are not going to be asking you to eliminate any particular map
but looking at providing comments and feedback that we can take back for the next
public hearing, any proposed revisions or changes or any new ideas that you would like
to see brought forward at the next hearing. He reiterated that this will create seven
zones and each member of the district will reside in one of these seven zones and elect
a representative from that zone rather than having an election for all of the members
that are up in that year. The first election in this process will be in 2018, the second set
of zones will be up in 2020. Mr. Levitt stated we will be looking at maps with and
without the border changes. He explained if the name of the map is a fruit that map
represents the current boundaries. If the name of the map is a color it represents the
new annexed boundaries. We are looking at options that have to meet a set of criteria

- ____________________________]

TCHD Regular Board of Directors Meeting - 7- October 26, 2017



including equally populated areas of the seven zones that we draw. Mr. Levitt
demonstrated how to use the interactive viewer map which allows you to see in more
detail than you could see on a paper map. It allows you to zoom in and zoom out to
see different ranges. You can also turn each of the maps on and off and search for an
address. The interactive map allows you to compare different maps much more easily.

Mr. Levitt stated we have also looked at proposed election sequencing which is
required under AB350. Based on the Health & Safety Code we will have three even
zones up in 2018 and four odd zones up in 2020. Mr. Levitt encouraged the public to
not only look at what you like and dislike about the maps but also consider the
sequencing and if changes need to be made.

Director Schallock questioned if you count the military individuals related to Camp
Pendleton who are voters that are registered elsewhere. Ms. Ochoa responded that
under the current boundaries that population is included however that is something that
the LAFCO annexations are planning to correct.

Director Mitchell stated she does not like the Apple map and its respective numbering.
However at first glance she likes the way the Purple map is divided. Director Mitchell
stated it would be helpful to have poster size maps available at the community
hearings. She also suggested major roads and landmarks be labeled. Ms. Ochoa
stated we will do our best to incorporate those revisions into the maps before the
community meetings.

Director Grass requested clarification for Board members who were elected in 2016.
Ms. Ochoa stated Board members who were elected in 2016 will continue as Board
members for all four years, however if you live in the same district as someone whose
district is up for re-election in 2018 (because of even and odd number zones) and that
person runs and gets the seat, then your district is not going to have an election again
until 2022. Your next opportunity to run will be in 2022 instead of 2020. Ms. Ochoa
stated that is where sequencing of elections is important. She stated there are seven
zones and the Board should think about which zone you want to assign which numbers
to in order to best create fluidity and continuity of the Board and to reflect what the
voters voted on in 2016.

Director Reno commented that the voters are going to be extremely confused. Ms.
Ochoa stated unfortunately it is a very complicated process. She stated we can try and
draw the lines to create a continuity of the Board which is in the best interests of the
District.

Director Schallock stated that sounds like gerrymandering and he would not be in favor
of that. He stated in doing this you are still leaving out Vista. He commented on the
importance of having three districts in this first election, one in Oceanside, one in Vista
and one in Oceanside and the other zones will likely end up blended. Ms. Ochoa
requested confirmation from Director Schallock that for the 2018 election cycle the
maps should include one zone in each of the three cities. Director Schallock confirmed
that is his opinion.

Director Grass questioned if you could have a combination system where four
members would be elected at large. Ms. Ochoa stated as long as there is any at large
component it still falls under the California Voting Rights Act as an at large system
which can be considered illegal if racially polarized voting is found to exist.

TCHD Regular Board of Directors Meeting - 8- October 26, 2017



Chairman Dagostino stated this is a hospital board that serves three cities. He
questioned in the hybrid forms of districting (some at large and some city based), have
there been any suits regarding this. Ms. Ochoa stated she believes Schenkman is
focused on districts that are all at large. She stated she has not seen a lawsuit yet that
has challenges a combination system. Ms. Ochoa stated it is expressly contemplated
under the CA Voting Rights Act. She believes a challenge to one of those systems
would be harder than a challenge to an all at large system. Chairman Dagostino stated
we want representation from all three cities however this is a unique position and it is
important to have the best qualified people to serve on this Board. Chairman
Dagostino stated he believes the hybrid system would have the best results.

Director Mitchell questioned if we can expect a radical change in lines when the 2020
census is published. Mr. Levitt stated you will see population growth in some of the
more rural areas however he doesn't anticipate a radical change.

Director Reno requested clarification on the LAFCO annexation. Ms. Ochoa stated the
Green and Purple maps reflect the annexation. Apple and Pear maps reflect the
current boundaries. Ms. Ochoa stated in the next month the Board should begin
thinking what two options they like best (a current boundary map and an annexation
map).

Chairman Dagostino recognized Ms. Kim Stone, City of Oceanside. She commented
that maps were extremely difficult to locate on the District's website. She also
questioned if they maps would be bilingual.

Chairman Dagostino recognized Mr. Victor Roy, City of Oceanside. Mr. Roy expressed
concern with the back-to-back community meetings on November 29". He suggested
meetings be held on three separate days. Mr. Roy also commented that the Junior
Seau Center is a poor choice of venue and suggested we look at the community rooms
at the respective libraries. Lastly, Mr. Roy commented on a recent court case related to
zone elections.

Chairman Dagostino recognized Mr. lLou Montulli, City of Vista. Mr. Montulli stated his
real concern is that Vista has not been represented on this Board for the better part of
ten years. He suggested in fairness two zones in Vista be up for election in 2018.

Ms. Ochoa responded to the public’'s questions/comments.

She demonstrated how to find the maps on the District's website. She stated she will
also work with the District's webmaster to see if there is a way to make the maps easier
to find.

Poster Boards of maps will be displayed at the community meetings and to the extent
possible will show streets and landmarks.

Ms. Ochoa stated she did not know if it would be possibie to make maps bilingual.

With regard to the scheduling of the Community Meetings. Ms. Ochoa stated
November 29" and 30" are the dates we could get District staff, Counsel and the
Demographer together. She stated we anticipate the meetings will last no longer than
an hour. However if the Oceanside meeting runs longer we can come back on
December 7™ and propose another community meeting.

TCHD Regular Board of Directors Meeting - 9- October 26, 2017



With regard to locations, Ms. Ochoa stated she appreciated the public’s input and will
look at city libraries and other locations.

Ms. Ochoa stated we are aware of the Poway lawsuit and are tracking it.

With regard to “wiggle room” as to population, Ms. Ochoa stated equal population is
mandated within 10% which is 5% over or 5% under in a single zone.

Director Reno stated she continues to be concerned with Vista's representation. Ms.
Ochoa stated on December 7™ we can bring a few different sequences of elections for
consideration. One consideration will be continuity of Board members and one will
include electing a member from each of the three cities with other zones blended. Ms.
Ochoa stated it will ultimately be up to the Board if two seats are up for election in Vista

in 2018.

The public hearing was closed.

¢. Consideration to waive Board Policy #14-006 — Board of Directors Meeting Minutes
related to waiving of audio or video taping for the three community public hearings.

Chairman Dagostino stated our policy states that all public meetings will be audio
taped. Thus if a quorum of the Board is present we would be required by policy to
audio record the community meetings at a cost of approximately $1,500. Therefore
we would like the Board to consider waiving the audio recording of the three
community meetings. Mr. Moser further clarified the community meetings will be
considered Board meetings if a quorum of the Board attend.

It was moved by Director Kellett that the Tri-City Healthcare District
Board of Directors waive Board Policy #14-006 — Board of Directors
Meeting Minutes related to waiving of audio or video taping for the three
community public hearings scheduled for November 29" and November
30™. Director Schallock seconded the motion.

The vote on the motion was as follows:

YES: Directors:

NOES: Directors:
ABSTAIN: Directors:
ABSENT: Directors:

Dagostino, Grass, Kellett, Mitchell,
Reno and Schallock

None

None

Nygaard

d. Consideration to approve a Physician Recruitment Agreement with Dr. Malaygiri
Aparnath, Pulmonologist and Critical Care Physician

Mr. Jeremy Raimo, Senior Director of Business Development reported Dr. Aparnath
is a Board Certified Pulmonary Critical Care physician who is very respected in his
current role in the inland valley. Dr. Apamath wants to be a community based
provider for Pulmonary Care and there is a significant need in the community for
patients to access pulmonary ambulatory care coupled with his practice in the
community. In addition Dr. Aparnath will provide coverage in the ICU. Mr. Raimo
stated that Dr. Aparnath brings a new sophistication in terms of what he can do with

ﬂ

TCHD Regular Board of Directors Meeting - 10- October 26, 2017



ulrasound equipment inside the lung and being able to diagnose different
cancerous lesions inside the lung to a biopsy.

Mr. Raimo recommended that the Board consider this two year Physician
Recruitment Agreement with Dr. Aparnath.

It was moved by Director Mitchell that the Tri-City Healthcare District
Board of Directors find it in the best interest of the public health
communities served by the district to approve a Physician Recruitment
Agreement with Dr. Malagiri Aparnath, not to exceed $760,000 in order to
facilitate this Pulmonary and Critical Care physician practicing medicine
in the communities served by the District and recommended by the
Finance, Operations & Planning Committee. Director Schallock
seconded the motion.

The vote on the motion was as follows:

YES: Directors: Dagostino, Grass, Kellett, Mitchell,
Reno and Schallock
NOES: Directors: None

ABSTAIN: Directors: None
ABSENT: Directors: Nygaard

e. Discussion regarding 2018 Regular Board Meeting Schedule

It was moved by Director Schallock that the Tri-City Healthcare District Board
of Directors approve the proposed 2018 Regular Board Meeting schedule.
Director Reno seconded the motion.

Discussion was held regarding the fact that in the past the October meeting was
omitted due to electioneering that often takes place during election years. It was
noted that it is not feasible to go two months (October/November)} without a Board
meeting.

Director Schallock withdrew his motion. Director Reno withdrew her second
to the motion.

It was moved by Director Schallock that the Tri-City Healthcare District Board
of Directors recommend that the proposed 2018 Board Meeting Schedule be
amended to omit the October 2018 Regular Meeting and add a meeting to be
held on the first Thursday following the November election. Director Reno
seconded the motion.

The vote on motion was as follows:

YES: Directors: Dagostino, Grass, Kellett, Mitchell,
Reno and Schallock
NOES: Directors: None

ABSTAIN: Directors: None
ABSENT: Directors:  Nygaard

17 Old Business

#

TCHD Regular Board of Directors Meeting - 11- October 26, 2017




a) Update on Board Portal

Director Mitchell stated we are still on track to go live with the Board Portal in
December. She emphasized that members of the Board can accept the IPAD or
remain on paper. Director Mitchell stated policies will be developed and training
provided for all Board members. Director Reno suggested that training and
implementation be postponed until early in 2018 due to other pressing meetings.

Director Reno stated when the Professional Affairs Committee material is
voluminous it would be helpful to place that material is a separate file so the Board
book can be more manageable.

b) Board Retreat Follow-up

1. Board Committee Recommendations regarding committee composition and
meeting frequency.

a. Audit, Compliance & Ethics Committee

b. Community Healthcare & Alliance Committee
¢. Employee Fiduciary Subcommittee

d. Governance & Legislative Committee

e. Human Resources Committee

Chairman Dagostino stated the Board was tasked with streamlining their meetings
to be more efficient. As a result, Board Committee Chairs have been asked to re-
evaluate their membership and meeting frequency. Chairman Dagostino referred to
the committee recommendations contained in today's meeting packet.

Chairman Dagostino stated the Professional Affairs Committee and the Finance
Operations & Planning Committee have not had the opportunity to discuss with their
respective committees and will bring their recommendations forward next month.

With regard to the Audit, Compliance & Ethics Committee, Director Schallock
explained the community membership was reduced so that the community
members did not outnumber the Board members. He noted the committee has
recommended the option of a subject matter expert who would be a non-voting
member but could provide their expertise and be an extra set of eyes to ask
questions. Chairman Schallock also explained meetings have been reduced to six
per year however the committee reserves the right to call a special meeting if the
need arises.

There were no recommended changes to the Community Healthcare & Alliance
Committee. Itis a unique committee and provides an opportunity for the Board and
community to interact and exchange ideas.

Director Kellett stated the Human Resources Committee and Employee Fiduciary
Subcommittee are related. It was recommended that those commitiees meet
guarterly on the same time in sequence however the commitiee reserves the right
to call a special meeting if the need arises. Chairman Dagostino commented on the
physician component of that committee. Director Reno stated there are three
physicians on the committee however rarely do all three attend. She recommended
leaving the physician membership as is. Director Kellett indicated he would discuss
the physician component at the next committee meeting.

TCHD Regular Board of Directors Meeting - 12- October 26, 2017



Chairman Dagostino stated the Governance & Legislative Committee has
recommended a reduction in community members to two and a reduction in
physician membership from three to two. In addition, the committee has
recommended they meet on a quarterly basis however reserve the right to call a
special meeting if the need arises.

Director Mitchell stated the Professional Affairs Commitiee will evaluate their
structure next month however the volume of material the committee reviews may
preclude the committee from meeting less frequently.

Director Reno commented that the name of the Community Healthcare & Alliance
Committee is listed incorrectly and should be Community Healthcare & Advisory
Committee. Mr. Moser stated the Bylaws reflect the name of the committee as
Community Healthcare & Alliance Committee. He stated you can call the
committees by any name, however all the committees are advisory in nature, not
just the Community Healthcare & Alliance Committee

Director Reno suggested the name of the committee be deferred back to the
committee for consideration.

It was moved by Director Kellett that the Tri-City Healthcare District
Board of Directors approve the Board Committee Recommendations
related to committee composition and meeting frequency as
recommended by the committees. Director Mitchell seconded the
motion.

The vote on the motion was as follows:

AYES: Directors: Dagostino, Grass, Kellett, Mitchell,
Reno and Schallock
NOES: Directors: None

ABSTAIN: Directors:  None
ABSENT: Directors:  Nygaard

18 Chief of Staft

a. Consideration of October 2017 Credentialing Actions and Reappointments
involving the Medical Staff as recommended by the Medical Executive Committee
at their meeting on October 23, 2017.

It was moved by Director Mitchell to approve the October 2017
Credentialing Actions and Reappointments involving the Medical Staff
as recommended by the Medical Executive Committee at their meeting
on October 23, 2017. Director Schallock seconded the motion.

The vote on the motion was as follows:

AYES: Directors: Dagostino, Grass, Kellett, Mitchell,
Reno and Schallock
NOES: Directors: None

ABSTAIN: Directors: None
ABSENT: Directors:  Nygaard
]

TCHD Regular Board of Directors Meeting - 13- October 26, 2017



20

b. Consideration of Radiology Privilege Card

It was moved by Director Schallock to approve the Radiology Privilege
Card as recommended by the Medical Executive Committee at their
meeting on October 23 2017. Director Grass seconded the motion.

The vote on the motion was as follows:

AYES: Directors:  Dagostino, Grass, Kellett, Mitchell,
Reno and Schallock
NOES: Directors: None

ABSTAIN: Directors: None
ABSENT: Directors:  Nygaard

Consent Calendar

it was moved by Director Kellett to approve the Consent Calendar.
Director Schallock seconded the motion.

Ms. Sharon Schultz, CNE requested item 19 4 F (1) Board Policy 15-043 —
External Organization Usage of Assembly Rooms, Classrooms and
Conference Rooms be pulled and sent back to the committee to accurately
reflect the practices that are being followed.

It was moved by Director Kellett to refer Board Policy 15043 - External
Organization Usage of Assembly Rooms, Classrooms and Conference
Rooms to the Governance & Legislative Committee for clarification.
Director Reno seconded the motion.

It was moved by Director Schallock to pull item 19 4) a) HCCA
Membership. Director Kellett seconded the motion.

The vote on the main motion minus the items pulled was as

follows:

AYES: Directors:  Dagostino, Grass Kellett, Mitchell,
Reno and Schallock

NOES: Directors: None

ABSTAIN: Directors: None
ABSENT: Directors:  Nygaard

The vote on the main motion was as follows:

AYES: Directors:  Dagostino, Grass Kellett, Mitchell,
Reno and Schallock
NOES: Directors: None

ABSTAIN: Directors: None
ABSENT: Directors:  Nygaard

Discussion of items pulled from Consent Agenda

TCHD Regular Board of Directors Meeting - 14- October 26, 2017



21

22

Director Schallock who pulled item 19 (4) a) HCCA Membership questioned
the benefit Board members receive from the subscription. Ms. Donnellan
stated certain Board members had expressed an interest in belonging to the
organization. Director Reno has consistently been a member of the
organization and Director Nygaard and Mitchell have been members at one
time. Director Reno commented that she received notification that her
membership is expiring and she should like the membership renewed. She
also stated that she is willing to share her journals that she receives from
HCCA with other Board members. Director Mitchell stated HCCA was
inconsistent with their contact with her during her subscription period.

Mr. Carios Cruz, CCO stated he is a member of HCCA and is certified in
Healthcare Compliance as well. He explained, as part of membership you get
access to HCCA's portal where you can access information. He recommends
those who subscribe to keep their physical address and e-mail addresses
current on the website’s portal. Ms. Cruz stated he believes HCCA is a
valuable tool for Boards, especially with their focus on Boards and their
relationship with the compliance program and overall responsibility over the
compliance program. Ms. Donnellan stated she will facilitate subscriptions for
those Board members who are interested in joining.

It was moved by Director Schallock to move approval of the HCCA
Membership at a cost of $250/Board Member for Board members who
wish to join the organization. Director Kellett seconded the motion.

The vote on the motion was as follows:

AYES: Directors: Dagostino, Grass Kellett, Mitchell,
Reno and Schallock
NOES: Directors: None

ABSTAIN: Directors: None
ABSENT: Directors: Nygaard

Reports (Discussion by exception only)
Legislative Update —

Chairman Dagostino stated he is a member of CHA Governance Forum and recently
attended one of their meetings in Sacramento. He explained the Governance Forum
is the Trustees' legislative arm for CHA. Chairman Dagostino commented on ballot
measures that may be on the horizon including one related to limiting CEO
compensation, staffing ratios for Dialysis Centers and one related to hospital
budgeting.

Chairman Dagostino reported that CHA President/CEO Duane Dauner is retiring
however he will stay on for the next year to transition his replacement, Carmela Coyle
who has years of policy, political and practical expertise.

Lastly, Chairman Dagostino reported that ACHD has expressed an interest in running
an omnibus bill to amend District law. Chairman Dagostino and Board Counsel
drafted a document that included changes the District would like to see amended in
District Law which included Board compensation among others. ACHD is in receipt of
the document and are “shopping” for an author for the bill.

TCHD Regular Board of Directors Meeting - 15- October 26, 2017



23 Comments by members of the Public

There were no comments from members of the public.
24  Additional Comments by Chief Executive Officer
25 Board Communications

Director Schallock commented that for a first time event, the American Heart
Association walk was extremely weil attended and it was good to see so many
hospital employees out there supporting the program.

Director Schallock commented that the Turkey Trot is coming up on Thanksgiving
Day and is a fun, family event.

Director Schallock reported Saturday is Drug Take Back Day. He encouraged
everyone to dispose of their unwanted/outdated medications. Director Schallock
noted they will not accept liquid medications and those need to be disposed of at
home.

Director Reno expressed her appreciation to all those involved in the CNA contract
negotiations and for their diligence in reaching a conclusion.

Director Grass reported October 22— 28 is National Champlain Appreciation Week.
She encouraged everyone to thank our Chaplains for the spiritual support they
provide for our patients and their families.

Director Grass reported November 12-18 is Nurse Practitioner Appreciation Week
and encouraged everyone to express their appreciation to the Nurse Practitioners as
well.

Lastly, Director Grass reported the month of November is National Hospice Month.

Director Mitchell expressed her appreciation to all parties involved in the CNA
contract negotiations; for working through their differences and achieving a mutually
acceptable resolution for all those involved.

Director Kellett expressed his appreciation to all those involved in the CNA contract
negotiations. He stated that Mr. Dietlin was also very much involved in the
negotiation process and should be commended for his efforts.

26 Reports from Chairperson

Chairman Dagostino commented on the history of the Kaiser Heaithcare Plan. He
stated we have a defined population in our community that needs healthcare and the
Kaiser experiment teaches us that we have to look to solutions within ourselves to
take care of our people.

27 Hearing no further business, Chairman Dagostino adjourned the meeting to continue
closed session at 6:00 p.m.

#

TCHD Regular Board of Directors Meeting - 16- Qctober 26, 2017




29 The Board returned to Open Session at 7:42 p.m. with all Board members present
with the exception of Director Nygaard.

30 Report from Chairperson on any action taken in Closed Session.
Chairperson Dagostino reported no action was taken in Closed Session.
3 Adjournment

Hearing no further business, Chairman Dagostino adjourned the meeting at 7:42 p.m.

James J Dagostino, DPT

Chairman
ATTEST:

Laura E. Mitchell, Secretary

#

TCHD Regular Board of Directors Meeting -17- QOctober 26, 2017




TRI-CITY HEALTHCARE DISTRICT
MINUTES FOR A SPECIAL MEETING
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

November 2, 2017 — 10:00 o'clock a.m.
Assembly Rooms 2&3 - Eugene L. Geil Pavilion
4002 Vista Way, Oceanside, CA 92056

A Special Meeting of the Board of Directors of Tri-City Healthcare District was held at the
location noted above at 4002 Vista Way at 10:00 a.m. on November 2, 2017.

The following Directors constituting a quorum of the Board of Directors were present:

Director James J. Dagostino, DPT, PT
Director Leigh Anne Grass

Director Cyril F. Kellett, M.D.

Director Laura Mitchell

Director RoseMarie V. Reno

Director Larry W. Schallock

Absent was Director Julie Nygaard

Also present were:

Steve Dietlin, CEO

Susan Bond, General Counsel

Dr. Victor Souza, Chief of Staff

Teri Donnellan, Executive Assistant
Rick Crooks, Executive Protection Agent

1.

The Board Chairman, Director Dagostino, called the meeting to order at 10:00 a.m. in
Assembly Rooms 2&3 of the Eugene L. Geil Pavilion at Tri-City Medical Center with
attendance as listed above. Director Dagostino led the Pledge of Allegiance.

Approval of agenda.

It was moved by Director Kellett to approve the agenda as presented. Director
Schallock seconded the motion. The motion passed (6-0-0-1) with Director
Nygaard absent.

Public Comments - Announcement

Chairman Dagostino read the Public Comments section listed on the Board Agenda.
There were no public comments.

Oral Announcement of Items to be discussed during Closed Session

Chairman Dagostino made an oral announcement of items listed on the November 2,
2017 Special Board of Directors Meeting Agenda to be discussed during Closed Session
which included Evaluation of General Counsel Services, one matter of Existing Litigation
and Hearings on Reports of the Hospital Medical Audit or Quality Assurance
Committees.

Motion to go into Closed Session

21



10.

11.

It was moved by Director Schallock to go into Closed Session. Director Kellett
seconded the motion. The motion passed (6-0-0-1) with Director Nygaard absent.

Chairman Dagostino adjourned the meeting to Closed Session at 10:08 a.m.

The Board returned to Open Session at 10:30 a.m. with all Board members present with
the exception of Director Nygaard.

Chairman Dagostino questioned if there was a motion to remove Director Reno from the
closed session for discussion of her complaint against the District. There was no
motion.

It was moved by Director Kellett to return to closed session at 10:35 a.m. Director
Mitchell seconded the motion. The motion passed (5-1-0-1) with Director Reno
voting no and Director Nygaard absent.

The Board returned to Open Session at 10:40 a.m. with all Board members present with
the exception of Director Nygaard.

It was moved by Director Grass that the Board remove Director Reno from the
closed session for discussion of her complaint against the District to protect the
attorney client privilege. Director Kellett seconded the motion. The motion
passed (5-1-0-1) with Director Reno voting no and Director Nygaard absent.
Director Reno left the meeting at 10:40 a.m.

It was moved by Director Kellett to return to closed session at 10:40 a.m. Director
Mitchell seconded the motion. The motion passed (5-0-0-2) with Director Reno
and Director Nygaard absent.

The Board returned to open session at 3:45 a.m. with all Board members present with
the exception of Director Nygaard.

Report from Chairperson on any action taken in Closed Session.
Chairman Dagostino reported no action had been taken in closed session.

There being no further business, Chairman Dagostino adjourned the meeting at 3:45
p.m.

James J. Dagostino
Chairman

ATTEST:

Laura E. Mitchell
Secretary

TCHD Special Board of Directors Meeting -2- November 2, 2017

22



TRI-CITY HEALTHCARE DISTRICT
MINUTES FOR A SPECIAL MEETING
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
November 29, 2017 — 5:00 o’clock p.m.
El Corazon Senior Center
3302 Senior Center Drive
Oceanside, CA 92054

A Special Meeting of the Board of Directors of Tri-City Healthcare District was held at the
location noted above at 3302 Senior Center Drive, Oceanside, CA at 5:00 p.m. on November
29, 2017.

The following Directors constituting a quorum of the Board of Directors were present:

Director Jim Dagostino, PT, DPT
Director Laura Mitchell

Director Julie Nygaard

Director RoseMarie V. Reno
Director Larry W. Schallock

Absent were Director Cyril F. Kellett, M.D. and Director Leigh Anne Grass
Also present were:

Steve Dietlin, CEO

Kapua Conley, COO

Carlos Cruz, CCO

Norma Braun, CHRO

Susan Bond, General Counsel

Adriana Ochoa, Board Counsel

Doug Johnson, Demographer

Teri Donnellan, Executive Assistant
Rick Crooks, Executive Protection Agent

1. The Board Chairman, Director Dagostino, called the meeting to order at 5:00 p.m. at the
Ei Corazon Senior Center at 3302 Senior Center Drive, Oceanside, CA with attendance
as listed above. Director Dagostino led the Pledge of Allegiance.

2. Public Comments — Announcement
Chairman Dagostino read the Public Comments section listed on the Board Agenda.

3. Public Hearing Regarding Draft Maps for Change from At Large to District Based
Elections — Elections Code 10010(a) (2).

On behalf of the Tri-City Healthcare District, Board Counsel Adrianna Ochoa welcomed
the public in attendance and gave a brief introduction to this California Voting Rights Act
community meeting.

Ms. Ochoa explained that the District is changing the way its Board of Directors is
elected. Instead of the current at-large method of elections in which all voters have the
opportunity to vote on each open seat, the District Board of Directors will be elected in
zones. She stated that this change will allow voters to now vote for the one Board
member representing the zone where the voter lives once every four years.



Ms. Ochoa stated today’s community meeting is one of three community meetings held
by the District, one in each of the District's three representative cities. There will also be
community meetings to discuss these draft maps in the City of Carlsbad this evening at
7:00 p.m. and in the City of Vista on November 30"™ at 5:30 p.m. The next public hearing
to discuss these maps and any proposed revisions is scheduled for December 7, 2017
at 3:00 p.m. at Tri-City Medical Center where regular Board meetings are held. Ms.
Ochoa stated further information regarding locations of these community meetings can
be found on the District’s website at www.tricitymed.org/zones.

Ms. Ochoa stated the District first published and made available four draft maps and
corresponding sequences of elections on October 19, 2017. Two additional maps were
published on November 28, 2017. Each of these maps divides the District into seven
different voting zones. Three of these draft maps reflect the current boundaries of the
District and three of the draft maps reflect the projected boundaries of the District after
certain proposed LAFCO annexations are approved. Ms. Ochoa stated all maps are
shown on the poster boards displayed and hard copies are available at the back table.
She noted you can also find the maps at www.tricitymed.org/zones as PDF's and use
the interactive map viewer on the site that allows you to input addresses to see which
district that address falls into in each version of the map.

Ms. Ochoa stated the purpose of today’s community meeting is to get your input on
these six maps — what you like, what you don't like and if you have a favorite, as well as
that other neighborhood considerations make sense for you. She noted both the
demographer and Board Counsel are here to answer any questions you might have.

Ms. Ochoa introduced California Voting Rights Act consultant Doug Johnson of the
National Demographics Corporation. Mr. Johnson explained there are two sets of maps.
The maps with “fruit” names represent the current borders and the maps with “color”
names represent the maps that incorporate the LAFCO changes. He stated each zone
contains an equal number of people as is required by the California Voting Rights Act.
Secondly, lines are drawn to keep neighborhoods and protected classes together,
consistent with the California Voting Rights Act. Mr. Johnson explained one set of maps
follows the cities borders closely. An attempt was made to follow major roads and rivers
and respect communities of interest. He emphasized that the maps presented today are
not final. However if you want to change a map you must take an area out so you have
equal population areas. Pursuant to California Health & Safety Code Section 32100.04
in 2018 the three even-numbered zones hold elections and in 2020 the four odd-
numbered zones hold elections.

At the conclusion of Mr. Johnson's presentation, Ms. Ochoa asked for comments from
Board members.

Director Schallock questioned when the Board will begin to narrow down the map
selection. Ms. Ochoa stated at the December 7" Public Hearing the Board could, if they
so desire, choose two maps to consider (one map with current boundaries and one map
with the LAFCO changes). She explained if the Board makes a motion on the map
selection, the two maps will be brought back to a future meeting in approximately March
(pending LAFCO action by the County Board of Supervisors) to take action on the final
map. However, if additional draft maps are drawn revisions must be published seven
days before the Board can take any action and two additional public meetings must be
held within 45 days.

TCHD Special Board of Directors Meeting + 2= November 29, 2017

22



Director Mitchell questioned the absolute deadline for the Registrar of Voters. Mr.
Johnson stated the deadline for the Registrar of Voters is in May.

Hearing no further comments from the Board, Chairman Dagostino opened the meeting
to the public.

Ms. Ochoa recognized Ms. Esther Sanchez. Ms. Sanchez stated she is very concerned
with the proposed maps as she does not believe the maps are respecting the basic
communities. She commented that Oceanside and Vista need more representation.
She does not believe the maps are consistent with Article 21 of the Constitution.

Ms. Ochoa recognized Mr. Victor Roy. Mr. Roy requested clarification on the Camp
Pendleton area. Ms. Ochoa stated the LAFCO maps modified the jurisdictional
boundaries.

Mr. Roy also commented that he is against blended districts and believes it is unfair and
could lead to more Carlsbad control. He stated it is important for fair and equal access
for all.

Mr. Roy requested clarification on the zones following the 2020 census. Mr. Johnson
stated we will be required by law to redraw lines to reflect the 2020 census population.

Ms. Ochoa read a comment from Mr. Michael Odegaard who questioned what is the
statistical threshold for protected groups to be significant enough to compel
consolidation into one district?

Mr. Johnson stated there is no specific number. He stated that you cannot draw a
district that is more than 50% (50% + 1 of citizens of voting age). Mr. Odegaard
requested the source of that response. Mr. Johnson referred to a United States
Supreme Court decision. He indicated he would provide the case site to Mr. Odegaard
following the meeting.

Ms. Ochoa recognized Mr. Ed Martinez who questioned how the top maps were drawn
and what factors were used to draw those maps. Mr. Johnson stated the maps were
drawn to ensure equal population and keep protected classes together. He noted the
Green map follows as close to city borders as is possible. Mr. Johnson stated some
prefer the blended map approach because a Board member does not represent a city
but rather a district approach. Mr. Martinez stated he does not understand how
population influenced the drawing of the maps. Mr. Johnson explained all zones have
an equal number of people within 2-3%.

Ms. Ochoa recognized Ms. Sheila Kadah who questioned why Carlsbad is in the District
when, in her opinion, the majority of Carlsbad residents go to Scripps for their care. She
believes the Board should be comprised of a percentage of those residents who utilize
the services of Tri-City. Mr. Johnson stated these are jurisdictional boundaries and the
District is based on the tax base that supports the hospital.

Esther Sanchez questioned if we can get information on each city's population and play
around with the boundaries. Ms. Ochoa stated that is precisely what the maps reflect.
She noted you cannot dilute the Latino vote and zones need to be balanced population
wise. He emphasized that equal population “trumps” city boundaries.

Ms. Ochoa recognized Ms. Gwen Sanders who questioned how we are defining the
population. Mr. Johnson stated the population is defined by the 2010 census count.

TCHD Special Board of Directors Meeting -3- November 29, 2017



There was extensive discussion regarding Tri-City boundaries versus city limit
boundaries. Mr. Johnson reiterated that the boundaries are defined by law.

Ms. Sanchez questioned if the LAFCO application is available for review. Ms. Ochoa
stated the Resolution related to the LAFCO application is available on the District's
website.

Hearing no further community comments, Ms. Ochoa questioned if Board members had
any further comments.

Director Reno stated the Board was advised that the Camp Pendleton would not be
included in the population. Ms. Ochoa clarified there are two sets of maps, one set
reflects the current boundaries which include Camp Pendleton and the second set reflect
proposed annexation/de-annexation LAFCO boundaries.

Hearing no further comments, Ms. Ochoa stated the next public hearing is scheduled for

December 7™
4. There being no further business, Chairman Dagostino adjourned the meeting at 5:56
p.m.
James J. Dagostino
Chairman
ATTEST:

Laura E. Mitchell
Secretary

TCHD Special Board of Directors Meeting -4- November 29, 2017



TRI-CITY HEALTHCARE DISTRICT
MINUTES FOR A SPECIAL MEETING
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
November 29, 2017 - 7:00 o’clock p.m.
Carishad City Library — Meeting Room
1775 Dove Lane
Carlsbad, CA 92011

A Special Meeting of the Board of Directors of Tri-City Healthcare District was held at the
iocation noted above at 1775 Dove Lane, Carlsbad, CA at 7:00 p.m. on November 29, 2017.

The following Directors constituting a quorum of the Board of Directors were present:

Director Jim Dagostino, PT, DPT
Director Laura Mitchell

Director Julie Nygaard

Director RoseMarie V. Reno
Director Larry W. Schallock

Absent were Director Cyril F. Kellett, M.D. and Director Leigh Anne Grass
Also present were:

Steve Dietlin, CEO

Adriana Ochoa, Board Counsel

Susan Bond, General Counsel

Carlos Cruz, CCO

Doug Johnson, Demographer

Teri Donnellan, Executive Assistant
Rick Crooks, Executive Protection Agent

1. The Board Chairman, Director Dagostino, called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. at the
Carlsbad Library at1775 Dove Lane, Carlsbad, CA with attendance as listed above.
Director Dagostino led the Pledge of Allegiance.

2. Public Comments — Announcement
Chairman Dagostino read the Public Comments section listed on the Board Agenda.

3. Public Hearing Regarding Draft Maps for Change from At Large to District Based
Elections — Elections Code 10010(a) (2).

On behalf of the Tri-City Healthcare District, Board Counsel Adrianna Ochoa welcomed
the public in attendance. She stated for efficiency we would take comments or
questions due to the fact that no new community members are present.

Chairman Dagostino commented that the Tri-City District Hospital was created in 1959
and the annexation maps are more realistic of boundaries today.

Director Schallock requested clarification on the incorporated areas. Ms. Ochoa
explained that the proposed LAFCO maps capture the Shadowridge and La Costa
unincorporated areas. She stated it is not exactly cotenerous because it could cause
issues with Palomar and Fallbrook. Ms. Ochoa noted that we recently were advised that
Falibrook Hospital District passed a Resolution supporting our LAFCO application. She



explained that LAFCO is the agency that dictates the formation of local agencies and
their boundaries. By law, every five years LAFCO is required to reassess their
boundaries and the proposed annexations/de-annexations are the result of that
reassessment in 2015,

Mr. Johnson stated a community member does not have to attend one of the meetings
to submit their thoughts. He explained how it can be done directly on the District’s
website. In addition, a community member may e-mail Mr. Johnson or Mc Ochoa
directly.

Ms. Rena Marrocco, Vista Resident joined the meeting at 7:15 p.m. She stated she
believes that Vista should have more representation. In addition, she believes the
representation should be indicative of those who utilize the hospital's services. Ms.
Ochoa stated the law requires that the zones have equal population. She noted the
Orange map has three potential seats in Vista that include one seat that is “blended”.
Ms. Marrocco questioned if the community was encouraged to submit maps? Mr.
Johnson explained we have encouraged community members to review maps, make
comments or suggestions and advised they are free to submit a map of their choice. Mr.
Johnson reminded the community that if you suggest changes to a map the zones must
still be equal population. He reiterated that changes to maps must be posted seven
days prior to discussion.

Ms. Sanchez stated she believes Mr. Schenker who filed the lawsuit is more concerned
with proper boundaries than getting the maps done quickly. Director Schallock stated
there is a hard deadline by the Registrar of Voters to have a map in place in order to
vote by zone in the 2018 election.

Hearing no further questions or comments, Ms. Ochoa stated the next Public Hearing on
the matter is scheduled for December 7™ at 3:00 p.m.

4, There being no further business, Chairman Dagostino adjourned the meeting at 7:35
p.m.

James J. Dagostino
Chairman
ATTEST:

Laura E. Mitchell
Secretary

TCHD Special Board of Directors Meeting +2- November 29, 2017



TRI-CITY HEALTHCARE DISTRICT
MINUTES FOR A SPECIAL MEETING
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
November 30, 2017 - 5:30 o’clock p.m.
Vista Civic Center — Morris B. Vance Meeting Room
200 Civic Center Drive
Vista, CA 92081

A Special Meeting of the Board of Directors of Tri-City Healthcare District was held at the
location noted above at 200 Civic Center Drive, Vista, CA at 5:30 p.m. on November 30, 2017.

The following Directors constituting a quorum of the Board of Directors were present:

Director Jim Dagostino, DPT, PT
Director Laura Mitchell

Director Julie Nygaard

Director RoseMarie V. Reno
Director Larry W. Schallock

Absent were Director Cyril F. Kellett, M.D. and Leigh Anne Grass
Also present were:

Steve Dietlin, CEO

Kapua Conley, COO

Susan Bond, General Counsel

David Bennett, CMO

Adriana Ochoa, Board Counsel

Norma Braun, CHRO

Doug Johnson, Demographer

Teri Donnellan, Executive Assistant
Rick Crooks, Executive Protection Agent

1. The Board Chairman, Director Dagostino, called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m. at the
Vista Civic Center at 200 Civic Center Drive, Vista, CA with attendance as listed above.
Director Dagostino led the Pledge of Allegiance.

2. Public Comments — Announcement
Chairman Dagostino read the Public Comments section listed on the Board Agenda.

3. Public Hearing Regarding Draft Maps for Change from At Large to District Based
Elections — Elections Code 10010(a) (2).

On behalf of the Tri-City Healthcare District, Board Counsel Adrianna Ochoa welcomed
the public in attendance and gave a brief introduction to this California Voting Rights Act
community meeting.

Ms. Ochoa explained that the District is changing the way its Board of Directors is
elected. Instead of the current at-large method of elections in which all voters have the
opportunity to vote on each open seat, the District Board of Directors will be elected in
zones. She stated that this change will allow voters to now vote for the one Board
member representing the zone where the voter lives once every four years.

22



Ms. Ochoa stated today's community meeting is the last of three community meetings
held by the District, one in each of the District's three representative cities. The next
public hearing to discuss these maps and any proposed revisions is scheduled for
December 7, 2017 at 3:00 p.m. at Tri-City Medical Center where regular Board meetings
are held. Ms. Ochoa stated further information regarding locations of these community
meetings can be found on the District's website at www.tricitymed.org/zones.

Ms. Ochoa stated the District first published and made available four draft maps and
corresponding sequences of elections on October 19, 2017. Two additional maps were
published on November 28, 2017. Each of these maps divides the District into seven
different voting zones. Three of these draft maps reflect the current boundaries of the
District and three of the draft maps reflect the projected boundaries of the District after
certain proposed LAFCO annexations are approved. Ms. Ochoa stated all maps are
shown on the poster boards displayed and hard copies are available at the back table.
She noted you can also find the maps at www.tricitymed.org/zones as PDF's and use
the interactive map viewer on the site that allows you to input addresses to see which
district that address falls into in each version of the map.

Ms. Ochoa stated the purpose of today's community meeting is to get your input on
these six maps — what you like, what you don't like and if you have a favorite, as well as
that other neighborhood considerations make sense for you. She noted both the
demographer and Board Counsel are here to answer any questions you might have.

Ms. Ochoa introduced California Voting Rights Act consultant Doug Johnson of the
National Demographics Corporation. Mr. Johnson explained there are two sets of maps.
The maps with “fruit’ names represent the current borders and the maps with “color”
names represent the maps that incorporate the LAFCO changes. He stated each zone
contains an equal number of people as is required by the California Voting Rights Act.
Secondly, lines are drawn to keep neighborhoods and protected classes together,
consistent with the California Voting Rights Act. Mr. Johnson expiained one set of maps
follows the cities borders closely. He noted the healthcare district borders are not the
cities borders. An attempt was made to follow major roads and rivers and respect
communities of interest. He emphasized that the maps presented today are not final.
However if you want to change a map you must take an area out so you have equal
population areas. Mr. Johnson explained how the interactive map works and
demonstrated how one might “zoom in” or “zoom out” to see specific street names,
roads or landmarks. Mr. Johnson stated pursuant to California Health & Safety Code
Section 32100.04 in 2018 the three even-numbered zones will hold elections and in
2020 the four odd-numbered zones will hold elections.

At the conclusion of Mr. Johnson's presentation, Ms. Ochoa asked for comments from
Board members and the public.

Ms. Ochoa read the first form submission from the District's website into the record from
Kyle Thayer, City of Vista. Mr. Thayer commented as follows: *“I would like to speak in
favor of the purple plan. This plan allows the most citizens of Vista to have a voice in
2018. This plan also leaves communities naturally intact, whereas the boundaries in the
orange plan appear illogical and gerrymandered. | would be disappointed to see the
orange plan take effect, but would be happy with the purple or green plan, preferably
purple!l”

Ms. Ochoa recognized Mr. Lou Montulli. Mr. Montulli stated in the maps that are being
presented, you have purposely allowed Carlsbad to elect another Board member in 2018
and Vista would continue to have only one representative. Ms. Ochoa emphasized that

TCHD Special Board of Directors Meeting -2- November 30, 2017

22



the election sequencing has not been finalized. The focus is on the maps and various
zones. She re-emphasized that pursuant to the Health & Safety Code, the even number
zones will be up for election in 2018 and the four odd numbered zones will be up for
election in 2020.

Mr. Johnson emphasized the maps are not being drawn in an effort to get rid of the
existing Board and it is important to preserve the zones where incumbents are up for re-
election so the voters can decide who gets elected/re-elected.

Mr. Johnson stated the Green map is mainly city focused. He noted with the Orange
map Vista could potentially have four Board members due to the blended zones.

Ms. Ochoa recognized Ms. Cindy Odo-Amen who commented on the Orange map. She
questioned who drew the Orange map. Mr. Johnson stated all maps were drawn by his
staff.

Director Schallock stated the current boundaries were drawn in the 1950’s. He
explained the population of Camp Pendieton was included at that time by law however
the vast majority of that population is registered to vote in other localities. He stated that
LAFCO has recommended we clean up these boundaries to be coterminous with the
city's boundaries. Director Nygaard noted city boundaries have also changed over the
years.

Mr. Vince Loughney suggested the maps be done in a “jigsaw puzzle” type format in
colors so residents can see how their city is divided up. He is concerned that we are
asking for input on something that is not visual. Mr. Johnson suggested individuals use
the interactive viewer map on the District’'s website to see how the various layers.

Ms. Ochoa stated the fourth public hearing is scheduled for December 7™ at 3:00 p.m.
She suggested that the Board consider a cut-off date for maps to be submitted at that
meeting. She noted for the Board to consider a new map it must be published seven
days before the Board discusses it and there must be two public hearings within 45 days
to discuss the proposed new map.

Mr. Montulli suggested the community meetings and public meetings be advertised in
other venues to attract more interest. Mr. Johnson stated when the driving force for this
change is by an outside attorney, this is standard turnout for these community meetings.
Director Reno questioned if these meetings shouid be noticed in the newspaper. Ms.
Ochoa stated the Brown Act requires that the notice be posted on the District's website
and at the District offices which is currently being done.

Hearing no further questions or comments, the community meeting was closed.

9. There being no further business, Chairman Dagostino adjourned the meeting at 6:29
p.m.

James J. Dagostino
Chairman
ATTEST:

Laura E. Mitchell
Secretary

TCHD Special Board of Directors Meeting -3- November 30, 2017



0l Jo | abed - seouauadx] JapoysyeIS ﬂ....
€D- ZD- T0- vD- €D- ZO- TD- VO- ED- ¢O- TD- V¥D- €D- TO- 1D~ ED- 7D- TD- vD- €O- ZD- TD- +vD- £0- TO- TD- vO- ED- TO- 1D-
LTAS LTAI LTAA 9T A 9T A OT A 9T AJ STAJI STAI STAS STAI PTAd $T A VT Ad VT AS LTAMITALT AT AJ9T AJ 9T AIOT AJSTAIST AISTAIST AI PT A4 DT A 0T Ad PT Ad

o il i ) s e ' L B BEL (T L TR S ol taa e i e meiocims o
[EEREENNRAETELE ,
— — —_ B —— — — —- — — — — -1
- —_—— e | = e S I PR F— — J— ~ TV [ — L N
e —— BN BN M B 0 N | L€ —l— — — i — — 14
= + b &l — - —.— —— I — . — 9
E— - g E e ] Ll . B 4 g
B 9
L = § 3 oty Be B B o
g et —emese ===l — 1
B - —_ e e
ajey sanouan) asho|dw3 Asejunjonu| ajey Janousny ashojdwz Arejunjop

L1090 L1-des /1-8ny  ZT-0f  LT-unf ZT-Aey fT-idy fT-JeW £T-G94  LT-uer ST-30 9T-AON 9120 91-das 9r1-3ny  9T-jnf  9T-unf

L ] 1 1 ] 1 1 1 i i 1 L 1 1 I3 1 1

= Ok =——T¢ oz 1 - o8

OT-6 P24035={0= HUBY B|1IUSTID =t

(01-0) |exidsoH jo Buney |jesan0

s3auaIadx3 1apjoyaels

@©>§ L_S:mu_mu__um_\,_b_u._# )
FAVD HLIVAH QIADNVAAY &




31035 uoiae)sies

justied panaidwi 10) preme WeasiSuylieays
uorjaeysies juaned pasosdw] «

SAM paseasIag «

ul paynsas saBueyd asayy

"N 01 20T a8e(1) u) S, PRUEIS LT/E »
ez 01 eg afeu) ul SN uiplroad syd

pajuawaidw sadueyd

uejd uoIY

sapnlu) pajejas ainssard

WLy pAEWUBIAINP S3paNnlu) JeNISEN o

*LT/0T POUELS uojeuawnlop aaoiduy
01 YN w udisapal punom Juawadiug «
13#e) Jupaaw anunuol

ue|d uoipRy

L1-dag
{1

-3ny

LT-nr

LT-unf

“HE W papusnenn

33| 230 14 :[|B3 1, u0p S1d :5aduajjey) «
g|neas

U] Juo2 HONTYD) 18 paluasatd yaualfsy «
ueyd A1ajes Jupaunied NU/AWeL/1d «

Q1 SIH )1ed O udisBpay «
$5320)4 Sunajio] paIsIssy «
:0} anp ssaJjdoud panuijuod

uejd uoly

1sdie] JNDL

- mm s =

»__m

1303g

- e s E—

sadueyasia oot Jod +(1 adeis Aunfu| 2anssaid pasinbay jejidsod asnoH-u;

. w =] n
.M.v [1:] & m = ) = 3 .W m = m o
TM 9 T.M T 3 Y wE 2 T w2 7 < T.pW- 3 Im T t 9 Lz 2
~ - ~t - [ — om [ - = [ o [ o = = = [
5 ~ T ~ o T oo n °® ) o T o ? o o Hh UE "
A A k. — i .

sheq juaned 0ot s2d sj(ed apim [endsoH

N Rensuussnssascasase

uesiN vo ueay 21ey JINDL

. - 22 - =
o
o

> - — [wr) (=) wy . o p-3 -mn [ [ ] (=]

m o i c ® I

w3 3 oz % 2 % .z 2 % .2 £ 3 23} 23 FT O: 2 p% %

- - = = - = - -3 [ - = - =

= 9 M3 4 o a 2% & o 9@ &5 o < & T & 1 L " b
e R A n \ L L 00T
Y44
1174
St
00E
SE
0SE

T - — Q (=] wn o s p-J . [ jwr] o

o o o c m o

~4 [ 7} (=] = = = = o u [ [

= 5 Y3 4 ] & 7% & o *w & @ = & T & & & Vs &
o : o - %00
%S0
%0'T

e = = = =l === = == =—0 e e e e R e W e e sl e Rl ==l
%5'T

Wi & m N = ©O

S3INSEIIA m:__u:m..cw.::u



LN b L gl - - ﬂ
w [ b-3 - — [ ] =) wv - —_ h -3 Il —_ [w] [w]
i) = G - ) [ 1 -3 £ 13 g ) 1 m = a
agesnuonepen| £ w2 £ 2 9§ F ogF L 2 B 2% 2 TogZ i 258l I o2 % owEoQ
~ @ ~ T N TN ~ @ 5 @ ) ; =3 3 5 o v o o \n T o
uonduasasd pioido ajes pue suoneapaw| | n " f f . S ’ " o ' s a ¢ s 2 Loeg
Jo |esodsip ajes Supsedal uo1ansul
afieyasip s,juaiied ay) up UOIBWIOJUI BDE|g T %9
HOOQPUEH JUMIEH 14
a3y} 0] pappe SEM (010D 3SETSIQ JO) JAWD) T OE OO0 oD 00 B P T L L L CODO00O000 OO0
3yl Woyj Uo|IeINPa Juswadeuew ey T T — %81
ue|d uojY ajey uonduasald s3.eyasig prowdo Lids
dalla9g
w e — I il [ [w] (=] wvr . e Is o [ o D
g .2 £ 5 .2 % .2 % 3 % .z 2 8 .» £ 5 .3 % .z & % & .z 32
5 S& g5 g N¥ 5 OS¥ o4 o5 5 8% 5 5 S5 n & °F B °F 5 5 & V¥ o4
" . . . L " . 2 o n . ; . . -
—_— e — - PR *E
dﬁ@ﬂ.ﬁ“ “daudadsatssannsnanassssasssssssecssadesgfoccisnuaned tsncacaanunnnnnnnMuguububvbubbereesrespun osasssaasannssnnnnn nmmEEmEmbeg bbb *m
L1007 QLA ‘%6'9= SHM1 9TO0T "%5°E ;€0
aaoqe sy %6
T
uejd UoIdY - SEOM1 e
121iag
w - £ > s 9 o ¥ . F 3 0y 9 o
3 .r £ 5 .2 % g % 3 % .z 3 % . £ 3 F % .3 % 2 % .z %
§ SE g g V¥ g S¥ o5 o5 g B2 o2 B % 5 5 °F & % 8 & & "Eon
=l e — [ = A - i A i 4
12powas adepy et t o e e b e b 4 e b e 4 4 e e ¢ e e e ) e e o w4 ¢ . — oe
:83ugyeys Sujwo) oy
”)O—Hm ﬂ< T I I T T T R L L L R R LR Y E LR R Ry "SR R R R R R R R LR AR LR L) 8
08
ue|d uonIy
- aw a3 0} (eAllY ot
191199
i
9B JNDL =eem e — UBBW YD) =+ =i mem T1-17 7. R —— 91BY JWOL

S3INSLIN mc_n:w._:m._._zu



23

th €0 IO 1O b €O I TO ¢ €0 O TO DO €D O D YO EDO I W 0 €0 W W
LTAd LTAd LTAd £TAS 9TAd OTAJ OTAd 9TAd STAJ STAd GTAJ STAJ PTAd PTAd VTAJ PIAd ETAd ETAd ETAd ETAd ZTAd TTAd TIAM ZTM

“WYHY YUm Sn1els snjd ploo se payiuad uiedy| o s L N . ' ) L N L%
gD i04 81ed ssed 00T %0z
“101BU|UIOUDP WD) BSED SIA0LIDI SIY)L |
‘AR|ap B JO) UOSEDS |ENP3W pljea %0V
e apinoud 01 5,QW 10} JBWIBD W MOp doup ing %09
L og
Ug|d uoipy Ui g9 - Adedayl 2nAjoguiosy) SNOU3ABIIU| 0 BW)] Ll
*5|5dag 3I3ABS JO JASUO UOISSHUPE 1S0d a a a ot ot - o1
UOREIUBNIOR $20YS ANAas - [1-d35 BNy L1-0f LT-UNf AR ZT-dY -JBIN £T-G94 LT-UE[9T-33Q -AON 9T-1309T-035 -Bny gT-Inf 91-unr -AeW 9T-1dy -JeW 9T-994 9T-Uer5T-320
isafuageys| | . ; e . rod e : - . . i it f P A A . A o
‘uoneniul sisdas apod g3 - )
‘MeIp3I e pue saduajjeyd zo
pin|4 J0j sassaosd pajewoine pasoidiL) « vo
1S3S5AIING 90
“BAe [RUONIEL BACGE 5| %8S 2l ssed £ 20
uBjd UOIP 3ue4 dag/sisd : 3 A T
i 12 ‘1 NIoys nydas fsisdas a1aaas ‘s|pung juawadeuew Apel
wr - —_ b= ] —_ [w] (=] wn . — -3 Iy — =) Q
€ .2 E § .2 % £ % % & z 3 § _» £E 5 .z % .=z &F 3 R} .=z 3
T R B N2 s NE g o B &g w- 2 om B B MY s ol e = = h2 B
sisyendsoyaipAqpasnl T g ' = : : 22 ' e e cavs e e ige

suejd Jamod voissiwpe 3y Jo uol3as wed ay)
dunepdn ase s3sneRdS0Y 34Y) pue Ayeuneyq ') %V

‘ucnesnpa —
J0Y|SiA pue JUalied 10} SIOO} || UD UD|IEW.IDju)

ebecbbeneitbbubLL e bIsssRSEsaR R AENRRREREEES eressseecsssnnannant T T R e o

l.’ AxuaBiaw3l - 21ey uopdidsasd adseyasig prordo
1a1leg

ue|d uoIPRYy

——wv—ay

IDEIBLDJNDL = — s e UBAA YD == == UBBA]  cevermersossonmsnren 9EY JINDL




"lpueys Jg semsaq S QN

Aq pasn maou 3jpung 5ins |E132I010) APY
“adseyIs|p uodn

JE3)D 2Je suonaInnsy) ases do-jsod aInsul «
‘anbjuy33y Buissalp apals 0] 21eINP3
‘sadueyd Ssap do-)sod paznipiepuels dojasag »
‘Buissasp snoiaaad 3uisn 0) paLINgay

ue|d uoiRy

sjuaged (| 412313112 10} D) VI S1218Y1ED AB(O4.
INGINO BULIN SE3LW 0} STAIIELIRY|E JO BSM)e
34NN aunn jo Junuite

slayeq

5I21211E2 WOPLOI DB MBN

535532008

‘parIadxa

MO SIUBA3 |LNYD "LTOZAD Jo4 Asewnung

ue|d uonay

{2%0¢) se8IE Yan0) YAy UCIIBJUISIOe
{2aueydwa3 505} Agep auop J0uU Yieq DH)-
S1aieg

PIEMY JUSWA3IYIY JON TV

{3656) SeARPOIHW PAsHUN uo sded gemss
{2¢66) SaAR[I0JNW P3PO0I 10|03 73 Yaiedoig.
{s¢00T) Aepamies Aaaa sadueys dig.
15355322N5

SI) 7 15E) 10 %0 S1UaAR |SAYTD ‘Alewing

uejd uolpy

Janeg

FELRET:

€D LTAD

D LTAD D LTAD

IO LTAD TOLTAD

ZO LTAD D LTAD

4

131129

-y g

BIICLINIL = s

uezn v

T e e v mmmm o 0 w4

N )

¥D 9TAD ED 9TAD Z09TAD TD9TAD

B h e s s e s ¢ Emmme s ¢ mmm— o n e 4 4 A

23

¥0 STAD €D ST D 5TAD
00

0T

0102 - SUOIIIRJU| PAILIIOSSY dJed}|ea

O 9TAD ED9TAD TD 9T T09TAD

LAY - SU0NIBju| PalRI20SSY 21e3y)jeaH

O 9TAD £D9TAD TD9TAD TD 9TAD

IS8T - SUOIIaJU| palelIoSSY Jedyljead

uesiy

ssumsssssaseasesssers

e cran - 0T

(493

ov

0 STAD ED STAD TOSTAD

50
o1
St
ot

0 STAD EDSTAD ZD STAD

S0
0T
ST

ot

21eY JNDL

SaINSeaN m:%:m.acmt_,_u



23

walosd uawanosdul EDLTAD TOLTAD TOLTAD ¥0D9TAD £09TAD T09TAD TO9TAD FOSTAD TDSTAD TOSTAD £DSTAD
axewnopad e se Siy) uasoyd sey aja) « — = x JE— + 00
SHON ‘2DA wosy vonenpoey Sunsyus « o
fujoSuo uoneanpy « .
xmﬁu —.—.—-; —.umoﬂ.-m_._UmD_.-mHUhuwm u_r_D. P T 12 2 2 o s s LT L e T T T I T 2 aiisnnnn ST N presrrriasgass pirraassssssecssan AnmmE vc
uonesawjdw asuls moj ue||duso?) » 90
1s1U3)1ed Maqeiq T e e i e s e oo g s e e R R 20
uejqd uoiay a afieydsiq asojag apeyy siddy dn-mofjos Yum siusned % L
HEY] [00)S |01S1E SUppY (UOIY
Aemujied gipd dojanaq “asn aanexes
unsa) pue uonesyhuapl £0 2TAD Z0 LT 10 LTAD ¥0 9TA £DOTAD ZD9TAD T09TA 0 STAD £0 5TAD 70 STAD
Ajtea w pre 03 uonduasap |0ols Suiueyd Yoets| . i A i —_— A . . 0D
sianeq
Yaealq yim uoIBjuIsige 50
uds g 9ydind yo asn
sa1em 12 deos yum Suiysem pueHs [P S oo N . e ienerstessetesresreseraenees -
:5955320Ng

A

uBjd uoiYy 191399 103 - SUONAJU| PAIRIIOSSY BIEdYIEIH I
€0 LTAD 70 LT 10 £TAD PO 9TAD £09TAD 2D 9TAD 1D 9TAD D STAD €0 STAD ZD STAD
: . : e — 1 |
uoissipe up juasaid ySUIN
Apuopt o) Sunson g uoneguap At | oo g s eeeterreestereseesreressesnesaensesenerasesnsensenee Mgues o
et o s e — o
pajzadxa mojag Ie SIUDAD
Poo|q YSHW O1 g ‘LTOTAD 104 "_.CNEE_.—W &1
ue|d uoiy 12124 VSHIA - SUDII28JU| PRIBIIOSSY B1RILYESH Wt
——yr-u
19IBL JNIL -+ — - — UBDN W) =rmemem UBDIA  «rorresseeresnssnins aley INOL

SaINsSean mc__ucm.u:wt:u



0T jo £ 98eq - YImo19

.4eaA Joud 0} paJedwiod IUELIONSY

[4%4 6T 11 ET Bl 91 0t [44 0z 4! LT 81 8T LTAd

sase) A128ins anoqoy Puiaeq juaneding

1348 L4 LT 11 [4} [1]8 43 8 (43 £T 8 17 8 LTAd

182 | ot (3 5¢ 5¢ e 6T £2 &L st €1 (44 87 LTAd

sase) Assding auids

awInjoA

23



0T jO § 88ed - yimain

LTAd

suoIuUaAI3Y| JeIpIe) Juanedu|

saLBAIRQ

aweg [ deuem 11834 sopd 01 pasedwiod SIUBLLGHSY

5081 oLl HLLT

0881

{Dav) snsud) Apeq a8esany - {eldsOH

LTAd

LT 8T
BET veT vor el
PO das any Inr
(Dav) snsuad Aireqg adesaAy - (NDIN) JUN 246D BAISUAU| [BIBUOBN

89 89 LTAd
Toel s

L9 v'6 08 0L 6 6'S 9's
€L

any
(2av) snsua) Ajleqg 23eaaay - U geyay aindy

0’9t _9st 591

eore  zor i

(3av) snsua) Ajjeq a8e1aay - YijeaH jeloiaeyag Juanedu)

23



0T J0 6 33ed - yImoLo

:Jeak Joud oy paredwod ajuewllopad

B awes

0L'7 9.1 TLT ¥9'T ELT ELT 191 0Ll 89T L'l 9L'1 TLT 89'T LTAd

6L'T 08't 181 08°T SLT 8TA4

(anuanay di/anusaay |g10]} 103384 paisnipy JNIL

65 | 1 9 6 L z 4 L 5 9 9 ¥ v LTA

SuoKUaAIU| JBIpIED JUBedINg

23



0T 40 0T 38e4 - YBuans |edueuly

0'v9s

6LLS E'viS 9ELS 9pES L'SES 6525 0'EzS 6'8TS 2978 ¥'62% 1625 LT

78S £ZhS 8'6v5 m.mlmm| BTAd

{1pa1) jo aur Suiajoaay 3|qe|ieay + ysed) suoljjiw vl $ Aupinbiy oHDL

SE'T (4948 15T LET SET 05’1 E€LT 651 LET LE'T LE'T LTA

m.n.._” ov.._” mv:_” nm.ﬁ mﬂt

Ty WL “ENWLL 994 WLL UerWLL | J8aWIL | AONWIL T BPOWLLT dSSWWLILT 30y WL T NfIALL
uoleNIjED JUBLAA0) Belano) 281ey] paxid AHIL

819 0E'S 529 L9 92’9 9T'9 EF9 585 vLS v8's 0’9 LTAS

138png qiA

9z'9 06'9 €6's 159 8TAd

Inr

W/ pag paidnazg paisnipy sad (jusjeanby awig-nd) 314 pled JWIL
%609 %9T°6 %IT'S BET b %55°5- %82'S UZSE 3469°'5 %LT'Q %ER'S WLT'L %UTE'S %0L'S LTAd
%66°C %LTE %99'€ %69'E %087 %EQ'E 8TAd
BEAREGIR =R . She s
. anuaaay Sunesado 2104 J0 % YALIEI QHDL
t60'55 re'es 8S5°TS ETT'TS {0€9'1%) BIV'TS 01015 955°TS TTLTS GOE'ZS S10'2S 96k'TS £85°1S LTAd
729'2s £58'TS 9vT'TS 160'TS ¥98S 868% 8TA4

TJadpng QLA URFETT ARINT T Iy T RN a3 B sed e, T MONLL w0 das Ay T T e T

W/

{uoneziuouwly pue uoiepasdag ‘saxe  ‘1s3133u) 240434 sdujuie3) spuesnoy] ul § vaLlg3 aHIL

%¥0'S %660 %0 %Z6'6" %L9°0 Ho6L0 %ST'T %151 %66'E %69'C %SL0 %07 LTAd

%EE'T
398pna QIn
W/

%550 %9L°0- %6E'T- WEE'T- 8TAd

uEf [ . int
anuaaay SuizesadQ (2301 Jo 9% 30HI AHIL

JEIN q24

L1748

015'1$

9625 {g9s) {z16'28) 1814 {9zzs) LTES vIvS 8IT'TS 9psS ITeS 887% LTA

(£8T°1S)
Jafpng giA”

{8v0'TS)

(121%) {rees) aﬁa_. = 8TAd

uef 190 dag Any

18N q24

W/ (sesuadxg Jano anuanay ssaIXJ} spuesnoy] i § 3043 AHIL
€8 618 S18 (T4 AL -1 e 6'L8 16 788 <98 918 6'8L LTAd
00T-SL 008 e8] 8'8L T'6L T'e8 8TAd

any Inf
{d/v) ajqeAed sunoddy ut sAeq JNDL
005 L '8l v'6Y B8k 06t 6B 505 9’6l 5'05 L8y T0S 15 LTAd
75-Bb T8y 805 6B 8L Ly BTA4

afuey

[E09

Ay QLA
W/

inr
{4/v) 21qeA1a32Y SIUN020Y Ul sAeq@ JINDL

yi1duauis jerdueuly

o —f

23



24

i1 L10Z/9t/0t Aojosalusonsen| J-vd BAJ Aysinys
9z LT0z/E/0T 15180]01pNY any Auejnig auuay
gunasw idal| s€ L102/61/6 1sidojoipny any su) Juny

Xau ayy Ie pajuasasd aq |pan 03 01 Apeas pue 313jdwod s1 34
s|euoissajold YieaH pally
8T LT0Z/€T/0T Adojoisayisauy an uaydaig UBLUBSIM
¥ L10z/e/1t BUIP3A [e33] 7 |BUIBIBIN anw ELEMN sewoy]
€2 £102/9/01 A3o|oipesajal aw utAey esoyjen
8T LTOZ/ET/0T A193ing |esauay aw BAY 1UI3SSOH
8 L1oz/Lz/on NAD/80 aw adioen uos)i9
dunaapy sjeuapal) Y LT0Z/se/6 DUIZIPIN |B194 17 |euladeiy aw sownselaf se|jeg

Asenuer ay) 1e pajuasaid aq )M )14 "8TOZ/E/T |UN

3N J,us! dxuelnsu) s1apiaoad 3yl Inq S121dwod st |l SiyL
v L10z/61/0T AURIP3N Ajlwiey 0a Jedyag aajpeq
3els |eapain
SJUDLWIWIOY| S590044d |[3]1e( PIAIDIIY >u_m_umn.m ﬂm..mmn_ SWEN 35414 IUWIEN 1587

ut sheqg | uonenddy

LT-8-TT JO Sse ss2204d uo11ealjuaA ul suonjedtjddy

44VvIS )

._.1-.__

JUD _mu_vws_

A )




@9 Tri-City Medical Center

Building Operating Leases

Month Ending Oclober 31, 2017

ABVANCEE)I HEALTH CARE

7 IE!-_‘! Tgtg!-_ﬁ_o;n_t = __ T —— = -
_ _ |Ratoper| || percurrant |  LesseTerm % :
L 'Lessor 8q.Ft.| 8q.Ft mo'nt_h _Beginning . Ending | Services & Location

6121 Paseo Del Norte, LLC

|6128 Paseo Del Norte, Suite 180 QOSNC - Carlsbad

Carisbad, CA 92011 Approx |6121 Paseo Del Nore, Suite 200
Vi#83024 9.552 $3.48 |(a} 44,164.55 07/01/17| 06/30/27|Carlsbad, CA 92011

American Health & Retirement

DBA: Vista Medical Plaza

140 Lomas Santa Fe Dr., Ste 103 |PCP Clinic - Venus

Solona Beach, CA 92075 2067 W. Vista Way, Ste 160
V#82904 1,558 $2.39 [(a) 4,917.74 01/27/17| 05/31/20|Vista, CA 92083

Camelot Investments, LLC

5800 Armada Dr., #200 PCP Clinic - Radlance
Carisbad, CA 92008 Approx 3698 Vista Way, Ste. C
V#15608 3,563 $1.80 [{a) 10,492.53 4/1/2016|  01/31/20|0ceanside, CA 92056

Creek View Medical Assoc

1926 Via Cenire Dr. Sulle A PCP Clinic « Vista

Vista, CA 92081 Apprax 1926 Via Centre Drive, Ste A
V#81981 6200 | 5263 |(a) 20,106.00 21/2015)  01/31/20]Vista, CA

CregkView Orthopaedic Bidg, LLC

1958 Via Centre Drive OSNC - Vista

Vista, Ca 92081 Approx 1858 Via Centre Drive

V#83025 4,995 $2.50 |{a} 15,184 80 07/01/17] 06/30/22}vista, Ca 92081

Eflin Investments, LLC

Clancy Medical Group

20136 Elfin Creek Trail {PCP Clinic - Clancy
Escondido, CA 92029 2375 Melrose Dr. Vista
VRB2575 3,140 $2.49 |(a) 9,642.26 12/01/15| 12/31/20|Vista, CA 82081

(3]

3621 Vista Way Performance Improvement
Oceanside, CA 92056 3927 Waring Road, Ste.D
|#v81473 1,583 $1.92 |{a] | 3,398.15 01/01/13]  10/31/17|Oceanside, Ca 92056
[Investors Property Mgmt. Group

c/o Levitt Family Trust OP Physlcal Therapy

2181 €l Camino Real, Ste. 206 OP OT & OP Speech Therapy
Oceanside, Ca 92054 2124 E. El Camino Real, Ste.100
V81028 5,214 $1.86 |{a} 10,555.20 09/01/17]  08/31/19|Oceanside, Ca 92054

Melrose Plaza Complex, LP

c/o Five K Management, Inc.

P O Box 2522 |Qutpatient Behavloral Health
La Jolla, CA 92038 510 West Vista Way

V43849 7,247 $1.35 |{a) 10,104.01 07/01/16| 06/30/21|Vista, Ca 82083

OPS Enterprises, LLC Chemotherapy/infusion Oncology
3617 Vista Way, Bldg. 5 Center

Oceanside, Ca 92056 3617 Vista Way, Bidg.5
#V81250 4,760 $4.00 |{a) 26.047.00 10/01/12(  10/01/22|Oceanside, Ca 82056
Ridgeway/Bradford CA LP

DBA: Vista Town Center

PO Box 19068 Vacant Building

Irvine, CA 92663 510 Hacienda Drive Suite 108-A
Vi#81503 3,307 $1.10 [{a} 5,039.70 10/28/13| 03/03/18|Vista, CA 92081

Tri-City Orthopedic Bldg Partners

3905 Waring Road OSNC - Oceanslide

Oceanside, CA 92056 3905 Waring Road

Vi#83020 10,218 $2.50 h[a] 27,970.32 07/01/17| 06/30/22|Oceanside, CA 92056

Total i $ 187,61%.26

(a) Total Rent includes Base Rent plus property taxes, association fees, Insurance, CAM expenses, etc.

24



ADVANCED HEALTH CARE

‘C?)) i-Ci ' FOR NN
Tri-City Medical Center YOU

Education & Travel Expense

Month Ending 10/31/17
Cast
Centers Description Invoice # _Amount Vendor # Attendees
6010 NEURDLOGICAL CHALLENGES 92217  333.95 78147 LINDA SPRAGUE
6183 SURGICAL NURSES ANNUAL CONVENTION 101617 1,587.90 80084 COURTNEY NELSON
7420 AQRN VIDEO LIBRARY COURSES 72717 505.00 78238 MARY DIAMOND
8350 CP5 ANNUAL MEETING 91117  147.50 79349 TORI HONG
8390 ASHP MED SAFETY MEETING 82917  395.00 81328 THERESA VIDALS
8390 NPPA CONFERENCE 91917  432.94 10894 LAURA BALL
8350 CERNER CONFERENCE 82917 513.78 82547 EVELYN SHEN
8390 CERNER CONFERENCE 82917 52378 82547 EVELYN SHEN
8390 IHFDA CONFERENCE 60117 1,432.43 81328 THERESA VIDALS
8510 PATIENT EXPERIENCE FORUM 72117 138.89 82728 JENELLE LOVELADY
8510 CERNER CONFERENCE 101817 666.21 82086 RICK SANCHEZ
8610 PRIME LEARNING COLLABORATIVE 100517  357.35 80739 SCOTT LUVINGSTONE
8615 PROJECT MANAGEMENT COURSE 83117  199.00 80986 JAMIE JOHNSON
8620 CHA GOVERNANCE CONFERENCE 101217 336.16 81515 JAMES DAGQSTIND
8650 CA HR CONFERENCE 50717 12846 81618 FRANCES CARBAJAL
£700 AHIMA CONVENTION 101117 1,075.55 83090 KRISTIN OROZCO
8740 PULMONARY CARE 81717 100.00 12061 NATAUYA BENDETSKAYA
8740 NEONATAL AND ADULT PULOMARY CARE 81717  100.00 13423 ROSIE BOZIN
8740 NEONATAL AND ADULT PULOMARY CARE 81717  100.00 31293 DOREEN GRENUS
8740 SHARP PULMONARY CARE CONFERENCE 81717 100.00 65658 MARGARET STRIMPLE
8740 MGMT OF MEDICATION DURING LACTATION 101317  100.00 78644 CYNDI OZBUN
8740 CONTINUING EDUCATION FOR RADIOLOGY 92817  125.00 82014 MAUREEN O'GRADY
8740 ACLS RENEWAL COURSE 92817 13747 80037 MELISSA P, MENDOZA
8740 ACLS RENEWAL COURSE 92817  137.47 80038 AMANDA BERGAMINI
8740 NEOMATAL RESUSCITATION PROGRAM 81717  140.00 77564 GAIL HART
8740 ACLS RENEWAL COURSE 100417 140.00 78502 RICHARD HUBER
8740 ASPEN ONLINE SEMINAR 92117  200.00 77946 KELU GECEWICZ
8740 AABB ANNUAL MEETING 101317  200.00 79260 TERESA ANDREIKA
8740 NEONATAL NURSES CONFERENCE 92817  200.00 81651 KAREN SULLIVAN
8740 1D WEEK CONFERENCE 101317 200.00 82350 MANUEL ESCOBAR
8740 CERNER CONFERENCE 101317 1,255.48 65505 KIMBERLY QUINN
8740 CERNER CONFERENCE 101617 1,281.97 67036 KATHY TOPP
8756 CERNER CONFERENCE 101617 1,167.83 83102 JACLYN HUNTER

**This report shows relmbursements to employees and Board members in the Education
& Travel expense category in excess of $100.00.
**Detailed backup is available from the Finance department upon request.



	agenda.packet.Decedmber.2017.1
	agenda.packet.December.2017.2
	agenda.packet.December.2017.3

